Collus Power Stream
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' Collingwood ON L9Y 375
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\_/ Operations Department Fax: (705) 445-0791
Finance Department Fax: (705) 445-8267
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August 21, 2013

Board Secretary

Ontario Energy Board

PO Box 2319

27th Floor 2300 Yonge Street
Toronto ON M4P 1E4

Attn: Kirsten Walli

RE: Collus PowerStream (ED-2002-0518)

2013 Electricity Distribution Rate Application, EB-2012-0116

Interrogatory Responses

On July 10, 2013, the Board issued Procedural Order No. 1 in the above-captioned proceeding which
set out a timetable for interrogatories. Accordingly, Collus PowerStream is submitting responses to
the interrogatories that were received from Board Staff and intervenors.

These interrogatory responses have been filed on RESS and two paper copies have been forwarded
to the Board Secretary.

If you have any questions please do not hesitate to contact the undersigned at
gmcallister@collus.com or (705)445-1800 ext 2274.

Yours truly,

Glen McAllister, B.Sc., CMA
Manager, Billing & Regulatory
Collus PowerStream

Cc: David Maclntosh (by email)
Randy Aiken (by email)
Michael Janigan (by email)
Mark Garner (by email)

Bill Harper (by email)
Wayne McNally (by email)
Mark Rubenstein (be email)
Jay Shepherd (by email)

“TOGETHER WE ARE BETTER”



EB-2012-0116

Ontario Energy Board

IN THE MATTER OF the Ontario Energy Board Act,
1998, S.0. 1998, c. 15, Sched. B, as amended:

AND IN THE MATTER OF an application by Collus
PowerStream Corporation for an Order or Orders
approving or fixing just and reasonable rates and other
service charges for the distribution of electricity, effective
September 1, 2013.

COLLUS POWERSTREAM CORP. RESPONSES TO
INTERROGATORIES OF
BOARD STAFF AND INTERVENORS

August 21, 2013
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Responses to Interrogatories of
Board Staff and Intervenors
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Filed: August 21, 2013

General

1.0-Staff-1 — Updated RRWF

Upon completing all interrogatories from Board staff and intervenors, please provide
an updated RRWF with any corrections or adjustments that the applicant wishes to
make to the amounts in the previous version of the RRWF, in the middle column.
Please include documentation of the corrections and adjustments, such as a
reference to an interrogatory response or an explanatory note.

Response

There are no updates to report.
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1-SEC-1

Please provide a table showing any adjustment arising from the interrogatory
process. This table should include the IR number, application area, description of
the change and the impact on the revenue requirement,).

Response

There are no updates to report.
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1.0-VECC-1
Reference: Exhibits All/
Pls. note this interrogatory may be answered in conjunction with 1.0-Staff-3

a) Please provide a tracking sheet (table) showing all adjustments arising
from the interrogatories (include Reference IR #.; Item description;
area of change, i.e. return on capital/rate base/working capital
allowance/amortization/PILS/OM&A/ etc.).

Response

There are no updates to report.
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1.0-Staff-2 — Updated Appendix 2-W, Bill Impacts

Upon completing all interrogatories from Board staff and intervenors, please
provide an updated Appendix 2-W for all classes at the typical consumption /
demand levels (i.e. 800 kWh for residential, 2,000 kWh for GS<50).
Response

There are no updates to report.
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1.0-Staff-3 — Updated Revenue Requirement

Upon completion of responses to all interrogatories, please identify any
adjustments to the proposed service revenue requirement that the applicant
wishes to make relative to the original application.

Response

In response to 8.0-Staff-31 the following changes were made to the Cost of
Power calculation:

Change in Cost of Power Impacts ($000)

Change
Amount (decrease)
Cost of Power - as filed $ 30,273
Cost of Power - updated Aug. 21, 2013 $ 29,617 (356)
WCA Impact @13% $ (85)
Revenue Requirement Impact @5.94 cost of capital $ (9)

Due to the minor change in revenue requirement Collus PowerStream is
requesting the changes be made at a later point when the draft rate order is
prepared.

Also, 4.0-Staff-26 changes the tax amount by less than $2,000, which is
insignificant.
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EXHIBIT 1 — ADMINISTRATIVE DOCUMENTS

1-Enerqy Probe-1

Ref: Exhibit 1, Tab 1, Schedule 2

The evidence indicates that the 2013 COS application was filed on April 30,
2013. Please confirm that due to missing information a revised application
and evidence was filed on May 24, 2013. Please also confirm that further
amendments to the evidence were filed on June 6, 2013.

Response
Collus PowerStream confirms that EB-2012-0116 was filed April 30, 2013. Due

to missing information additional evidence was filed May 24, 2013 and a further
amendment was filed June 6, 2013.
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1.0-Staff-4 — Corporate Organization Chart
Ref: E1/T1/S 12; E1/T1/S 13; E1/T1/S16

In E1/T1/S12, Collus PowerStream provides a summary of the share purchase
which was reviewed and approved by the Board in its decision on the MAADs
application EB-2012-0056. This transaction resulted in PowerStream Inc.
acquiring a 50% equity interest, and the Town of Collingwood retaining a 50%
equity interest, reduced from 100%, as result. In E1/T1/S16, Collus
PowerStream, states: “The Town of Collingwood is no longer an affiliate of Collus
PowerStream as a result of the PowerStream transaction.”

Since the Town of Collingwood retains a 50% interest in Collus PowerStream
through its shareholding of Collus PowerStream’s parent, Collingwood
PowerStream Utility Services Corp., why does Collus PowerStream believe that it
is no longer affiliated with the Town of Collingwood?

Response:

The Affiliate Relationship Code (ARC) defines an “affiliate”, with respect to a
corporation, as having the same meaning as in the Business Corporations Act
(Ontario). Subsections 1(2), 1(4) and 1(5) of the Act provide :

Interpretation: subsidiary body corporate

(2) For the purposes of this Act, a body corporate shall be deemed to
be a subsidiary of another body corporate if, but only if,

(a) it is controlled by,
(i) that other, or

(ii) that other and one or more bodies corporate each of which is
controlled by that other, or

(iif) two or more bodies corporate each of which is controlled by
that other; or

(b) it is a subsidiary of a body corporate that is that other’s
subsidiary.

Affiliated body corporate

4) For the purposes of this Act, one body corporate shall be deemed
to be affiliated with another body corporate if, but only if, one of
them is the subsidiary of the other or both are subsidiaries of the
same body corporate or each of them is controlled by the same
person. R.S.0. 1990, c. B.16, s. 1 (4).
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Control

(5) For the purposes of this Act, a body corporate shall be deemed to
be controlled by another person or by two or more bodies corporate if, but
only if,

(a) voting securities of the first-mentioned body corporate carrying
more than 50 per cent of the votes for the election of directors
are held, other than by way of security only, by or for the benefit
of such other person or by or for the benefit of such other bodies
corporate; and

(b) the votes carried by such securities are sufficient, if exercised,
to elect a majority of the board of directors of the first-mentioned
body corporate.

As discussed in Exhibit 1, Tab 1, Schedule 12 of the Application, the Town of
Collingwood sold a 50% interest in Collingwood Utility Services Corp. (now
known as Collingwood PowerStream Utility Services Corp., or “CPUSC"), the
parent corporation of Collus PowerStream, to PowerStream Inc. in 2012. Each
Shareholder is entitled to nominate and elect the number of directors in
proportion to the number of shares owned. The board of directors of consists of
6 directors. The Town of Collingwood nominated 3 directors and PowerStream
nominated 3 directors.

Neither the Town of Collingwood nor PowerStream holds voting securities of
CPUSC carrying more than 50 per cent of the votes for the election of directors,
nor are the votes carried by such securities sufficient, if exercised, to elect a
majority of the board of directors.

As a result, neither the Town of Collingwood nor PowerStream controls CPUSC,
and neither is an affiliate of Collus PowerStream. In this regard, Collus
PowerStream wishes to address an error in Exhibit 1, Tab 1, Schedule 16, page
1 of the Application. At line 7 of that page, PowerStream Inc. is referred to as an
affiliate of Collus PowerStream. This is incorrect, as PowerStream Inc. is not an
affiliate of Collus PowerStream for the reasons discussed above.

At lines 13 and 14 of that page, Collus PowerStream advised that “The Town of
Collingwood is no longer an affiliate of Collus PowerStream as a result of the
PowerStream transaction.” This statement remains accurate, also for the
reasons discussed above.
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1-Enerqy Probe-2

Ref:

a)

b)

Exhibit 1, Tab 1, Schedule 12

The evidence indicates that no costs associated with the sales
transaction have been included in the 2013 revenue requirement.
Have any costs, capital, OM&A or other that were incurred in 2012 or
previous years been included in the figures provided for those
years? If yes, please identify the cost, type of cost and year in which
it was incurred.

Are any of the costs associated with the Board of Directors of the
corporate entities shown on page 2, other than Collus PowerStream
Corp. been included in any of the historical data shown for 2012 or
previous years, or in the 2013 revenue requirement? If yes, please
identify these costs, the amounts and the reasons they are included
in the regulated utility costs in a historical, bridge or test year.

Response

a)

b)

No “Sales Transaction Costs” (capital, OM&A or other) have been
included in the figures provided for 2012 or previous years. All “Sales
Transaction Costs” were re-billed to the shareholder, The Town of
Collingwood, and reimbursed by them.

In 2012, Collus PowerStream paid some additional general and
administrative costs that were not “Sales Transaction Costs”, but were
incurred as a result of the transaction as follows:

Extra audit for the seven month period ending July 31, 2012 -$31,100.00
Professional accounting fees (dividends/CFO absence) -
$77,923.50

Legal fees for the new Infrastructure Ontario Loan -
$16,775.19

Other non-quantifiable general travel, office, telephone, wages and
benefits required to support the transaction process were also incurred.

No Board of Director costs of other corporate entities are included in any
of the historical data shown for 2012 or previous years, or in the 2013
revenue requirement.
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1-SEC-2

[Ex.1/1/13, Ex.2/3/1/p.2]

Please provide all documents and information that was provided to the Board of
Directors, in approving this application and the Test Year budget.

Response
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Collus PowerStream
Cost of Service Rate Application

Board of Directors Update
October 29th 2012

COS Application
Our Challenge

To Strike the appropriate balance

COS Application
Opportunities
-System losses
-Fixed-Variable ratio
*Pole & Conductor Replacement programs

=Shared Services & Synergies

com

COS Application
Challenges
=Alignment
-Preliminary Rate analysis

=Timing:
> December 2012 — May 2013
» 2013 ROE

=“Crafting the Story”

coana
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EB-2012-0116

Responses to Interrogatories of
Board Staff and Intervenors
Page 12 of 375

Filed: August 21, 2013

COS Application

Objectives
*Full settlement in a Written Hearing

-Substantive approval — OMA & Capital envelopes

*Approval of Key Deliverables:
» 5-Year Asset Management Plan
> Reliability & System Expansion targets
» Customer Service & Safety targets
> Predictable rate growth
> Financial targets — ROE, Net Income, Dividends

COs Application
Strengths
-Vegetation Management
*Customer growth

=System automation - AMI
*Hydro One Supply Infrastructure
*System Reliability

~Customer Mix — e.g. Multi-Unit

Commercial-Industrial load

- —

COS Application

Current Status
-Submission is overdue

*Key deliverables:
> Asset Management Strategy & Plan

» Load Forecast
> Cost Allocation

> COS Application

COS Application

Recommendations
*Develop high-quality submission — “Get it right”
*Deliver on the Objectives

‘Realize Synergies & Cost sharing opportunities

*Recommend Rate strategy
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Board Presentation January 21, 2013

COS Application

Purpose of Meeting

« T obtain direction for ihe Callia PowerStream 2013
Collus PowerStream GOHS Ran filing

Cost of Service Rate Application « Agenda:
— Currert] Stalus

Board of Directors Update = Challanges
— Advantages
January 21, 2013 - Rate Sirajeqy

— Riale impsct Soanerics:

i

COS Application COS Application

Cbjactives - Progress to Date i
« Full satliement i & Wiithen Hasring * Load Forecas! compisle — gaod qualily - previcus msws
» Substartive approval - OMES & Capitsl envsiopes * Assat Manageman Sratagy compiate — good quallly
+ Codus 2013 Budget camplels — Janusry 187
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~ Financal {angeis — ROE. Mal incoms Diygesis
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= Ewvdence partislly draftod

COSs Application COS Application

Current Situation Challonges

* OMEA ncreasas = £ 1M over & yvs. or 8%yaar = QMEA growil 15 8% a yaar - fighed than infation
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COS Application COS Application

Advantages Applicaticn Timing
= Significan) improvements in Load Forecas! qualily *  Bulnression s everdue ~ Stalis opdate senl b DER

+ Garvica Leval Agrasmeanl révide in progress - consisien] Evidence praparatian in progress - First draft coenpiats

i Dm_ o bit g8 i data ead axplenaliong remain
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privades basis of delesrse

Cumen| faracasd {fing dale aafy March wish ras
mplemertabon Seplamber 19

Risks remain o maesing this date

COS Application COS8 Application

Rate Strategy Objectives — Scenarios
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2013 .
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COS Application COS Application
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COS Application

Recommendation

= 31 —Move lo macimurm ROE over Soyear panod,
reduce CM&A by § 200K & propose ghased-in ree
Feegae aver 3 yEsis

Advantages

+ Maals ROE tarpal ouver lite s “rabe shock” mitigated
by phasing in rade increase aver 3 years al rate of
ifiation
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Board Presentation — March 15, 2013

COS Application

Purpose of Maeting
+ Toaoblain approval for the Codus PewerSwream 2013
Colius PowerStream COS Res Agplication fling
Cost of Service Rate Application * Agenda:
— Currant Status
Board of Directors Update = Wihat has Changed 7
— Mew Fabe Seenarisa
March 15, 2013 = Bltritirmidetion

COS Application G035 Application
Current Status What has Changed 7
Froviously * Besad on fnelized OMEA Budget
Glras Risgribution Taulil Bif + Total DMES increass aver d years is now 5 725k
Regidential 5.3 4-E% h
G & SO 100 155 1-9% . Smnhkl:rWSIr:a?'v:ryLESEFﬁkﬁ.rEnmnlngﬂhh
i o ) it PP norease of 5 410K 5 " program growth
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7 — T —

COS Application COS Application

What has Changed 7 . Mew Rate Scenarios
» Betad an 212 yaar end sctaal costs + B4 - 7% ROE and reduce OMEA by S 200k
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COS Application

Scenario Results (%)
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COS Application

Recommaendation
= 54 - 7% ROE and no OMA reduction

Comments

* Agempls to sirike a balance batwesn Residential rats
Incrages Benaiiibes A Athdaimian] of Shanhol dar
ROE coectives

+ jAchievas tolal bl irpects within the range of indatian

* Maintzins but does ot masimize tha fnancial haelth of
the uliligy by starling e IRM pariod al 73 ROE




Board Presentation April 10, 2013

Collus PowerStream
Cost of Service Rate Application

Board of Directors Raté Update
April 10, 2013
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COS Application

What has Changed 7
= Changed reference basis for compasison af Cusldmes
Bill impacts:

~ Baais o tcomparson was prevousty Apnil 30% ia
Septembar 1

« Savers subsiansal Rale Ricee aupin os Aol 201 3003
eramireg & mora fcurable badis ol comparisan for
Rscidantial rats impacis

= Coreeray - oeales lees lavaurabls basm of foenpans on
lor 35 <50kY raia impacts

-~ Bass Is now .ﬂwgua‘ 31 o Eeatamber 19 2013 ",
] i

COS Application

What has Changed ?

= Conmecisd a senous erarwilh resped o ling Ioss mias
@nd the Load Forecast

= Total bill impacts e now wilhin ar slightly above the
ranga of irflasian

COS Application

MNew Rate Scenarios :
+ £1 - Old Basls of Comparison - 7% ROE and £ 2208

CAdEA reduction 0 achiove maximum Rasidertial rale
inrepas af 9.9%

= 52— New Baaiz of Comparigon - T3 ROE and 5 2208
On&A reducton b achieve maximem Residantial rale
increasa of 9.4%

= 83 - New Basis of Comparison - 7% ROE and no
OR1EA reductan

+ 54 - Maw Basis of Comparisan - 3% ROE and na
CidEA reduction

N

—e

-

COS Application
Mew Rate Scenarios

+ 55— Mew Basie of Comparison - 8% ROE and 5 14Tk
LIMEA raduction

+ BE ~ Mow Basis of Comparison - 7% ROE and 5 147k
CIMEA reduction

! &

COS Application

Scenario Results (%)
Did Basis by Bamin kliw Bedls
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COS Application

Scenario Results (%)
Maw Basis Mow Basis  New Basis
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Mo OMACY E-FIATH BT
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Board Presentation April 26, 2013

Collus PowerStream

Cost of Service Rate Application

Board of Directors Rate Update
April 26, 2013

COS Application

Board's Direction to Staff

Limit Residential Distribution rate increase to a maximum of
09.9%

Establish an OMEA Budget that satisfies reliability, safety and
security objectives and is sufficiently robust to withstand
Regulatory review

Establish Rates which provide for Shareholder Dividends and
satisfy Banking Covenants

Achieve a Return on Equity of 9% (8.98%)

Collus PowerStream Corp.
EB-2012-0116

Responses to Interrogatories of
Board Staff and Intervenors
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COS Application

Customer Bill Impacts (%)

9% (8.985) Return on Equity with no cut to OM & A

Rate Impacts Distribution  Total Bill
Residential {14,100 Customers) 7.6% 25%
G5 <50kW (1,700 Customers) T.7% 21%
G5 > 50kW (115 Customers) 49.5 % 4.0%

COS Application

What went wrong and what went right....

1. Line Loss error resulted in averstatement of Energy
Purchases

2. Correction reduced Energy Purchases but increased Bill
impacts

3. Allocation error of revised Energy Purchases to
rate/customer classes resulted in understatement of Energy
Purchases — particularly for Residential class

4, Correction increased Energy Purchases and reduced Bill
Impacts B




COS Application

Key Planning Assumptions

= Operation Maintenance & Administration Budget - $ 4,755,160
= Return on Equity - 8.98% on a Regulatory basis

= Basis of Bill Impacts’ Comparison - August 2013 to September
2013

« Rate Effective Date - September 17 2013

[ t

Grnrigvaim Sndm 30Am EEEE SN SIRIN FIR
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e kdervds - - : e

Bt us Equity am am &TR LT BB (e
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COS Application

Customer Bill Impacts (%)

0% (8.985) Return on Equity with no cut to OM & A

Rate Impacts Distribution  Total Bill
Residential {14,100 Customers) 7.6% 2.5%
G5 < 50kW (1,700 Customers) 7.7% 2.1%
G5 = 50kW (115 Customers) 49.5% 4,0 %
Cc‘-.‘l?__f
o

COS Application

Customer Bill Impacts (%)

9% [8.985) Return on Equity with S150K cut to OM & A

Rate Impacts Oistribution Total Bill
Residential {14,100 Customers) 45% 19%
G5 < 50kW (1,700 Customers) 59% 1E%
G5 = 50kW (115 Customers) 45.7 % 3.7%
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=
PowerStream
™

Collus PowerStream Corp.

Pro Forma Balance Sheet

as at December 31

Assets

Curremnt
Cash and bank
Accounts receivakle
Unbkilled enerpy revenue
Inventory
Payments in el of corporate taxes receivable
Frepaid expenses

Future taxes recoverahle
Long-term investments
Property, plant and equipment
Computer software
Regulatory assets

Deferred charges

Goodwill

Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity

Current
Accounts payable and accrued liakilities
Payments in lieu of corporate taxes
Customer deposits and credit balances
Current porticn of lome-term debt

Long-term customer deposits
Long-term debt

Employee future benefits
Regulatory Labilities
Deferred program funding

Contingencies

Shareholder's equity
Share capital
Mizcellaneous paid in capital
Deficit

2014 2013 2012
Prajected Prajected Actmal
$ 2.016,142 § 2235202 § 40710581
3,378 580 3,378,580 3,378,589
3,135,280 3,135,280 3,135,280
3090 984 300 984 309,224
- . 167,266
223,423 223,425 323,423
°.063,418 9 282 570 11,285,623
747,617 T47,617 747 61T
100 100 100
17,606,474 16,073,710 15,180,302
148, 900 03,359 100,440
1,165,264 1,165,264 1,144 339
253,395 321,550 113,105
276,704 276,704 276,704

$20 261 872 $27964 883 5 28848230

# 6,076,607 % 6076607 £ 6976607

150,000 T3, BTG
650,516 650,516 650,516
366,951 360,671 354,628

8,144,074 8,061,670 7,981,751
253,862 253,862 253,862

11,190,180 10,257,131 10,117,802

330,774 330,774 336,463
1,363,180 1,363,180 2,764,077

= 161,897 361,897
21,201,079 20437523 21,815,857
5,101,340 5,101,340 5,101,340
2,966,014 2,966,014 2,966,014
(96,561) {530,004 [1,054,981)
7.970, 793 7,527,360 7,032,373

$29.261,872 $27.964.883 5 25,848,230
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inﬁﬁﬂﬂ*
~— Collus PowerStream Corxp.

Pro Forma Statement of Operations and Deficit

For the zear ended December 31 2014 2013 2012

Revenues Projected Projected Actmal
Sale of energy $32901,431 %$32,415,203 3§ 29,120,237
Distribution revenus 6,088 504 5,695,593 5,456,008
Smeart meter distribution revenue - T20,000 1,402,131
Other revenue 448,500 448, 500 465,570

30,938,435 39,239 206 36,443,987

Cost of power purchased 32,901,431 32,415,203 29,120,278

7,037,004 6,824 003 7,323,709

Operating expenses

Amortization 913,339 Q84,220 1,739,853
Eilling and collecting 1,174,890 1,151,862 1,218,737
Distribution and transmission 2,216,460 2,173,000 2,100,012
General and administrative 1,430,686 1,398,833 1,491,639
Interest on long-term debt 405,282 445,410 330,323
Interest - other TO,440 70,440 104,044
Cither deducticons 32,465 31,465 32,918
6,243,571 5,255,230 7,017,526

Income before taxes 793,433 568 863 306,183
Provision for payments in leu taxes 150,000 73,876 {19,052)
Future income tax - - 179,255
150,000 73,876 160,236

Net income for the year 643,433 404 08T 145,847
Eetained earnings |(deficit), beginning of year (330,004) [1,0:34,981) 3,183,032
Dividends 200,000 - 4 363,960

Deficit, end of year & [06,561) & (339.904) $ (1,034951)
e
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PowerSiream
e Collus PowerStream Corp.
Pro Forma Statement of Cash Flows

For the Eea_r ended December 31 2014 2013 2012

Cash flows from operating activities Projected FProjected Actual
Net imcome for the vear % 643,433 $ 404 08T £ 145,947
Adjustments for ifems not affecting cash:

Amartization 883,330 954,230 1,739,853
Vehicle amortization, charped to other acets 215,679 192 D47 179,183
Employee futurebanefits - 3,306 [352)
Future income taxes - - 179,288
Loss on Derecognition 30,000 30,000 -
1,772,451 1,674,560 2,243,924
Chanpes in hon-cash worldng capital:
Accounts receivakle - - 1,980,071
Unbkilled enerpy revenus - - [131,581)
Inventory - - 11,815
Prepaid expenses - 1) [103,602)
Accounts payalkle and accrued liakilities - - 948,333
Payments in lieu of corporate taxes 76,129 241,142 [224,108)
Cucstomer deposits and credit balances - - (148,675
1,848 575 1,913,701 4. 576,177
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchaze of property, plant and equipment [2,950,1537) [2,268,208) {2,100,521)
Proceeds from contributed capital 350,000 350,000 339,434
Purchaze of computer software (105,000 {105,0040) 14,225)
Net decrease in repulatory assets liabilities - (1,457,034) 11,513,680)
Net decrease from deferred charges &0, 000 {216,6040) 123,400)
{2.645,157) f{3.6046 862) |3,302,392)
Cash flows from financing activities

Deferred program funding 1161,897) f 200 D00 203, 6359
Increase (decrease} in It customer depesits - - {5, 7E87)
Proceeds of long-term debt 1,300, 000 S00,000 6,300,000
Fepayments of long-term debt |360,6T1) 1354,628) [237,7440)
Dividends paid (20:0,00:0) 2 4,363,360
o977, 432 (54, 628) 1,896 172

Increase |decrease) in cash during the year 219,150 [1.835,789) 3,169 957
Cash and bank, beginning of year 2,235,292 4,071,081 901,124

Cash and bank, end of year $ 2016,142 $ 2235202 5 4,071,081
I e B T T e P g o o T o P VI E L]
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Puwirﬁt';um
~— Collus PowerStream Corxp.

Notes to Financial Statements

December 3 1i 2014

34. Capital Disclosures

The corporation considers its capital to ke its share capital, miscellanecus paid in capital, and
retained earnings. The corporation’s main objectives when managing capital are to: i) encure
sufficient hgquidity to support its financial obligations and execute its operating and strategic
plans, ii] minimize the cost of capital while taking into consideratiom current and fuhare
industry, market and economic ricks and conditions, iii] maintain an optimal capital stractare
that provides neces=ary finsmcial flexibility while also ensuring compliance with any financial
covenants, and ivj provide an adeoquate return to its shareholders_

The corporation relies predominately on its cash flow from operations to fund its divdend
dictributions to its shareholders. This cash flow is supplementsd, when nececcary, through
the borrowmng of additicnal dekt.

Az part of existing debt apreements, financial covenants are monitored and commurnicated, as
reguired by the terms of credit agreements, on an annusl basis by management to ensure
compliance with the apreements.

The bank indebitednesc covensants require the corporabion to maintain a debt to effective
equity ratio of 1.50 to 1 or less 8 cwrrent ratio of 1.25 to 1 or more, and a debt service
coverage ratio of af least 1.25 to 1.

The Infrastructure Ontaric 4.67% smart meter loan covenants reguire the corporation to
provide motification pricr to any new debt issuance and to seek approval where the debt
service coverape ratio faflls below 1 to 1  af any time; such ratio is otherwise tested and
calculated as of the end of each fiscal year. The corporation i= also reguired to maintain a
maximurn delbt to capital ratio of .60 to 1 and a minirmum current ratio of 1.1 to 1 to be
tested and calculated as of the end of each fiscal year.

The Infrastructure Ontario 3.84% recapitalization and worlang capital loan covenants reguire
the corporation to provide notification prior to any mew debt issusmece and to seek approval
where the debt service coverape ratio falls below 1.15 to. 1 at any time; such ratio i1s otherwise
tested and calculated sz of the end of each ficcal year.© The corporation is also regquired o
maintain a manmum debt to capital ratio of 065 to 1 and & minirmum current ratio of 1.1 to
1 to be tested and calculated as of the end of each fizcal year.

Mansagement monitors the following key ratios to effectively manage capital:

2014 2013 2012

Projected Projected Actmal

al Debt Service Coverage Fato: 1.15:1 1.13:1 1.36:1
b] Delbt to Capital: 0.60:1 0.589:1 0.61:1
c] Cwurrent ratio: 1.11:1 1.15:1 1.41:1
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1-Enerqy Probe-3

Ref: Exhibit 1, Tab 1, Schedule 16

What is the status of the review of the Service Level Agreements, as noted
on page 2? If now available and necessary, please update the application,
including the filing of the external study referenced.

Response

On July 22, 2013, Howard Gorman presented for approval to the Board of
Directors of the Water Company and Collus PowerStream a report on the cost
allocation methodology used to distribute the costs of services provided by
Solutions among the businesses to which services are provided. In addition the
engagement included a review of the methodology used by the Water Company
to charge Collus PowerStream user fees for the building and computer lease.

The cost allocation study is complete and a copy of the report together with an
addendum letter dated August 20, 2013 have been included for your reference
as Attachment 1.

The Service Level Agreements will be updated based on the study completed.
However, these SLA'’s have not yet been refreshed.
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1-Energy Probe-4

Ref:

a)

Exhibit 1, Tab 2, Schedule 1

Please explain why the savings related to back office support in
finance and regulatory processes and the reduction in costs through
expertise in the area of regulatory issues and the "soft savings”
through the sharing of knowledge and expertise in specialized areas
are not quantifiable at this time.

b) When does Collus PowerStream expect to realize quantifiable
benefits?

Response

a)

b)

The 50% sales transaction between the Town of Collingwood and
PowerStream was dated July 31, 2012. However, this transaction did not
fully close and the final escrow payment was not released until March 1,
2013. There were seven months over which time financial statements had
to be produced, the final dividend calculated and agreed upon, an audit
performed, and legal matters resolved before the deal was finalized and
closed.

Since that time, staff has been working diligently in many areas to achieve
our goal of meeting the service level expectations of our customers today
and in the future and as well delivering on our goal of mitigating future
costs through synergies with PowerStream. Since the transaction is still
very young and since many of the areas being explored have many facets,
it is impossible to quantify those savings today.

To date, we have signed a Conservation Service Agreement with
PowerStream which will help us deliver our CDM programs better but this
agreement is very recent. We have also signed a Master Shared Service
Agreement which outlines how future individual service agreements will be
managed.

The intent of the new relationship is to better deliver what we already do
well today and to be prepared for a future customer that has even more
expectations of their local distribution company.
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As stated, Collus PowerStream believes that our new relationship with
PowerStream will assist in future mitigation of upward pressure on
distribution rates. We will be looking at all aspects of our business to see
where and what we can do to reduce costs or provide for greater customer
service. For example, we are hoping in the fall that PowerStream’s Control
Room will monitor Collus PowerStream’s distribution system and dispatch
crews when required. This may have additional costs to Collus
PowerStream but will provide a greater service to the customers through
reduced outages etc.

1-Enerqy Probe-5

Ref: Exhibit 1, Tab 2, Schedule 1

Collus PowerStream is requesting rates effective September 1, 2013
through April 30, 2014. Is Collus PowerStream requesting recovery of the
full $934.3K deficiency over this period or a prorated portion of this
amount?

Response:

Collus PowerStream is requesting the full recovery of the amount of $934.3K
over this period.



Collus PowerStream Corp.
EB-2012-0116

Responses to Interrogatories of
Board Staff and Intervenors
Page 31 of 375

Filed: August 21, 2013

1-Enerqy Probe-6

Ref: Exhibit 1, Tab 2, Schedule 2

a) Please identify the amount of revenues and expenses that were
recorded in 2012 related to smart meter technology and time-of-use
billing that were incurred over previous years. Please provide a
break out of these revenues and expenses by year in which they
were incurred.

b) Does Collus PowerStream have a deferral or variance account for
costs associated with moving to IFRS? If yes, please explain why
the preparation for the movement to IFRS is listed as a cost driver in
2013 relative to 2009 costs. Please identify the increase in 2013
OM&A costs associated with the preparation for the movement to
IFRS that are included in the 2013 revenue requirement.

Response

a) Amount of revenues and expenses that were recorded in 2012 related to
smart meter technology and time-of-use billing that were incurred over
previous years:

Accumulated

to 2011
Smart Meter Distribution Revenue: (942,204)
Amortization 448,130
Smart Meter Operation Costs 124,378
Interest 51,299

Break out of these revenues and expenses by year in which they were incurred:

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Total
Smart Meter Distribution Revenue: ~ (25,919)  (44,438)  (46,914)  (137,601)  (309,280)  (378,052)  (459,927)  (1,402,131)
Amortization 17,864 88,275 157,226 184,765 195899 644,029
Smart Meter Operation Costs 124378 199,665 324,044
Interest 12,215 14,322 24,762 12,708 64,007
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b) Collus PowerStream has a 1508 deferral account for costs associated with
moving to IFRS. The costs authorized for recording in this account are
only incremental one-time administrative costs caused by the transition of
accounting policies, procedures, systems and processes to IFRS.

Incremental transition costs do not include ongoing IFRS compliance costs,
the financial impacts arising from adopting accounting policy changes that
reflect changes in the timing of the recognition of income, or costs related
to system upgrades, replacements or changes where IFRS was not the
major reason for conversion.

In 2013 Collus PowerStream has a change to the useful lives of PP&E and
various capital asset policy changes needed to comply with the upcoming
switch to IFRS. The on-going tracking, new forms reporting, system set-
up, GIS system integration, disposal record keeping, and financial
statement reporting create a significant increase in workload and resources
of an on-going nature. On January 1, 2015 when Collus PowerStream
converts to IFRS these on-going costs will increase even more again.

The initial one-time administrative costs tracked in 1508 are just related to
the change in reporting framework. The extra financial burden of increased
reporting requirements under IFRS will continue permanently.

The increase in 2013 OM&A costs associated with the preparation for the
movement to IFRS that are included in the 2013 revenue requirement is
not specifically identifiable. The main accounts impacted are 5615 General
and Administrative Salaries and Expenses and 5630 Outside Services.

IFRS accounting changes also impact the ability to burden and capitalize
some expenses such as rent and training costs. Account 5096 in
Operations is now used for rent of $172,800/yr in 2013 and forward in
order to exclude it from the burdens and prevent capitalization of this
overhead. Training costs are also excluded from the burden and posted
directly to the most applicable O&M account(s).

Previously rent was allocated to the warehouse and garage and a portion
of these costs were capitalized to the extent that materials were issued to,
and vehicles and equipment were used on capital work orders. Similarly
sick, vacation, safety and training time were previously capitalized to the
extent that staff worked on capital work orders. These changes have
resulted in an increase of approximately $72,000 in amounts in O&M that
would have been previously capitalized.
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1-Enerqy Probe-7

Ref: Exhibit 1, Tab 2, Schedule 2 &
Exhibit 1, Tab 3, Schedule 3

Please explain and reconcile the different figures shown for 2009 and 2010
in Tables 1 of the above noted exhibits.

Response
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Billing & Collecting $1,151,862 $1,218,737 $876,620 $1,154,122 $821,070

Distribution & Transmission $2,173,000 $2,100,012 $2,099,480 $1,883,667 $1,903,185

General & Admin $1,398,833 $1,491,639 $1,086,626 $1,244,511 $1,190,578

Donations & LEAP funding $31,465 $32,918 $10,360 $0 $0

Total OM&A Per Audited Financial Statements $4,755,160 $4,843,306 $4,073,086 $4,282,300 $3,914,833

Less: Misc Gen Expense - UCS Seed Money -$17,639  Acct 5665
Less: EDA Contingent Liability -$47,000 Acct 5665
Less: Large Industrial (GS > 50 kW) Bad Debt

write off -$286,449 Acct 6310
Total OM&A per Regulatory $4,755,160 $4,843,306 $4,073,086 $3,995,851 $3,850,194

There is a variance to OM&A regulatory because the trial balance in the EDR
model (J492) shows $64,640 as “Other Power Supply Expenses” for 2009 and
(cell: 0509) shows $286,449 as “Unclassified Expenses” for 2010.

1) The UCS seed money should have been posted to an asset account in 2010
instead of miscellaneous expense because Collus PowerStream provided these
funds to UCS for start-up purposes when they became a shareholder. In a
subsequent year this amount was actually corrected. It was shown as a credit to
miscellaneous expense and then properly debited to an asset account.

2) The EDA contingent liability was recorded in 2009 as a $47,000 expense. In
2010 this was subsequently reversed to 4390 miscellaneous non operating
income to adjust for the lawsuit recovery.

3) The Large Industrial (GS > 50 kW) bad debt write off was a loss incurred on
the closure of a large industrial customer account.
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EXHIBIT 2 - RATE BASE

2-Energy Probe-8

Ref: Exhibit 2, Tab 1, Schedule 1

Please confirm that the bridge year figures for 2012 are all actual figures
and not part forecast or preliminary estimates for 2012. If this cannot be
confirmed, please update all of the figures in Exhibit 2 to reflect final actual
data for 2012.

Response

The bridge year figures for 2012 are all actual figures and not part forecast or
preliminary estimates for 2012.
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2-Energy Probe-9

Ref: Exhibit 2, Tab 1, Schedule 2

a)

b)

The evidence at page 4 indicates that the rate base for the 2012
Bridge Year is a forecasted increased of $555K over 2011. Please
update Tables 4 and 5, if necessary, to reflect actual final figures for
2012.

Please provide the reference at line 13 of page 4 and lines 8 and 10 of
page 5.

Please explain why Collus PowerStream changed the WCA factor
from 15% to 13% for 2012 in the absence of a COS proceeding to set
2012 rates.

Response:

a)

b)

Tables 4 and 5 use 2012 Actual data as indicated in the column headings.
On page 4, line 5, the word forecasted should be deleted.

Line 13 of page 4 should refer to Exhibit 2, Tab 2, Schedule 1. Line 8 of
page 5 should refer to Exhibit 2, Tab 3, Schedule 3. Line 10 of page 5
should refer to Exhibit 2, Tab 2, Schedule 1.

Collus PowerStream used a working capital allowance (WCA) factor of
13% for 2012 as this change was announced by the Board in its letter of
April 12, 2012. Upon rereading the Board letter, Energy Probe is correct
that this change was meant to apply to 2013 COS applications.

Collus PowerStream notes that this has no effect on the WCA and rate
base amounts for the 2013 Test Year and has provided the updated tables
below for information only.

Updated Table 4 and 5 and explanations are provided below to reflect the
use of a 15% WCA factor for 2012.
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Table EP 9-1: 2012 vs. 2011 Rate Base

2011 2012

Actual Actual Variance
Description CGAAP CGAAP
Opening Net Fixed Assets $ 13,042 $ 13,203 $ 161
Closing Net Fixed Assets $ 13,203 $ 15,254 $ 2052
Average Net Fixed Assets $ 13,122 $ 14,228 $ 1,106
Working Capital Allowance $ 4966 $ 5,095 $ 129
Total Rate Base $ 18,088 $ 19,323 $ 1235

The 2012 WCA increase of $129,000 is attributable to an increase in
OM&A costs of $770,000 and an increase in the cost of power of $88,000.

Table EP 9-2: 2013 vs. 2012 Rate Base

2012 2013

Actual Test Year Variance
Description CGAAP MIFRS
Opening Net Fixed Assets $ 13,203 $ 15,254 $ 2052
Closing Net Fixed Assets $ 15,254 $ 16,145 $ 890
Average Net Fixed Assets $ 14,228 $ 15,699 $ 1471
Working Capital Allowance $ 5095 $ 4554 $ (541)
Total Rate Base $ 19,323 $ 20,253 $ 930

An increase in the cost of power of $1,153,000 and a decrease in
distribution expenses of $88,000 using a 15% WCA factor would cause an
increase in WCA of $160,000. This has been offset by a decrease in WCA
of $701,000 due to the change in the WCA factor from 15% to 13%,
resulting in a net decrease in WCA of $541,000.

As discussed above and shown in Table EP 9-2, the WCA and rate base
amounts for 2013 are unchanged. The change from the previously approved rate
base amount to the 2013 test year rate base is unchanged as are the
explanations.
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Ref: E1/T2/S6, Appendix A, Revenue Requirement Work Form; Rate Base Tab

and E2/T2/S1 p.5, Table 7 and 2013 Fixed Asset Continuity Schedule

Board staff noted that there is a difference of $26,533 between the calculation of the
average gross fixed assets in the revenue requirement: rate base tab and the
amounts reflected in Table 7 of the 2013 Fixed Asset Continuity Schedule as shown

below.

RRWEF: 2013 Fixed
Rate Base Tab | Calculation based | Asset
on Fixed Asset Continuity Difference
Continuity Sch. Schedule
Gross fixed asset | $32,024,061 [$31,038,990 (Bal. | $ 32,050,594 $26,533
(average) 12/31/2012)
+$33,062,198 (Bal.
12/31/2013)]/2
Accumulated (16,324,684) [$15,758,248 (Bal. | ($16,324,694) | O
depreciation 12/31/2012)
(average) +$16,891,119 (Bal.
12/31/2013)]/2
Net fixed asset 15,699,377 15,725,900 26,533

(average)

a) Please explain and reconcile the difference noted above and make the
necessary adjustment if any, in the evidence.

Response:

a) The Fixed Asset Continuity Schedule (FACS)(Appendix 2-B 2013) has a
subtotal line before removal of construction work in progress (CWIP) for
calculating gross assets for rate base. The amounts shown above for the
FACS are the subtotal line before removal of the CWIP. The total line
shows opening gross assets of $31,012,468 and closing gross assets of
$33,035,666, for an average of $32,024,062, as used in the rate base
calculation and shown on the RRWF.

No adjustments are required.




Collus PowerStream Corp.
EB-2012-0116

Responses to Interrogatories of
Board Staff and Intervenors
Page 38 of 375

Filed: August 21, 2013

2.0-Staff-6

Ref: E2/T2/S1; 2013 Fixed Asset Continuity Schedule; Appendix 2-ClI, 2013
Depreciation Expense; E1/T2/S6, Appendix A, Revenue Requirement Work
Form; E4/T4/S7, p. 4, Summary of Amortization Expense; PILS WF: Taxable
Income-Test Year

Board staff noted the following differences in the 2013 depreciation expenses in
the RRWF and the depreciation expenses in the 2013 Appendices 2-B and 2-ClI
below.

Reference AMOUNT - $
Appendix 2-B, 2013 Fixed Asset $1,102,871
Continuity Schedule, Accumulated
Depreciation Additions
PILS WF: Taxable Income-Test Year $1,102,871
Tab, Amortization of Intangibles
E4/T4/S7, Table 2 Summary of $1,102,871
Amortization Expense 2009-2013
Appendix 2-Cl, 2013 Depreciation $872,860
Expense
RRWEF: Utility Income Tab $948,979
RRWF: Revenue Requirement Tab $948,979

a) Please explain and reconcile the differences in the 2013 depreciation
expense found in Appendix 2-B, E4/T4/S7, p.4; PILS WEF: Taxable
Income-Test Year Tab, Appendix 2-Cl and the depreciation found in the
RRWEF: Utility Income & Revenue Requirement Tabs.

b) Please state which is the correct 2013 depreciation expense and make all
the adjustments if any, in the evidence.

Response:

a) All of these numbers are correct, except for the $872,860 as explained
below. The differences are explained herein and the numbers
reconciled. The accumulated depreciation additions of $1,102,871
correctly represent the depreciation booked for 2013. As shown on
Appendix 2-B for 2013, the difference is that $192,047 of depreciation
expense is deducted and allocated to the overhead burden pools and
shown on other expense lines. As well there is $8,155 of amortization
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of intangible assets and derecognition expense of $30,000 that must
be added to depreciation expense. The end result is the depreciation
expense of $948,979 that is included in the revenue requirement. This
is summarized in the Table Staff 6-1 below.

Table Staff 6-1: Reconciliation of Depreciation Amounts

Description Amount
Accumulated Depreciation Additions $ 1,102,871
Less depreciation expense moved to burden pools

and shown on other lines $ (192,047
Add amortization of intangible assets $ 8,155
Net depreciation per Appendix 2-B (2013) $ 918,979
Add derecognition expense $ 30,000
Depreciation expense as per RRWF $ 948,979

The full amount of depreciation booked of $1,102,871 is the correct
amount to add back on the T2S(1) to arrive at taxable income. For tax
purposes it is not relevant some of the depreciation expense is recorded
in other OM&A costs; the full depreciation amount needs to be added
back.

Exhibit 4, Tab 4, Schedule 7, Table 2 compares the gross depreciation as
calculated on the fixed assets and booked to accumulated depreciation.
To arrive at the net depreciation expense, similar adjustments to those
shown in Table Staff 6-1 above are needed. Table Staff 6-2 below starts
with the values shown in E4/T4/S7 Table 2 and shows the adjustments to
arrive at depreciation expense used in the revenue requirement
calculations.

Table Staff 6-2: Reconciliation of Accumulated Depreciation Additions to

Depreciation Expense

December 31 December 31 | December 31 | December 31 | December 31
2009 Act. 2010 Act. 2011 Act. 2012 BY 2013 TY
Accum. Deprec. Additions $ 1,033,396 $ 1,150,940 | $ 1,197,943 | § 1,888,095 | § 1,102,871
Recorded in Transportation $ (105330) | § (123587) | § (152,929) | § (179,188) | $ (192,047
Recorded in Communication
Amortization-deferred charges $ 8155 | § 8,155 | $ 8,155 | § 8155 | $ 8,155




Collus PowerStream Corp.
EB-2012-0116

Responses to Interrogatories of
Board Staff and Intervenors
Page 40 of 375

Filed: August 21, 2013

Amortization of smart meters

recorded in account 1555 $ 67939 | § (67,939

Stranded meters after removal $ 22,791

Other minor differences $ (364)

Depreciation expense $ 1,004,160 $ 967,205 | $ 1,053,169 | $ 1,739,853 | $ 918,979

Note: 2013 depreciation expense would also include derecognition expense of $30,000

The depreciation expense of $872,860 shown on Appendix 2-Cl for 2013
is an estimate calculated by the worksheet. Collus provided explanations
in Appendix 2-C why the estimated depreciation of $872,860 differs from
the actual depreciation expense recorded of $1,102,871. The Appendix
2-Cl worksheet depreciates the opening net book value over the full
useful life of a new asset. The actual depreciation expense calculation
correctly uses the remaining useful life to depreciate the opening net
book value. Collus adopted IFRS compliant useful lives as of January 1,
2013 as per Board guidance.

b) As explained in part (a) above and shown in Table Staff 6-1, the
correct depreciation expense is $948,979. This is the amount used in
the calculation of the revenue requirement and no adjustments to the
evidence are required.
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2-Energy Probe-10

Ref:

a)

b)

d)

Exhibit 2, Tab 2, Schedule 1

Please confirm that the figures in Table 1 reflect additions closed to
rate base in the year. If this cannot be confirmed, please provide a
revised Table 1 that reflects only additions closed to rate base in the
year.

Please confirm that Table 1 reflects actual finalized data for 2012. If
this cannot be confirmed, please update Table 1 to reflect actual
finalized data for 2012.

What is the difference between the capital expenditures shown in
Table 2 from the additions shown in Table 1? Is the difference
related solely to work in progress? If not, please provide a
reconciliation of the figures in Tables 1 and 2.

Please explain why the additions shown in Table 1 for 2009 through
2012 do not match the additions shown in the continuity schedules
shown in Tables 3 through 6, even though the disposals shown in
Table 1 appear to match those shown in Tables 3 through 6.

Response:

a)

b)

d)

Confirmed. The additions in Table 1are on an in-service basis and exclude
work in progress (“WIP”).

Confirmed. The data in Table 1 reflects the 2012 actual audited financial
data.

The difference between the capital expenditures shown in Table 2 and the
additions shown in Table 1 is solely related to work in progress (“WIP”).
The purpose of Table 2 is to reconcile the capital expenditures with the
additions to fixed assets for the period 2009 to 2013. Table 2 shows that
the difference between expenditures and additions is the opening and
closing WIP.

The reason that the additions in Table 1 do not match the total additions
from the Fixed Asset Continuity Schedules (“FACS”) in Tables 3 to 6, is
because the FACS include WIP. WIP has been excluded in Table 1 to
arrive at additions for rate base purposes. This does not affect disposals
as there is no WIP component to disposals.
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Table EP 10-1 reconciles the additions totals on Tables 3 to 6 with the
additions shown in Table 1.

Table EP 10-1: Fixed Asset Additionsto Rate Base vs. FACS Reconciliation

2009 Act. 2010 Act. 2011 Act. 2012 BY 2013 TY Total

Additions per Table 1 $ 1,078566 | $ 2,963,250 | $ 1,358,792 | $§ 4,467,158 | $§ 2,023,208 | $ 11,890,974
Per FACS (Tables 3 to 7):

Cost - Additions $ 1621322 | § 1930270 | § 1480665 | $§ 4371819 | § 2,023,208 | $ 11,427,284

$

Plus opening WIP $ 490224 | § 1,032,980 | - $§ 121872 | § 26533 | $ 1,671,609
Less Closing WIP $ (1,032,980) | $ $ (121872) | §  (26533) | §  (26,533) | $ (1,207,918)
In-service Additions $ 1,078566 | $ 2,963,250 | $ 1,358,793 | $ 4,467,158 | $§ 2,023,208 | $ 11,890,975
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2-Energy Probe-11

Ref:
a)

b)

Exhibit 2, Tab 2, Schedule 1
Please explain why there are no disposals shown for 2013 in Table 7.

Please explain the accumulated depreciation disposals that total
($30,000) shown for 2013 in Table 7.

If Tables 6 and 7 do not reflect actual finalized figures for 2012,
please provide updated tables that do reflect actual finalized figures
for 2012.

Please provide a table that shows for each of 2009 through 2012
actual along with 2013 forecast, the level of Contributions & Grants
received and the gross level of capital expenditures to which those
contributions and grants were related. Please explain any significant
change in the ratio of these two figures on a year to year basis.

Response:

a)

There are no planned disposals for 2013. This is consistent with the 2009
Board Approved amounts. Collus notes the actual at disposals for 2009
were small. Table EP11-1 summarizes the disposal information in Table 7
of E2/T2/S1.

Table EP11-1: Summary of Disposals

December 31

December 31

December 31

December 31

December 31

December 31

2009 Act-2013

Description

2009 BA

2009 Act.

2010 Act.

2011 Act.

2012 BY

2013 TY

Summary

Gross assets at cost

Disposals

$ -1 s (24702 (110,068) | $ (901,611) | $ (1,529.891) | $ $ (2,566,272)

Accumulated

Depreciation Disposals | $ -1 9

110,068 | $§ 901,611 | $ 1,002,534 $  (30,000) | § 1,991,276

NBV Disposals

$
7,063 $
$

$ - |8 (17639 $ - | $ (527357) | $ (30,000) | $  (574,996)

b)

As shown in Table EP11-, the only year with disposals of significant net
book value is 2012, which represents the net book value (NBV) of
stranded meters transferred to account 1555.

Collus has included a reduction of $30,000 in net book value in 2013 as
explained in the response to part (b) below.

The estimated NBV of assets that will be derecognized in 2013 is $30,000.
This amount has been shown as an increase in accumulated depreciation,




Collus PowerStream Corp.
EB-2012-0116

Responses to Interrogatories of
Board Staff and Intervenors
Page 44 of 375

Filed: August 21, 2013

under the Disposals column, in Table 7 of E2/T2/S1. This effectively
reduces the closing NBV of assets by $30,000 and reduces rate base.

c) Tables 6 and 7 reflect the final audited figures for 2012.

d) Please refer to exhibit 2, tab 3, schedule 7 page 2 of 2. Actual contributed
capital for 2008 to 2012 is listed on the bottom of the spreadsheet. The
related capital expenditures to which those contributions are related are
also listed in this table. Please refer to the line entitled “Misc. Contributed
Assets” about half way down the schedule. In addition to this some
amounts in services, transformers, and miscellaneous municipal projects
may include related capital expenditures.

The total ratio from 2007 to 2012 is $4,441,984 contributed capital /
$3,454,619 capital expenditures = 128%. With the inclusion of some
services, transformers, and miscellaneous municipal projects to the
denominator of the -calculation this ratio would be closer to 1:1.
Historically, accounting records have not been maintained to provide the
total capital expenditures related to the contributed capital.

The 2013 forecasted contributions and grants are listed below. This table

was added to the Asset Management Plan before being finalized, but the
update was not in the AMP filed with our Cost of Service Application.

Collus PowerStream Asset Management Plan — December 2012

Table 14 — Contributed Capital

[ DESCRIPTION | 2013 | 2014 | 2015 | 2016 | 2017 |
QOH Conductor and Devices $122,500 $122,500 $122,500 $122,500 $122,500
Line Transformers $140,000 $140,000 $140,000 $140,000 $140,000
UG Conductor and Devices $87,500 $87,500 $87,500 $87,500 587,500
Subtotal $350,000 $350,000 $350,000 $350,000 $350,000
Contributed Capital* ($350,000) ($350,000) (5350,000) ($350,000) (5350,000)
Overhead Conductor and Devices S0 1] S0 S0 S0

* The amount shown as Contributed Capital is based on historical values.
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2-Energy Probe-12

Ref:

a)

b)

d)

f)

9)

Exhibit 2, Tab 2, Schedule 1

Please explain and show the calculation of the depreciation expense
of $58,097.47 shown for 2009 in Table 3 for Meters with a life of 15
years.

Please confirm that Collus PowerStream used the full year rule for
depreciation of assets added in the test year as part of the 2009 cost
of service application. If this cannot be confirmed, what depreciation
methodology was used for assets added in the current year as part of
the 2009 COS filing?

Has Collus PowerStream continued to use the full year rule for
depreciation of assets added in each of 2010 through 2012? If not,
please explain any changes made and when they were applied.

Please explain why there is no depreciation expense (addition to
accumulated depreciation) shown for 2010 in Table 4 for the Meters
that remained in the category with a life of 15 years after the transfer
out of stranded meters.

Please explain why stranded meters were moved out of the Meters
assets with a life of 15 years in 2009 to a category for stranded
meters with an asset life of 25 years in 2010?

Please confirm that theses stranded meters were included in rate
base and in the revenue requirement approved by the Board for 2009
rates based on a 15 year life. If this cannot be confirmed, please
provide evidence from the 2009 proceeding that supported a different
life for these meters.

Please explain the decrease in the depreciation expense shown in
2012 in Table 6 for stranded meters to $31,907 from $61,082 in 2011.

Response

a)

The amortization rate should actually say 25 years for this category in
2009 only. From 2010 forward, after the stranded meters were removed
the rate was changed to 15 years for the remaining meters. It appears
however this was only an effort to quantify the remaining useful life of the
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meters left that had already had years of amortization taken. The

amortization expense is derived from the following schedule:

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Yrly Accum uccC

-24373 Amort Amort

101990 12741 65955 21964 165131 75607 34098 100832 87154 1565562
1998 23755 372996 1192566
1999 27219 421060 1144502
2000 26495 447556 1118007
2001 4070 36387 483942 1081620
2002 3075 501 42364 526307 1039255
2003 3064 510 2643 38707 565014 1000549
2004 3064 510 2638 868 39570 604584 960978
2005 3064 510 2638 879 6611 46192 650776 914787
2006 3064 510 2638 879 6605 3031 49217 699992 865570
2007 3064 510 2638 879 6605 3024 1362 50572 750564 814998
2008 3064 510 2638 879 6605 3024 1364 4040 54614 805178 760384
2009 3064 510 2638 879 6605 3024 1364 4033 3490 58097 863275 702287
2010 3064 510 2638 879 6605 3024 1364 4033 3486 58093 921368 644194
2011 3064 510 2638 879 6605 3024 1364 4033 3486 57309 978677 586885
2012 3064 510 2638 879 6605 3024 1364 4033 3486 56125 1034802 530760
2013 3064 510 2638 879 6605 3024 1364 4033 3486 54288 1089090 476472
2014 3064 510 2638 879 6605 3024 1364 4033 3486 38626 1127716 437846
2015 3064 510 2638 879 6605 3024 1364 4033 3486 34467 1162183 403379
2016 3064 510 2638 879 6605 3024 1364 4033 3486 33372 1195555 370007
2017 3064 510 2638 879 6605 3024 1364 4033 3486 31167 1226722 338840
2018 3064 510 2638 879 6605 3024 1364 4033 3486 30481 1257203 308359
2019 3064 510 2638 879 6605 3024 1364 4033 3486 29289 1286492 279070
2020 3064 510 2638 879 6605 3024 1364 4033 3486 28361 1314853 250709
2021 3064 510 2638 879 6605 3024 1364 4033 3486 28472 1343325 222237
2022 3064 510 2638 879 6605 3024 1364 4033 3486 28312 1371637 193925
2023 3064 510 2638 879 6605 3024 1364 4033 3486 28312 1399949 165613
2024 3064 510 2638 879 6605 3024 1364 4033 3486 25744 1425693 139869
2025 3064 510 2638 879 6605 3024 1364 4033 3486 25603 1451296 114266
2026 510 2638 879 6605 3024 1364 4033 3486 22539 1473835 91727
2027 2638 879 6605 3024 1364 4033 3486 22029 1495864 69698
2028 879 6605 3024 1364 4033 3486 19391 1515255 50307
2029 6605 3024 1364 4033 3486 18512 1533767 31795
2030 3024 1364 4033 3486 11907 1545674 19888
2031 1364 4033 3486 8883 1554557 11005
2032 4033 3486 7519 1562076 3486
2033 3486 3486 1565562 0
2034 0 1565562 0

77617 12741 65955 21964 165131 75607 34098 100832 87154
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Collus PowerStream used the full year rule for depreciation of assets
added in the test year as part of the 2009 cost of service application,
except for vehicle additions which always used the half year rule.

Collus PowerStream continued to use the full year rule for depreciation of
assets added in each of 2010 through 2012, except for vehicle additions
which always used the half year rule.

Effective January 1, 2013, all additions will be added using the half year
rule. The timing of this policy change coincides with the change in useful
life of capital assets components and other new capital asset policy
standards, such as improved disposal reporting.

There is no depreciation expense (addition to accumulated depreciation)
shown for 2010 in Table 4 for the Meters that remained in the category
with a life of 15 years after the transfer out of stranded meters. From a
review of the 2010 amortization schedule for the remaining meters, it is
evident that $15,833 was the amount of amortization expense during the
year for this category. The column for accumulated depreciation additions
and disposals for the meters and stranded meters has the correct overall
totals, but the allocation between columns is incorrect.

ORIGINAL
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening
Description Balance Additions Disposals Closing Balance Net Book Value
Meters (863,275.36) 838,775.36 (24,500.00) 213,000.00
Stranded Meters (70,769.93) (838,775.36) (909,545.29) 620,346.00
(863,275.36) (70,769.93) (934,045.29) 833,346.00
REVISED
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening Closing Net Book
Description Balance Additions Disposals Balance Value
Meters (863,275.36) (15,833.00) 854,608.36 (24,500.00) 213,000.00
Stranded Meters (54,936.93) (854,608.36) (909,545.29) 620,346.00
(863,275.36) (70,769.93) (934,045.29) 833,346.00
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e) Stranded meters were moved out of the Meter assets with a life of 25

f)

g)

years in 2009 to a category for stranded meters with an asset life of also
25 years in 2010. They were not moved from a 15 year to a 25 year.
Please refer to response a) above.

The stranded meters were included in rate base and in the revenue
requirement approved by the Board for 2009 rates based on a 25 year life.
The 25 year life has been continued with no change since this approval.

There is a decrease in the depreciation expense shown in 2012 in Table 6
for stranded meters to $31,907 from $61,082 in 2011. Stranded meters
were removed from Capital in July 2012. Table 6 reflects seven months of
amortization at $4,558.17 per month = $31,907. After the stranded meters
were moved to a regulatory account, we continued to amortize them. An
additional five months at $4,558.17 per month = $22,790.85 was recorded
as amortization expense which reduced the regulatory asset. The total
stranded meter amortization expense was $54,698.04, which is
comparable to 2011 amortization of $61,082.
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2-Energy Probe-13

Ref:

a)

b)

d)

Exhibit 2, Tab 2, Schedule 1

Please confirm that computer software and computer equipment
were both depreciated over a 3 year period in 2009. If this cannot be
confirmed, please explain where computer equipment was recorded
for 2009 in Table 3.

In Table 5 for 2011, computer equipment and computer software are
shown as separate line items for the first time. The depreciation rate
for computer equipment is shown as 3 years, while there is no period
shown for computer software. What period was used in 2011 to
depreciation computer software over?

In Table 6 for 2012, computer software is shown in a depreciation
rate based on a 5 year life. Please explain why and when this change
occurred.

Please show the calculation of the depreciation expense of
$91,557.80 in 2011 and $91,349.00 in 2012, including all assumptions
made for both years.

Other than changes for computer software and stranded meters,
please confirm that Collus PowerStream has not made any changes
to depreciation rates from those approved by the Board in the 2009
COS application until those proposed for 2013. If this cannot be
confirmed, please provide details of all other changes made through
to the end of 2012.

Response

a)

b)

We confirm that computer software was depreciated over a 5 year period
in 2009-2013. It appears on the 2009 and 2010 table it shows 3 years, but
that is not correct. It was always 5 years.

There was no computer equipment in 2009.

The statement, “In Table 5 for 2011, computer equipment and computer
software are shown as separate line items for the first time” is incorrect.
This is the first time any computer equipment has been purchased and
included as additions in Collus PowerStream capital. Computer
equipment is leased and therefore it is rare any computer equipment
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would be included in PP&E. The small amount of $18k of computer
equipment additions in 2011 is amortized over 3 years as indicated on the
2011 — 2013 schedules.

The depreciation rate for computer software continues to be 5 years, even
though there is no period shown for computer software on the 2011
schedule.

In Table 6 for 2012, computer software is shown in a depreciation rate
based on a 5 year life. There was no change. Computer software was
depreciated over a 5 year period in 2009-2013. On the 2009 and 2010
table it shows 3 years, but that is not correct. It was always 5 years.

Please show the calculation of the depreciation expense of $91,557.80 in
2011 and $91,349.00 in 2012, including all assumptions made for both
years.

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 YEARLY ACCUM ucc
DEPREC DEPREC

53,588 5,265 11,342 398,111 42,022 1,050 4,225 515,603
2006 10,716 10,716 10,716 504,887
2007 10,718 1,053 11,771 22,487 493,116
2008 10,718 1,053 2,270 14,041 36,528 479,075
2009 10,718 1,053 2,268 79,623 93,662 130,190 385,413
2010 10,718 1,053 2,268 79,622 8,405 102,066 232,256 283,347
2011 1,053 2,268 79,622 8,405 210 91,558 323,814 191,789
2012 2,268 79,622 8,404 210 845 91,349 415,163 100,440
2013 79,622 8,404 210 845 89,081 504,244 11,359
2014 8,404 210 845 9,459 513,703 1,900
2015 210 845 1,055 514,758 845
2016 845 845 515,603

$ $ $ $ $ $ $

53,588 5,265 11,342 398,111 42,022 1,050 4,225
e) There has never been any change to the five year amortization for

computer software in any year.

There has never been a change to the 25 year amortization rate on
stranded meters in any year.
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Collus PowerStream has not made any changes to depreciation rates from
those approved by the Board in the 2009 COS application until those
proposed for 2013.

The only minor change occurs in the meter category. From 2010 forward,
after the stranded meters were removed the rate was changed to 15 years
for the remaining meters with a NBV of only $228,833. It appears
however this was only an effort to quantify the remaining useful life of the
meters left that had already had years of amortization taken.
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2-Energy Probe-14

Ref: Exhibit 2, Tab 2, Schedule 4

Please explain how the figure of $17.6K in decreased amortization costs
related to the stranded meters that have been disposed of in 2012 has been
calculated (page 3).

Response

The figure of $17.6K in decreased amortization costs (noted on page 3) related
to the stranded meters that have been disposed of in 2012 has been calculated
as follows:

September 4,405
October 4,405
November 4,405
December 4,405

17,600

With rates effective September 1% amortization has been stopped on September
1%, Therefore in 2013, the amortization expense is $17,600 less than it would
have been if it continued from September to December 2013.

However, the accumulated amortization would not be impacted between Dec 31,
2012 year-end and Dec 31, 2013 year-end because stranded meters were
moved to regulatory in July 2012. They no longer had any balance in
accumulated amortization in either of these two year-ends.
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2-SEC-3
[Ex.2/3/1]
Please provide details of the planned capital expenditures for 2014-2017.

Response

The details of the planned capital expenditures for 2014-2017 are located in our
Asset Management Plan Exhibit 2, Tab 3, Schedule 2, Appendix A, Page 33.
The pages following the table below describe the various projects to be
undertaken over the years.

Table 13 — Capital Expenses

DESCRIPTION 2013 | 2014 | 2015 | 2016 2017

Substation $40,000 $595,000 41,740,000 $40,000 $40,000
Station Equipment 50 0 51,700,000 50 S0
SCADA $40,000 $40,000 $40,000 $40,000 440,000
Land S0 $550,000 S0 s0 50

Poles, Towers and Fixtures $608,422 $601,730 $709,255 $748,538 $954,674

Overhead Conductor and Devices $373,843 $133,081 $101,552 $188,689 $160,177
Primary Conductor $191,059 $96,405 $90,432 $145,388 $104,405

Secondary Conductor 87,784 811,676 $11,120 543,301 $55,772

Overhead Equipment $175,000 $25,000 S0 50 50

Line Transformer $118,564 $181,636 $282,200 $308,328 $269,768

Underground Transformer $26,404 $125,444 $148,252 582,792 $114,040

Overhead Transformer $92,160 556,192 $133,948 $225,536 $155,728

Underground Conductor and Devices 574,879 $263,210 $227,494 $65,485 $235,391

Underground Primary Conductor $55,379 $163,310 $113,044 $52,285 144,791

Underground Equipment S0 S0 560,000 S0 S0

Trenching $18,500 599,900 $54,450 $13,200 580,600

Meters $275,500 $275,500 $275,500 $109,250 $109,250

New Services $150,000 $150,000 $150,000 $150,000 $150,000

Other $382,000 4505,000 $240,000 505,000 $180,000

Vehicles and Equipment 202,000 $325,000 S60,000 $325,000 50

Tools §75,000 §75,000 §75,000 575,000 §75,000

Computer Hardware and Software 5105,000 $105,000 $105,000 $105,000 $105,000

TOTAL $2,023,208 $2,705,157 43,726,001 $2,115,290 $2,099,261
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project
Response
No. Project Name GailBfEien rEahEe Note / Comment
Date
1 Smart Meter - Special Project 31-Dec-13 | 12 month project
2 Revenue Metering 31-Dec-13 | 12 month project
3 Hurontario St - Poleline 15-Dec-13 | 4th Qrt Project
4 Reg 22/04 Infrastructure Compliance 31-Dec-13 | 12 month project
5 Misc. Road Authority Projects 31-Dec-13 | 12 month project
6 Simcoe St. - Poleline 1-Jul-13 | Completed
7 10th Line - Poleline 15-Dec-13 | 3rd & 4th Qrt Project
8 Ronell Crs. - u/g 1-May-13 | Completed
9 Large Equipment & Vehicles 1-Oct-13 | 3rd & 4th Qrt Project
10 New Cust. Services 31-Dec-13 | 12 month project
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2.0-Staff-7

Ref: E2/T3/S2, Appendix A — Asset Management Plan
On page 29 of its Asset Management Plan (“AMP”), the following is documented
with respect to smart meters:

8.3 Smart Meters

CPS completed the installation of smart meters throughout the service
territory in December 2010. At the end of May 2011 all installed smart
meters were registered with the Meter Data Management and Repository
(“MDM/R”). Time of use (“TOU”) biling began January 1, 2012.
Throughout the installation and up to registration with the MDM/R CPS
experienced issues with the quality of the meters procured which required
the replacement of 839, representing a failure and replacement rate of
5.22% of the total population of installed smart meters.

With smart meters containing not only metrology but also communications
and computer technology it can reasonably be assumed that the
communications and computer portion of the meters will become obsolete
prior to the metrology failing causing the replacement of meters which,
from a metrology standpoint, are functioning normally. This is the issue
which is currently being experienced with the Sensus iCon F and iCon G
model smart meters. The meters, from a metrology standpoint, are
accurate. The communications portion of the meter has however become
obsolete. CPS has 4,631 Sensus iCon F and iCon G model smart meters
which have issues with encryption. Installing encryption on Sensus iCon
smart meters is a requirement as a result of the security audit completed
in 2012. The 4,631 Sensus iCon F and iCon G model smart meters will
need to be replaced with encryption compatible Sensus iCon smart
meters.

Table 13 of the Asset Management Plan indicates forecasted meter capex of
$275,500 per annum for 2013 to 2015, and $109,250 for each of 2016 and 2017.

Section 10.2.6 of the AMP documents that meter capex is about $109,250 for
annual meter replacement for about 600 meters per year, and $166,500 for
meter failures, corresponding to about 11% of meters per year.

a) What is the current meter failure rate?
b) Why does Collus PowerStream use a replacement rate of 11% for
meter failures?



c)

d)
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The reduction of meter capex to $109,250 in 2016 and 2017
corresponds to assuming there will be no replacements for meter
failures after 2015. Why has Collus PowerStream assumed that
replacements for meter failures will cease after 2015?
Please identify how the costs for the failed smart meter replacements
(both for the meters themselves and for installation/replacement) will
be recovered. In other words, were the failed meters replaced under
warranty, or were the costs paid for by Collus PowerStream?
I. If the latter, were these costs part of Collus PowerStream’s costs
reviewed and approved in the utility’s smart meter application EB-
2012-00177?
ii. Are any of these costs being recovered as part of this 2013 Cost
of Service Application? If so identify what the costs are and where
they are identified in the Application evidence.
With respect to the encryption issues identified for Sensus iCon F and
iCon G smart meters:

i. Please document the number of Sensus iCon F and iCon G
smart meters for which encryption upgrading is necessary, and
the percentage of Collus PowerStream’s smart meters that this
represents;

il. Identify what costs Collus PowerStream has estimated for the
necessary upgrade. Please identify what costs are identified in
the test year in this Application, if applicable, and where these
are identified in the Application evidence.

Response

a)

12
33

26
day)

13
usage

To date there has been a total of 157 meter failures in the 2013 (Janl
to July 31)
Breakdown: First Gen Meters — 96 meters (61.1% of Failures)

- Register Reset — After outage the register reset to zero

- Radio Failures in the meter

- Poor communication — missing interval data

- Moisture in meter- caused from ice build up

- Damage from falling ice from roof

- Excessive Message (units sending out more 120 messages per

- EEPROM Errors (E1000) this is the electronic chip that calculates

- Calibration Error, Calibration chip failed
- Dead Registers (Display has failed)



day)
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Second Gen Meters — 61 meters (38.9% of Failures)

PO WP

=

b)

d)

- Meter’s programming failed

- Damage from falling ice from roof

- Dead Registers (Display has failed)

- Excessive Message (units sending out more 120 messages per

- Service failure causing the meter to melt
- Moisture in meter- caused from ice build up
- Radio Failures in the meter

There are 22.4 failures per month so far this year.

The number of Residential meters is about 13,908. This gives us
the Failure rate of 1.1% in the first seven months of this year. Using
the average of 22.4 per month it's projected that there will be 269
units, this gives us a Failure rate of 1.9% for the year

Section 10.2.6 of the AMP indicates a meter replacement rate for failed
meters of 11%. The 11% annual replacement is related to the total
replacement over 3 years of the iCon F & G meters which represent in
total approximately 30% of the total smart meter population.

The reduction of the meter capex in 2016 and 2017 is due because the
First Generation meters will be fully taken out of service by the end to
2015.

Given that 61.1% of the failures to date in 2013 are related to the First
Generation meters and these units will be fully replaced out of our
system by 2015 the meter capex valve of $109,250 is to cover the
failures of the Second Generation. This valve lower than the valve of
$275,500 reported for use in the first three years.

These units are outside of the manufacturer's warranty period. Collus
PowerStream is requesting a new deferral account, 9.0-Staff-32, to
record the costs associated with replacing meters which have become
obsolete before their expected retirement date.

I. The replacement of the first generation meters was not
anticipated when the smart meter application was filed.

il. Collus PowerStream has not recorded any costs associated
with the replacement of the iCon F&G meters in OM&A.
Collus PowerStream is requesting a deferral account as part
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of the 2013 Cost of Service application to track the
associated costs.

The 4,631 Sensus iCon F and iCon G model smart meters will
need to be replaced with encryption compatible Sensus iCon
smart meters. This will represent 33.3% of Collus PowerStream
residential meter population.

Collus PowerStream has budgeted capital costs of $166,250 a
year over the next 3 years to replace the iCon F&G meter
population. No costs have been included in OM&A.
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2.0-VECC -3
Reference: Exhibit 2, Tab 3, Schedule 2

a) Was an Asset Management Plan undertaken prior to the 2012 Plan? If
yes please provide the forecast capital expenditures that were
recommended in the prior plan.

b) Was an Asset Management Plan provided in the last cost of service
application? If so please provide the recommended forecast capital
expenditures from that plan.

c) If no previous plan was undertaken please provide the forecast capital
expenditures for 2009 through 2012 that were included in the last cost
of service application.

Response

a) Collus PowerStream did not undertake the completion of an Asset
Management Plan prior to the 2013 Cost of Service filing.

b) Collus PowerStream did not undertake the completion of an Asset
Management Plan prior to the 2013 Cost of Service filing.

c) Collus PowerStream’s 2009 cost of service application EB-2008-0226
included capital expenditures for the 2008 bridge year and 2009 test year.
See attached schedules.
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2.0-VECC -4
Exhibit 2, Tab 3, Schedule 3

Reference:
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a) Please provide the vehicle inventory as of January 1, 2009 and the proposed inventory as of January 1, 2013.

Response

a)

Truck 31
Truck 25
Truck 32
Truck 13
Truck 30
Truck 29
Truck 34
Truck 11
Truck 10
Truck 33
Truck 26
Truck 18
Truck 36
Truck 14
Truck 19
Truck 12

1996 Chev
1995 Ford
2006 Ford
1995 Intern
1992 Intern
2010 FRHT
2004 GMC
2004 Chev Exp
2003 Dodge
1993 Intern
2003 Chev

2006 International

2006 Dodge Car
2004 Ford

2007 Dodge
2008 FRHT

COLLUS POWER CORP
VEHICLE LISTING

1GCGK24R7TE25497
1FDKE30F1SHA46386
1FTRX14W16NB29075
1HTSDAAR7SH669289
1HTSDPBR2NH401272
1FVACYDT7AHAP7540
2GTEK19Vv341146973
1GCFH25T241200430
1D7HG38X735295372
1HTSCPEN7PH493462
1GNDU23E43D207245
1HTMKAAR16H208500
1D4GP25R06B559769
1FDAF57P84ED93737
3D7KS28D87G818383
1FVHCYBS48HAB4832

4584CC
3071JA
9991RR
NJ2835
XM3538
6491XM
WWG6770
WS4035
VJ1020
EV6602
AAVC300
JY7447
AZLS580
8676TX
8829TX
3487TWY

Light
Heavy
Light
Heavy
Heavy
Heavy
Light
Light
Light
Heavy
Passenger
Heavy
Light
Heavy
Light
Heavy

3000
4960
3000
11800
15000
15909
3000
3000
3000
7000

15800

3000 LEASED
8000

3995

22730



Trailers

1988 Home
1987 Home
1982 Home
1969 Home
1961 Home
1985 King
1988 Util
2007 Reme

118998713

109704834

2041527

N69C103

153
2K9P24107EW002641
2U9TU4413HWO009012
2REA2WT7A572Y86578

C89046
C49351
K84196
36368F
36369F
25148M
E43125
F7374D

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
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2.0-VECC -5
Reference: Exhibit 2, Tab 3, Schedule 3

a) Please provide the annual number of poles replaced between 2007 and 2012
(inclusive) and the proposed pole replacement in 2013 through 2016.

Response
a)
Poles replaced
Years # Replaced

2007 200

2008 64

2009 125

2010 130

2011 100

2012 121

To date 2013 65

Per AMP 2013 139

Per AMP 2014 105

Per AMP 2015 158

Per AMP 2016 177
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Capital Expenditures

2.0-Staff-8

Ref: E2/T3/S3, table 1 — Capital Expenditure Summary and E2/T3/S7 — Capital
Budget

On page 1 of E2/T3/S7 Collus PowerStream states that Table one summarizes Collus
PowerStream’s actual investments for the years 2009, 2010, 2011, 2012 Bridge and
2013 Test Year. On Table 1 Collus PowerStream only provides its Capital Budget
Summary up to 2012 Actual.
a) Please provide the table in the same format with the 2013 forecast amounts
as well as 2013 year-to-date spending.
b) Please reconcile the amounts shown for 2009 actual and 2010 actual with
Table 1 of E2/T3/S3, p.2 and explain if smart meter capital costs have been
included in one of the tables.

Response

a)

COLLUS PowerStream Cap
Budget

GL Acct
W.O. # # DESCRIPTION 2013 2013 YTD 2013
_ FORECAST June 30th | Remaining
I |
DISTRIBUTION PLANT - CUSTOMER DEMAND & RENEWAL CATEGORY:
1830/35/45 | 10th Line 44kV - Poplar to Mt. Road Project 463,301 463,301
17403 1830/35/45 | Hurontario Street South 44kV & Overhead 97,120 97,120
17025 1830/35/45 | Simcoe St Rebuild - Peel to Raglan 122,766 43,444 79,322
17402 1830/35/45 | Ronell Crescent 64,989 74,674 -9,685
DISTRIBUTION PLANT - SECURITY AND RELIABILITY CATEGORY: Misc
Projects
17016 1830-0-0 MISC REBUILD PROJECTS 299,078 191,562 107,516
DISTRIBUTION PLANT - Misc Projects Due to Municipal Development
Misc. Municipal Projects 50% Labour&
17035 1830-0-0 Trucking portion 9,890 7,999 1,891
DISTRIBUTION PLANT - Misc Contributed Capital Projects
| 1830/35/45 | Misc Contributed Assets 350,000 60,552 289,448
DISTRIBUTION PLANT - CUSTOMER METERING CATEGORY: Electric Meters
17050 | 1860-0-0 | Electric Meter Capital 275,500 77,651 197,849

DISTRIBUTION PLANT - CUSTOMER METERING CATEGORY: Electric Meters
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17070 | 1850-0-0 | Distribution Transformer Capital 118,564 33,262 85,302
DISTRIBUTION PLANT - CUSTOMER METERING CATEGORY: Electric Meters
17091 | 1980-0-0 | SCADA Capital Projects 40,000 40,000

TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT:

Large Tools, Vehicles & Equipment Purchases

17126 (Sections A to D) 252,000 252,000
DISTRIBUTION PLANT - CUSTOMER DEMAND & RENEWAL CATEGORY:
17170 | 1855-0-0 | New Services - Collingwood 130,000 42,471 87,529
DISTRIBUTION PLANT - CUSTOMER DEMAND & RENEWAL CATEGORY:
17401 | 185500 | New Services - Thornbury 5,000 199 4,801
DISTRIBUTION PLANT - CUSTOMER DEMAND & RENEWAL CATEGORY:
17301 | 1855-0-0 | New Services - Clearview 15,000 2,604 12,396
GENERAL PLANT - COMPUTER SYSTEM CATEGORY - CIS & Accting
Systems
Customer Information System (CIS) & General
17163 1925-0-0 Accounting Software 105,000 105,000
GENERAL PLANT - FACILITIES CATEGORY - CAPITAL ADDITIONS
17131 | 1915-0-0 Office Equipment (2011 to 2013) 15,000 6,498 8,502
1955-0-0 Communication Equipment 10,000 6,305 3,695
Gross Capital Project Spending 2,373,208 547,221 1,825,987

CAPITAL CATEGORY ITEM: RECHARGABLE PROJECTS - CONTRIBUTED
CAPITAL

18500 1995-0-0 CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL $  (350,000) (60,552) $ (289,448)

Net Capital Spending Projected for the Year $ 2,023,208 486,669 $ 1,536,539

b) The amounts shown for 2009 and 2010 actual per E2/T3/S3 are $3,755,549 and
$2,094,946 respectively. The actual amounts include work-in-progress for smart
meters of $2,134,227 and $164,675 respectively. Smart meter costs for 2009
and 2010 should not have been posted to capital work-in-progress. They should
have been posted to the 1555 regulatory account. When WIP was closed out in
the subsequent year, the smart meter costs did correctly get allocated to 1555.

In order to agree the table to the corporate financial records the line for smart
meters work-in-progress was included in Table 1 E2/T3/S3. At the bottom of the
table, reconciliation was already provided in the evidence which removes the
smart meter work-in-progress. The reconciled amounts for 2009 and 2010 actual
are listed as $1,621,322 and $1,930,271 which agrees to E2/T3/S7.
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2-Energy Probe-15

Ref: Exhibit 2, Tab 3, Schedule 4

a) Please provide additional information on the lands purchased from CNR. In
particular, the size and shape of the land and the Collus PowerStream
infrastructure located on the land. For example, is the land an abandoned
railway right of way or a former railway yard?

b) Did Collus PowerStream have aright of way on the CNR lands?

c) Under what authority did CNR have to tell Collus PowerStream to vacate
the land or purchase it?

d) Will Collus PowerStream be able to sell any of the purchased land at a
future date because all of the land purchased is not needed to ensure
access to the infrastructure? If yes, please estimate the percentage of the
land purchased that could be sold in the future.

Response
a) The land is a portion of the former CNR Right of Way that was sold

approximately 20 years ago to a private Citizen who acquired the parcel to
enhance his abutting property when CNR abandoned their Railway service.

This land had an existing utility pole line established approximately 40+ years
ago. The pole line has 1- 44kV - 3 Phase circuit and 2 — 4kV - 3 Phase circuits
which feeds predominantly the main downtown core of the Town of Collingwood.
The purchased lands consist of 5727 m?.
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b) Sincethe saleto the Private Citizen approximately 20 years ago Collus PowerStream paid
annually (vacant land taxes) to retain use of the corridor for the Hydro Right of Way.
However, there was no registered easement for the poleline use as the owner did not want
an easement registered on title that could encumber his future development concept.

¢) CNR did not issue notice to Collus PowerStream to vacate the land rather it was the
private land owner who did so through his Lawyer on July 21 2011.

d) Due to size and possible development constraints, it is envisioned that any surplus lands
at this location would be a better suited for future relocation of the abutting land-locked
Municipal Sub-Station number 1.
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2-Energy Probe-16

Ref: Exhibit 2, Tab 3, Schedule 4

a) Are all of the projects shown on pages 19 through 22 included in rate base
by the end of 20137

b) Based on the most recent information available year to date 2013, are all of
the projects for 2013 shown on pages 19 through 22 forecast to be
completed and in-service by the end of 20137

Response

a) Yes, all 2013 projects on these pages are included in the 2013 capital budget.

b) All projects on pages 19 through 22 are either completed or substantially
underway and still forecasted to be completed / in-service by Year-End.
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2-SEC-5
[Ex.2/3/3/4/p.3]
With respect to poll replacement:

a) Please provide the numbers of polls replaced in each year between 2009-
2012.

b) Please provide the numbers of polls budgeted to be replaced in the Test
Year.

c) Please provide the numbers of polls replaced in the Test Year year-to-date.
Response
a) The chart below indicates the number of hydro poles replaced in each year from

2007 through 2013 year to date. It also shows forecasted hydro pole
replacements from 2013 through 2016.

Poles replaced
Years # Replaced

2007 200

2008 64

2009 125

2010 130

2011 100

2012 121

To date 2013 65
Per AMP 2013 139
Per AMP 2014 105
Per AMP 2015 158
Per AMP 2016 177

b) See 2-SEC-5 a)
c) See 2-SEC-5 a)
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2-SEC-6

[Ex.2/3/4/1-24]

For each major capital project listed, please provide a table comparing budgeted cost
with the actual amount spent.

Response

The following table compares budgeted PP&E cost for 2009 — 2012 to actual:
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This comparison was not initially included in the cost of service application because the
historical information was pieced together from various versions of finance historical
excel documents that were never trued up to final year-end results. Incomplete
information, uncertainty regarding which version was the most current, and a number of
repeating carry forward items result in data that is difficult to interrupt in a meaningful
way.

The new finance staff have organized quarterly budget to actual review starting in 2013
which will produce more accurate and meaningful reporting for the future.



2-SEC-7

[Ex.2/3/4/p.21]

Please provide a list of the Applicant’s current vehicle fleet, with the original in-service date.

Response

Truck 13
Truck 30
Truck 29
Truck 34
Truck 11
Truck 31
Truck 33
Truck 26
Truck 18
Truck 36
Truck 14
Truck 19
Truck 12
Truck 32
Truck 10
Truck 16
Truck 22

1995 Intern

2010 Intern

2010 FRHT

2004 GMC

2004 Chev Exp
2003 Dodge

2012 FRHT

2003 Chev

2006 International
2006 Dodge Car
2004 Ford

2007 Dodge

2008 FRHT

2006 Ford

2009 Ford Escape
2011 GMC Ste
2011 Jeep Compass

COLLUS POWER CORP
2013 VEHICLE LISTING

1IHTSDAAR7SH669289
IHTWGAATT7AJ247115
1IFVACYDT7AHAP7540
2GTEK19V 341146973
1GCFH25T241200430
1D7HG38X 735295372
1FVHCYBSACHBK 6186
1GNDU23E43D207245
IHTMKAAR16H208500
1D4GP25R06B559769
1FDAF57P84ED93737
3D7K S28D87G818383
1FVHCYBS48HABA4832
1FTRX14W16NB29075
1IFMCU93GX9KA10935
1GTN2TEAOBZ252686
1INFAFB7BD136197

NJ2835
2057YJ
6491XM
WWG6770
W&4035
Vv J1020
AAB83540
AAVC300
JY 7447
AZL.S580
8676TX
8829TX
3487WY
9991RR
BJTR753
7963ZR
BKTD908
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Service Date
All new unless noted
11800
24000
15909
3000
3000
3000
22730
3000
15800
3000
8000 March 29/07
3995
22730
3000
3000 Sept 8/10
3000
3000



Trailers

1988 Home
1987 Home
1982 Home
1969 Home
1961 Home
1985 King
1988 Util
2007 Reme

118998713

109704834

2041527

N69C103

153
2K9P24107EW002641
2U9TU4413HWO009012
2REA2W7A572Y 86578

C89046N/A
C49351N/A
K84196N/A
36368F N/A
36369F N/A
K6559S
K6558S
E7374D
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N/A
N/A
N/A



Met Capital Spending

Less Smart Meters  Adjusted
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Average capital spending

2008 2,610,130 [289,182]' 2,320,948

2009 1,621,322 1,621,322

2010 1,930,271 1,930,271 1,823,704 (2008-2012)

2011 1,480,665 1,480,665

2012 1,765,312 1,765,312 1,699,393 (2009-2012)
Less Creemore

Projected Capital Spending

Substation Normalized Capital Spending

Average capital spending

2013 2,023,208 i 2,023,208 2,082,783 (2013-2017)
2014 2,705,157 [555.000]' 2,150,157
2015 3,726,001 {1,700,000) i 2,026,001
2016 2,115,250 f 2,115,290
2017 2,099,261 i 2,095,261



2.0-VECC -9

Reference: Exhibit 2, Tab 3, Schedule 4
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a) COLLUS notes that it has infrastructure on the land it intends to
purchase from CNR. Was CNR compensated for this use of this land

in the past?

If yes please provide the annual amounts for 2009

through 2012. The capital and OM&A costs of the GEA plan for the
period 2012 through 2016 (or confirm there are no costs related to the

plan).

Response

a) The land is a portion of the former CNR Right of Way that was sold
approximately 20 years ago to a private Citizen who acquired the parcel to
enhance his abutting property when CNR abandoned their Railway

service.

Since the sale to the Private Citizen approximately 20 years ago Collus
PowerStream paid annually (vacant land taxes) to retain use of the
corridor for the Hydro Right of Way. However, there was no registered
easement for the poleline use as the owner did not want an easement
registered on title that could encumber his future development concept.

2012
2011
2016
2009
2088

1,771.
1,740.
1,685.
1,559.
1,442,

93
ee
78
64
11

This is confirmation that there is NO related GEA plan costs proposed for the
period 2012 through 2016
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Exhibit 2, Tab 3, Schedule 10, Table 1, pg.2 /Exhibit 4/Tab

a) Please explain the rationale for the variation from the Kinetric
recommendation and the COLLUS adopted Useful Life for Overhead

Conductors.

b) What would be revenue requirement adjustment if all the useful lives of
assets were compliant with the Kinetric
elimination of variations shown in Table 1)?

Response

recommendations (i.e.

a) In almost all cases Collus PowerStream has selected a useful life for
PP&E that is within the range of the kinetric study. The following three
components have a slightly different useful life adoption than the kinetric
study.

Components:

NEW

OoLD

Kinetric

Variance
to
Kinetric

Variance Explanation

Overhead
System

Other Assets

Other Assets

OH Conductor Useful Life
(years)

Smart Meters

System Supervisory Equipment

45
15
15

25
15
15

60
5-10
20

15
-5
5

OH replaced at the same time as the poles typically
Based on original OEB direction for 15 yr useful life.

Computerized components would not last 20 years

Exhibit 2, Tab 3, Schedule 10 states, “Overhead conductors have been
amortized over 45 years based on the average useful lives of pole assets.
COLLUS PowerStream has determined when a pole line is replaced; the
existing conductors would be replaced at that time. To do otherwise would
result in increased costs due to the fact that two projects would be
required - firstly, to install the new poles, remove conductor from old poles
and re-install existing conductor to new poles; and secondly, to remove
the conductor once again and reinstall new conductor at some future date.
Therefore, a typical useful life of 45 years is appropriate for these assets
as the two projects would be combined into one.”

There is also some additional breakdown in Overhead System from the
Kinetrics study to consider. As shown below the typical useful life is 25-60
for the various components within our grouping for overhead system. This
supports the 45 year useful life Collus PowerStream has selected.
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Current OEB OEB Key Components / Different | Current OEB Useful
GL Account #

Asset Description

Proposed OEB May 2010 Useful Life Range

Asset Types or Subclass (1) Life
Minimum Useful Life | Typical Useful Life

Maximum Useful
Life

1835

OH lines and devices
OH cenductors 25 50 60

OH line switch 25 30 45
OH line switch motor 25 15 25
OH line switch RTU 25 15 20
OH line integral switches 25 35 45

OH shunt capaciter banks 25 25 30

Reclosures 25 25 40

75

55

25

20

60

40

85

b)

The smart meters are being amortized over a 15 year period as originally
outlined by the OEB for the approved length of useful life. Since this time
it has become apparent that since these smart meters have significant
computerized components, the time frame until obsolete based on the
Kinetric study is only 5-10 years. Collus is going to continue to use the
recommended 15 year OEB life until more history is available to determine
the actual length of service time.

Another area of difference is the System Supervisory Equipment.
Considering the number of computerized components in these assets,
Collus PowerStream feels a 15 rather than 20 year useful life is a more
reasonable estimate based on historical experience with such equipment.

The revenue requirement adjustment if all the useful life of assets were
compliant with the Kinetric recommendations would result in $4,268 more
in amortization expense.

The overhead variance is $0 because based on the components in this
group Collus PowerStream is compliant with the Kinetrics study. See
table above.

Actual Kinetric Variance
Overhead 112,461 112,461 0
Smart Meters 185,961 181,365 4,597
SCADA 36,287 36,616 {329)

334,709 330,441 4,268
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2-Energy Probe-17

Ref: Exhibit 2, Tab 4, Schedule 1

On page 3 of the evidence it states that the RPP and non-RPP prices are
taken from the Ontario Wholesale Electricity Market Price Forecast Report
dated March 28, 2013. Table 3 shows a commodity (spot) price of 0.02068
for May, 2013 through October, 2013 and a price of 0.02213 for November
and December. In addition, Table 3 shows a Global Adjustment rate of
0.07075 for May, 2013 through October, 2013 and a rate of 0.06176 for
November and December. With reference to the above noted Report,
please explain where these figures come from.

Response

See revised chart below which corresponds to the reports indicated above.
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2013 COP Expense Forecast

VOLUMES
Total Purchases (kwh) 31,084,003 28,198,086 28,130,699 23,391,114 22,406,499 22,710,051 23,977,523 24,375,631 22,072,289 23,571,977 24,822,012 29,602,809 304,342,694
RPP Customer Base 51.53% 46.82% 43.38% 41.70% 39.85% 42.46% 50.24% 45.69% 43.48% 46.72% 51.49% 57.63%
Spot Customer Base 48.47% 53.18% 56.62% 58.30% 60.15% 57.54% 49.76% 54.31% 56.52% 53.28% 48.51% 42.37%
100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
RPP KWh 16,019,048 13,203,443 12,203,941 9,753,931 8,928,699 9,643,505 12,046,547 11,137,202 9,596,833 11,013,276 12,780,730 17,061,165 143,388,319
Non-RPP kwWh 15,064,955 14,994,642 15,926,758 13,637,183 13,477,800 13,066,546 11,930,976 13,238,430 12,475,456 12,558,702 12,041,282 12,541,645 160,954,375
Historic Ratios (kW)3
System kW/Energy Purchased kWh - HONI 0.18% 0.18% 0.18% 0.18% 0.18% 0.18% 0.18% 0.18% 0.18% 0.18% 0.18% 0.18%
System Line/System kW - HONI 8.06% 8.06% 8.06% 8.06% 8.06% 8.06% 8.06% 8.06% 8.06% 8.06% 8.06% 8.06%
Low Voltage/System kW - HONI 100.04% 100.04% 100.04% 100.04% 100.04% 100.04% 100.04% 100.04% 100.04% 100.04% 100.04% 100.04%
kW Quantities
Transmission Netw ork - HONI 57,350 52,025 51,901 43,156 41,340 41,900 44,238 44,973 40,723 43,490 45,796 54,617 561,508
Transmission Line - HONI 4,625 4,195 4,185 3,480 3,334 3,379 3,667 3,627 3,284 3,507 3,693 4,404 45,282,
LV Charges - HONI 57,371 52,044 51,920 43,172 41,355 41,915 44,255 44,989 40,738 43,506 45,813 54,637 561,715
RATES
Commodity (RPP) 0.08069 0.07938 0.07938 0.07938 0.08395 0.08395 0.08395 0.08395 0.08395 0.08395 0.08395 0.08395 0.08254
Commodity (Spot) 0.02040 0.02464 0.02464 0.02464 0.01933 0.01933 0.01933 0.01933 0.01933 0.01933 0.01933 0.01933 0.02075
Global Adjustment Rate/kWh 0.05381 0.05426 0.04064 0.04064 0.06612 0.06612 0.06612 0.06612 0.06612 0.06612 0.06612 0.06612 0.05986|
Transmission Netw ork - HONI 3.1800 3.1800 3.1800 3.1800 3.1800 3.1800 3.1800 3.1800 3.1800 3.1800 3.1800 3.1800 3.1800
Transmission Line - HONI 0.7000 0.7000 0.7000 0.7000 0.7000 0.7000 0.7000 0.7000 0.7000 0.7000 0.7000 0.7000 0.7000
Transmission Transformation - HONI 1.6300 1.6300 1.6300 1.6300 1.6300 1.6300 1.6300 1.6300 1.6300 1.6300 1.6300 1.6300 1.6300
LV Charges - HONI 0.6680 0.6680 0.6680 0.6680 0.6680 0.6680 0.6680 0.6680 0.6680 0.6680 0.6680 0.6680 0.6680
Wholesale Market Charge (per KWh) 0.0056 0.0056 0.0056 0.0056 0.0056 0.0056 0.0056 0.0056 0.0056 0.0056 0.0056 0.0056 0.0056
Monthly Service charges (fixed per account) 292.56 292.56 292.56 292.56 292.56 292.56 292.56 292.56 292.56 292.56 292.56 292.56 292.56
LVDS (per kW) 1.9440 1.94 1.94 1.94 1.94 1.94 1.94 1.94 1.94 1.94 1.94 1.94 1.9440
ICOP EXPENSE
Commodity (RPP) $ 1,292,577 $ 1,048,089 $ 968,749 $ 774,267 $ 749,564 $ 809,572 $ 1,011,308 $ 934,968 $ 805,654 $ 924564 $ 1072942 $ 1432285 $ 11,824,540
Commodity (Spot) 1,117,970 1,183,077 1,039,699 890,235 1,151,678 1,116,536 1,019,502 1,131,224 1,066,028 1,073,141 1,028,928 1,071,684 $ 12,889,702
Transmission Netw ork - HONI 182,372 165,440 165,044 137,237 131,460 133,241 140,678 143,013 129,499 138,298 145,632 173,681 $ 1,785,596
Transmission Line - HONI 3,237 2,937 2,930 2,436 2,334 2,365 2,497 2,539 2,299 2,455 2,585 3083 $ 31,697
Transmission Transformation - HONI 93,480 84,801 84,598 70,345 67,384 68,297 72,108 73,306 66,379 70,889 74,648 89,025 $ 915,259
LV Charges - HONI 38,324 34,766 34,683 28,839 27,625 27,999 29,562 30,053 27,213 29,062 30,603 36,497 $ 375,226
Wholesale Market Charge 174,070 157,909 157,532 130,990 125,476 127,176 134,274 136,504 123,605 132,003 139,003 165,776  $ 1,704,319
Monthly Service charges (8 accounts) 2,340 2,340 2,340 2,340 2,340 2,340 2,340 2,340 2,340 2,340 2,340 2340 $ 28,086
LVDS (on average 2,700 kW) 5,249 5,249 5,249 5,249 5,249 5,249 5,249 5,249 5,249 5,249 5,249 5249 $ 62,986
Total Cost of Power $ 2,909,619 $ 2,684,608 $ 2,460,824 $ 2,041,939 $ 2,263,111 $ 2,292,777 $ 2,417,518 $ 2,459,195 $ 2228266 $ 2,378,002 $ 2,501,931 $ 2979621 $ 29,617,410
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a) Please provide the causes of interruptions by the following
similar categories if otherwise maintained by COLLUS).

categories (or

Description

2009
Totals

2010
Totals

2011

Totals

2012
Totals

Scheduled

Supply Loss

Tree Contact

Lightning

Def. Equip.(other than pole)

Pole Failure

Weather

Human Element

Animals, Vehicle

Environment

Unknown

Total

Response
a)

Description

2009
Totals

2010
Totals

2011

Totals

2012
Totals

Scheduled

30

Supply Loss

5

Tree Contact

12

Lightning

PIN|IO|E=

SSES

B DIW|OD

4

Def. Equip.(other than pole)

20

10

26

Pole Failure

Weather

8

10

6

10

Human Element

(Fire/lOPP+1)
4

(Fire/lOPP+1)

7

(Fire/OPP)
5

(Fire/OPP+8)
13

Animals, Vehicle

Environment

Unknown

21
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2.0-VECC -11
Reference: Exhibit 4, Tab 2, Schedule 2

a) Please confirm that all COLLUS customers are billed monthly. Has the
frequency of billing changed since 2009?

Response

a) All Collus PowerStream customers are billed on a monthly basis. Collus

PowerStream has not made any changes to billing frequency between 2009 and
2013
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2.0-Staff-9

Ref: E9/T1/S1 — Disposition of Renewable Generation and Smart Grid Capital and
OM&A Deferral Accounts; Accounting Procedures Handbook FAQ’s, dated
December 2010.

Collus PowerStream is proposing to dispose December 31, 2011 audited balances (plus
interest) in four Renewable Energy/Smart Grid deferral accounts — Accounts 1531, 1532,
1534 and 1535.

a) Were the capital investments and OM&A costs that are the subject of the above
noted accounts, reviewed in a prior Board proceeding? If any of the costs (or
investments) that are the subject of this disposition request were reviewed by the
Board in a previous proceeding, please provide the appropriate references.

Response

a) The capital investment and OM&A costs included in accounts 1531, 1532, 1534
and 1535 were not reviewed in Collus PowerStream’s 2009 Cost of Service
application EB-2008-0226. With the exception of the balance in account 1531
which was incurred in 2009 the balances in accounts 1532, 1534 and 1535 were
incurred in 2010 and 2011 which were subsequent to EB-2008-0226. For
reporting purposes, Collus PowerStream included in quarterly RRR.2.1.1 and
annual RRR.2.1.7 outstanding balances for recovery in accounts 1531, 1532,
1534 and 1535. Collus PowerStream tracked the carrying charges in accounts
1531, 1532, 1534 and 1535, from inception up to and including disposition of this
account with rates effective September 1, 2013. Collus PowerStream is
requesting disposition of these accounts at this time.
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2.0-Staff-10

Ref: Ex 9/T1/S1/p.11 — Disposition of Account 1531 - Renewable Generation
Connection Capital Deferral Account; and Ex 9/T1/S1/p.11 Disposition of Account
1532 Renewable Connection OM&A,;

Ontario Regulation 330/09
Distribution System Code, section 3

Under section 3 of the Distribution System Code (“DSC”), distribution system
investments related to the connection of renewable generation facilities are classified in
the DSC within 3 categories - connection assets, expansions and renewable enabling
improvements (“REI”). The cost responsibility for each is also set out in section 3 the
DSC

a) Please classify the capital costs in the above noted DSC categories and provide
reasoning for the proposed classification. Please provide your response in table
format as set out at page 19, section 4.4.2 of the DSP Filing Requirements. If the
capital investments are classified as REI, please refer to section 3.3.2 of the DSC
and demonstrate how the investments qualify as REI investments. In keeping
with the DSC, please provide the appropriate cost responsibility for each
category.

b) Please explain how the OM&A labour costs were estimated and provide a high-
level breakdown of the costs by its main elements and a description of the work
performed under each element.

c) Has Collus PowerStream included any allocation of general expenses that are not
specifically related to the eligible investments? If the answer is “yes”, please
explain why the subject amounts have been included and quantify the amount of
general expenses.

d) Please classify the OM&A expenses in the above noted DSC categories and
provide reasoning for the proposed classification. Please provide your response
in table format as set out at page 19, section 4.4.2 of the DSP Filing
Requirements. In keeping with the DSC, please identify the appropriate cost
responsibility for each category.

As part of its disposition proposal, Collus PowerStream is seeking Board approval to
dispose of audited balances (plus interest) in account 1532. Collus PowerStream is
proposing to recover the entire amount from its ratepayers and no calculation of direct
benefits, has been provided.

Please explain how Collus PowerStream’s approach to cost recovery is consistent with
the expectations of O.Reg 330/09.

Response
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a) Upon review of the balance in account 1531 Collus PowerStream confirms that
this balance is not related to Renewable Generation and should have been
capitalized in 2009 to account 1845 Underground conductors and devices.

b) The OM&A labour costs were estimated based on the average number of hours
spent weekly on the MicroFIT settlement process. When the MicroFIT program
was rolled out, Collus PowerStream’s settlement process required significant
manual intervention to ensure generation data was being accurately
communicated and compiled. The MicroFIT settlement process and generation
tracking required on average 3 days per week when the MicroFIT program was
launched.

c) Collus PowerStream has not allocated any general expenses to account 1532
and account 151 is no longer being requested for disposition. All expenses
allocated to account 1532 are directly related to the FIT and MicroFIT settlement
process as outlined in 2.0-Staff-10 d).

d) The OM&A costs included in account 1532 represent wages associated with the
settlement process of FIT and MicroFIT contracts as assigned by the Ontario
Power Authority under the Green Energy and Economies Act. Collus
PowerStream uses the Harris CIS system which at present does not have the
capability to automate the FIT and MicroFIT settlement process. Collus
PowerStream in conjunction with the Utility Collaborative Services, (“UCS”), group
have been working towards automating the process however the programming
required is extensive and Harris has to date not been able to adequately provide
the necessary automated processes. Collus PowerStream continues to work
towards automating the process however at this time the settlement process is
still manual.

As per the requirements in section 4.4 of the Distribution System Plan, the
following information has been provided in respect to the OM&A in account 1532.

e There was no budget specifically prepared for the automation of the FIT
and MicroFIT process in the Harris CIS system.

e The OM&A costs being claimed have been specified above.

e Collus PowerStream is requesting disposition of the accumulated costs
and interest of $55,818. Collus PowerStream is not requesting the addition
of a rate rider or funding adder.

e Not applicable as there is no request for a rate rider or funding adder.

Collus PowerStream is requesting disposition and recovery of the balance in account
1532 from all rate payers. Under the Green Energy and Economies Act Collus
PowerStream is required to connect to it distribution grid all eligible MicroFit and FIT
generators. All customers throughout Collus PowerStream’s service territory have an
equal opportunity to benefit from obtaining a MicroFIT or FIT contract. Currently all rate
payers are subsidizing the settlement process as the OEB mandated monthly charge of
$5.25/generator is not sufficient to cover the monthly costs associated with manually
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completing the settlement process and subsequent issuance of payment to the
generators.
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2.0-Staff-11
Ref: Ex 9/T1/S1/p.12 Disposition of Account 1534 — Smart Grid Capital

Collus PowerStream is proposing to dispose audited balances (plus interest) in account
1534. At the above reference, Collus PowerStream states “this account consists of
capital costs associated with investments in a demonstration smart grid project....”

a) Please provide (i) a description of the demonstration project and its stated
purpose and objectives; and, (i) a description of the technology that was
demonstrated.

b) Please provide a breakdown of the capital costs by its main elements, a
description of the work performed and need for the capital expenditures.

c) Prior to undertaking its own demonstration project, did Collus PowerStream
review other demonstrations related to similar technology?

Response

a) The capital expenditures allocated to this account were not for a demonstration
smart grid project. They were related to smart grid studies and education and
training.

b)

Account 1534 - Smart Grid Capital

Year Cost Purpose

Mediator for strategic planning session for Collus senior
management regarding smart meter deployment and the future of
2010 6,667.75 smart grid throughout Collus PowerStream senice territory

Account 1535 - Smart Grid OM&A
2010 10,560.52 Strategic planning session costs (excluding mediator)
1,695.00 Staff attendance at smart grid summit
12,255.52

c) Not applicable
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2.0-Staff-12

Ref: Ex 9/T1/S1/p.12 Disposition of Account 1534 — Smart Grid Capital Accounting
Procedures Handbook FAQ’s, dated December 2010, page 19

Collus PowerStream is proposing to dispose audited balances (plus interest) in account
1534. At the above reference, Collus PowerStream states “... [this account consists of]
capital costs to accommodate renewable generation”.

a) Please provide a description of the noted capital work, a description of need for
the capital expenditures and the quantum of the capital costs related to the
accommodation of the renewable generation.

b) If the noted capital costs relate to REI investments, the above referenced APH
FAQs require that the distributor allocate the related costs to the renewable
generation capital account. Based on Collus PowerStream’s response to part (a),
please undertake the allocation as required under the December 2010 FAQ’s.

Response

a) The capital expenditures allocated to this account were not related to the
accommodation of renewable generation projects. They were related to smart
grid studies, education and training.

b) Not applicable.
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2.0-Staff-13

Ref: E9/T1/S1, p. 7, Table 3; E9/T1/S1, p. 12 and December 2010 APH FAQ #16 —
Account 1535, Smart Grid OM&A Deferral Account

As per APH FAQ #16 this account only includes OM&A expenses.

Collus PowerStream is seeking disposition of the total balance of $12,808 for Account
1535. Regarding Account 1535, Collus PowerStream indicates that this account consists
of capital costs including wages, associated with installation, operation and
maintenance of smart grid studies, education and training programs.

a) Please confirm that the balances in this account are OM&A cost rather than
capital cost. If not, please explain why these expenditures are recorded under on
an OMA account and make the necessary adjustment to accounts 1535 and
1534.

b) If yes, please provide a breakdown of these costs.

Response
a) Collus PowerStream confirms the balance in this account is OM&A and is not

capital in nature.
b) See 2.0-Staff-11 b) for account breakdown.
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EXHIBIT 3 — OPERATING REVENUE

3-Energy Probe-18

Ref: Exhibit 3, Tab 1, Schedule 2

a) For each rate class shown in Table 1, please indicate whether the
customers are billed on a monthly or bi-monthly basis.

b) Has there been any change in the billing frequency for any rate class
between 2009 and 20137? If yes, please provide details.

Response
a) All Collus PowerStream customers listing Exhibit 3, Table 1, Schedule 2 Table 1
are billed on a monthly basis.

b) Collus PowerStream has not made any changes to billing frequency between
2009 and 2013.
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Ref: E3/T1/S3 and Appendix A — Load Forecast

Board staff's understanding of the multivariate regression model that Collus
PowerStream has used to develop its load forecast is as follows:

e The load forecast is developed on a system-purchased kWh basis;

e The monthly measured system purchased kWh was modified by adding back in
the loss-adjusted CDM savings for each month in the period from 2006 to 2011.
The loss adjustment of CDM is explained on pages 2-4 and summarized in Table

2

e The system-purchased kWh adjusted to removed loss-adjusted CDM savings was
then regressed on the following regressor variables:

i.

ii.
iii.
iv.

VI.

Vii.

viii.

Customer count;

Heating Degree Days;

Cooling Degree Days; and

A full set of binary variables for every month in the year. The full set of
monthly variables would have been perfectly linear with an intercept, so the
intercept was omitted from the regression.

The system-purchased kWh was then estimated.

Loss-adjusted CDM impacts were then subtracted again to get the
estimate or forecast of the “real” system-purchased kWh.

Billed system kWh were then calculated by dividing system-purchased
kWh by (1 + loss factor).

Billed system kWh were then allocated to customer classes based on
allocations related to historical data; and

For demand-billed customer classes, billed kW were estimated from the
classed allocated billed kWh by a kw/kWh conversion factor.

a) Please confirm, correct or provide further explanation of the regression-based
approach that Collus PowerStream employed to develop its load forecast.

b) Appendix A and an associated Excel spreadsheet provide the data used for the
regression analysis. The CDM variable has been “grossed up” for losses to
correspond with the system purchased kWh endogenous variable being modelled. It
appears that the CDM variable is held constant in any particular year.

Please explain the construction of the CDM variable.

Please explain the rationale for constant CDM impacts in every month.
Please explain how the first-year impact of new CDM programs in a year is
accounted for. For example, while OPA program results are reported as
annualized amounts, this assumes that all programs are in place as of
January 1 of that year. That will not be true for new programs introduced
and implemented in that year. In the absence of further information on the
timing for deployment and uptake of new programs in a year, a half-year
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rule is a better approximation of the real impact on demand. Persistence of
CDM programs into future years is appropriately represented by the
annualized impacts as reported by the OPA. If Collus PowerStream has
not reflected first-year impacts by a “half-year rule”, please explain.

c) On page 15 of the exhibit, Collus PowerStream states: “Forecasts are made for time
periods beyond the end of the available data. To estimate the average energy
purchases for any particular combination of predictor variable values, the values of
the predictor variables are simply substituted in the estimated regression equation
itself.” “Forecasts” for the monthly binary variables are easily understood. Please
explain how the forecasts of customer counts, HDD18 and CDD18 were developed.

Response

a) Confirmed

b)
l.
Please refer to the table below.
Table:
Derivation of CDM values
1 2 3
Revised
CDM Targets Total Loss Factor, | CDM Savings,
Year OPA Programs  3rd Tranche 2011-2014 CDM Savings | Loss Factor | kWh Gross-up| kWh (gross) Monthly
2005 158,967 0 158,967 8.8% 14,037 173,004 14,417
2006 1,031,866 1,236,756 0 2,268,622 8.4% 190,111 2,458,733 204,894
2007 2,580,762 436,092 0 3,016,854 8.4% 252,812 3,269,666 272,472
2008 3,577,935 220,405 0 3,798,340 8.4% 318,301 4,116,641 343,053
2009 5,621,541 0 0 5,621,541 7.5% 421,616 6,043,157 503,596
2010 6,099,488 0 0 6,099,488 7.5% 457,462 6,556,950 546,412
2011 5,698,064 0 3,194,455 8,892,519 7.5% 666,939 9,559,458 796,621
2012 5,615,213 0 2,630,329 8,245,542 7.5% 618,416 8,863,958 738,663
2013 5,589,642 0 5,150,426 10,740,068 7.0% 751,805 11,491,873 957,656
2014 5,426,277 0 3,994,790 9,421,067 7.0% 659,475 10,080,542 840,045

14,970,000

The historic and future volume reductions resulting from CDM initiatives were
constructed using the following approach:

e The first column of Table 1 provides a summary of persistence kWh from historic
OPA programs as provided in the OPA Report, Section 2.7.10 of Chapter 2 of the
Board’'s “Filing Requirements for Transmission and Distribution Applications”,
dated June 22, 2011.

e The second column provides summary kWh for 3rd Tranche PowerStream’s
programs (source: PowerStream and former Barrie Hydro Annual CDM Reports
for 2005-2008).
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e The third column provides a breakdown of 2011-2014 CDM targets (source: EB-
2010-0215, EB-2010-0216).

These values were grossed up for losses and annual CDM savings were allocated
evenly over the 12 month period for each year. The savings reported by the OPA for
programs in the first year they are implemented are the annualized values. The
savings achieved count for the whole year, regardless of when the program started.

i.  Annual CDM savings were allocated evenly over the 12 month period for each
year for simplicity. The CDM impact is minimal related to the gross load. In
addition, the OEB has accepted the use of annualized savings in order to
determine LRAM adjustments.

iii.  The savings calculated for 2011 are based on OPA actual verified results and are
not based on estimated savings. Therefore it is reasonable to attribute 100% of
the savings to 2011.

To calculate the forecasted customer growth rate, actual growth by customer rate class
was calculated for 2007 through 2011 by customer class and the 5-year average annual
growth rate used to forecast the 2012 bridge year and 2013 test year. The annual growth
rate was assumed to occur evenly throughout the year.

For purposes of Collus PowerStream’s load forecast, weather is not forecasted.
Weather inputs are based on monthly normal HDD and CDD data. Collus
PowerStream utilizes a simple average of a 10-year (2002 — 2011) weather time
series for defining normal weather.



Collus PowerStream Corp.
EB-2012-0116

Responses to Interrogatories of
Board Staff and Intervenors
Page 95 of 375

Filed: August 21, 2013

3.0-Staff-15
Ref: E3/T1/S3 — Load Forecast

On page 5, Collus PowerStream documents that the explanatory variable was “monthly
system load (i.e. purchases) grossed up by CDM data for January 2005 to September,
2012.” This is 93 observations.

Table 8 on page 14 shows that there were 88 observations in the estimated regression
model, please confirm the regression range for the model.

Response

The model forecast was based on 88 observations. Five observations were marked off
as outliers that contained questionable or erroneous data. These observations were
weighted to zero; as a result these observations had no influence on the estimated
parameters and on the predicted values for later observations.

In responding to this interrogatory, Collus PowerStream re-estimated the model by
utilizing all 93 observations from January 2005 to September 2012. As a result of this re-
estimate the Total Energy Purchases forecast for the 2013 Test year is 315,099,814
kWh, which is slightly lower than the filed forecast of 315,834,571 kWh. Given that the
reduction in the load forecast is minimal, Collus PowerStream is confident that its
original load forecast is valid as filed.
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3.0-Staff-16

Ref: Exhibit 3/Tab 1/Schedule 3 — Load Forecast

Collus PowerStream’s proposed regression model employs both HDD and CDD and a
full set of 12 binary variables for every month in the year. The monthly binary variables
will capture seasonal effects which could be weather-related (including HDD and CDD)
as well as monthly “seasonal” variations on other factors such as economic activity (e.g.
fewer business days in February, holiday impacts in December and January, etc.). The
full set of monthly binary variables should be highly correlated with the HDD and CDD
variables. Nonetheless, in the estimated coefficients shown in Table 9, all coefficients
have t-Statistics that are statistically significant.

a)

b)

Why did Collus PowerStream employ two sets of variables (HDD/CDD and the
monthly binary variables) that methodologically, would show significant
overlap?

The use of the monthly binary variables assumes that monthly “seasonal”
impact on kWh is constant over years for any particular month. In other words,
the seasonal influence for July is 8,012,927 kWh, for every year in the
regression range, from 2005 to September 2012. However, normal business
cycles, economic and other growth and factors will mean that a constant
monthly factor would not be realistic. Please provide Collus PowerStream’s
reasons for preferring a full set of monthly binary variables to more realistics
measures of economic and other drivers, beyond HDD and CDD.

Response

a)

The monthly binary variables account for the impact the number of billing days
has on the usage (i.e. the more days there are in the biling month, the more
energy will be used, holding everything else constant). In virtue of allowing for
a different impact every month, the model captures more variation in the data,
much more than if simply using a Constant term; this would be effectively the
same as assuming a constant number of days in each billing month. While it
is possible, let's say that “July” binary variable can take away some of the
explanatory variable of the “CDD18”, the overlap will be minimal. Below is the
correlation matrix that shows the correlation levels between monthly binaries
and HDD and CDD variables. In most cases the correlation levels are
negligible.
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Table:
Correlation Matrix

Jan 0.302 0.510
Feb 0.333 0.435
Mar (0.505) 0.245
Apr (0.531) (0.009)
May 0.346 (0.152)
Jun 0.358 (0.312)
Jul (0.510) (0.366)
Aug 0.381 (0.361)
Sep 0.396 (0.283)
oct (0.517) (0.115)
Nov (0.498) 0.055
Dec 0.326 0.379

The best indicator of the robustness of Collus PowerStream’s approach is that
the coefficients of the binaries and weather variables are all significant. If there
was significant overlap, the coefficients on the degree-day variables would not
be significant.

The impact of the billing days would not typically change significantly over
time, seeing how there are only 365 or 366 days in any given year and there is
a limited number of ways this can be sliced into billing months. Economic
drivers typically do not have pronounced seasonal patterns - in fact, most
economic data sources seasonally adjust them if they do. Collus
PowerStream utilized a customer count variable as a model driver to account
for the impact of economic, while HDD and CDD variables accounted for the
weather impact.
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3.0-Staff-17

Ref: Exhibit 3/Tab 1/Schedule 3- Load Forecast

On page 11, Collus PowerStream provides, in Table 7, a list of initial explanatory
variables tried:

Table 7
Initial Set of Explanatory Variables
Dependent Variable Y Monthly Energy Purchases (kWh)
Independent (Explanatory) Variables X1 Heating Degree-days (HDD18)

X2 Colling [sic] Degree-days (CDD18)

X3 Real Gross Domestic Product for Ontario
(GDP)

X4 Customer Count for service area

X5 Energy Price

X6 GDP/Energy price (weighted variable)
X7 Simple Trend

a)
b)

c)

d)

f)

Why was Real Ontario GDP omitted from the model?

What was the definition of Energy Price? Why was this variable omitted from the
model?

Please explain the rationale underlying the GDP/Energy Price variable? How is
this seen as a driver of energy consumption or demand? Why was this variable
omitted from the model?

Please provide the definition and the purpose underlying the “Simple Trend”
variable. Why was this variable omitted from the model?

Please explain how these variables were entered in the modelling. Were they
entered all and then dropped as a result of a stepwise regression model?

What alternative measures of population and/or economic activity were tried?
Please summarize why these were not used in the proposed load forecasting
equation.

Response

a)

The goal of a multiple regression forecast model is to produce the most accurate
forecast possible, given available information on the factors that affect monthly
energy purchase variation and growth. Several monthly models of energy
purchases were specified, estimated and tested to derive the energy purchases
forecast. The statistical software generated the coefficients that were used in the
variables suitability assessment.

Collus PowerStream explored commonly-used economic drivers like Ontario Real
Gross Domestic Product (GDP). While all model specifications worked well,
model using Ontario GDP as a proxy for economic activity did not have a fit that is
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nearly as strong as that estimated with Customer Count. The GDP model
performed worse in the in- and out-of-sample test with out of sample MAPE of
2.18%; this compares with a 1.13% MAPE using the service area customer count.

Table:
Model Comparison (2013 COS Model vs. GDP-based Model)

Model Model

(Evidence) (GDP)
Adjusted R-Squared 98.70% 94.00%
MAPE, % 1.07% 2.56%
Out-of-Sample MAPE, % 1.13% 2.18%

2013 Test Energy Purchases (kwWh) 315,834,571 314,921,272

Model fit with Customer Count proved to be better overall than with Ontario Real
GDP and resulted forecasts showed reasonable load growth that is consistent
with the historic outcome. Customer Count was selected as the economic driver
because of its performance in the model and its ability to be tailored to Collus
PowerStream service area.

b) Collus PowerStream explored Energy Pricing as an alternative economic driver.
Energy Price variable was constructed using a simple average of the Regulated
Price Plan Tier 1 and Tier 2 kWh pricing, historic and forecasted.

While all model specifications had reasonable results, the model using Energy
Price variable as a proxy for economic activity did not have a fit that is nearly as
strong as that estimated with Customer Count, and the Energy Price model
performed worse in the in- and out-of-sample tests.

Table:
Model Comparison (2013 COS Model vs. Energy Price-based Model)

Model Model
(Evidence) (Energy Price)
Adjusted R-Squared 98.70% 94.50%
MAPE, % 1.07% 2.50%
Out-of-Sample MAPE, % 1.13% 2.21%

2013 Test Energy Purchases (kWh) 315,834,571 315,018,169

c) Given recent economic uncertainty and large swings in recent GDP forecasts,
Collus PowerStream considered the GDP/Energy Price variable as an alternative
forecast driver.
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The load elasticity to price is not well-defined. For non-residential and industrial
customers the financial incentives to adjust loads due to high energy prices can be
significant, but in the case of residential load, the factors determining the load are
more difficult to define. GDP/Energy price weighted variable was developed by
assigning a 50/50 weighting of the two variables, Ontario Real GDP and Energy
Price.

The model using the weighted economic variable generates the weakest forecast
of 313,798 MWHSs for 2013 Test Year which is substantially below an average
historic growth. Given that the model also performed worse in the in and out-of-
sample period, Collus PowerStream decided not to utilize this model for the
purpose of forecasting 2013 Test Year load.

Table:
Model Comparison (2013 COS Model vs. GDP/Energy Price-based Model)
Model Model
(Evidence) (EconVar)
Adjusted R-Squared 98.70% 94.20%
MAPE, % 1.07% 2.44%
Out-of-Sample MAPE, % 1.13% 2.19%
2013 Test Energy Purchases (kWh) 315,834,571 313,797,836

Simple trend variable was defined as per following function:
(Year - Base Year) + Period/12

This trend variable served as a proxy for an economic component of the model in
the initial stage of the model estimation. Basic model was estimated utilizing
weather variables and a Simple Trend variable. However, a trend variable is not a
very good way to account for the impact of economics. Most naturally occurring
load time series do not behave as though there are straight lines that they are
following: real trends change their slopes and/or their intercepts over time. The
task was to find the right economic driver of the load time series.

While all model specifications had reasonable results, the model using Trend
variable as a proxy for economic activity did not have a fit that is nearly as strong
as that estimated with Customer Count, and the Trend model performed worse in
the in- and out-of-sample tests.
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e) In preparing its load forecast Collus PowerStream looked for patterns in its

f)

historical data. Data patterns are represented by historical patterns plus random
variation. Random variation cannot be predicted. Historic patterns in load are
represented by level (data fluctuates around a constant mean); trend (data exhibits
an increasing or decreasing pattern); seasonality (any pattern that regularly
repeats itself and is of a constant length); and cycle (for example, patterns created
by economic fluctuations). At a minimum, a “best” model should account for these
patterns. The objective was to find independent variables that best explain this
variation, with a reasonable number of variables with available data as required for
forecast periods.

The task was to find the right economic driver that accounts for the trend pattern.
Since all of these variables (Real GDP for Ontario, Energy Price and GDP/Energy
Price) are correlated with each other, models were estimated with one variable at
a time. Each model was then assessed for its fit and performance in- and out-of-
sample.

Collus PowerStream explored using local economic drivers to replace Real Gross
Domestic Product for Ontario. Local economic data for the Collus PowerStream
territory was looked at and considered but was incomplete and did not align with
Collus PowerStream’s four distinct service territory locations. Building permit data
was also looked at and considered but the data was inconsistent and not
comparable between the four distinct service territory locations. Collus
PowerStream’s service territory encompasses four towns: Collingwood, Stayner,
Creemore and Thornbury in three municipalities: the Town of Collingwood,
Township of Clearview and Town of Blue Mountains, located in two Counties:
Simcoe and Grey. No reliable and/or consistent economic or external measure of
customer growth, i.e. building permits, data could be identified.
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3.0-Staff-18

Ref: Exhibit 3/Tab1l/Schedule 3, pp. 3-4 and p. 17-18 and Exhibit 3/Tab 1/Schedule
5/Appendix A — CDM Adjustment

Collus PowerStream has proposed a CDM adjustment of 10,740,068 which represents
34.4% of Collus PowerStream’s CDM target. Collus PowerStream has proposed to use
the corresponding amount to establish the amount of CDM savings for 2013 (and hence
2014) for the LRAMVA.
Based on the pages from the final 2011 CDM report provided by the OPA for Collus
PowerStream as provided in Exhibit 3/Tab 1/Schedule 5/Appendix A, Board staff has
prepared the following table, which is also provided in working Microsoft Excel format:
The methodology for this is as follows:
For the top table
e The 2011-2014 CDM target is input into cell B4;
e Measured results for 2011 CDM programs for each of the years 2011 and
persistence into 2012, 2013 and 2014 are input into cells C13 to F13;
e Based on these inputs, the residual kWwh to achieve the 4 year CDM target is
allocated so that there is an equal incremental increase in each of the years 2012,
2013 and 2014.
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Load Forecast COM Adjustment Work Form (2013)

Collus PowerStream Power Corp. EB-2012-0116
4 Year | 2011-2014] kWh Target:
14,970,000
aH1 iz i E] 2014 Total
H
2011 COM Programs L.48% 5B 5.48% 4. 94% 21 38%
2012 COM Programs 13107 13.10% 13 10% 35.31%
2013 COM Programs 13.10% 13, 10% 26.21%
2014 COMY Programs 13.10% 13.10%
Total in Year 5.48% 18.58% 31.69% 4. 360 L iR
KWh
2011 CDM Programs 820,000 220,000 820,000 WO00 3,200,000
2012 CDM Programs 1,961,667 1561667 1,961,667 5,885,000
2013 COM Programs 1,561,667 1,961, 667 31,923,333
2014 COM Programs 1,961 667 1,961 667
Total in Year E20,000 2,781,667 4,743,333 6,625,000 14,970,000
Chack 14 970,000
Met-to-Gross Conversion
"Gross" "MNet” Differance “Net-to-
Gross”
Conversion
Factor
(g}
2006 to 2001 OPA COM prograims:
Persistence to 2013 2l 1 E 0.00%
il 2012 2013 2014 Total for 2013
Amount used for COM
threshold for LRAMWA B0, 000 1,961,667 1561667 4,743,333
Manual Adjustment for
2013 Load Forecast 470,000 1,561 GE7 G0, 833 3,352,500
Monual odjustment S assumed to Only 50% of 2013 COM impoct
uEes "gross” wersus be in bose s used hosed on o half year
“net” (Le. numibers forecast, so S0% rude
muitiplied by {1 + g} needed for full
year persistence

by 2014
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The second table is to calculate the conversion from “net” to “gross” results. While the
LRAMVA is based on the “net” OPA-reported results, the load forecast is impacted also
by CDM savings of “free riders” and “free drivers”. While Board staff has input values of
“1” in each of cells D24 and E24, in the absence of other information, these should be
populated with the measured “gross” and “net” CDM savings for the persistence of all
CDM programs from 2006 to 2011 on 2013, as reported in the final OPA reports.

For the last table, two numbers are calculated:

The “Amount used for CDM threshold for LRAMVA” is the sum of the persistence
of 2011 and 2012 CDM programs and the annualized impact of 2013 CDM
programs on 2013; and

“Manual Adjustment for 2013 Load Forecast” represents the amount to be
reflected in the 2013 load forecast. This amount uses the “gross” impact, which is
calculated by multiplying each year's CDM program impact or persistence by (1 +
g) from the second table. In addition, the impact of the 2013 CDM programs on
2013 “actual” consumption is divided by 2 to reflect a “half year” rule. Since the
2013 CDM programs are not in effect at midnight on January 1, 2013, the
“annualized” results reported in the OPA report will overstate the “actual” impact.
In the absence of information on the timing and uptake of CDM programs in their
initial year, a “half-year” rule may proxy the impact.

Please provide the preliminary 2012 CDM report from the OPA for Collus
PowerStream. This is normally provided in the spring of the year. If this is not
available, please explain.

Please input the “gross” and “net” cumulative kWh CDM savings from all CDM
programs from 2006 to 2011 on 2013 as measured in the final OPA reports into,
respectively, cells D24 and E24. Please verify the inputs and results of the model.
Please derive the class CDM kWh and kW savings that would correspond with
the “net” CDM savings above.

Since Collus PowerStream has calculated its forecast on a system purchased
kwh model, the CDM adjustment should be similarly adjusted for losses. When
the forecast is then calculated on a billed basis to again back out the losses, and
allocated to classes for class-specific consumption (and converted to kw demand
for demand-billed customer classes) and used in cost allocation and as billing
determinants for volumetric based distribution rates and other volumetric rate
riders and rate adders. Please provide Collus PowerStream’s views as to whether
this is preferable to the approach that it has proposed in the Application.

Please provide Collus PowerStream’s comments on the methodology above to
develop the CDM savings that will underlie the 2013 CDM amount for the
LRAMVA and the corresponding CDM adjustment for the 2013 test year load
forecast. What, if any, refinements to this approach should be considered?
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Message from the Vice President:

The OPA s pleased to provide the endosed Draft 2012 Results Report. This report 5 designed to provide preliminany
information on the 2012 resuits and to help populate LDC annual report temiplates that will be submitted to the OEB in late
September.

Pleasa note that the 2012 draft results within this report may vary from the 04 2012 preliminary report for the following
FEAS0NE:

*  The submission of updated data by the LDCs into the iCon CRM by May 24, 2013 aiowed the evaluators to validate
sawings fior a greater number of participants than previously identified.

*  Regional-specific dat@ allowed for greater refinement to the ex ante estimates for peaksaverPLUS for 2012,
Experments fior testing new cyding strategies have been inftiated in 2013 to further enhance thase results,

= Improvemants inthe 2012 parformance of DR-3 particpants resulted in higher e ante estimates for this mitiative.

*  The realization rates for 2012 demand savings in Small Business Lighting (581} are different compared to the
assumptions used in the quartesly reparts, which were based on 2011 resuits. There was a3 greater variance in
operating profiles of the buildings participating in SBL in 2012, Energy results were jess impacted.

*  True-up anabysis and reporting for 2041 is shown for the first ime in this report and wifl continue each year unti the
end of the 2011 — 2014 reporting period. This true-up analysis ensures that energy and demand savings are properly
categorized in the year that they were achizved and that any omissions and/or errors identifed after the release of the
2041 Final Resuits Report are properly accounted for and reported to the LDCs. The true-up process was developed by
the LDC Reporting Wiorking Group. wWhile the results will be identified as 2012, cumulative energy savings will
commence from 2041,

Results are considered draft and may be sulbject to change. Results for the Home Assistance Program, Mew Home
Construction, and High Performance Mew Construction, are currently unverified with verified results to be provided in the
2012 Final Results Report.

The OPA is committed to providing LDCs with the opportunity to review and provide feedback. To enswre that all inquiries.

can be directed to the appropriate OPA contact and addressed prior to the release of the final results, please e-mail a list of
questions and/or concerns to LDC Support {LOC Support@powerauthority. onuca) by Monday, August 12, 2013,

The Final 2012 Results Report will be available to all LDCs on or before August 31, 2013, All resufts will be consedered final
for 2012 Ay additional 2012 program activity not captured will be reported in the Final 2013 Results Report through the
2012 true-up process.

W'e apprecate your collaboration and cooperation throughout the reporting and evaluation process and we look forward to
another successful year ahead.

Plezse continue to monitor saveOiienersy E-blasts for any further updates and should you have any other questions or
cormments please contact LDC Support@powerauthority.on.ca.

Simcerehy,

Andrew Pride
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OPFA-Contracted Provinte-Wide COM Programs FINAL 2012 Results
LDC: COLLUS Power Corporation
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1 Realization Rate & NTG
Energy Sevings
Indtmstive Rie miization Rate Het-to-Gross Ratic Fenlization Rete Fiet-to-Sross Ratio
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Progress Towards COM Targets

Results are attributed to target using current OPA reporting policies. Energy efficiency resources persist for the duration of the
effective useful life. Any upcoming code changes are taken into account. Demand response resources persist for 1 year. Please see
methodiology tab for more detailed informaton.

Table 4: Net Peak Demand Savings at the End Usar Level [MW]

i P Annuzl
: 2011 12 2013 014
2011 - Verified 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2
2012 - Verified 0.3 0.3 0.3
2013
2014
verified Net Annual Peak Demand Savings Persisting in 2014 0.4
COLLUS Power Corporation 2014 Annual CDM Capadty Target 3.1
Verified Portion of Peak Demand Savings Target Achieved in 20080%): 13.8%
Table 5: Net Energy Savings at the End User Level [GWh)
v annual Cumulative
S 2011 012 2013 2014 2011-2014
2011 - Verified 0.8 0.8 0.3 0.7 32
2012 - Verified 12 12 12 3.6
2013
2014
verified Met Cumulative Energy Savings 2011-2014: 6.8
COLLLIS Power Corporation 2011-2014 Annual COM Energy Target 15,0
verified Portion of Cumulative Energy Target Achieved (%) 25,5%
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Table & Provinoe-W¥ on Rate & NTG
Feak Demand Sawings Energy Savings
Imitistive Readization Rate Nit-to-Gross Ratic Realization Rate Net-to-Gros Ratio
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Summary - Provincial Progress

Table 9: Province-Wide Net Peak Demand Savings at the End User Level (MW)

- 5 Annual
Implementation Period e o S s
2011 216.3 136.6 1358 1250
2012 266.6 109.4 107.8
2013
2014

Verified Net Annual Peak Demand Savings in 2014: 136.8
2014 Annual COM Capacity Target 1,330
Verified Peak Demand Savings Target Achieved - 2011 [%): 17.8%

Table 10: Province-Wide Net Energy Savings at the End-User Level (GWh)

Implementation Period Bt SR
2011 2012 2013 2014 2011-2014
2011 506.9 503.0 801.0 582 3 2393
2012 5320 5136 507.8 1,553
2013
2014
Verified Net Cumulative Energy Savings 2011-2012 3,985
2011-2014 Cumnulative CDM Energy Target: 6,000
Verified Portion of Energy Target Achieved - 2011 [%): 65.8%

COLLUS Powser COrporation R4 Annual COM Report 20432 - Draft verifiad Resuits 12



METHODOLOGY
All results are at the end-user level (not including transmission and distribution losses)
EQUATIONS
Prascriptive Gross Savings = Activity * Per Unit Assumption
Measures and Met Savings = Gross Savings * Net-to-Gross Ratio
Projects &ll savings are annualized (ie. the savings are the same regardless of time of year a project was completed or measure instzlled)
. Gross Savings = Reported Savings * Realization Rate
Engineered and e o e

Custom Projects

Met Savings = Gross Savings * Net-to-Gross Ratio
&l savings are annualized (ie. the savings are the same regardless of time of year a project was completed or measure instzll=d)

Demand Response

Peak Demand: Gross Savings = Net Savings = contracted MW at contributor level * Provincial contracted to ex ante ratio
Energy: Gross Savings = Met Savings = provincial ex post energy savings * LDC proportion of total provincial contracted MW
&ll savings are annualized (ie. the savings are the same regardless of the time of year a participant began offering DR)

adjustments to
Previous Year's
warified Results

&ll errors and omisskons from the prior years Final Annual Results report will be adjusted within this report. Any errors and ommissions with
regards to projects counts, data lag, and calculations etc., will be made within this report. Considers the cumulative effect of energy savings.

Initiative Attributing Savings to LDCs Savings "start” Date Calculating Resource Sawings
mwﬁngﬂn |
includes both retail and home pickup stream;
Retail stream allocated based of
appliance s e -::-c,a E_ i Savings are considerad to begin in the year
. 2008 & 2009 residential throughput; Home ; RHE
Retirement the appliance is picked up.

pickup stream directly attributed by postal

Peak demand and energy savi are
code or customer selection o pid

determinad using the verifiad measure level per

appliance Exchange

unit assumption multipied by the uptake in the
market {gross) taking mto account net-to-gross
factors such as fres-ridership and spillover [net)
at the measure level.

‘when postal code information is provided by
customer, results are directly attributed to the
Loc. ‘when postal code is not available, results
allocated based on average of 2008 & 2009
residential throughput

Savings are considerad to begin in the year
that the axchange event occurred

HWVAC InCentives

Results directly attributed to LOC based on Savings are considerad to begin in the year
customer postal code that the installation occurred

COLLUS Power Corporation
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Bi-Annual Retailer
Event

Results are allocated based on average of 2008
& 2009 residential throughput

Savings are considered to bagin in the year in
'which the event occurs.

Initiative Artributing Savings to LDCs Savings "start® Date Calculating Resource Savings
Conservation !.I::n:-cu-t.!ed coupons directly attributed to LDC; il e e o s i e e
Instant Coupon othenwise results are allocated based on o b e e T
Booklat average of 2008 & 2009 residential throughput po Peak demand and energy savings are

determined using the verified measure level per
unit assumption multiplied by the uptaks in the
market [gross) taking into account net-to-gross
factors such as free-ridership and spillover [net)
at the measure level.

Retailer Co-op

‘When postal code information is provided by
the customer, resufts are directly attributed. i
postal code information is not available, results
are allocated based on average of 2008 & 2008
residential throughput.

savings are considered to begin in the year
aof the home visit and installation date.

Peak demand and energy savings are
determined using the verified measure level per
unit assumption multiplied by the uptake in the
market [gross) taking mto account net-to-gross
factors such as free-ridership and spillover |net)
at the measure level.

Residential Demand
Response

Results are directly attributed to LDC based on
data provided to OPA through project
completion reports and continuing participant
lists

Savings are considered to begin in the year
the device was installed and/or when 3
customer sizned a pecksover PLUS™
participant agreemeant.

Peak demand savings are based on an ex ante
estimate assuming a 1 in 10 weather year and
represents the “insurance value” of the
inftiative. Energy savings are based on an ex
past estimate which reflects the savings that
oocurmed as 3 result of activations in the year
and accounts for any “snapback” m energy
consumption experienced after the event.
Savings are assumed to persist Tor only 1 year,
reflecting that savings will only oocur if the

respurce is activated.
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Residential program
schedule)

completion reports and continuing participant
lists

customer sizned a peaksover PLUS™
participant agreement.

Initiative Artributing Sawvings to LDCs Savings "start’ Date Calculating Resource Sawvings
Peak demand savings are based on an ex ante
estimate assuming a 1 in 10 weather year and

Ccommercial represents the "insurance value" of the
A Results are directly attributed to LDC based on |Savings are considered to begin in the year E:: S z e

oz SEPONE | data provided to OPA through project the device was installed and/or when a e = nersy .sa'lnngs T -.:m e
|part of the post estimate which reflacts the savings that

occurred as a result of activations in the year.
Savings are assumed to persist for only 1 year,
reflecting that savings will onby occur if the
resowrce is activated.

Demand fesponse 3

Results are attributed to LDCs based on the
total contracted megewatts at the contributor
level as of December 31st, applying the

Savings are considersd to begin in the year in

Peak demand savings are ex ante estimates
based on the load reduction capability that can
be expected for the purposes of planning. The ex
ante estimates factor in both scheduled non-
performances (iLe. maintenance) and historical

|part of the provincial 22 ante to contracted ratio (ex ante z : 3 perfarmance. Energy savings are based on an ex
Industrial program | estimate/contracted megawatts); Ex post Whlr_J!_ The: t!::ﬁmhutur sened o 0 paost estimate which reflects the savings that
schedule) energy savings are attributed to the LDC based e i actually ccowred as & results of activations in
on their proportion of the total contracted the year. Savings are assumed to persist for 1
magawatts at the contributor lewel. year, reflecting that savings will not occur if the
resource is not activated and additional costs are
inourred to activate the resounce.
I I"-t : e

Process & System

Results are directly atributed to LDIC based on
LD identified in application in the
savelienergy CRM systam; Initiative was not

Savings are considered to begin in the year in

Peak demand and energy savings are
determined by the total savings from a given
project as reported (reported). & realization rate
is applied to the reported savings to ensure that
these savings align with EMEV protocols and

Upgrades Sl i ol peoibts i JHIY B which the incentive project was completed. |reflect the savings that were actually realized
I T (i.2. how many fight bulbs were actually installed
’ vs. what was reported] (gross). Met savings takes
into account net-to-gross factors such as free-
ridership and spillover [net).
COLLUS Power Corporation OPA Annual COM Repart 2012 - Draft Verified Results
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Initiative Attributing Savings to LDCs Savings "start’ Date Calculating Resource Savings

Peak demand and energy savings are
determined by the total savings for a given
project & reported in the ICON CRM system
[reported). A realization rate is applied to the

efficiency: Results are directly attributed to LDC based on :;imsz::lﬁ ::nfun:::aﬂ::tr::: ::mg:

7 i Lo identified at the facility level in the : ;
;:::s::!:m savelienergy CRM; Projects in the Savings are considerad to begin in the year Sﬂ:::?;;::L:E;E:::::E:::T;ixlliéﬁwwm
jicentive ot of application Status: "Post-Stage Submission® of the actual project completion date on the o A (Al s s Valies in-m
are included (excluding "Payment denied by [iCON CRM system. : i
the CEI program LDC"); Please see "Reference Tables” tab for account net-to-gross factors such as free-
schedule) % ridership and spillover [net). Both realization

Building type to Sector mapping

rate and net-to-gross ratios can differ for energy
and demand savings and depend on the mix of
projects within an LDC territory [i.e. lighting or
non-fighting project,
engineersd/custom/prescriptive track).

Demand Responsa 3

Results are attributed 1o LOCs based on the

total contracted megawatts at the contributor

level as of December 31st, applying the

provincial ex ante to contracted ratio (ex ante

estimate/contracted megawatis); Ex post

energy savings are attributed to the LDC hased

on their propartion of the total contracted
magawatts at the contributor lavel.

Savings are considered to begin in the year in
'which the contributor signed up to
participate in demand response.

Peak demand savings are ex ante estimates
based on the load reduction capability that can
be expected for the purposes of planning. The ex
ante astimates factor in both scheduled non-
performances [i.e. maintenance) and historical
performance. Energy savings are based on an ax
post estimate which reflects the savings that
actually ccourred as a results of activations in
the year. Savings are assumed to persist for 1
year, reflecting that savings will not ocour if the
resource is not activated and additional costs are
incurred to activate the resowrce.
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Attributing Savings to LDCs

Sawvings "start’ Date

Calculating Resource Savings

Home Assistance
Program

Results are directly attributed to LDC based on
Lo identified in the application.

5avings are considered to bagin in the year in
which the measures were installed.

Peak demand and energy savings are
determined using the measure level per unit
assumption muitiplied by the uptake of each
measure {gross) taking into aCcount net-to-gross
factors such as free-ridership and spilover [net)
3t the mezsure level.

Electricity Retrofit
Incentree Program

Results are directly attributed to LDC based on
Lo identified in the application; Initiative was
not evaluated in 2011 or 2012, assumptions as
per 2010 evaluation

Savings are considered to begin in the year in
which a project was compieted.

High Performance
New Construction

Results are directhy atiributed to LDC based on
customer data provided to the OPA from
Enbndge; Initiative was not evaluated in 2011
or 2012, assumptions as per 2010 evaluation

5avings are considerad to bagin in the year in

Toronto
Comprehensive

Program run exchusively in Toronto Hydro-
Electric Systemn Limited service territory;
Initiative was not evaluated in 2011 or 2012,
assumptions as per 2010 evaluation

which a project was completed.

Peak demand and energy sawvings are
determined by the total savings from a given
project as reported (reported). A realization rate
is applied to the reported savings to ensure that
these savings align with EMEY protocods and
refiect the savings that were actually realized
[i.e. how many light bulbs were actually installed
vs. what was reported) (gross). Net savings takes
into account net-to-gross factors such as free-
ridership and spillover [net]. If energy savings
are not available, an estimate iz made based on
the kiw'h to k' ratio in the provinciz| results
from the 2010 evaluated results

[hittp:/ fwewrw. powerauthority on.ca/evaluation-
measurement-and-verification/evaluation-
reports).
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Initiative

Attributing Savings to LDCs

Savings ‘start’ Date

Calculating Resource Savings

Multifamily Energy

Results are directly attributed to LDC based on
Lo identifiad in the application; Initiative was

Incentre Program

Efficiency Rebates  |not evaluated in 2011 or 2012, assumptions as
per 2010 evaluation
[ata Cantra Program run exdusively in Powerstream Inc.

service territory; Initiative was not evaluated in
2011, assumptions as per 2002 evaluation

EnWin Green Suitas

Program ren exclusively in ENWIN Utilities Ltd.
service territory; Initiative was not evaluated in
2011 or 2012, assumptions as per 2010
evaluation

Savings are considered to begin in the year in
which a project was completed

Peak demand and energy savings are
determined by the total savings from a given
project as reported (reported). & realization rate
is applied to the reported savings 1o ensure that
these savings align with EMEY protocols and
reflect the savings that were actually realized
(i.e. how many light bulbs were actually installed
ws. what was reported) (gross). Met savings takes
into account net-to-gross factors such as free-
ridership and spillover (net]. If energy savings
are not available, an astimate is made based on
the kvwh to kW ratio in the provinoal results
from the 2010 evaluated results

|hitp:/ fensrw powarauthority on_ca/evaluation-
measurement-and-verification/evaluation-
reports).
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Building Type Sector
Agribusiness - Cattle Farm CEl
Agribusiness - Dairy Farm CEl
Agribusiness - Greenhouse CEl
Agribusiness - Other CEl
Agribusiness - Other, Mived-Use - Office/Retail C&l
Agribusiness - Other, Office, Retail Warshouse CEl
Agribusiness - Other, Office, Warehouss CEl
Agribusiness - Foultry CEl
Agribusiness - Poultry Hospitality - Motel CEl
Agribusiness - Swine CEl
Convenience Store CEl
Education - Coliege [ Trade School C&l
Education - College [/ Trade School, Multi-Residential - Condominium C&l
Education - College § Trade School Multi-Residentizl - Rental Apartment CEl
Education - College f Trade School, Retail CEl
Education - Primary School CEl
Education - Primary School Education - Secondary School CEl
Education - PFrimary School Multi-Residential - Rental Apartment C&l
Education - Primary School Mot-for-Profit CEl
Education - Secondary School CEl
Education - University C&l
Education - University, Office CEl
Hospital/Healthcare - Clinic CEl
Hospital/Healthcare - Cinic, Hospital/Healthcare - Long-term Care, Hospital/Healthcare - cal
Medical Building
Hospital/Healthcare - Clinic, Industriai CEl
Hespital/Healthcare - Clinic, Retail CEl
Hospital/Healthcare - Long-term Care CEl
Hospital/Healthcare - Long-term Care Hospital/Healthcare - Medical Building CEl
Hospital/Healthcare - Medical Building CEl
Hospital/Healthcare - Medical Building, Mixed-Use - Office /Retail CEl
Hospital/Healthcare - Medical Building, Mixed-Use - Office /Retail Office Cal
Hospitality - Hotel CEl
Hospitality - Hotel Restaurant - Diming CEl
Hospitality - Motel CEl
Industrial Industrial
Mixed-Use - Dffice/Retail CEl
Mixed-Use - Office/Retail Industrial Industrial
Mized-Use - Dffice/Retail Mixed-Use - Other C&l
Mined-Use - Office/Retail Mixed-Use - Other, Not-for-Profit, Warshouse CEl
Mixed-Use - Dffice/Retail Mixed-Use - Residential/Retail CEl
Mixed-Use - Office/Retail, Office Restaurant - Dining, Restaurant - Quick cal
Serve Retail Warshouse
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Mixed-Use - Office/Retail, Office, Warehouse CEl
Mixed-Use - Office/Retail Retail CEl
Mixed-Use - Office/Retail, Warehouse CEl
Mixed-Use - Office/Retail, Warehouse Industrial Industrial
Mixed-Use - Other C&l
Mixed-Use - Other, Industrial Industrial
Mixed-Use - Other, Not-for-Profit, Office C&l
Mixed-Use - Other, Office CEl
Mixed-Use - Other,Other: Please specify CEl
Mixed-Use - Other, Retail Warehouse CEl
Mixed-Use - Other, Warehouse CEl
Mixed-Use - Residential [Retail Cal
Mixed-Uss - Residen tial,."H etail, Multi-Residential - Condominium C&l
Mixed-Use - Residential /Retail Multi-Residential - Rental Apartment CEl
Mixed-Use - Residential [Retail Retail CEl
Multi-Residential - Condominium CE&l
Multi-Residential - Condominium, Multi-Residential - Rental Apartment CEl
Multi-Residential - Condominium, Other: Please specify C&l
Multi-Residential - Rental Apartment Cal
Multi-Residential - Rental Apartment, Muhti-Residential - Social Housing Provider, Mot-for- cal
Profit

Multi-Residential - Rental Apartment, Not-for-Profit CEl
Multi-Residential - Rental Apartment, Warehouse CEl
Multi-Residential - Social Housing Provider CEl
Multi-Residential - Social Housing Provider Industrial C&l
Multi-Residential - Social Housing Provider Not-for-Profit Cal
Mot-for-Profit CEl
Mot-for-Profit, Office CEl
Mot-for-Profit, Other: Please specify CEl
MNot-for-Profit, Warehouse CEl
DOffice C&l
Office Industrial Industrial
Office, Other: Please specify CEl
Office, Other: Please specify, Warshouse C&l
Office, Restaurant - Dining CEl
Office Restaurant - Dining, Industrial Industrial
Dffice Retail CEl
Office Retail Industrial C&l
Office Retail Warehouse Cal
Office, Warehouse CEl
Office, Warehouse, Industrial Industrial
Other: Please specify CEl
Other: Please specify, Industrial Industrial
Other: Please specify Retail CEl
Other: Please specify, Warshouse C&l
Restaurant - Dining CEl
Restaurant - Dining, Retail C&l
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Restaurant - Quick Serve CEl
Restaurant - Quick Serve Retail CEl
Retail CEl
Retail Industria Industrial
Retail Warehouse Cal
Warehouse CEl
Warehouse, Industrial Industrial

Consumer Program Allocation Methodology

Results can be allocated based on average of 2008 & 2009 residential throughput for each LDC [below] when

additional information is not available. Source: OEE Yearbook Data 2008 & 2009

Local Distribution Company Allocation
Algoma Power Inc. 0.2%
Atikokan Hydro Inc. 0.0%
Attawapiskat Power Corporation 0.0%
Bluewater Power Distribution Corporation 0.6%
Brant County Power Inc. 0.2%
Brantford Power Inc 0.7%
Burlington Hydro Inc. 1.4%
Cambridge and North Dumfries Hydro Inc 1.0%
Canadian Niagara Power Inc. 0.5%
Centre Wellington Hydro Ltd. 0.1%
Chapleau Public Utilities Corporation 0.0%
COLLUS Power Corporation 0.3%
Cooperative Hydro Embrun Inc. 0.0%
E.LE. Energy Inc. 0:2%
Enersource Hydro Mississauga Inc. 3.9%
ENTEGRIUS 0.6%
ENWIN Utilities Ltd. 1.6%
Erie Thames Powerlines Corporation 0.4%
Ezpancla Regional Hydro Distribution Corporation 0.1%
Essex Powerlines Corporation 0.7%
Festival Hydro Inc. 0.3%
Faort Albany Power Corporation 0.0%
Fort Frances Power Corporation 0.1%
Greater Sudbury Hydro Inc. 1.0%
Grimsby Power Inc. 0.2%
Guelph Hydro Electric Systems Inc. 0.9%
Haldimand County Hydro Inc. 0.4%
Halton Hills Hydro Inc. 0.5%
Hearst Power Distribution Company Limited 0.1%
Horizon Utilities Corporation 4.0%
Hydro 2000 Inc 0.0%
Hydro Hawkesbury Inc. 1%
Hydro One Brampton Networks Inc. 2.8%
Hydro One Metworks Inc. 30.0%
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Hydro Ottawa Limited 5.6%
Innisfil Hydro Distribution 5ystems Limited 0.4%
Kazhechewan Power Corporation 0.0%
Kenora Hydro Electric Corporation Ltd. 0.1%
Kimgston Hydro Corporation 0.5%
Kitchener-Wilmot Hydro Inc. 1.6%
Lakefront UHilities Inc. 0.2%
Lakeland Fower Distribution Ltd. 0.2%
London Hydro Inc. 2.7%
Middlesex Power Distribution Corporation 0.1%
Midland Power Utility Corporation 0.1%
Milton Hydro Distribution Inc. 0.6%
Mewmarket - Tay Power Distribution Ltd. 0.7%
Miagara Peninsula Energy Inc. 1.0%
Miagarz-on-the-Lake Hydro Inc. 0.2%
MNorfolk Power Distribution Inc. 0.3%
Marth Bay Hydro Distribution Limited 0.5%
MNorthern Ontario Wires Inc. 0.1%
Cakville Hydro Electricity Distribution Inc. 1.5%
Orangevifle Hydro Limited 0.2%
Orillia Power Distribution Corporation 0.3%
Oshawa PUC Networks Inc. 1.2%
Ottawa River Power Corporation 0.2%
Parry Sownd Power Corporation 0.1%
Peterborough Distribution Incorporated 0.7%
Foweritream Inc. B.6%
PUC Distribution Inc. 0.9%
Renfrew Hydro Inc. 0.1%
Rideau 5t. Lawrence Distribution Inc. 0.1%
Sioux Lookout Hydro Inc. 0.1%
5t. Thomas Energy Inc. 0.3%
Thunder Bay Hydro Electricity Distribution Inc. 0.9%
Tillsonburg Hydro Inc. 0.1%
Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited 12 8%
Veridian Connections Inc 2.4%
Wasaga Distribution Inc. 0.2%
Waterloo North Hydro Inc. 1.0%
Weltand Hydro-Electric System Corp. 0.4%
Wellington North Power Inc. 0.1%
West Coast Huron Energy Inc. 0.1%
Westario Power Inc. 0.5%
Whitby Hydro Electric Corporation 0.9%
Woodsteck Hydro Services Inc. 0.3%
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Load Forecast COM Adjustment Work Form (2013)

Collus PowerStream Power Corp.

EB-2012-0116

4 ¥ear (2011-2014) K'Wh Target:
14,570,000
2011 2012 2013 2014 Total
L
2011 O Programs 5.48% 5.48% 5.48% 4.94% 21.38%
2012 COM Programs 13.10% 13.10% 13.10% 39.31%
2013 COM Programs 13.10% 13.10% 26.21%
2014 COM Programs 13.10% 13.10%
Total in Year 5.48% 18.58% 31.69%: 44,26% 100.00%:
kKWh
2011 O Programs 220,000 220,000 820,000 F40,000 3,200,000
2012 COM Programs 1,961 667 1,961 567 1.9651,667 5,585,000
2013 COM Programs 1,961 567 1.9651,667 3923333
2014 COM Programs 1,561 667 1561, r'r';
Total in Year 820,000 2,781,667 4,743,333 G,625,000 14,970,000
Chedk 14,570,000
Met-to-Gross Conversion
"Gross" "Met" Difference "Met-to-

Gross"

Conversion

Factor

(g}

2006 to 2011 OPA CDM programs:
Persistence to 2013 58,983,238 38,275,632 20,707 606 S54.10%

2011
Amount used for COM
threshold for LEARYA S20,000
Manual Adjustment
for 2013 Load Forecast 531,515

Mornual odi M ent % nssumen

gojust IS5
mas Yornss® versus o e in bose

'l. - l__.|

=
orecast, 50

I+g) 50% needed for
177 -
yun pear
persistence by

2014

2012 2013

1,9e1 6&7 198l 667

3022952

1511477

2014 Total for 2013




Collus PowerStream Corp.
EB-2012-0116
Responses to Interrogatories of
Board Staff and Intervenors

Page 128 of 375

Filed: August 21, 2013

c)
2006-2010 Net CDM kWh Savings
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Residential 1,031,866 1,031,866 1,031,866 1,031,866 179,212 179,212 163,930 163,930
1,002,272 596,542 545,982 545,982 545,982 530,925 530,925
626,479 544,982 544,982 544,982 494,419 494,313
320,875 314,870 314,870 314,566 289,239
213,350 206,227 204,581 204,443
v 1,031,866 2,034,138 7 2,254,887 2,443,705 7 1,798,396 ' 1,791,273 ' 1,708,421 1,682,850
C&I GS<50 - - - - - - - -
542,273 542,273 542,273 542,273 542,273
49,764 49,764 49,764 49,764
- - - 542,273 592,037 592,037 592,037 592,037
C&l GS>50 - - - - - - - -
546,624 546,624 546,624 546,624 546,624 546,624 546,624
776,424 776,419 776,419 776,419 776,419 776,419
1,312,521 1,110,316 1,110,316 1,110,316 1,110,316
1,275,696 881,395 881,395 881,395
- 546,624 1,323,048 2,635,564 3,709,055 3,314,754 3,314,754 3,314,754
1,031,866 2,580,762 3,577,935 5,621,542 6,099,488 5,698,064 5,615,212 5,589,641 35,814,510
2011-2014 Net CDM kW Savings
Residential 279,380 279,380 279,380
GS<50 195,812 195,812 195,812
GS>50 345,181 345,181 345,181
820,373 820,373 820,373 2,461,119
38,275,629
2006-2010 Net CDM kW Savings
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Residential 0.86 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05
0.36 0.17 0.12 0.12 0.12 0.12 0.12
0.10 0.09 0.09 0.09 0.09 0.09
0.08 0.08 0.08 0.08 0.08
0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05
v 0.86 0417 0.32 7 0.35 0.39 " 039 " 0.39 0.39
C&l GS<50 - - - - - - - -
0.08 0.08 0.08 0.08 0.08
0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01
- - - 0.08 0.09 0.09 0.09 0.09
C&l GS>50 - - - - - - - -
1.02 0.12 0.12 0.12 0.12 0.12 0.12
1.56 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15
1.50 0.29 0.29 0.29 0.29
1.39 0.29 0.29 0.29
- 1.02 1.68 1.77 1.95 0.86 0.86 0.86
0.86 1.42 2.00 2.20 2.43 1.34 1.34 1.33 12.91
2011-2014 Net CDM kW Savings
Residential 63 63 63
GS<50 103 103 103
GS>50 60 60 60
226 226 226 678

691
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d) Collus PowerStream utilized the following approach to derive its load
forecast by class:

1. Historic total electricity volume reductions resulting from CDM
initiatives were grossed up for losses to derive gross CDM volume
reductions;

2. Add these gross CDM volume reductions to the historic wholesale
values, to derive load values as if CDM initiatives never took place;

3. Develop forecast values using grossed-up values derived in Step 2;

4. Subtract grossed up CDM volume reductions from the gross purchase
forecast, to derive load values when CDM is taking place;

5. Remove losses to derive sales volumes;

6. Allocate sales volumes to rate classes based on the historic ratios.

Collus PowerStream believes that this approach is consistent with the
methodology that is described in Board Staff IR 18(d).

Collus PowerStream’s does not feel that allocating savings equally over
the years 2011 through 2014, as the model provided by the Board does,
accurately reflects the actual savings being achieved which have been
verified for 2011 and in draft for 2012 from the OPA. Additionally per the
CDM code Collus PowerStream is required to annually file an update to
the Board which outlines and identifies the progress to year end and any
changes which need to be made to the annual targets submitted. Collus
PowerStream will be filing with the Board the 2012 annual CDM report
which will outline our verified 2011 and 2012 savings and will adjust 2013
and 2014 targets based on changes in programs offered and changes to
Collus PowerStream’s CDM marketing strategy.
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3-Energy Probe-19

Ref:

a)

b)

f)

g)

h)

)

Exhibit 3, Tab 1, Schedule 3

Does Table 3 include actual OPA verified figures for 20127 If not,
please update Table 3 to reflect actual data for 2012.

Please explain the reduction in CDM Target volumes shown for 2012
relative to that for 2011, along with the significant increase forecast
for 2013 and then the reduction shown for 2014.

Why has Collus PowerStream provided 2014 forecasts when 2013 is
the test year?

With respect to Table 4, please explain why forecast figures based on
normalized 10-year and 20-year weather data have been provided for
2014 instead of 2013.

Please update Table 4 to reflect actual data for all of 2012.

Please update Table 10 to reflect actual data, adjusted for CDM, for
each month that is currently available for 2013.

Please explain how the average 2009-2011 percentages shown in
Table 15 have been calculated. For example, how can the 2009-2011
residential average be 40.18% when each of 2009 through 2011 are
lower than this figure?

Please confirm that the service area customer count used in the
regression model is actually only the number of residential
customers, consistent with the figures shown in Appendix A.

Please estimate the regression equation that uses the number of
residential, GS < 50 and GS > 50 customers as an explanatory
variable in place of the customer count used by Collus PowerStream.
Please provide the regression data in the same format as Tables 8
and 9, along with the forecast for 2013 as shown in Table 10.

Please update Tables 14 and 15 to reflect actual data for all of 2012.
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k) What is the impact on the distribution revenue forecast if the average
ratios for 2009 through 2011 were used from Table 15, rather than the
average of 2005 through 2011, which appears to have been used?

) Please explain how the monthly forecast of customers used in the
regression equation for 2012 (October through December) and for
2013 was determined. In particular, please explain the decrease of 41
customers between September, 2012 and October, 2012.

m) Please provide the actual number of residential customers for each
month from October, 2012 through to the most recent month
currently available in 2013.

Response

a) Exhibit 3, Tab 1, Schedule 3 Table 3 does not include verified results for
2012. The Ontario Power Authority has not published nor released 2012
verified CDM savings. The 2012 verified CDM savings are not expected
to be released until September 2013.

b) Collus PowerStream filed with the Ontario Energy Board the annual CDM
report for 2011 in September 2012. In the document Collus PowerStream
reviewed 2011 actual verified CDM savings and 2012 unverified savings
to date compared to the targets submitted with the strategy document EB-
2010-0216. Collus PowerStream revised its targets for 2012-2014 in a
thorough review of CDM activity to date and a review of what program
adjustments would be required for Collus PowerStream to achieve their
board mandated CDM targets.

c) Load forecast was prepared up to December 2014 and all values were
included in the tables prepared for the evidence. The correct labelling
should read 2012 — Bridge and 2013 — Test. Data for 2014 has not been
used in calculating 2013 rates.

d) Please refer to the response for 3-Energy Probe-10 (c). The revised table
is presented below.

Table 4
Total System Purchases, MWH

Weather-Normal _______variance,|
Actual Model Variance, Actual to (WN) WN Actual to
Year Gross Predicted Predicted, % Actual Gross Predicted, %
2005 294,752 296,210 -0.5% 289,266 -2.4%
2006 291,146 288,187 1.0% 295,398 2.4%
2007 295,364 295,876 -0.2% 294,270 -0.5%
2008 298,020 297,103 0.3% 298,755 0.6%
2009 299,265 297,630 0.5% 302,955 1.8%
2010 302,999 305,795 -0.9% 303,509 -0.8%
2011 309,134 308,255 0.3% 310,196 0.6%
2012 Projected 307,430 308,573 -0.4% 311,307 0.9%

2013 Test - Forecast - Normalized 10-year 315,835

2013 Test - Forecast - Normalized 20-year 315,336
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e) Please refer to the table below.

Table:
Total System Purchases, MWH
Weather-Normal _______variance,]
Actual Model Variance, Actual to (WN) WN Actual to
Year Gross Predicted Predicted, % Actual Gross Predicted, %
2005 294,752 296,210 -0.5% 289,266 -2.4%
2006 291,146 288,187 1.0% 295,398 2.4%
2007 295,364 295,876 -0.2% 294,270 -0.5%
2008 298,020 297,103 0.3% 298,755 0.6%
2009 299,265 297,630 0.5% 302,955 1.8%
2010 302,999 305,795 -0.9% 303,509 -0.8%
2011 309,134 308,255 0.3% 310,196 0.6%
2012 Actuals 305,842 307,637 -0.6% 310,419 0.9%
2013 Test - Forecast - Normalized 10-year 315,835
2013 Test - Forecast - Normalized 20-year 315,336

f) Please refer to the table below. This table reflects January-June 2013
actual data, including energy purchases, customer count, heating and
cooling degree-days, as well as the forecast beyond June 2013 (as per
the original evidence).
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Table
Monthly Gross Energy Purchases Forecast (kWh)
Month Forecast Base Load Customer Count CDD HDD
Model Coefficient Varies 957 31,009 13,624

Jan-13 30,859,621 14,168.00 0.0 638.9
Feb-13 28,903,165 14,182.00 0.0 647.8
Mar-13 28,984,499 14,191.00 0.0 582.2
Apr-13 25,191,784 14,200.00 0.0 368.7
May-13 23,247,272 14,216.00 15.7 163.7
Jun-13 23,650,584 14,223.00 41.0 73.3

Jul-13 24,935,180 8,012,927 14,246.00 102.8 7.9
Aug-13 25,333,288 8,878,437 14,273.00 85.4 11.3
Sep-13 23,029,945 7,445,354 14,301.00 33.8 62.9
Oct-13 24,529,634 7,267,620 14,328.00 6.0 247.4
Nov-13 25,779,669 6,701,033 14,355.00 0.0 392.5
Dec-13 30,560,466 8,373,290 14,383.00 0.0 618.7

Total 2013 315,005,106

Jan-14 32,355,406 8,754,115 14,410.00 0.0 720.6
Feb-14 29,469,489 6,795,097 14,438.00 0.0 650.6
Mar-14 29,403,058 7,729,135 14,466.00 0.0 575.2
Apr-14 24,664,430 6,025,321 14,494.00 2.1 345.7
May-14 23,679,815 6,887,215 14,522.00 7.9 195.0
Jun-14 23,984,324 7,969,762 14,550.00 43.5 54.9
Jul-14 25,252,752 8,012,927 14,578.00 102.8 7.9
Aug-14 25,651,817 8,878,437 14,606.00 85.4 11.3
Sep-14 23,348,475 7,445,354 14,634.00 33.8 62.9
Oct-14 24,849,120 7,267,620 14,662.00 6.0 247.4
Nov-14 26,100,111 6,701,033 14,690.00 0.0 392.5
Dec-14 30,880,908 8,373,290 14,718.00 0.0 618.7

Total 2014 319,639,707

g) The average calculation in Exhibit 3, Tab 1, Schedule 3 Table 15is a 7
year average for all years.

h) Yes, the service area customer count used in the regression model
represents the number of residential customers, which is consistent with
the figures shown in Appendix A.

i) Please refer to the tables below



Collus PowerStream Corp.
EB-2012-0116

Responses to Interrogatories of
Board Staff and Intervenors
Page 134 of 375

Filed: August 21, 2013

Table
Summary of Monthly Load Forecast Regression Model

Model Statistics

Iterations 1
Adjusted Observations 88
Deg. of Freedom for Error 73
R-Squared 98.9%
Adjusted R-Squared 98.7%
AIC 25.73
BIC 26.15
Log-Likelihood -1,241.77
Model Sum of Squares 834,772,894,183,586.00
Sum of Squared Errors 9,305,087,774,172.38
Mean Squared Error 127,466,955,810.58
Std. Error of Regression 357,025.15
Mean Abs. Dev. (MAD) 263,950.60
Mean Abs. % Err. (MAPE) 1.07%
Durbin-Watson Statistic 1.682

Table

Regression Coefficients

Variable Coefficient StdErr T-Stat P-Value

Customer Count 885 57 15.41 0.00%
HDD18 13,616 802 16.97 0.00%
CDD18 31,056 2,269 13.69 0.00%
Jan 8,148,398 1,098,144 7.42 0.00%
Feb 6,192,270 1,070,147 5.79 0.00%
Mar 7,124,661 1,029,220 6.92 0.00%
Apr 5,417,339 928,686 5.83 0.00%
May 6,278,426 888,891 7.06 0.00%
Jun 7,359,017 874,181 8.42 0.00%
Jul 7,399,929 894,488 8.27 0.00%
Aug 8,266,118 890,727 9.28 0.00%
Sep 6,839,393 874,049 7.83 0.00%
Oct 6,662,677 910,693 7.32 0.00%
Nov 6,099,568 971,205 6.28 0.00%
Dec 7,775,538 1,062,014 7.32 0.00%
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Monthly Gross Energy Purchases Forecast (kWh)

Month Forecast Base Load Customer Count CDD HDD
Model Coefficient Varies 885 31,056 13,616
Jan-13 32,041,403 8,148,398 15,902.00 0.0 720.6
Feb-13 29,158,685 6,192,270 15,932.00 0.0 650.6
Mar-13 29,090,958 7,124,661 15,962.00 0.0 575.2
Apr-13 24,349,549 5,417,339 15,991.00 2.1 345.7
May-13 23,365,320 6,278,426 16,021.00 7.9 195.0
Jun-13 23,669,502 7,359,017 16,050.00 435 54.9
Jul-13 24,937,721 7,399,929 16,079.00 102.8 7.9
Aug-13 25,335,516 8,266,118 16,108.00 85.4 11.3
Sep-13 23,036,378 6,839,393 16,139.00 33.8 62.9
Oct-13 24,534,234 6,662,677 16,168.00 6.0 247.4
Nov-13 25,786,222 6,099,568 16,197.00 0.0 392.5
Dec-13 30,568,805 7,775,538 16,227.00 0.0 618.7
Total 2013 315,874,293
Jan-14 32,354,864 8,148,398 16,256.00 0.0 720.6
Feb-14 29,473,032 6,192,270 16,287.00 0.0 650.6
Mar-14 29,405,305 7,124,661 16,317.00 0.0 575.2
Apr-14 24,664,781 5,417,339 16,347.00 2.1 345.7
May-14 23,680,552 6,278,426 16,377.00 7.9 195.0
Jun-14 23,986,506 7,359,017 16,408.00 435 54.9
Jul-14 25,255,610 7,399,929 16,438.00 102.8 7.9
Aug-14 25,654,290 8,266,118 16,468.00 85.4 11.3
Sep-14 23,354,267 6,839,393 16,498.00 33.8 62.9
Oct-14 24,853,894 6,662,677 16,529.00 6.0 247.4
Nov-14 26,106,767 6,099,568 16,559.00 0.0 392.5
Dec-14 30,889,350 7,775,538 16,589.00 0.0 618.7
Total 2014 319,679,218
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As a result of this interrogatory, Collus PowerStream re-estimated the model by
utilizing the number of residential, GS<50 and GS>50 customers in place of the
customer count used in the model from the original submission As a result of this
re-estimate the Total Energy Purchases forecast for the 2013 Test year is
315,874,293 kWh, which is slightly (0.01%) higher than the original forecast.
Given that the re-estimate does not alter the model results and the change in the
load forecast is minimal, Collus PowerStream is confident that its original load
forecast is valid as filed.

Table 14
Customer Growth by Rate Class for Customers Billed kW
GS>50 Streetlighting
Customer Connection
Year Growth (%) Growth (%)

2008 2.48% 2.99%

2009 -10.48% 3.51%

2010 1.80% -2.71%

2011 3.54% 0.44%

2012 0.00% 0.33%

5 Year average -0.53% 0.91%

Table 15
Collus Power Historic kWh Allocation by Rate Classes
Year Residential GS<50 GS>50 USL Streetlighting Total

2005 45.08% 17.48% 36.67% 0.30% 0.80% " 100%
2006 44.91% 17.63% 36.72% 0.29% 0.80% " 100%
2007 42.26% 17.08% 40.01% 0.20% 0.80% " 100%
2008 40.42% 15.26% 43.71% 0.17% 0.80% " 100%
2009 35.02% 13.58% 50.27% 0.16% 0.80% " 100%
2010 36.30% 14.52% 48.35% 0.14% 0.68% " 100%
2011 37.25% 15.10% 46.82% 0.12% 0.84% " 100%
2012 38.47% 15.60% 45.12% 0.13% 0.67% " 100%
Average 2010-20127 37.34%" 15.07% " 46.76% " 0.13% " 0.73% 100%
2013 37.34% 15.07% 46.76% 0.13% 0.73% 100%

Table EP 19k-1 shows the historic allocation of kWhs by Rate Class and the
three year average for 2009 through 2011 with the revised billing determinants
resulting from the use of the 3 year average for allocation.
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Year Residential GS<50kW GS>50kW USL Street Lighting Total
2009 35.19% 13.58% 50.27% 0.16% 0.80% 100.00%
2010 36.31% 14.52% 48.35% 0.14% 0.68% 100.00%
2011 37.12% 15.10% 46.82% 0.12% 0.84% 100.00%

3 YR Average 2009 to

2011 36.21% 14.40% 48.48% 0.14% 0.77% 100.00%

kWh allocation revised 102,891,186 40,921,554 137,769,233 397,848 2,197,639 284,177,461

Billable kWs revised 398,842 5,872

Table EP 19k-2 shows the resulting impact on forecast variable distribution
revenue; fixed monthly charges are unaffected.

Table EP 19k-2: Revised Variable Distribution Revenue based on 3 Year Average

Street

Residential GS<50kW GS>50kW USL Lighting Total
Billing Determinant kWh kWh kW kWh kW
Billing Quantity 102,891,186 40,921,554 | 398,842 397,848 | 5,872
Current approved rates $ 00170 | § 00113 | § 26400 | § 00177 | §  14.0054
Revised Variable revenue at
current rates $ 1,749150 | § 462414 | § 1052943 | $ 7042 | § 82,241 | § 3,353,789
Variable Revenue as filed $ 2,005,775 | $ 533203 | § 889,833 | § 7144 | § 87,226 | § 3,523,181
Change - Increase (decrease) (256,625) | (70,789) 163,110 (102) (4,985) $ (169,392)

[) The monthly forecast for customer growth was estimated, using a 5 year
average from 2007-2011. The forecasted growth was calculated using the
5 year average, starting with the December 2011 customer count, through
to December 2014. The regression model was run using actual customer
data to the end of September 2012 which would account for the small
decrease in residential customer count.
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14,116
14,141
14,156
14,168
14,182
14,191
14,200
14,216
14,223

14,002
14,028
14,055
14,082
14,110
14,137
14,164
14,192
14,219
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3-Energy Probe-20

Ref: Exhibit 3, Tab 1, Schedule 3 &
Exhibit 3, Tab 2, Schedule 1

a) Based on the explanation provided on pages 19-20 of Exhibit 3, Tab
1, Schedule 3, please show the calculation of the forecasted kW
figures for 2013 shown in Table 5 of Exhibit 3, Tab 2, Schedule 1.

b) Please explain the decrease in the number of GS > 50 customers
from 117 in 2012 to 114 in 2013, as shown in Table 4 of Exhibit 3, Tab
2, Schedule 1.

Response

a) A review of the billed kW forecasted for 2012 and 2013 should be as

follows;

5 Year (2007-2011) GS>50 5 Year (2007-2011) Streetlighting

Year Average growth Billed kW Average growth Billed kW
2011 Actual 371,483 6,048
2012 Actual 378,911 6,186
2013* -0.86% 338,491 1.34% 6,269
As filed 337,058 6,228
Difference 1,433 41

* 2013 billed kW includes reduction of 0.86% as well the exclusion of a GS>50 customer,

demand of 37,161 kW, who filed for bankruptcy in 2012. This customer was also removed

from the load forecast.

b) Collus PowerStream GS>50 customer count as reported to the OEB in the
RRR 2.1.5was 117. The 2013 GS>50 customer count should have been
reported at 117.
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3.0-VECC - 12
Reference: Exhibit 3, Tab 1, Schedule 3, page 2, lines 2-10

a) Please explain more fully why COLLUS has chosen to “add back
historical CDM impacts to actual load and then forecast forward”. In
doing so, please outline the other options considered and why the
proposed approach was viewed as being superior.

b) If load forecasts for 2013 were prepared using alternative
methodologies, please provide a brief description of the methodology
and the resulting forecast.

Response

a) Collus PowerStream used an “add back” methodology (Method 3 below)
as was approved by the Board in PowerStream COS 2013 (EB-2012-
0161). PowerStream spent a considerable amount of time determining
how to integrate the impacts of CDM savings on future loads and
determining a robust, effective and accurate methodology to ensure that
the load forecast reflects the change from historical levels. Three
commonly used forecast methods, explored by PowerStream were:

e Method 1: Forecast using actual load (without any CDM adjustment);

e Method 2:Incorporate CDM impacts as an explanatory variable in the

regressions equation; and

e Method 3: Add back historical CDM impacts to the actual load

and then forecast forward.

Given that the impact from past CDM savings is small in relation to the
actual loads and the regression statistics are comparable across all three
methods, the choice between methods was simply based on judgement in
assessing the advantages and disadvantages of each approach.

Method 3 was considered the most robust since it accounts for historic
and future CDM effects, based on the assumption that the reported
validated CDM numbers represent real CDM savings. As such, if these
numbers are equivalent to actuals, the actual loads can be adjusted to the
levels they would be without any CDM activities, therefore using this as
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the true trend to forecast forward. This approach allows PowerStream to
evaluate the impact of CDM on load to better reflect forecast trends for
future load growth.

The goal of a multiple regression forecast model is to produce the most
accurate forecast possible, given available information on the factors that
affect monthly energy purchase variation and growth. Several monthly
models of energy purchases were specified, estimated and tested to
derive the energy purchases forecast. Alternative purchase models were
specified where Customer Count was replaced with Ontario Real GDP,
Energy Price and a variable that is a 50/50 weighting of these two
variables, as well as utilizing the Trend variable. Table below compares
the model results.

Table VECC-12-1: Model Comparison

Model 1 Model 2 Model 3 Model 4 Model 5 Model 6

Constant n/aj 17,711,609 14,790,988 16,080,948 18,119,746 6,287,742
Independent Variables

Heating Degree-days (HDD18) 13,624 15,098 15,305 15,225 14,965 15,155
Colling Degree-days (CDD18) 31,009 44,607 44,093 44,411 44,797 45,038
Real Gross Domestic Product for Ontario (GDP) 188,085
Customer Count for service area 957 1,002
Energy Price 70,171,452
GDP/Energy price (weighted variable) 7,514,478
Simple Trend 290,743
Jan 8,754,115
Feb 6,795,097
Mar 7,729,135
Apr 6,025,321 (1,412,026) (1,349,905) (1,387,702) (1,347,884) (1,388,600)
May 6,887,215
Jun 7,969,762
Jul 8,012,927
Aug 8,878,437
Sep 7,445,354
Oct 7,267,620
Nov 6,701,033
Dec 8,373,290
Adjusted R-Squared 98.70% 94.00% 94.50% 94.20% 95.10% 95.30%
MAPE, % 1.07% 2.56% 2.50% 2.44% 2.17% 2.25%
Out-of-Sample MAPE, % 1.13% 2.18% 2.21% 2.19% 2.02% 2.12%
2013 Test Energy Purchases (kWh) 315,834,571 314,921,272 315,018,169 313,797,836 316,034,616 316,107,614

NOTE: all selected variables are statistically significant at the 5% level of confidence.

As Table shows, all models fit the historical data well with some
differences in Adjusted R-Squared and MAPE. Yet, Model 1 using
Customer Count as a proxy for economic activity had the strongest fit with
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an adjusted R-squared of 98.7% and performed better in the in- and out-
of-sample tests (1.07% and 1.13% respectively).

Model 1 generated a reasonable forecast of 0.6% average annual
purchases growth (net of CDM), which is in line with the weather-
normalized net load growth over the past 3 years (2010-2012) of 0.6%.
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3.0-VECC-13
Reference: Exhibit 3, Tab 1, Schedule 3, pages 3-4

a) With respect to Table 1, please provide the OPA reports that
substantiate the values reported for years 2005-2011 under the “OPA
Programs” column.

b) Please reconcile the 3,194,455 kWh attributed to 2011 CDM programs
in 2011 per Table 1 with the 820,000 kwh OPA-verified value reported
in Exhibit 3, Tab 1, Schedule 5, Appendix A.

c) Please reconcile the differences between the loss factors used in
Table 2 and those shown at Exhibit 8, Tab 1, Schedule 8, page 1 for
the years 2007-2011.

d) With respect to Table 3, please explain more fully how the CDM
Targets values were determined for each of the years 2011 to 2014
inclusive.

e) If not provided in response to part (d), please provide the source of the
2011-2014 values shown for “OPA Programs”.

Response

a)

b)

Collus PowerStream uploaded to RESS report 2006-2010 Final OPA CDM
Results COLLUS Power Corporation.xls

As per the report in Exhibit 3, Tab 1, Schedule 5, Appendix A, the 2011
savings were 820,000 kWh. As the CDM code accumulates and assumes
persistence of savings over the lifespan of the code, 2011 — 2014, the total
savings 2011, including persistence, is 3,194,455 kWh as shown in
Appendix A under Verified Net Cumulative Energy Savings 2011-2014.

The loss factors applied in Exhibit 3, Tab 1, Schedule 3, Table 2 are the
loss factors applied to Collus PowerStream customers as per the
approved tariff sheets. The loss factors in Exhibit 8, Tab 1, Schedule 8,
Table 1 are actual loss factors which have been used to derive the
proposed loss factor for 2013 rates and forward.
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In 2010 Collus PowerStream filed its CDM Strategy document EB-2010-
0216 with the OEB which outlines the process of forecasting Collus
PowerStream’s OEB mandated CDM targets.

In September 2012 Collus PowerStream filed with the OEB, as per the
CDM Code, its Annual CDM Report for 2011. This report summarized
Collus PowerStream’s progress to date as well re-evaluated the target
forecasts for 2012-2014 based on actual 2011 progress.

Collus PowerStream wuploaded to RESS 3.0-VECC-13 c_ Collus
PowerStream Annual CDM Report for 2011.pdf
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3.0-VECC-14
Reference: Exhibit 3, Tab 1, Schedule 3, page 11 (lines 13-15)

a)

b)

Exhibit 3, Tab 1, Schedule 4, page 1

In Schedule 4, are the “Actual Normalized” customer/connection
counts shown for 2012 actual values or forecast values?

If they are forecast values, please provide the actual 2012
customer/connection counts by class.

c) Are the customer/connection counts shown, average annual or year-

d)

end values?

Please provide a schedule that sets out the historical
customer/connection count data referred to in Schedule 3 and the
calculation of the historical growth rates used to determine the 2013
customer/connection count.

Response

a) The numbers provided for 2012 in Exhibit 3, Tab 1, Schedule 4 are
forecasted.

b) Collus PowerStream has updated the forecasted 2012 numbers with
actual 2012 results.

Number of Customers (Connections)
Board Actual Actual Actual Actual
Actual Actual Actual F t F t
Approved cua Normalized cua Normalized cua Normalized orecas Normalized orecas
2009 2009 2009 2010 2010 2011 2011 2012 2012 2013
# # # # # # # # # #
Residential 13,011 12,979 12,979 13,402 13,402 13,665 13,665 14,156 14,156 14,233
GS Less Than 50 kW 1,588 1,611 1,611 1,646 1,646 1,672 1,672 1,703 1,703 1,717
GS 50 to 4,999 KW 128 116 116 117 117 117 117 117 117 114
Unmetered Scattered Load 68 32 32 31 3 30 30 30 30 30
Street Lighting 3,051 3,040 3,040 2,982 2,982 2,978 2,978 3,005 3,005 3,045
TOTAL 17,846 17,778 17,778 18,178 18,178 18,462 18,462 19,010 19,010 19,139

c) The customer count values are actual as at December 31.
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Month/Yr Residential GS <50 GS >50 Large user Unmetered Street lightin Street lighting (connections)
Actual customer count at year end
12/02 11420 1515 108 2 150 3 2479 15674
12/03 11756 1524 114 2 154 3 2517 16067
12/04 11934 1536 115 2 158 3 2715 16460
12/05 12142 1537 119 2 100 3 2750 16650
12/06 12242 1554 123 1 95 3 2806 16821
12/07 12535 1567 121 1 85 3 2875 17184
12/08 12771 1578 124 1 76 3 2961 17511
12/09 13140 1590 111 32 3 3065 17938
12/10 13549 1663 113 30 3 2982 18337
12/11 13735 1677 117 30 3 2995 18554
12/12 14156 1703 117 30 3 3005 19011
Forecast 12/12 14074 1705 116 30 3 3022 18947
Forecast 12/13 14503 1732 116 30 3 3032 19414
Historical Growth Rates
Residential GS > 50 Unmetered Street light connections
Increase #  Increase % Increase # Increase % Increase # Increase % Increase # Increase % Increase #  Increase %
2007 293  2.39% 13 0.84% -2 -1.63% -10 -10.53% 69 2.46%
2008 236  1.88% 11 0.70% 3 2.48% -9 -10.59% 86 2.99%
2009 369 2.89% 12 0.76% -13 -10.48% -44  -57.89% 104 3.51%
2010 409 3.11% 73 4.59% 2 1.80% -2 -6.25% -83 -2.71%
2011 186 1.37% 14 0.84% 4 3.54% 0 0.00% 13 0.44%
2012 421 3.07% 26 1.55% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 10 0.33%
5 year average 2.46% 1.69% -0.53% -14.95% 0.91%
Forecast
2012 339 28 -1 0 27
2013 347 29 -1 0 27
2014 355 29 0 0 28
2015 364 30 0 0 28
2016 373 30 0 0 28
2017 382 31 0 0 29
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Reference: Exhibit 3, Tab 1, Schedule 3, page 18 (Table 13)

a) Please provide the Normalized 20-year value for 2013.

Response

a) Please refer to the table below.

Table 13

Energy Purchases Net of CDM

Actual CDM WN Actual WN Actual
Year Gross Reduction Actuals Gross Net Growth, %

2005 294,752 173 294,579 289,266 289,093
2006 291,146 2,459 288,687 295,398 292,940 1.3%
2007 295,364 3,270 292,094 294,270 291,000 -0.7%
2008 298,020 4,117 293,903 298,755 294,639 1.3%
2009 299,265 6,043 293,222 302,955 296,912 0.8%
2010 302,999 6,557 296,442 303,509 296,952 0.0%
2011 309,134 9,559 299,575 310,196 300,636 1.2%
2012 307,430 8,864 298,566 311,307 302,443 0.6%
2013 Test - Normalized 10-year 11,492 315,835 304,343 0.6%
2013 Test - Normalized 20-year 11,492 315,336 303,844 0.5%
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3.0-VECC-16

Reference:

a)

b)

Exhibit 3, Tab 1, Schedule 3, pages 5 and 19-20

Page 5 states that kW units for the relevant customer classes were
determined based on the historic relationship between kWh and kW.
However, page 20 suggests the kW values were determined by
applying the average historic customer growth to the historic kW value.
Please reconcile and clarify how the kW values were actually forecast.
Please provide a schedule that for each of the GS>50 and
Streetlighting classes sets out the historical values for kW and kWh
(2007-2011) along with the resulting annual kW/kWh ratios and the
resulting overall historical average for each class. Note: For GS<50
please exclude Nacan/Amaizeingly Green data from the calculations.
Based on the historical average from part (b) and the 2013 forecast
kWh for GS>50 and Streetlighting, please calculate 2013 kW for each
class.

Response

a) Col

lus PowerStream determined, as per Exhibit 3, Tab 1, Schedule 3,

page 20, kW values by applying the average historic customer growth to
historic kW values.

b)
Conversion of kWhs to billed kW demand
GS>50 kW demand class:
Revised |Ratio: kWhs|Ratio: kWs
Year Actual kWhs AGP Revised kWhs Billed kWs AGP Billed kWs| per kw per kWh
2010 151,062,848 35,346,742 115,716,105 396,534 57,338 339,196 341.1478 | 0.002931
2011 144,641,442 30,427,145 114,214,297 371,481 52,518 318,963 358.0795 | 0.002793
Actual 2012| 137,932,990 22,067,605 115,865,385 378,911 36,052 342,859 337.9387 | 0.002959
Total 433,637,280 87,841,492 | 345,795,787 1,146,926 | 145,907 | 1,001,019 | 345.4438 | 0.002895
Forecasted 2013 116,434,672 337,058
Streetlighting
Ratio: kWhs | Ratio: kWs
Year Actual kWhs Billed kWs per kW per kWh
2010 2,289,263 5,980 382.8199 | 0.002612
2011 2,313,894 6,049 382.5250 | 0.002614
Actual 2012 2,212,989 6,187 357.6837 | 0.002796
Total 6,816,146 18,216 374.1846 | 0.002672
Forecasted 2013 2,166,298 5,789

c) See 3.0-VECC-16 b)
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3.0-VECC - 17
Reference: Exhibit 3, Tab 1, Schedule 3, page 20

a) Please explain why a 3-year average was used in Table 15.

b) Do the values used in Table 15 exclude Nacan/Amaizeingly Green? If
not, please re-do the table excluding this data.

Response

a) The average calculation in Exhibit 3, Tab 1, Schedule 3, Table 15is a 7
year average calculation. The chart incorrectly indicates a 3 year average
calculation.

b) Exhibit 3, Tab 1, Schedule 3, Table 15 excludes Nacan/Amaizeingly
Green.
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3.0-VECC -18
Reference: Exhibit 3, Tab 1, Schedule 3, Appendix A

a) The Application states that the data for Nacan/Amaizeingly Green was
excluded for purposes of the regression analysis. Has the forecast for
2013 been adjusted at all to reflect the fact that the going forward
operations for the former Amaizeingly Green facility are expected to be
at 15% of full plant operations? If not, what would be impact?

Response

a) The load forecasts provided do not include any historical nor any
forecasted loads for Nacan/Amaizeningly Green (now AG Global).
Amaizeningly Green filed for bankruptcy in December 2012. When
operating at peak capacity, approximate demand of 4.9 MW, Amaizeningly
Green produced ethanol. Ethanol production at the facility ceased in July
of 2012. Currently the facility is not in operation. Demand at the facility
currently is approximately 6% of peak capacity. The future of the plant is
unknown at this time and due to the significant impact the loss of this
facility would impose on the load forecast it has been excluded from the
load forecast.
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3-Energy Probe-21

Ref: Exhibit 3, Tab 1, Schedule 5

The evidence indicates that since the balance in account 1568 is
immaterial, Collus PowerStream is not applying for the disposition of the
balance at this time. Does this mean that Collus PowerStream will forgo
recovery of the balance for 2011 programs or that it will recover this
amount in a future application?

Response

Collus PowerStream is not forgoing the recovery but will request recovery in a
future application.
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3.0-VECC-19
Reference: Exhibit 3, Tab 1, Schedule 5, pages 1-2

a)

b)

d)

How were the 2011 actual kWh savings apportioned between
Residential and the GS classes? Please provide as schedule that sets
out the determination of the assignment.

The Application states that the assignment as between GS<50 and
GS>50 was based on number of customers. Total savings for 2011
are reported as 820,000 kWh and the savings attributed to Residential
and GS<50 were 475,192 kWh. This suggests that the savings
attributed to GS>50 were 344,808 kWh which is more than the total
kWh assigned to GS<50 of 195,812 kWh). Please reconcile the
relative kWh savings values for GS<50 and GS>50 with the fact the
2011 customer count for the former is more than 10x that of the latter
customer class.

Please provide a schedule that sets out the assignment of the 2011
actual kWh savings as between GS<50 and GS>50 and show how the
60 kW savings value for GS>50 was determined.

In Table 2, what is the basis for the allocation %’s used?

Response

a) The chart below shows the kWh and kW breakdown between residential,
GS<50 and GS>50 customers.



2011 Programs only
Source: OPA Final 2011 Report

Net Annual kW | kWh R

Initiative Name Savings Net Annual kWh Savings
Fridge Pick Up 9 54,418
HVAC Rebates 46 87,511
Coupons (and retailers events) 8 137,451
Peaksaver 0 0
Retailer Co-Op/Sears 0 0
CONSUMER TOTAL 63 279,380
Multi-Family efficiency rebates 0 0
Efficiency: equipment replacement 16 116,644
ERIP 3 20,487
Direct Installed Lighting 61 161,529
New Construction and Major Renovation 0 0
C&I TOTAL 79 298,660
2010 ERIP S 15,807
High performance New Construction 44 225,075
Data Centre Incentive program 0 0
2010 Programs Total 47 240,882
DR3 Industrial 0 0
DR3 Industrial 37 1,451
INDUSTRIAL TOTAL 37 1,451
Consumer Total from the report 63 279,380
Check to source - -
Business and Industrial total from report 116 300,111
Check to source - -
2010 Programs 46.5 240,881.9
Total 225.5 820,373.6

Res

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

Energy Savings 2011 Programs

GS <50 GS>50

25% 75%
25% 75%
100%
0% 100%
100.0%
100%
0% 0%
Total For LRAM:

Total

kWh

54,418
87,511
137,451

Total Resideni

279,380

29,161
5,122
161,529

Total GS <50

195,812

475,192
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Demand Savings 2011 Programs

GS>50 Total
kw
GS>50 kwh
87,483 75% 11.74
15,365 75% 217
100% -
15,807 100% 2.72
225,075 100% 43.82
0% -
343,730
1,451
1,451 Total GS>50 60.45



b)

d)
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Collus PowerStream reviewed all commercial and institutional and industrial
programs to determine which customer class savings should be attributed to. As
result it was deemed that approximately 25% of the 20110PA Efficiency:
equipment replacement and ERII projects were completed by GS<50 customers
leaving the remaining 75% completed by GS>50 customers. Additionally all 2010
projects completed in 2011 were attributed to GS>50 customers. As indicated
above the total KWh savings attributed to GS>50 customers was 345,181 kWh.
As indicated there are more than 10 times as many GS<50 customers as GS>50
customers. What needs to be noted is that GS<50 customers generally
participate in the Small Business Direct Install program which generally provides
for smaller kWh and kW savings. GS<50 only occasionally participate in the ERII
program. Conversely GS>50 customers can only participate in the ERII program
and those projects are larger in scale and the kWh and kW savings are
significant.

As indicated above the majority of the savings, kWh and kW, not attributed to
residential were attributed to the GS>50 customer class. See 3-VECC-19 a).

Collus PowerStream used the class allocation %’'s used for the load forecast to
allocate savings to th classes.
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3.0-Staff-19
Ref. E3/T2/S1, Attachment 1, Table 2— Other Revenue
a. Please provide the up-to-date balances in these accounts to the same level of
detail as shown in Table 2.

Response

a. The reference appears wrong for this question on other revenue.
It should be E3/T3/S1 — Table 2 Details of Other Operating Revenue.

June 2013
Other Revenus:

4072 4080-0000-01 S55 Charge - Distribution Service Revenue 22,375.54
4082-0000-00 Retail Service Revenues 8 050.00
4054-0000-00 Service Transaction Reguests 204.25
4210-0000-00 Rent From Electric Property 52.500.00
4725 (00-00 Late Payment Charges 4532211
4Z235-0000-00 Mizcellanecus Service Revenues 26.853.13
4235-0000-01 Change Of Occupancy Charge Ray 27 950.00
4235-0000-02 Disconnect'Heconnect Revenue 2257400
4235-0000-03 Collection Services Revenue
4235-0000-04 MicroFit Administration Revenue
4355-0000-00 Gain on Disp of Util & Propert
4375-0000-00 Revenues from Non-Utility Cperation 5,451.88
4380-0300-00 Expenses of Mon-Utility Operations
4350-0000-00 Mizc Mon Operating Income 7,684.50
£405-0000-00 Interest & Dividend Income 2341278

Total Other Revenue 242 37859
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3.0-VECC-20
Reference: Exhibit 3, Tab 2, Schedule 1, page 4

a) In Table 6, please explain how the actual normalized values were determined
for the years 2009-2011.

b) What do the values in the “Forecast 2012” column represent — are they
forecast or actual values? If forecast, please provide the actual values for
2012.

c) What do the values in the “Actual Normalized 2012” column represent? If they
are based on actual 2012 values, please explain how they were “weather
normalized”.

d) Please explain why for the Streetlighting and USL classes (which are weather
insensitive) the actual values for 2009-2011 differ from the weather normalized
values.

Response

a)

b)

d)

As per the evidence in Exhibit 3, Tab 1, Schedule 3 beginning page 7,

“COLLUS PowerStream normalizes energy purchases using a “use per degree”
methodology. This methodology uses the weather-related coefficients in the
regression equation to estimate normalized volumes. The difference between
actual and normal degree-days is determined. The weather related coefficients
are applied to that difference to derive weather-sensitive volume. Actual volumes
are adjusted by the weather sensitive volume.

The formula is:

Normalized Volume = Actual Volume — (Actual HDD or/and CDD — Normal HDD
or/and CDD) x Corresponding Regression Coefficient”

The values in Forecasted 2012 are actual at December 31, 2012.

The values in 2012 Forecast are 2012 Normalized Actuals up to September 2012
and forecasted for October to December 2012 which are weather normalized.
These balances were normalized using the process as described in 3.0-VECC-20
a).

Collus PowerStream normalizes total energy purchases using a “use per degree”
methodology. This methodology uses the weather-related coefficients in the
regression equation to estimate total normalized volumes. The difference
between actual and normal degree-days is determined. The weather related
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coefficients are applied to that difference to derive weather-sensitive volume.
Actual volumes are adjusted by the weather sensitive volume. These adjusted
total volumes were allocated to rate classes as based on the average
percentages. Actual values for 2009-2011 differ from the weather-normalized
values, since allocation to classes is performed after the historic actual total load
is weather-normalized.

This methodology was approved by the Board in PowerStream COS 2013 (EB-
2012-0161).

Collus PowerStream is not convinced that the Street Lighting and USL classes
are totally weather insensitive.
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3.0-VECC-21
Reference: Exhibit 3, Tab 3, Schedule 1, pages 2-4

a) Does COLLUS have any microFIT customers? If so, how many and where is
the revenue from the associated monthly service charge included in Table 2?

b) In Table 2, SSS Admin Charge revenue is reported separately for 2011
(Account 4078). Where is the SSS Admin Charge revenue reported for the
other years and what is the forecast revenue for 20137

c) Does the Interest and Dividend Income reported (Account 4405) include any
interest associated with deferral/variance accounts? If yes, what are the
amounts for 2011 — 2013 inclusive?

d) Please explain why the total Specific Service Charges revenue reported in
Table 3 does not match the revenues reported for Account 4235 in Table 2.

e) Exhibit 3, Tab 3, Schedule 2, page 1 explains the high level of Late Payment
Charge revenues in 2011 and 2012 and suggests that 2013 will be return to
normal historic levels. However, the forecast for 2013 is $84,000 as
compared to average revenue in 2009-2010 of $92,000. Please reconcile.

Response

a)

b)
c)

d)

At the end of 2012 Collus PowerStream had 33 MicroFIT and 1 FIT customer.
The monthly service charge revenue has been included in account 4080
Distribution Service Revenue.

Please refer to Energy Probe IR (3-Energy Probe-22, Part b)

No the Interest and Dividend Income reported (Account 4405) does not include
any interest associated with the deferral/variance accounts. We track interest on
deferral/variance accounts in a subaccount of 6035.

Please refer to Energy Probe IR (3-Energy Probe-22, Part e)

The forecast for 2013 Late Payment Charges is $84,000 as compared to average
revenue in 2009-2010 of $92,000. This results in an $8,000 insignificant
difference. Considering the loss of more than a few industrial customers since
2009 it is reasonable to conclude that while Late Payment Charges will be
returning to the range of historical levels, a slight decline is management’s best
expectation. Please refer to Energy Probe IR (3-Energy Probe-22, Part ¢) which
also contains information on a similar query.
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3-SEC-8

[Ex/3/3/1/p.2]

Please expand Table 2 to include 2013 year-to-date actuals.
Response

Please refer to 3-Energy Probe-22, part f
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3-SEC-9
[Ex/3/3/1/p.2]

Please explain why there is no Gains on Disposition of Utility and Other Property for the
Test Year, considering the Applicant is seeking to purchase a number of new vehicles.

Response

Please refer to 3-Energy Probe-22, part g
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EXHIBIT 4 — OPERATING COSTS
4.0-Staff-21
Ref: E4/T1/S1, p.7 — Donations

On page 7, Collus PowerStream states that “donations in the 2013 test year have not yet
been determined... Collus PowerStream has in the past made donations to charities that
have a direct benefit to customers (such as the local hospital). As a result in the Test
Year, the donations made by Collus PowerStream have been included in regulatory
OM&A expenses due to their expected nature.

a) Please confirm that all donations have been included in account 6205. If not,
please explain

b) Please provide the up-to-date amounts of donations for the 2013 test year.

c) Please provide a breakdown of this account.

Response

a) All donations for 2011 forward have been included in account 6205. Prior to 2011
the 6205 donation account was never used in the accounting system. Donations
in 2009 and 2010 would have been included in various general & administration
accounts. The 2011 actual donations of $4,495 would approximate the 2009 and
2010 expenditure.

b) Up-to-date donations for the 2013 test year follow.

c) A break-down between donations and LEAP has been provided below.

Actual Forecast
YTD
June 2013 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Other - Donations & Leap:
6205-0000-00 Donations 2,215.45 21,000.00 25,225.00 4,495.00
6205-0001-00 Low-Income Energy Assistance Program 10,465.00 10,465.00 7,693.00 5,864.90

Total Other - Donations & Leap 12,680.45 31,465.00 32,918.00 10,359.90
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EXHIBIT 4 - OPERATING COSTS

4.0-Staff-22

Ref: E4/T1/S1, Table 2 and E4/T1/S2, p.2 — Regulatory Costs

Collus PowerStream has included a total cost of $81,000 for the 2013 test year, which is
an increase of approx. 174% or $51,485 over 2009 Actual. Included in this cost is an
expert witness for the amount of $20,000. On page 2 of E4/T1/S2, p. 2 Collus
PowerStream cites “reduce[d] costs through expertise in the area of regulatory issues
and implementation” due to the Acquisition of 50% of the Shares of Collingwood utility
Services Corp. by PowerStream Inc. in the summer of 2012.

a)
b)
c)

Please explain the nature and need for an expert witness.
Please provide a breakdown and details of the cost for external consultants.

Please state if and what efficiency gains Collus PowerStream has been able to
realize as a result of the acquisition by PowerStream Inc. If so, please provide
details and the impact on regulatory costs. If not, please explain why not.

Response

a)

b)

Appendix 2-M Regulatory Cost Schedule shows $20,000 for the test year required
for expert witnesses for regulatory matters. This expenditure is required for
experts in shared services agreements, the Affiliate Relationship Code, Asset
Management Planning.

Appendix 2-M Regulatory Cost Schedule shows $147,794 for consultants related
to regulatory matters. As at June 30, 2013 we have exceeded this forecast by
$47,306 and additional costs are yet to be incurred.

Outside consultants were required due to the departure on September 28, 2012
of the previous CFO and the departure of the regulatory manager on December
31, 2010. Therefore, the loss of these key staff resulted in necessary outside
resources.

Regulatory Consultants Costs from 2012 up to June 30, 2013

Asset Management Pan 11,000.00 Automated Solutions Int'l Inc.

Cost of Service Preparation 126,400.00 Greg Van Dusen Utility Consulting Inc
Shared Services Study 12,000.00 Howard Gorman - 'HSG Group, Inc.

Board Reporting and Application Oversight 16,500.00 Edward Chatten - Energy Consulting Services

Cost Allocation & Rate Design 29,200.00 Dave Proctor - Utility Financial Concepts Inc.
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Total 195,100.00

c) E4/T1/S2 page two states, “It is anticipated that the relationship will reduce costs
through expertise in the area of regulatory issues and implementation”. Page
three continues to say, “Although savings are not quantifiable at this time
Collus PowerStream believes that the partnership will assist in future mitigation
of upward pressure on distribution rates.”

The PowerStream deal was dated July 31%, 2012 with final closing not until March
1, 2013. Therefore, it would not be reasonable to have any expectations that
efficiency gains on this cost of service application could be realized. It is
anticipated that the next future cost of service application will show reduced costs
in regulatory expenses. However, it is too premature to determine what those
savings will be.

That being said, we have used the expertise of a number of PowerStream
employees in our current cost of service process and utilized their administrative
resources for putting together the final submission.

Please refer to the response for interrogatory 1-Energy Probe-4.
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4-Enerqy Probe-23

Ref: Exhibit 4, Tab 1, Schedule 1, page 1 and page 5
a) What was the smart meter costs charged to OM&A in 2012 as a result of EB-
2012-0017 ($315,000 as indicated on page 1 or $325,000 as indicated on
page 5)?
b) Please provide a breakout of the smart meter costs charged to OM&A in
2012, into the years in which the costs were incurred.
c) Is the amount included in 2013 OM&A related to the 'on-going’ nature of
smart meter costs (page 1) the $240,000 noted on page 5?
Response
a) The smart meter costs charged to OM&A in 2012 as a result of EB-2012-0017 is
indicated as approximately $315k on page 1 and $325k on page 5. There is a
typo on page 1, which should read $325k not $315k. (The exact figure is
$324,044 as noted in 1-Energy Probe-6.
b) This question is a repeat of 1-Energy Probe -6. Please refer to the previous
response.
c) Yes, the amount included in 2013 OM&A related to the 'on-going' nature of smart

meter costs (page 1) is the $240,000 noted on page 5. Please refer to 4.0-Staff-
24 for more details.
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4-Enerqy Probe-24

Ref:

a)

b)

d)

Exhibit 4, Tab 1, Schedule 1, pages 7-9

Please explain the statement that donations in the 2013 Test Year have not
yet been determined, along with the statement that Test Year donations
made by Collus PowerStream have been included in regulatory OM&A
expenses due to their expected nature.

Table 3 includes $31,465 in donations for 2013, of which $9,100 is identified
as LEAP funding (page 9). Please provide a breakdown of the remaining
$22,365 and indicate why ratepayers should pay for these donations rather
than the shareholders.

Please confirm that Collus PowerStream has the one-time regulatory costs
associated with this application, totaling $254,394 (Table 2) over 4 years,
and not the total regulatory costs of $366,600, which include ongoing costs.
If this cannot be confirmed, please explain why ongoing costs should be
amortized.

Please reconcile the regulatory costs shown in Table 2 with the $81,000
figure shown in Appendix 2-G in Account 5655.

Response

a)

b)

The statement that donations in the 2013 Test Year have not yet been determined
means we have not determined to whom the funds will be specifically allocated.
The intent is that charitable donations will go to organizations such as the hospital
which we did in 2012 or other programs that provide assistance to our customers
in paying their electricity bills and assistance to low income consumers.

The statement that Test Year donations made by Collus PowerStream have been
included in regulatory OM&A expenses due to their expected nature, means that
we have reviewed our intentions for the use of the donations and feel they will all
be recoverable contributions and therefore have included them in OM&A. We
have not planned any political donations which need to be removed.

Table 3 includes $31,465 in donations for 2013, of which $9,100 is identified as
LEAP funding and 1,365 is LEAP administration fee paid to the Housing Resource
Centre to facilitate the LEAP disbursements. The remaining 21,000 has not been
determined to whom the funds will be specifically allocated. The intent is that
charitable donations will go to organizations such as the hospital which we did in
2012 or other programs that provide assistance to our customers in paying their
electricity bills and assistance to low income consumers.
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c) Yes, Collus PowerStream has estimated one-time regulatory costs associated
with this application, totaling $254,394 (Table 2) to be amortized over 4 years.
The regulatory cost total shown of $366,600, also includes ongoing costs which
are expensed as incurred.

d) Please reconcile the regulatory costs shown in Table 2 with the $81,000 figure
shown in Appendix 2-G in Account 5655.

One-Time (254,394 / 4 years) 63,598.50
On-Going 112,206.00
Less: One-Time Costs only partial claim in

2013 - not full year of rates (25,000.00)
Less: Operating resources associated with

staff posted to 5615 (70,000.00)
Total to account 5655 per year 80,804.50
Amount recorded in the budget for 5655 81,000.00

(195.50)
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4-Enerqgqy Probe-25

Ref: Exhibit 4, Tab 1, Schedule 1 & Appendix 2-G

a) Do the figures shown in Table 1 of Exhibit 4, Tab 1, Schedule 1 and in
Appendix 2-G include final actual audited figures for 2012?

b) If the response to part (a) is no, please provide an updated Table 1 and
Appendix 2-G that incorporate final audited figures for 2012.

Response

a) Yes, the figures shown in Table 1 of Exhibit 4, Tab 1, Schedule 1 and in Appendix
2-G include final actual audited figures for 2012.

b) The response to part (a) was yes, so no updated Table 1 and Appendix 2-G have
been provided.
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4-SEC-10

[Ex.4/1/1/p.2]
Please provide a copy of the Applicant’s collective agreement with the IBEW.

Response

A copy of the Agreement is provided below. The “Water Department” wage rates in
Schedule A have been redacted as they are not relevant to this proceeding.

COLLECTIVE AGREEMENT

Between

COLLUS Power Corp. and
Collingwood Public Utilities

of the

TOWN OF COLLINGWOOD

And
ITS' EMPLOYEES THROUGH

LOCAL #636 OF THE
INTERNATIONAL BROTHERHOOD OF ELECTRICAL WORKERS

SEPTEMBER 1ST, 2010 TO AUGUST 31st, 2013




Collus PowerStream Corp.
EB-2012-0116

Responses to Interrogatories of
Board Staff and Intervenors
Page 169 of 375

Filed: August 21, 2013

ECT

LOCAL 636
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This agreement entered into this 14" day of January 2011
Between

COLLUS Power Corp. and
Collingwood Public Utilities
hereinafter referred to as the “Corporation”

and

Local Union 636 of the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers

hereinafter referred to as the “Union”

ARTICLE 1 - PREAMBLE AND PURPOSE

1.01

1.02

The general purpose of this agreement is to establish and maintain orderly
collective bargaining relations between the Corporation and its employees, to make
provision for prompt and equitable disposition of grievances and to establish and
maintain satisfactory working conditions, hours of work and wages for all
employees who are subject to the provision of the agreement.

Whenever the singular, masculine or feminine is used in this agreement, it shall be
considered as if the plural, feminine or masculine has been used where the context
of the party or parties so requires.

ARTICLE 2 - MANAGEMENT'S RIGHTS

2.01

The Union acknowledges that the Corporation has the exclusive right to manage
its business and direct the working force, make, amend and enforce such rules
and regulations as shall from the time be required consistent with the terms of this
agreement.

ARTICLE 3 - RECOGNITION

3.01

The Corporation hereby recognizes the Union as the sole collective bargaining
agent for all employees of the Corporation save persons above the rank of
foreman, office staff, students employed during the school vacation period, on a
co-operative training program or persons employed on a government sponsored
program and persons regularly employed for not more than twenty-four (24) hours
per week. The work that these workers perform shall involve only non-union
positions.
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3.02 The words "employee” or “employees” wherever used in this agreement shall mean
only the employees in the bargaining unit defined above unless the context
otherwise provides.

ARTICLE 4 - RELATIONSHIP

4.01 The employer shall advise the Union Steward or designate of all hiring and lay-offs.
The Steward or designate shall also be advised within five (5) working days of all
discharges, suspensions and letters of discipline except where the employee
concerned specifically directs the Corporation not to advise the Union.

ARTICLE 5 - CORPORATION SERVICE CREDIT

5.01 Credit for Corporation service shall accrue to regular employees whether or not
they are members of the bargaining unit. Corporation Service Credit shall be
defined as the length of continuous service an employee has established with the
Corporation from the most recent date of hire by the Corporation.

5.02 An employee shall lose all accumulated Corporation service credit and his/her
name shall be removed from Corporation records if he/she:

(a) Terminates voluntarily;

(b) is discharged and is not reinstated through the grievance and arbitration
procedures;

(c) retires;
(d) is laid off for a period of twelve (12) consecutive months or more;

(e) fails to return to work after lay-off within five (5) working days of recall, notice of
which has been mailed to the last address the employee has reported to the
Corporation;

() is permanently disabled and unable to work for the Corporation in a job
classification in which there is a job available after a period of two (2) years
have expired;

(g) is absent and on workers' compensation for a period of more than twenty-four
(24) months.

5.03 When an employee loses accumulated service credit and his/her name is
removed from the Corporation record, all employee benefits shall cease and a
break in service be deemed to have occurred. Exception to this is provided for in
Section 16.04.
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ARTICLE 6 - UNION SECURITY AND CHECK-OFF

6.01

6.02

6.03

6.04

During the term of this agreement, the Corporation agrees to deduct from the
wages of each employee a sum of money equal to the monthly membership dues
as established by Local #636, International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers, and
remit same to the Financial Secretary of the Union before the end of each current
month. The Corporation shall also deduct the initiation fee from all new employees
once they have finished probation. The initiation fee shall be forwarded to the Local
Union 636, IBEW office along with their dues deduction as described in the Local
Union by-laws.

In consideration of this deduction and forwarding service by the Corporation, the
Union agrees to indemnify and save the Corporation harmless against any claim or
liability arising out of or resulting from the collection and forwarding of dues.

All future employees as a condition of employment shall become members of the
Union after completing a probationary period and shall pay normal monthly union
dues commencing at hire date.

At the same time income Tax T-4 slips are made available, the Employer shall type
on the amount of Union dues paid by each employee in the previous year.

ARTICLE 7 - STRIKES/LOCKOUTS

7.01

7.02

During the term of this agreement the Corporation agrees not to lock out its
employees, and the Union agrees that no cessation or slowdown of production
will occur. The Union agrees that it will not involve the Corporation in any dispute
between any other group of employees and their employer.

No employee shall be required to cross any legally authorized picket line while
carrying out duties for the Corporation until such time as the Business Rep and/or
Corporate representative has been contacted to ensure the safety of the employee.

ARTICLE 8 - EMPLOYEE CATEGORIES

8.01

8.02

Temporary - Temporary employees are persons hired for a period of up to four (4)
calendar months, except where the requirement is to replace an employee on
Pregnancy/Parental Leave for a period of six (6) months, in positions which are not
likely to become part of the Corporation's continuing organization. Temporary
employees shall not accumulate Corporation Service Credit nor shall they have
recourse to the grievance procedure, against layoff or discharge.

Probationary - Probationary employees are persons hired on trial to determine
their suitability for continuing employment in regular positions. An employee shall
be considered probationary for a six-(6) calendar month period. At the end of this
probationary period his/her date of hiring will be established as six calendar months
prior to the date he/she attains six-(6) calendar months' service. During this period
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of probation, he/she shall not be considered as having regular status and he/she
may be discharged without having recourse to the grievance procedure.

Regular - Regular employees are persons who have satisfactorily served a
probationary period and who are normally employed in full-time positions of a
continuing nature.

ARTICLE 9 - REDRESS PROCEDURE

9.01

9.02

ARTICLE 10 -

All request and/or complaints shall be taken up with an employee's immediate
supervisor.

It is recognized by the Corporation and the Union that not every such request or
complaint is necessarily a grievance (as defined in Clause 10:01 hereof) entitled to
be handled under the grievance procedure as hereinafter provided.

GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES

10.01

10.02

10.03

10.04

10.05

Grievance Definition

For the purpose of this agreement a dispute, claim or complaint which involves the
interpretation or application of this agreement shall be considered to be a fit matter
for grievance and shall be dealt with promptly and as specified below.

An employee who may request the assistance of his/her steward shall first submit
any grievance to his/her superior. In no circumstances may any alleged injustice be
considered if it occurred more than ten (10) working days before the date of
submission. The supervisor will inform the employee of his/her disposition of the
grievance within five (5) working days of the submission.

Failing a settlement to the employee's satisfaction, the Union may then within five
(5) working days of the reply in 10:02, submit a written statement of the grievance.
Management will within five (5) working days arrange a meeting to discuss the
grievance with the Union committee, which the regular employees may attend.
Management will inform the Union committee, in writing, of its disposition of the
grievance within five (5) working days of the meeting.

Failing a settlement to the employee's satisfaction, the Union may within ten (10)
working days of the reply in 10:03, notify the Corporation of its intention to submit
the grievance to arbitration and at the same time inform the Corporation of the
Union nominee to an arbitration board which will then be processed in accordance
with the Ontario Labour Relations Act.

No Board of Arbitration shall have the power to alter or change any of the
provisions of this agreement or to substitute any new provision for any existing
provision, or to provide a decision which is inconsistent with any term or provision of
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this agreement. With the agreement of both parties, the Board of Arbitration will be
composed of a single arbitrator.

Each party to this agreement will bear the expenses and fee of its arbitration and
the parties will share equally the expenses and fee of the Chairperson.

Where it is understood that all grievances as defined in Article 10:01 shall be
submitted by the employee involved, it is recognized that the union shall have the
right to file a grievance on matters within the confines of Article 10:01 which cannot
be grieved by any employee.

Both parties recognize that the purpose of probation is for the employer to properly
ascertain that the employee in question is in fact capable of performing the duties
for which he was hired. Accordingly, when during the probationary period, the
employer determines that such employee cannot perform the duties as hired for,
the employer may discharge the employee and such employee shall not have
recourse to the grievance and arbitration procedure.

The foregoing does not in any way prevent a probationary employee from lodging a
grievance for any other reason as defined by the terms of this Agreement.

HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME

11.01

11.02

11.03

11.04

11.05

This section provides the basis for establishing work schedules and for the
calculation and payment of overtime, but shall not be read or construed as a
guarantee of hours of work per day or week or a guarantee of days of work per
week.

The normal work week of the bargaining unit employees except rotating shift
employees shall be forty (40) hours per week consisting of five (5) days of eight (8)
hours each between the hours of 7:30 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. from Monday to Friday
inclusive. The custodian will work forty (40) hours per week on mutually agreed
hours.

The normal work week of rotating shift employees shall average, on an annual
basis, forty-two (42) hours per week from Monday to Sunday inclusive. The
normal shift shall consist of eight (8) hours. Work schedules for rotating shift
employees shall be maintained three (3) months in advance. It is understood that
the two (2) hours beyond the normal forty (40) hour week shall be paid at double
time for the rotating shift employees.

It is acknowledged that from time to time it will be necessary for employees to
perform work outside the normal schedules at all hours of the day or night, and
management has the right to authorize such work as required.

Work performed in excess of the regularly scheduled hours of work shall be
deemed overtime and paid in accordance with the following schedule:

(a) double time to be paid for overtime work performed after normal scheduled
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hours.

(b) overtime shall wherever possible, be distributed equitably among those qualified
employees working in the same department.

(c) employees required to work overtime, other than in the case of an emergency,
will be given at least forty-eight (48) hours prior notice for all scheduled overtime
on the weekend or eight (8) hours notice for weekday scheduled overtime.

When an employee is called in for emergency work outside of his/her normal
working hours, he/she shall be provided with a minimum payment of two (2) hours
at the appropriate rate or the actual time worked at the appropriate premium rate,
whichever is the greater, except when a short call follows within one (1) hour of
the completion of a previous call in which case time shall be considered
continuous from the start of the previous call. There shall be no minimum
payment applicable to scheduled overtime worked as an extension of an
employee's normal daily working hours. There shall be no applicable minimum
payment applicable to call-outs when an employee commences work one hour
prior to starting time.

An employee may choose, in lieu of payment, to bank earned overtime up to a
maximum of forty (40) hours in each calendar year, at the appropriate overtime
rate.

(a) The employee shall indicate his/her choice at the time the overtime is
assigned.

(b) Banked overtime must be taken in lieu time off, at the employee’s current
regular rate of pay, at a time or times mutually agreed upon by the employee
and the appropriate supervisor.

(c) Lieu time not used by December 31% of each year will be paid out at the
employee’s regular rate as of that date.

Employees on overtime who have worked a minimum of six continuous hours and
the work that they are performing terminates between the hours of 1:30 am and
7:30 am shall be entitled to a minimum of 6 hours rest period. The 6-hour rest
period shall be paid for all hours of rest that may fall during the employee’s
regular shift based on the time that the work terminated. The employees shall be
required to return to work once the 6-hour rest period has been completed or at
the Supervisors discretion alternate arrangements can be made with the
employee to cover the balance of the normal shift.

ON-CALL

12.01

All qualified employees will be required to perform on-call duty which will be
distributed on an equitable basis among them. Management shall maintain an
advance schedule of on-call duty which shall be made available to the staff
concerned.
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The payment for on-call duty for qualified employees shall be in accordance with
the following:

Sept. 1, 10 Sept. 1,11 Sept. 1, 12
Per Week $190.00 $195.00 $200.00
Per Paid Holiday $ 45.00 $ 45.00 $ 45.00

On-call shall commence at normal quitting time on Thursday and terminate at
normal starting time the following Thursday. In addition, payment for time worked,
during on-call hours, shall be as outlined in the overtime provisions of the
agreement.

If an employee scheduled to be on-call is absent due to illness, injury,
bereavement, or leave of absence, the qualified employees in the department will
be required to cover the on-call duty shift/s. Unless the qualified employees in the
department can mutually agree on the coverage, the on-call shift will be covered by
the employee with the least seniority.

ARTICLE 13 - VACATIONS

13.01

13.02

13.03

13.04

Vacation pay shall mean the normal basic earnings of the employee immediately
prior to the date on which vacation monies become payable. In any event and in
the cases of temporary and probationary employees, vacation payments will be
made in accordance with the Employment Standards Act.

Vacations will, as far as it is practical, be granted at the times most desired by the
employees. An employee to ensure consideration of his/her request and his/her
relative Corporation service credit standing, must notify management of his/her
preferred vacation period by April 1st in any given year. However, management
reserves the authority to designate vacation periods for all employees in a manner
consistent with efficient operation of the Corporation.

In the event, while on vacation, an employee is admitted to hospital as a result of a
serious illness or accident, the employee shall have the right to cease vacation and
use his/her sick leave credits. Any vacation so displaced shall be taken at a future
date mutually agreed upon between the employee and management. Upon return
to work the employee must submit a medical report prepared by a doctor of
medicine. The employer shall have the right to have the employee examined by a
doctor of medicine as designated by Management.

A maximum of two (2) consecutive weeks' vacation may be taken by an employee
at any one time between June 1st and September 30th. An employee may take, if
so entitled, three (3) consecutive weeks if the three (3) weeks are taken between
October 1st and March 31st.
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The vacation year shall be January 1* to December 31*. Normal vacations shall not
be accumulative and shall not be taken beyond December 31* of the year following
an employee's normal vacation year. All vacations not used by December 31%, will
be paid to the employee to a maximum of two (2) weeks pay. In order to be eligible
for this provision the employee must take a minimum of two (2) weeks vacation.

Employees shall be credited with their vacation entitement on January 1* of each
year in accordance with the schedule. Progression on the schedule shall occur in
the calendar year in which the employee’s anniversary date falls and shall be pro-
rated from the employee’s anniversary date of employment to December 31° of
that year.

All full-time employees who have completed their probationary period shall be
entitled to take annual vacation with pay, effective January 1% of each calendar
year, in accordance with the following schedule:

Continuous Years of Service | Vacation Entitlement

Less than 1 1 day for each month worked to a maximum of 10
days

More than 1 2 weeks (0.83 days per month)

More than 3 3 weeks (1.25 days per month)

More than 9 4 weeks (1.66 days per month)

More than 15 5 weeks (2.08 days per month)

More than 17 5 weeks + 1 day (2.17 days per month)

More than 19 5 weeks + 2 days (2.25 days per month)

More than 21 5 weeks + 3 days (2.33 days per month)

More than 23 5 weeks + 4 days (2.42 days per month)

More than 25 6 weeks (2.50 days per month)

For employees who are on an unpaid extended leave of absence (exceeding six
consecutive months) the holiday time to which they are entitled will be prorated
accordingly. The prorating will compare time at work to the whole year and that
percentage will be applied to the holiday time the employee is so entitled to.

For employees who are on either an unpaid leave of absence or a long term
disability for any twelve month period the employee will not be entitled to either
work boot or clothing allowance.

ARTICLE 14 - PAID HOLIDAYS

14.01

The following paid holidays shall be recognized by the Corporation and shall be
observed on such days as may be proclaimed by the Town of Collingwood:

New Year's Day Victoria Day Thanksgiving Day
Family Day Canada Day Floater Day
Good Friday Civic Holiday Christmas Day

Easter Monday Labour Day Boxing Day
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and such other holidays which may be proclaimed by the Town of Collingwood.
The regular employees of the Corporation will be entitled to payment of normal

basic wages for such holidays provided they have worked or have been on leave of
absence with pay on the normal scheduled days of work which immediately

Any employee shall be paid double time for all hours worked on recognized
holidays plus holiday pay or a day in lieu as mutually agreed between employee

If a holiday falls on a regular workday and is within a vacation period, the employee

If a holiday falls on an employee's scheduled day off he/she will be granted another
day off or pay in lieu thereof, as mutually agreed between management and the

The Corporation's sick pay plan for regular employees was created by the
Corporation to reduce the financial hardship that bona fide illness can create so far
as inability to work and the consequent loss of hormal wages are concerned.

To qualify for payment of sick pay, an employee must:

(a) have an established credit for sick pay;

(b) ensure that his/her iliness is reported to management as soon as possible;

(c) be suffering from a bona fide illness which prevents his/her useful employment
and is not compensable under the Worker's Compensation Act;

(d) submit written verification of illness signed by a qualified doctor of medicine if
requested or if absent for three (3) days or more;

(e) submit to medical examination by a doctor of medicine designated by

(f) do everything possible to speed his/her recovery.

14.02

precede and follow such holidays.
14.03

and management.
14.04

will receive another day in lieu.
14.05

employee.
ARTICLE 15 - SICK LEAVE PAYMENT
15.01
15.02

management upon request;

15.03

Payments under the Sick Leave Plan will be in accordance to its terms while the
employee is disabled until the earlier of:

(a) the employee returns to work; or

(b) the employee retires, either at the normal retirement age or opts to retire early;
or

(c) the employee exhausts his/her entittements under the plan; or

(d) the employee qualifies for long term disability coverage; or

(e) the employee dies; or

() the employee resigns.
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A short term disability is defined as a period of disability resulting from illness or
injury as determined by a qualified doctor of medicine that prevents an employee
from attending to his/her regular work and extends for a period of not more than
eighteen (18) weeks or ninety (90) days of work. For a period greater than this, the
employee will utilize coverage under his/her Long Term Disability Plan.

Coverage of a short-term disability will be in accordance with the following
schedule:
Amount Payable:

Seniority Service 100% of Pay 75% of Pay
6 months but less than 1 year 1 week 17 weeks
1 year but less than 2 years 2 weeks 16 weeks
2 years but less than 3 years 3 weeks 15 weeks
3 years but less than 4 years 4 weeks 14 weeks
4 years but less than 5 years 5 weeks 13 weeks
5 years but less than 6 years 7 weeks 11 weeks
6 years but less than 7 years 10 weeks 8 weeks
7 years but less than 8 years 12 weeks 6 weeks
8 years but less than 9 years 15 weeks 3 weeks
9 years or more 18 weeks 0 weeks

Note: All regular employees of the Corporation, as of September 1, 1998, will be
granted 100% coverage regardless of his/her actual years of service.

For the purposes of this Plan, a week of pay for hourly paid employees shall be
their normal hours worked per week multiplied by the employee’s standard rate per
hour paid on a weekly basis, but shall not include any shift premium, overtime or
other increments.

Payments from the previous rated schedule will be made on the following basis:

(a) a non-occupational accidental injury; or

(b) absence due to illness with the provision that any absence of one (1) or more
than one (1) shift, either normal morning or normal afternoon shift, on a
scheduled work day, will constitute an occasion;

(1) from the first (1%) day of absence for the first three (3) occasions of absence in
a calendar year; and

(2) from the second (2" day of the fourth (4™) absence in a calendar year, and
(3) from the third (3") day of the fifth (5™) absence in the calendar year, and

(4) from the fourth (4™) day of the sixth (6™) and subsequent absences in a
calendar year.
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Payments will be made for a maximum of eighteen (18) weeks during any one
continuous period of disability. Successive absences due to the same illness or a
related cause will be considered as one continuous period of disability, unless
separated by a return to active employment for a period of two (2) months. A
disability due to a different cause will be considered a new period, even if the
disability occurs within a two (2) month period.

When an employee can demonstrate to the Employer that he/she can only attend
his/her physician as part of a regular treatment during the day, the absence shall
not constitute an occasion for the purposes of the plan. Wherever possible, the
employee shall try to arrange appointments at the beginning or end of their work
day.

A certificate from a qualified doctor of medicine will be required for each period of
absence lasting three (3) or more days or after the third (3") occasion of absence
in any one (1) year; if requested by the Employer. Employees who have been
absent from work due to accident or sickness for a period longer than five (5)
working days shall be required to produce a medical certificate stating that the
employee is fit to return to work.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS PLAN

16.01 (a)

(b)

()

16.02

16.03

The Corporation agrees to pay one hundred percent (100%) of the cost of the
current premiums of the Employer Health Tax (EHT) Hospitalization or its
equivalent for all regular employees until the age of seventy (70).

The Corporation agrees to pay on behalf of all regular employees until the age of
seventy (70), one hundred percent (100%) of the cost of the current premiums of
the MEARIE Management Extended Health Care or its equivalent, a dispensing fee
cap of $10.00. Out-of-Country and travel assistance benefits are limited to 30 day
intervals once the employee reaches the age of sixty five (65).

The Corporation agrees to pay on behalf of all regular employees, until the age of
seventy (70), 100% of the current cost of the eyeglass plan as follows:

September 1, 2010 - $350.00/24 months

The Corporation agrees to pay one hundred per cent (100%) of the current
premium cost of the group life insurance policy presently in force on behalf of all
regular and retired employees up to the age of sixty-five (65) at which time the
employee is transferred to the retiree life division.

The Corporation agrees to pay on behalf of all reqgular employees until the age of
seventy (70), one hundred per cent (100%) of the cost of current premiums to
provide a plan giving the equivalent benefits of the MEARIE Dental Care Plan "E"
or its equivalent, current year's Ontario Dental Association fee schedule. Subject
to the plans yearly maximum.
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When an employee is on long term disability the Corporation agrees to pay the
preceding benefits from Articles 16:01 a, b & ¢, 16:02 and 16:03, until the age of
sixty five (65) years.

The Corporation agrees to provide coverage of the existing Dental, Health and
Eyeglass Plans, if an employee retires prior to the age of 65, with a combined age
(minimum fifty-five (55) years) and service (minimum of twenty-five (25) years)
credit, to a total of at least 80 years. This will continue until the former employee
reaches the age of 65 years.

It is recognized that the employee benefits flowing from this document satisfy the
requirements of E.l. regulations covering rebates to employees. The employees
waive the right to the rebate on account of the Employer providing the
aforementioned benefit.

It is understood that all employees while on WSIB shall receive a top up allowance
to equalize 100% of their current rate of pay.

ARTICLE 17 - WORKERS' COMPENSATION

17.10

When an employee through his/her paid employment by the Corporation, suffers an
illness or injury which is compensable under the Workers' Compensation Act, The
employee will receive payment in accordance with the Act for a period of twenty-
four (24) months. The Corporation shall continue to pay of a period not to exceed
twenty-four (24) months, the benefit premiums under Article 16.

ARTICLE 18 - JOB POSTING AND SELECTION

18.01

18.02

When a vacancy occurs, or a new regular position is created within the bargaining
unit, the Corporation shall post a notice of the vacancy for a minimum of five (5)
working days. All qualified employees may make written application for the vacant
position.

The selection of applicants for vacancies or promotion shall be made only from
those applicants who are judged by the Corporation to be qualified to do the work
and will be based on:

(a) merit
(b) ability
(c) accumulated Corporation service

In the event that in the opinion of the Corporation, merit and ability are equal, the
Corporation service credit shall govern.

ARTICLE 19 - LAYOFF AND RECALL
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In the event of a lay-off, management agrees that employees be laid off in the
reverse order of their Corporation service credit provided that management can
retain a work force qualified to perform the work available. Employees shall be
recalled in the order of Corporation service credit provided they are qualified,
capable and have the ability to do the work available.

During the term of this Collective Agreement, no regular full-time Employee will be
laid off as a result of outsourced labour services.

A suitable meal will be provided to an employee who has worked continuously for
two (2) hours beyond a regular scheduled work day and every four (4) hours
thereafter as long as the employee continues to work. Effective September 1,
2010, there will be a thirteen dollar ($13.00); September 1, 2011, fourteen dollar
($14.00); September 1, 2012, fifteen dollar ($15.00), maximum allowed for a meal
as long as a request for allowance be submitted with a receipt and only that total

For work outside the boundaries of the Town of Collingwood the following shall

If an employee arrives at the COLLUS Power Headquarters in Collingwood and is
given instructions that he or she will be working outside the boundaries of the Town
of Collingwood (i.e. Stayner, Creemore or Thornbury) over the normal lunch period
the Company agrees to pay a meal allowance as outlined above.

However, if an employee is told in advance (minimum day before) that he or she will
be working outside the boundaries of the Town of Collingwood (i.e. Stayner,
Creemore or Thornbury) over the normal lunch period, and then the meal will be the
responsibility of the employee.

19.01
19.02
ARTICLE 20 - MEALS
20.01
will be paid.
apply:
20.02

Meal period for such meals shall be a one-half (1/2)-hour duration and such time
shall not be paid.

ARTICLE 21 - TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT

21.01

ARTICLE 22 -

The Corporation shall supply all tools necessary to carry out the work involved in
maintaining service. An employee must return worn-out or broken articles in order
to receive replacement. An employee may be required to pay for lost tools.

CLOTHING

22.01

The Corporation shall supply the following articles to the employees who in the
Corporation’s opinion require such items on a need be basis. The initial outlay is as
follows;

- rain gear, safety glasses, rubber boots, leather gloves and vests

- three (3) orange fire retardant and reflective Tee-shirts

- three (3) orange fire retardant and reflective long sleeve shirts



Collus PowerStream Corp.
EB-2012-0116

Responses to Interrogatories of
Board Staff and Intervenors
Page 184 of 375

Filed: August 21, 2013

- three (3) orange fire retardant and reflective sweatshirts

- three (3) pants (blue fire retardant and reflective)

- one (1) orange fire retardant and reflective bomber jacket or winter parka
- two (2) orange fire retardant and reflective summer coveralls

- two (2) orange fire retardant and reflective winter coveralls

Employees in the Filtration Plant, Customer Service, Metering, Stores, and the
Custodian will be issued the above listed clothing in blue fire retardant and
reflective. Worn out or damaged articles must be turned back in to receive new at
the discretion of the Supervisor.

22.01 (a) All employees that are issued fire retardant uniforms must wear issued uniforms
during all work hours.

22.02 Regular employees required by the Construction Safety Branch of the Ministry of
Labour to wear safety boots on the job will be reimbursed the following yearly
amounts after September 1% of each year upon surrender of receipts for the
purchase of the safety boots.

2010 - $250.00
2011 - $250.00
2012 - $250.00

ARTICLE 23 - COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEM

23.01 Employees required for on call will be given suitable wireless communications at
the Corporation's expense.

ARTICLE 24 - LEAVE OF ABSENCE

24.01 Under certain conditions management may authorize the absence of an employee
from work. Normally, no payment of wages will be made for the period involved.

24.02 Leaves of absence require the written permission of management and applications
for leave of absence must be submitted in writing one (1) calendar month in
advance to ensure consideration.

24.03 Unauthorized absence from work will constitute voluntary termination of
employment except in cases where management considers the circumstances
emerging are beyond the employee's control and the employee has notified
management of the circumstances as soon as possible.

24.04 All unused vacation and lieu time must be used before a request for a leave of
absence is considered.

24.05 An employee who is elected or appointed as a delegate to a union convention or

conference will be granted leave of absence for a period up to eight (8) weeks.
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The employee will not receive pay while absent, and the Corporation will not be
expected to pay his relief any more money than the delegate would have earned
during the leave of absence period had he been on duty. Such leave of absence will
be granted only once during the calendar year.

The seniority of such employee shall continue and accumulate during such leave of
absence. The Union shall reimburse the Corporation for the employee's benefit
costs during the leave.

Any leave of absence granted will be in writing and no such leave will affect any
employee's seniority rights when used for the purpose granted. If an employee
works elsewhere while on leave of absence he will lose all seniority unless he has
written permission from the Corporation to do such work. An appointment to a paid
committee of the Union will not be construed as working while on leave of absence.

BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

25.01

25.02

In the event of the death of a member of the immediate family (Husband, Wife, Son
or Daughter, and Parents) of a regular employee, the employee may be granted a
leave of absence with pay up to four (4) working days in order that he/she may
arrange for and attend the funeral. Only that portion of the said four (4) days that
would otherwise have been regular time worked will be paid. An entitlement of three
(3) working days shall be given to include, parent-in-law, brother, sister,
grandparent, grandparent-in-law, brother-in-law and sister-in-law.

In the event of the death of a relative other than a member of the immediate family,
the employee may be granted one (1) day's leave of absence with pay in order that
he may attend the funeral.

ARTICLE 26 - WORK AND SAFETY RULES

The Corporation and union agree to use the approved Electrical Utilities Safety
Association (EUSA) rulebook as the basis for establishing work and safety rules.
The two parties also agree to maintain an environment that is within the limits of the
Occupational Health and Safety Act.

All employees shall realize that Safety and the maintenance of a safe and healthy
work environment is mandated by the Occupational Health and Safety Act and is
considered by the Corporation as a “condition of employment”.

The union shall provide the Corporation with a list of union officials to be revised
from time to time as changes occur. The Corporation shall provide the union with a
list of supervisors to whom grievances and other relevant matters may be

26.01
26.02
ARTICLE 27 - REPRESENTATION
27.01
submitted.
27.02

The Corporation will recognize a committee of two (2) employees plus one (1)
union representative in negotiations and the second step of the grievance
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procedure. The Corporation will deal with the said committee on all matters which
are properly the subject of negotiation of an agreement, an amendment thereto, a
renewal thereof, in a grievance therein. The union recognizes that union officials
have regular duties to perform for the Corporation and subject to this recognition
the Corporation agrees to maintain standard rate of pay for time spent by union
officials on grievance matters during normal working hours as defined in Articles
10:02 and 10:03 of this agreement but not including arbitration.

The manager or his/her delegate concerned shall be the sole judge of what
constitutes adverse weather conditions. The manager or his/her delegate shall be
cognizant of the work that should not be performed in certain weather conditions.

During such period management will endeavour to provide alternate work.

An employee who does not show up for work when the Corporation is open, must
use vacation time, or make up the time for the duration of the missed working

The Corporation will provide bulletin board space in an area designated by the
Corporation for the purpose of posting notices. All notices before they are posted,

The responsibility for printing and distributing this agreement shall rest with the

ARTICLE 28 - ADVERSE WEATHER
28.01
28.02
28.03
hours.
ARTICLE 29 - BULLETIN BOARDS
29.01
must be approved by the manager or his/her delegate.
ARTICLE 30 - DISTRIBUTION OF AGREEMENT
30.01
Corporation.
30.02

The Corporation agrees to ensure that the union receives sufficient copies of the
agreement for distribution to the employees of this bargaining unit.

ARTICLE 31 - WAGES

Employees will receive rates of pay in accordance with Schedule "A". The
classifications and rates are listed therein for purposes of payment of wages only.

31.01

31.02 WAGE INCREASE — As per Schedule “A”
ARTICLE 32 - RELIEVING IN HIGHER GRADE

32.01

An employee temporarily assigned to a position with a higher hourly wage for a
period of four (4) hours or more will be paid at 110% of their hourly rate for the
entire period of relief. Relieving in a higher grade shall be made only from those
applicants who are judged by Management to be qualified to do the work and will
be based on:

(a) merit
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(b) ability
(c) accumulated service credit

In the event that in the opinion of Management, merit and ability are equal, the
accumulated service credit shall govern.

DURATION

33.01

This agreement shall remain in affect for a period of three (3) years from September
1st, 2010 to August 31st, 2013, and shall continue in force from year to year
thereafter, unless not more than three (3) months and not less than thirty (30) days
before the date of its termination, the union notifies management in writing of its'
desire to amend this agreement.

ARTICLE 34 - JURY DUTY

34.01

The Corporation will pay normal straight time pay to those employees who must
participate as a juror or subpoenaed witness in a court case within the province of
Ontario. This is provided if the employee signs over to the Corporation, any
remuneration received for such duties, excluding: travelling, meals, or other
expenses.

ARTICLE 35 - TRAINING

35.01

ARTICLE 36 -

The Union and Corporation/Management both recognize the importance of Training
therefore it is the responsibility of both parties to maintain a highly trained working
staff.

RESIDENCY

36.01

ARTICLE 37 -

As a condition of their continuing employment, all new employees who shall be
on-call, must live within twenty-five (25) minutes (automobile travel time under
favourable driving conditions) from the COLLUS Service Centre, 43 Stewart
Road, Collingwood. New employees must establish such residency not later than
three (3) months after completion of their probationary period.

PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT

37.01

It is the intent of the Parties in entering into this Agreement to find a positive way
of achieving harmonious and mutually supportive relationships among the
Companies, the Employees and the Union, which will keep the Utility in a strong,
competitive market position.

The Parties recognize that in addition to competitive wages, safe working
conditions, and fair treatment, it is important that we present our best image to the
public at all times. The employees, the Company and the Union must treat each
other with respect and to show our Citizens and our Shareholder the Team Spirit
and positive attitudes that will be an essential factor in the success of the
company.
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Therefore, the Parties are entering into this Agreement as partners, rather than
adversaries.

ARTICLE 38 — DRIVERS LICENCE

38.01 The Corporation agrees to pay for the cost of the licence that any employee
needs in the performance of his/her duties other than standard class “G” driver’s
licences.

SIGNED:

for the Union: for the Corporation:

Dated at, Collingwood Ontario,

this day of , 2011
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SCHEDULE "A"

Category Sept. 1, 2010 | Sept. 1, 2011 | Sept.1, 2012
Hydro Department

Journey Linesperson Lead-Hand (110%) $37.31 $38.43 $39.58
Journey Linesperson (100%) $33.92 $34.93 $35.98
Linesperson - Fourth Year $32.36 $33.33 $34.33
- Third Year $29.22 $30.10 $31.00
- Second Year $26.11 $26.89 $27.70
- First Year $22.97 $23.66 $24.37
Journeyperson Technician Lead-Hand (110%) $37.31 $38.43 $39.58
Journeyperson Meter Technician $33.92 $34.93 $35.98
Meter Technician - Third Year $32.36 $33.33 $34.33
- Second Year $29.22 $30.10 $31.00
- First Year $26.11 $26.89 $27.70

Inspector/Locator $30.97 $31.89 $32.85
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4-SEC-11

[Ex.4/1/4/p.4]

Please explain how 28.5 % increase in the Community Relations budget can be
“primarily due to inflationary based salary increases”.

Response
The correct reference appears to be Exhibit 4, Tab 1, Schedule 1, Page 4 of 10.

The explanation for the increase in community relations on page 4 states, “The total
growth in costs in the Community Relations area has been $31K or 28.5%. The program
increases in the Community Relations area related primarily to inflationary based salary
increases.”

While 28.5% sounds like a large difference, the actual dollar value change is only $31k.
A history of community relations expenditures is provided below, but it does have some
real variation from year-to-year. Upon further investigation the notes on the table were
added to explain.

Actual Year-to-Date Forecast OEB Approved
30-Jun-13 December 2013 December 2012  December 2011 | December 2010 December 2008 2008
5415-0000-00 Energy Conservation 517 5,041
S5425-0000-00 Misc Cust Ser&inform Expenses 70,805 138,000 133,479 144 911 158,530 103,213 107,389
Total Community Relations 70,805 138,000 133,479 150,028 166,572 103,213 107,389
“ariance to 2005 OEB approved 30,611.00
% wvariance to OEB approved 28.50%

Notes.

1} Some of the increase will be related to annual wage increases.

2) There appears to be fluctuation in earlier years between 5305 Biling Supervision, 5315 Customer Billing, & 5320 Collecting.
3} Additional table prepared to compare accounts listed in point 2 above with 5425 Misc Customer Service & Information.

The following table provides more useful comparison, with these categories combined.
Some deviation in wage postings is apparent. In 2009, the billing supervisor went on a
sudden disability leave and was never able to return. The billing supervision allocation
appears to have never been adjusted for employees and contract workers filling in. This
corrects in 2011. An outside service was required in 2010 to assist with the fill-in for the
disabled employee and the cost for the support was significant.

If you look at these categories as a whole, it is apparent that the 2013 revenue
requirement request is actually $27,482 less than 2009 OEB approved. It is also
apparent that the June 30" results are tracking almost exactly to the December 2013
forecast.
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Looking at the Miscellaneous Customer Service & Information expense account on its

own makes meaningful analysis difficult. But this analysis does give some more
meaningful insight.

ear-to-Date Forecast

OEB Approved
June 30,2013 December 2013 December 2012 December 2011 December 2010 December 2009 I 2009

5305-0000-00 Biling Supervision 38,950 24,000 80,035 45,131 13,420 43,000
5315-0000-00 Customer Billing 181,743 372,000 370,657 386,839 491,705 452772 439,093
5320-0000-00 Collecting 52,210 93,000 100,646 86,670 104,753 59,618 69,000
5425-0000-00 Misc Cust Ser&inform Expenses 70,805 138,000 133,479 144,511 158,530 103213 107,388

341,708 637,000 664,818 664,601 754,538 558,024 714,482

June 30th * 2 - Full year estimate to compare 583,418

ariance to budget 3,582
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4-Enerqy Probe-26

Ref:

a)

b)

c)

d)

Exhibit 4, Tab 1, Schedule 2

Have any of synergies and cost reductions noted as a result of the
PowerStream acquisition of 50% of the shares of Collingwood Utility
Services Corp. been reflected in the 2013 revenue requirement? If not, why
not? If yes, please provide an estimate of the impact.

Does Collus PowerStream have an estimate of the savings in years beyond
20137? If yes, please provide the details.

What costs have been incurred in 2012 and/or in 2013 as a result of the
acquisition by PowerStream of 50% of the shares of Collingwood Utility
Services Corp. as they relate to the regulated distributor (such as the name
change, changes to letterhead, changes to bills, etc.)?

If any of the costs identified in part (b) above are included in the Collus
PowerStream OM&A in 2012 or 2013, please quantify the amounts included
in each year and provide a breakdown of the expenses.

Response

a)

b)

No synergies or cost reductions as a result of the PowerStream acquisition have
been reflected in the 2013 revenue requirement. Since the PowerStream deal did
not close until March 1, 2013, it would not be reasonable that 2013 would include
any expectations of efficiency gains. It is too premature to determine what those
savings will be and we cannot provide an estimate of the impact at this time.

No, Collus PowerStream does not currently have an estimate of the savings in
years beyond 2013.

Initially we will target goals in areas which are easily achievable and can be
undertaken quickly and with little resistance. We will go after the low hanging
fruit first because those initiatives, by definition, are the ones that are easiest to
do and will have the biggest impact on efficiency and productivity.

Some previously entered agreements and contracts with other outside service
providers have legal termination restrictions that will delay our ability to utilize
PowerStream’s services for three to five years in some cases. Such areas will
take a longer amount of time to resolve and plan out.

There has been very little spent on the rebranding of Collus Power to Collus
PowerStream. There were no additional costs for things such as envelopes or
letterhead since we used up all of the existing stock we had before using any
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new. The bill was simply changing the logo in the computer and there was no
additional cost. We changed the logo on less than a dozen vehicles and one sign
on our front entrance.

Vehicle Logo Changes and Front Entrance Sign $3,153

2012 - Vehicle Logo Changes and Front Entrance Sign $3,153
2013 - None
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4-SEC-12

[Ex.4/1/2/p/2]

Please quantify and detail the anticipated savings in the Test Year as a result of the 50%
acquisition by PowerStream Inc.

Response

As noted in our application, the potential savings are not quantifiable at this time. We
can however note that staff has been diligently working on identifying areas in which our
new relationship can provide future mitigation of upward pressure on distribution rates
and in areas in which we can provide better customer service. Areas that have been
investigated are: procurement of large vehicles, utilization of PowerStream‘s Control
Centre, coordination of conservation and demand management programs, regulatory
issues, human resources policy and practises, governance policies, smart grid, to note
just a few.
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4-SEC-13

[Ex.4/2/1/p.1-2]

Please provide a copy of the results of the 12" Annual Electricity Utility Customer Survey
and the 2013 UtilityPulse survey.

Response
A copy of the 2013 Utility Pulse Survey is attached.

We do not have a copy of the “12™ Annual Electricity Utility Customer Survey” and are
not familiar with this survey.
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i \ /
day basis. [Easa’ Onland LOC mapoadais] o

has charged e way 1 whish they consome giocinoly o0 @ day-0-

SMART melering & alec a key eloment of SMART grd technology. This yaar's survey probed around
iha concept of SMART grid, its imgenience and suppart owards working wilth neghbouring uiliies. &
i dear that the need for education is immense. 1 8 Blgo clear Mal he majorty of espondents are
wary + Enmewhial supparive of the ulify warking with neghbayring utildies on SMART grd inlliatives

Laweel ef knowledgs about e SMART Qrid

1 bawe o falrdy good undersfamding of whal il b seed Bow 1L might bess il

hosas ind businisies

I v & Basle undermtendieg of wisl i & snd how 8 might work: 1%

e heard of 1he Serm. Bt don't kv iy abo i n%

I hisva not heard of e lom Erd

Don't kraw L

I AN R O | EReREr b s S T ]
g e ']
e 13

UtilityPULSE .

Imparancs o porsilag implesntation o the SWART Giid

Wery impartant
Heithar mparias or unimgortant 1L

"Eunw-'lm unkeperie %
Unimpariam e
P—— v _l

= = paEipag 100y

Supipart towards working wilh neighbooring wtlilles as SMART Geid nlEutives

[

Wery supparive hiY

Somawkat supponiee el

Mol pappartive or wupporive 5

SomEwial unsuppuitdve L

Unesmnntive &% |
: Dan' kfow 2%

B o egprega s of reEporcar s A 2015 parscpareg LEGL
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Purchasing on Eloctric Vehicle

Looking g1 age damographics, 22% of cidar respondents (65+) versus 47% of mspoadants aged 35-
54 and 43% aged 18-24 are In favor al Evis replecing camventicoal cors

[ Interast in purchasing a fully electric vehicle

WI0IF Wl Wikl

-““h‘“
Ilu “‘IHIH
Cotd
™ i
as s e
L ™m A 1%

any Farnewhak IMII.HI:HMII.IIHI Donst itk Dwpenda  Dos') know ‘

Enargy Consgrvation & Efficionoy

Improwing anargy aliciency doas ned mean hat cusiomears bave 1o glve up o fonps activites ko save
energy. Ralhar, new technoiogies and moe efeciive behaviour will actualy aliow customers 1o do
= mrare, Irpreving iheir living condiicns rather $hen mducing thak comforl. Energy efficiency can be
beken down inlo two anas: Boffer vse of enangy Mreuph improved snery-eficient dechnoingias: and

UtilityPLLSE s s

BAEgy S3viag vouph changes in ¢ and bahavicwr, During the

SUrvey imtarview proceas, we asked “wital & the T or 2 bormors for oreafing Spher

pvels of anegy  effipency?” 1% dentiied “oosls  imvolved © making
equiprantispaliance changes”, and 12% idendfied ‘tack of mmowledge or lack of indormation”.
Respondants wee asked: "Whal will pow he dalng lo conserve anergy?

! Efiarin {o conaprde & nergy
lrmtaii e rgy-s Mcient Bght bulbe or Bghiing equipment 0% 0% L ™
Trentall ihsars m:lly:H-..erq-'-m ey 40% a5 hm
‘Bhift use of alestricity to lower cosi perinds i)Y Hw L E Y
sl wicsdow biinds or menings 154 oo san %
el o progeise e Swrmaital 185 3% N %
Hwen 1m anongy EXpot conduct B ensegy dudll L s 18% Y
Fusving old mirigarstss or freszer far fres 14% AN T a%
Jola the posissve PLUE™ srogram 8% &5, 2R Lk Y
Rasplaciog fumace with & Righ affichancy model 38 S, A %
Replating air-conditionar with & high sfliciancy modsl 6% 4 AT w5

'| Use & ooupon o purzhass qualed margy ssving prodpcts % 2% 1% =

BRI W e e 2010 meimas g LT
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E-zare and E-hliling
Far any servioe proviger inciuding alaciric ullilies, using the infemet far onling cusiomar

cam gnd electroniz billing ivabees a number of irlamelaled requiremants, includng a
cusiamers ability lo: slgn up fer and cheange ther senvices usng Bie inlemet, find answers
lo their queslions online aboul thal sccounts, leam aboul products, services and iopics,
|, graen energy, eksciicly prcing, edc. Il is aboul gving conlral io e susiomer,

B3% of CHEC Graup respondents have access b 1ha intemet and 14% have accessed feir ulility's
websie in the last s months,

Consumers will evenhually adopt electiarie biling arnd onfine cusiomer care as midrey
Indusiriss/companies begin prowdi ng consumer bl online, and ciilical mass is reachag.

Using S |remal for Bl

1 om alrasdy receldlng ey hydne Bill slscanically blic Y A%
¥ usa pri-line Banking and wil definhely be r fthad m=y biN be
seni alpztronkealiy e H% 9%
luze ondive banking bil prefer 82 have papar stztemanis k= 5%
- | prefer io hawe the paper copy ef my Biis W 25
1 den't use on-ina Banklng 1T FraS
o o s AT PN o 511 Pt L | O, o s e eI e e o T
ilitve i
UtilityPULSE E—— — P
Social Madia
Eacial media &= evahing at an incredible pace, Imporianlly, 1@ seams o represant a shift in
P people discover, mad and share mevea, inlarmation and conbant.  Respondents of this o
YESIS SUMVEY were asked how Okaly they wawd vss social media such as i X k
facebaok™ fand oiers) 55 5 rescurce far enangy afficiancy figs or fo fel) maEnage yoor i
elainely neat..
Wery lkaly
Somamh ISy T E 7% e
M Miindy o9 20 24 1%
et Hinly it all B4 A aEy aay
y o't v belal mudls account Fs ] e Y 0% 4%
on't ke [+ 1% 0% i
Ene 42 mpprigu e 0! masoncanis ko Y010 [amnyaiey LR /00 of 19l mapanderis hon tha local iy
Customuer Affinity
— Privata indusiry ofien equates cussamer loyalty wilh basic customar rabentian. IF a customer corfinues

10 g business with & company, that customer iz, by definltion, conmidersd to be loyal, If this definiticn

UtilityPLLSE Jima 203



were Bpplied b many comparses in tha uliity indusiry, &1 customers would sulomalicaly be
considanad loyal. Ag such, measuring customer iyally would appear io b Unnecessary.

Halural monapalies {like LDCs) ane nat really different in whet thay should messune excenl it tpng
fo celermana which cusboméns ane “loyal® or ak rigk® s rol sbout a cuslomer's fulure baheviour bt
more about halr “stiudinel” yally [are ey advocaiss?).

The Loyalty Factor

WCHEC W Wationil  Ontarie

ikl fovarshis

o T

Ime iy iawsarn
UtilityPULSE e =

Limtomer Loyalty Grosps:

23 -
o -
e -

adal réngnnkilh oo @ R et of By e
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18
Juna 2013

Ela i ERy f loyalty — e a wpany that yow would (ks to conSaue b0 Ao Buslirs with

WAt dn e -] Pl 8 peroment of e ey Rl
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Evary LOC hat a brand and @ brand image, whila that imege can ba afected by evanls in he
Ingluslry bayard (ha conlrel of e LDC, the reality is there is a cost berefit to Improvineg tha custonsar
coporienca, gerarating Higher ewals of customer engegement and growing the numbers of
Favourable and Secure cusiomars. Froviding consisiant retieble enegy wihie Deing sesn as ‘sssy o
o basingss wih', alang wilh providing infarmation and suppart far customers fo use alectncly mona
efficienily ar cone components of 8 successful relalionship wilh cuslomers.

Marisling — Communicaticnm

Topics thal futpiin scee pro-aciye cammunization
(Ceal of slecirisity i ressanabis when compared 1o other uililties B
Wioie Wit QuslomErs B ki thalr energy zosts aficrdsble i
Hdapts weil to changes In covtemer repacisors it

T
TS

FEHE

Dparabas & cosd effacllve hypdro-slesirie spitam
Prevides good valus fer maary
Topins fhat your uilily yEoms sy gl gn
1= 4 trusted snd &0
| Bimpoiat chotpan i s
Accuraby bilkng
 Bivarall tha ulitey prorvides aueiant quality sareices

s e &
UtilityPUILSE = o o

-
&

1

83 E
5131838

z

LidityPULSE b5 the only emierpriss wilh muliple year customer nend data thal appears an the List of
Praseniers and Subimitiars in (he Repar! of the Onlarie Delnbufion Secior Beview Famal Wiy 14
yoars of data |15 now that the 2013 sunéay has been somplebsd), we Kraw thal LDCs in Onkario have
made excellent progress in lhe way(s] in which customars anme cared for and served — despile (ha
massve amaunis of change thal leve taken place dudng that same fimeframe,

We've oftan bean ssked: “Whal doss il take o be seen as hawving great cusiomer service? Qi
mnswer continues la be “have genuire empathy Tor cusloeners™. IF you end your fellow emplayess
don't hase i, hean your arganization will nod achiove tha highest levels of custamer angagement and
#nity as may be possiblea, This reguires CHEC Group o ensure that il & tuly embracng the
strategic imfent of being "cusiomar caniric™ AND Il requires (he establishment of 8 corporats culluns
\hal suppants bolh custamar and employee anpagament

Wa macommEnd hawing mesningiul wa-way dislogoe with employees (and otfers) fo everage the
resulls from your 2013 cuptomar sabsfaction survey derived from speshing with 632 CHEC Group
cugiomers [Apd 10 - Aprdl 23, 2013]. After-ail, pecple can't care about the fhings that they dont
kniow about.

Sid Ricigley

- SmulUliyPLLSE
Emadl; sicridglay@uliitypuise.com ar eridgley@siruloarp.com
June, 2013
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Satisfaction (pre & post)

The old adage “¥ou carnot command respest, you have jo aam respect” Is 8 Esson that aolly
dascribas e loyally effec with customars, Many paepls mistakenly think doing a good job wil lead o
layalty; that a salisfied customer equals = loyal cusiomar,

While private ndusiry companies are compelied o understang thair customers i ondar o drive sales
and revenus, cusbrmer satislacfon measwement can ferm & similar focus for prgenatisns in the
ansenoe af e commercial imperative, such as uiiilies which operale undes monapolistic conditions, 1
can also helo o buid a connectian wilh custamers and frontdne stef, ana provide 8 unling, metvaling
factor Boross Ihe omganizaion, Monopolles are not really dilferent in what they should messuEe exceat
that irying to datermine which cuslomes @ Soyal® ar "6 risk” is not sbeul their fubure behaviour but
e abaul thair “astding layatly (are thay sdvosales?). In the private sacler customer salisfachion
and loyaity ane oflen seen as essential for survival 8nd success. Punlic sacior crganizations, especisiy
municipalities, have coms % realze thal kooking atior thair customens and taking the apparunity 1o
leam from Hham & kay to delivering services which ane both etfective and efficiant

ARter 15 yoars of caninued rescanch with elacirie uliily customens, sxpectations of Fair eleslic ulility
go far beyond “keaping the kghls an®, “biling me poperly™. and “reeianing pawer guickly’,

UtilityPLLSE S 24
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& Balisfaction heppens whan oty care senices TSR RS
oo e omng pi e or fairly' satisfied with .

o Loyaly occurs whan B cuslomer makes an
amalicnal connBchion wilh their eleclic ulility on
& diverse range of expeclaions beyond cone
BEIVCRS,

Salislacion alone doss mol make a custamer loyal;, a wilingness 1o commit and advocate for 2
company along with salisfaciion idanfiffes fhe fres basic cusiomer atfifutes. which wnderpin loyaity
profies. While saSsfaction is an imporant component of Dyally, B8 loyaly cafinilion peeds o
Incorporale more aifibudingd and emalive companants,

Elostricify bl payers wi ars very o falrly” salinfiod wi.., I

CHEC S - .
Hasisnal 5% BE% B BEE
Onkarfe i BEY B e

e T T —— T e e r——

Utility 1L SF S —

-]
Juive 2013

Cur research has found fhad in e utiity indusirg enviranment, esgecially i Dniano, whense mosi
ulllies ara municipaly owmsd, salisfaction = a strong driver of cuslcmer sl as wed as, impacls
employee engagement The salislacton of pobic custamersisifizens both improves employes
engagement and s improved by it

Tha symergy which exists Detwean cuslomer salistaction and employes engagemant has anamous
mplications for the paformance of those who make up @ ulilly's wordoree, Mary service persormel
aré motivated by fheir esie bo hedp others: succeeding at this ek {ang having clear evidence [hal
ey have satishied Ihalr *customans™) cam help keep them motvated and =ngaged

Satiefied employess, wha are warking in an organizational culbure which promotas servica asceliance
is crifizal, oo, Many compares make the mistake of measwing only cusbomer salisfacion, Measuring
crganizafional culture is the key because employeas play an integral roe in (he ousomer relaionship

UtilityPULSE 2
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Employeag do mare than dolver customer sendce — fhey perscaalize e relafionship babwoen
gustomer and the wlllity.

Creating loyal customers and layal amployees go hand In hand and il is e leaders of crganizations
Wal mus! cresba this sfignmenl.  Imphamenting serdon sooabanca works bast whan e princigies sre
well urdessiond and widespread collaboralion is encouraged by management's visibie achans. In our
experience, (his is best achieved by driving change fram tha ‘top down’ 8t Ihe sames lime as insniting
and fully angsging emplovees Fam Be balinm up'

In tha SimuRUGEIYPULSE Custamer Satisfaction
survey, tha cvarall satistaction question i asked CHEC
both &l ®e begnning (PRE} and e end
(FOST}  Asking ihe genersl  sadséaciion 1
PET Barlhifacden Soare [T
qQuastian & Ihe start of tha survey awvoids biss _
and we abtain a spantanmois raling, This alices
measuremenl of customeans” gverall impressions
of e ulilfy prar to prompting tham {0 think of = PR Sasklactien Seare urs
spacific aspedts al the relalicnship Atter we

have @skad B00U specilc aspecls of he

Cusiomer eapenence, wie gain a mere congidarad (o condilioned) respanss ]

UtilityPULSE o

Juns 2002

SATISFACTION ECORES - El

Top 3 Dexis Pl et i (Intaria

wery + Talely sallatian

PRE; leitfal Batlatastion Scanes B B0
* PROIET; e of interelow B i
o

SATISFACTION SCOAES - BN

5|8

s
alrky sacs(ies

PRE: Intilad Satiafecdon Scares <10 - &

POET: End of Inlerviaw B - a
ERar ISl apora nmm 1] 00 3 PArRird of T timeey 7R81

Cusiomers, a5 human baings., are both rational and emotions. The ralions side of the cussarsr hoids
e LDC sotourdable for doing its job (as contracted), thanaby Rlliling 1he cusiomears basic needs,
Tha emalional side of the customer is #boud fulfling expectations. Meating rational neads — a1 beal —
pets the cusiomer o a neutal slate and 8t wonst Creales dissatidlaction. Emolional nesds, when mat,
EssUming base level ralional reeds are mel. can move a customes from neulrsl to hgher fevels of
sassiaclion

UtilityPUlL SF 8
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T T —
@ o
v v

_u--‘?* [RS—

Antributes strongly lnked o @ hydn uilih's imige

RETIONAL MEEDS

Provides conslsian, relable snergy 1% e L]
| slckly handis svtigas 5% BB B35
Acsuraie Blling B 5% B
Provides good walus ke money T % @%
15wy o buiness’ with Be% s o

bam 2 cost alfeciie edeairic m T T ann,

ENOTIONAL NEEDH

| Dy peotealon ity with cusiomers probinms et ki S
‘Warks wilh ceatemers 1o keep Sheir energy costs effordable TI% Be B5%
Fro-sctive In someunle stheg ehanges % Lk ars
Clubehily danis wilh jsaums that sfisst cusiomerns i Bt %
Agapts well o changes in custemar expeatations e Tam T
Civarall the M% sacsllunt quasity sarsices % BY¥% 3%
L= IR T [T}

UtilityPULSE - -
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Customer Service

Customar service e 8 series of acliviles grouped in processes designed to provide cusiomars and
ather slakehoidars with information or assistance which sddress cuslomer's nesds. Those nesds ae
far more diverse than ey hawe ever been themDy, compeling cusiomer sandce [0 change in
raspanse W increasing customer gemantds. Gaven he increase n fregmentaton of customar type ang
ciztamer prablemns the naed far buiding a customer-centric cullure in ling wilh cuaboman” nesds,
preferances and espectations & important when cuslomar satisfaction |s impasant i the organizaton

Cuslmers don't wenl 1o be passed fram CER m CER, unnecessary urasucracy, o keegp. rapeating
why thay ana cading, bo cupheata infomalion aiveady gaen, or o have {0 understand the nner
warkings of tha 18ty crganizaticn,

Respondents wane ssked houl slx aspects of their most recent experienca with a mpresantative from
GHEC Group

- Irfeemalien — quakty of infarmasian provided

- Bl allitude — el of courissy

= Professionaksm — ihe knowledge of saall

- Delivery = hislpfuliess of statf

- Timednags — i Rngh of ime (L sk 1o get what they neated

= Accessibiily - how easy || was to contec! somecrs

UtilityUL5F = 30
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Customer Service

The quality of ieformai iz preidad by e Salf whe deah
with you.

Tiw Trarl af cowris vy ab cha staf shey deal b with. s
The kraalegpe of the vl whs &2l with youe
The hedpia bess of the wall whn geah wlib gor

ThedlmE | ok somenne 10 desl with pair problem

The b i1 1B ekl Vi Ea L] e irenn e

Hatntaction wis Cusiomer Sanvice

Thitlms it ook o ceedac somesns Fli TN T

Thie time it book semanns by del with your peablas s Tan i

T holpdilass of B plall whi desh wlih you BE TEM THE

Tree krcwdeige of the stafl who deall with wou B35 Td%H T

Thas baved of courteny of fhw stall who deall sith you e [ s

Tha cpusilty o inbarmation pryvided by the strlT who deall with you . ™ ok

Fawn fn =20

UtilityPULSE . i
e Z

The customer gardce represenialive’s rale is essenliml fo eMectively handing cusiomer
ssuesfinodentsiprablemaoguests. Having & sailad, eined representafve B vill for 2 pasiive
cuslomer exparience when & cusiomes decides to make contact.  Respondents whia did have conlact
wilth a wslity represantaiiva within the last 12 manihs wene ssked about ther overall safisfactian with
thal expaiience.

Chwarall satinfection with mosd recent experience

Top 2 Berus: vy fairty eadisfnd
Bxsa oo IRproR e e W

This year we asked respondants 1 approximale (he fime since Meir most recent contact.

Approximamen of hew M0g Bg0 Most recesd eonlac] wes mids

24 monihs sga S
T2 manths sgo e

40 monihs pgo )
3 o lean monkia §go T
I e e T e e e e
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Cusamears value speed and responsivaness espacially 38 11 ralales to eciing problams.  The mome
BexBAly you'rs bl o offer and the mofe empowarment given 0 empiovees. e beller sbls
empioyees will be 1o meel those "spesd” and “reaponshenass’ requirements. Customers benalll, fog,
when amplayees are able o resohve problem ssues "on e spol” mstead of having bo “talk o my
manager”

SATEFACTION SCORES — B b CuBk * satistaall

Hallona Froblesss Bolvad Problipes et Solved

Top 1 Boxes; “very + Ry solisfied’ % % 5%
£

Blutiom 3 Roxss: Taidy + vary Sscabefied E5

TR (R RPN ZETY R A ra Y

Empawerment |5 the backbane of the servca recovery principle. In the face of aror or problems, scling
guickly and deckshety, bedng empowened and luming & dasatisfied cuslomer intd @ salisfied one lends
to hava & posiihee impasct

UtilityPULSE S i

urm I3

Customer Service
wieass L F i

% r L) sy TR
[+ BAR
an
| - P ‘ Ak
i |

Phemellvek Thetre Risck Taehepkdesy Thebsowedpeof  Theled ol Themuaingo!
TO ARy wrneane iodesl of the riafl whe  them®wbs  couriesy of e il i el P

sErmECan with yass deslipdPyos  dealiwith vsu il whedea®  provided by e
el vl sladl who deait

| wik g

B a1 WO e A 751 Qi

Bafafacilon with Customis Bordles

The: tima & 658 1o confact someane Eo] o 4%
T B (8 fock somesns fo deal with poor prekism T R 7%
The helphulness of Thi SINT who dasil with you 0% M 2%
Tert: bnvvwileciigas &f Ao SLATT wiv daall with you BO% BT 215
T Mﬂﬂl:“wﬂu}dﬁllh‘ﬂv‘hﬂ;ﬂ‘mﬂr B ot A%
Thay qusdity of inforeaiion prosided By e st who desl wish you e L 21%
e I Wi e L8 T613 ddabme
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Impostant stirikssivs which shape pereopilons aboui serdoe quakiy

s rodats i el Inmn W oy = T .
Trusbid i frustmontiny company % 3% Bau
R d In thm b E5R LEg Ed¥
Providee goad valis 1o misiig M = 1]
Cumiomur4ocused and frasts cusiomers as o they'ra valiied L] T ke ]
Dusls profassinnally with oustomens' probiems 85 B‘H E.'f_
I8 & eamparsy (hsl B sy fo do business with* BES, B2%: Biw
wulﬂllﬂll_lﬁllhdmm BIS Hi% BZ%
Provides information and ipols &5 kalp manage ainssrcey H% o B
Addeois wall to chanQes in cusiumer g2 potiaticns BN TA% an
Diedlvers on (ta anrvice commitmants o sustomes N N i
| Lbay -mﬁ;im—.r'— when gnmpleting wark N =N L -

The service expeniancs has & prafound impact on custamer service scores. The data shaws & dinact
cormelation batwpon & vary salisfed cuslemer experiencs shd the rmlings given across all s :
messures of customes senvice: While thens ana & lot of fings wilitias cannal coniral, ane [hing ey SRNEE
can controd (3 the gqualily of service they provide. i

UtilityPULSE - — 3

dur 053

Bill payers’ recent problems
and problem resolution

Caileges and biling problens, we eal e e "Kiler B's”, fhe bwo issues that ame most lkoaly {0 cals
grief 1o ulilify customers.

At ane time, i the power wend off |
T i ek e Blackout or Dutage Problams

il i i in the last 12 months

incomveniant.  Howevar, wilh e Patnal, 4T%
onsel of computers and smart
gpplances  in homes and
bissMBEEES, B powear outage is now

CHEL, 35%
unbeatable Customes hava e Cnlara, ¥k
falecsnce for ER irdarmuplion in Beir . M
o of alectricty, = i 3
ann

Gawr 19Rleriprde T
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Wnis biackouts are rere esch one has the posantial of affeciing thoussnds of peaple. Think of the
thousangs of factinall 1ens 8t Super Bowl 3013 wha sal n darkness for 38 minules

Beskies tha mere inconveniznce an culage creates, econamic ioss & & pincpal concern. Typlcally
during an culage, employees are unatie o do their work because computers and other equipment are
rat able 1o operale An culage theseiore causes an employer o pay wages o ide amployeas,
patertially causas empioyars 1o deal with overtime wark $o clear the backiog crealed by e dawn ime.
Outages also could polentialy hraaten e by inlesfating wih he operalion of Ifa-support equipement
e those requiing lile-suppon equipment Le. ventialors Sor Mose aficled with paralysis (alihough
ihese instances would be rene and uncommean, the nsk and posansal isbiity do awal),

DOmspite 8 utdiy's best efarts, hare will be limes when the posar goas off,

Ferconisge of B denis indicating fal thay Rad 3 Backoo
ar £ In he lwst i3 seoatia

913 % 41 1

iz ; e =

P - 4¥E e

i 2 5% i
Rt TAalrmeerair

UtilityPULSE - — - 31

e 2013

Fallabdity of sarvice neede to be absays given primary imporance by electrs ubility systems. Redabiity
o @ customer means that powar mede available (o them is fauil free and e oulsge o Interruplione
are bolarable and do nof dishuh thedr ‘normal ke, Cuslomer salisfaction can ba mproved through
prowiding betlar quality power in lesms of vaRage and frequancy Ructuations and reliability by reducing
outnges.

A "pEn poinl” SLCh B8 A power oulage which will causs prief and could anger some customens will
impact customar— salisfacion soores.

Favorakls i Mo el Al Hak

Even though autages can have a negafive impact on salisfaction, uility providers who manage hese
inciderts properly-by praviding sufficiently dalailed infoemalion abaut e outage and nestaring powar
when they say they wil-may be able (o miligale decines, ar gven Improve salisfaction.

UtilityPU/LSE — 3
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For most cLstomarns, Beir bl 18 tha only thing they ses (o pay attenfian 10 fom their wility provder. 1
fat anly ieils them how much io pay, |t documents their senvice usags, breakdewns lhe varous
chiarges and pravides cantacl infarmation for customer service. As the principall form of commurication
batveaen & ulilty and i cusiomens, ulilities cannod underestimate e importanoe of billing.

Winen it comes fo bifing, customans axpect man-calect dellvery. Cusioman Sxpect |imily and accirsts
Gilkrge which (hay wndaetand. Iinoemact inlormation, misaaloulated baisnces, bills thal arg oo dfficul
o understand resul in fime legged by your CER'a as wel as dissalished customers. improving biling
Aaclivilies has an immediate impact on $e revenus streams of @ ulilly, in 1Brms f cosls associaled wilk
managing call cantar appicaliong

Billing Probbems in the last 12 months
WCHEC  mMatiesal  wOstario

1
- :
il

Sane iz poodes

Utiﬁt}'FULEE — — N 1%

e 203

et
] Indizating thes they hed a Biling ==
o I thas lasl 13 mornilis
013 0% BH 0%
i g 2% 13%
—am E He T
i = e 128
Ho: 1ial mapendoia 1| o 4 parsemes ol b worven wome
Typas of Bl Probdems ’
Thi amount oo wis leo high Ll
The bill wes difficuti o understand I:I-!i_
Complalad dbdul fnles of Shargaa 19%:
T b arrived lxie %
Metes i tarmimats &%
B DskEppad bl A%
Tha paymen mads was ged | Ly 3N
e - = T
we
UtilityPLILSE a
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As Il reistes o problems, ihe Kiler &5 — Problems other than Dutages and Billing
Bills and Elagkouls 6l occupy lop ranking
= whie mowngisating up & new anooink,

wCHEL
EE]
mainlensnce repairs,  high  bills,
Infarmatian on pricng, SMART mebers %
and erergy consenvation ang issuas which
Blso contibute o @bourd call-centre -

Oilier prohienm

CL s Clvimris

Bune il mipmesen

A customer who Nas expanianced a8 probilem of unfavourable servics sxpanence may sprean negative
wird-ahmouth comemunication. White peopla have long complained aboul service providers in affing
mesiing places such 82 wak lunch rooms, or socal gathenngs, todays social rebwerks snd anline
disoussian forums mean such gripes ofen resch & considerably wider audience,

By understanding ihe comglaint prosess and customer complaim behaviour, a ullity can leam how &
feduice Ihe impact of an unfavourable Bervice Experance o complsing

Dur 1% yaars of research comoboretes the notion that customer dssatisfacion and the handing of
SAfvcE recovery are key indicafors of customer lowaly A eomplaint allbws the ulisty jo ablsin

UtilityPULSE

custemer feedback fhal is useful in making improvements b incresse cuslomer satisfaction and
foally. EReclive reachutian of cuslomer problems can have a pesitive Impact on cusiomers' frus! and
commimenl. The complaint Randéng process Iherefore, (s & series of critical “moments of tuih® in
malntaining and develcping custoenes relaticnships

T af Reap with p other than biling or pewer cidages in S [Ek 13 monbss

Tea %

e 1% 95 e
‘Eamr izl mmposdarn
Farceniage of Reagondenis wio contacied ther ity and et thie profiam scived in ihe kst 12 momna

Mo 20 1% Bl
Bona: iy reszancerin
Uliiges need o ensure hal their cusdomes complainb'sendice recovwsry processes & made 1o be mare
responsive and pmactive. CSRs need to ba capable sncugh o meet the gowing demend of
Informasion conscious and lech savwy cusiomers, Evary minuie counds when B cames & complaings
baing valcag wilh !e akd of social media,

UtilityPLILSE
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Bi%

Provides consistent; miishio enangy CLk] B
Balbvmra an s servica commitments bs cusiomers B [ %
Ageurals Bliing ETH 5% 4%
Dubzkly hasdien mtsges and restares powsr N B %
Makes shoirscly safoly a lop prisly S0 Lik] EI%
l]mn-)unlbltlluumlpuuknmwu“_m = 1Y E-1 TN
| affcient at handling the hydre-sieciric sysiams = B ot TI%
| Is @ company Ehai Is "samy b0 do besiness wiil' [0 = 0%
Oiparalis & coal affaciive Bydra-slacinG sysiem 5% T1% 5%
'leﬂrt::l.} presides fucalant quality services 7% B I

Ema diin (2o Fia 11201 3 MRS FIEm (oas At Td B wl 18 e

Techapiogy |8 considerad by many m the slecticity utiny industry 1o be bolh & Blessing and & cunss.
Cinane hand, tha LOC {and other service providess) can benefit from ambracing techinoiogy b reduce
caBts end hopslully improve serace thamby, puting control ik the hands of the cusiomer, On the
othar, when the problem has ol been sohed ar is handied poordy, technology cen emable ihe
cusiomer's dissalistaction o go virsd — the Impact is an owerall safisfaclion wilh cusiamers as wel as
empiyess.

UtilityPULSE - o

June 2013

Customer Experience
Performance rating (CEPT)

How for 2013 s he Customer Experience Pedomance rating (GEFR. Every
touch poind with cusiomers on the phone, wabsite or in-persan influences whas
cusiomars fink and feel abeul the afganzation. The kay B handling every
incevichial @lamant of BN indaraclion with a cuslomer so that he'she feals good at
Ihe end of the whols interaction and the uliity schieves &s business objeciwes.

Greal gxpanences occur when all lunctians af the arganizafian align with ane
analher b achieve the oulcomes your cusiomers seeh. A good cuslormer
experience alats with understanding what your customers cane aboul most and undarstanding which
pramises ang mosk ImpoetaEnt 0 your cushomes.

A2 1ha heart of tha CEPr & 4 canlral quessans:
Arg irteractions with (ha ocrganizalion professional and produdive?
=I5 lhe organization ‘easy o deal with'?
- Does Me ongenization effectively meel your needs?
Daes the anganizaton provide high quaily serdces?

UtilityPULse “
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Some of the factors which contrbule 1 the averall Customer sxpanisncer
- Debvenng accessiblg and conslElent customer sandce
- Understanding cushomer sxpectations
- Maingaining limely resalution limeines ) 3
Providing effective communication(s) according io LA

GlEtamer noeds i
- Demonsiraling responshansss +
Spending up probilem resciufion !
- Carducting progiem analysis (o prevent recuming ﬁﬁh - i
imsuing. il —
=

- Easy b oo business wilh
Seching customer feadback ard foliowing rough on ecommpndations.

Customar Expariance Par Fabiag (2E8r

GEPr: &l eapandesis BT
! CEFF Aeriks Wi feva Etwir iy BI% TI]"I;. %
[ CEPr; mapandanls wio haya nor contacted el sty ik A BE%
[
li ¥ 45
June 3003

The CEPr {all reeponcients] far CHEC Group = 87%. On the surface Hhis rafing appesrs o be Wy
high {and il is). Bul put e raBing In contaxl - il would mean that a very large majority of customers
hava a befief hat they will have a good o cxcelent expenence deeling wilh & CHEC Group
prafissional  Howewer, the balence of responderts ars nat anficpating a good 1o exceilsnl
axperiencs, and as such couid be more chaillenging 10 sarsa.

While an exoelignt Fransackon todey creales & posilive expernence ioday, the percaption created s thal
fulure ensactions wil be excedent oo, which Is how you wanl your cusiomers to fsal OF coursa a
regaiva transaction creales the parcenlion thal fulure transactians will be negative. The key then is o
emphasize proglem sesolution with B "one call mindsel.

Tea impacl of Vary SetlaSad or Vary Dissatistied expariances on some op erational stiribetiss

Crvnrall Ses

Provides cormistens, relinbia anergy

| s ettiziant ot Faning nyero-aletric systama
Drvarall the uslitly proves sxcoliont quadty services
Exmm [ wrcer I A NI TR T iy

Uliﬁtj’-'—‘[.l'f. SE -_— a8
Jure 2013

Delfvers on (2 sarvices commibmanh o cusiomen B
Acourats biliey Ban
Qulckly Pandies curages. snd feslires powar =
Wakes eiocirioky safety & top prioity %
Lisin resp busimags practioes whisn completing week B

)

L Y




Collus PowerStream Corp.
EB-2012-0116

Responses to Interrogatories of
Board Staff and Intervenors
Page 220 of 375

Filed: August 21, 2013

Customer Engagement Index
(CEI)

The Lliig#PULSE Cusiomar Engagement Indes (TEN) is & melriz desgned o get a more in-depth book
&1 the attachmant & customer has with your LDC and s brand.

Witmal is Custarner Engagemand?
Ask 10 pundils, expets of academics abaut the definition of cusiomer engagement and you will nal gl
a oonsistent answer,  UyPULSE has been researching this tapic for the past 2 years and we have
found ihat lhere sre d basic bypes of definiions associaled wilh e e called cussomer
engagemant”, Here are iha basic lypes:

1= Pasticipation in programs o sanice offenings

- Pro-pefive “reach-aif” [0 cusiomens:

3 Cuslomar layslly

d- Hore customers (hink, fesl and sct fowsnds e anganization Bal sarves them

Ultimaitely, ona has o decide IF cusiomer engagemerd is @ pragram, or @ culcome? Basic types 1 4.2
45 shown above would suggest thal engageman! (s & program. Types 3 & 4 are ouisome based
defiritions, Drensing froen our 25+ yeis of expesicncs working with enlerprisas in boh he private snd

UtilityPULSE - S — o
o 2113

publc demaire, we befieve that basic twes 1 8 2 am oo simplistic &nd lerd io be efficency
moasurements. VWhereas types 3 & 4 ane mane valuabio to the argenizaton especially when & key
carpofate gaal |s o creata an operationally efective place to do business with, essenlizlly thay se
aifeciveness and oulsames oienled maasurements,

Your Anmual USlilyPULSE survay tracks & cusfomers willingaess to canlinue o do business, and
willingness 1o recommeand their ocal wility. Throwgh a combination of calculations Me end resull is a
Cuslomer Loyally indax. That i, Me numbsr of custamers that are At risi Inciftarerl, Favaurssis,
Gecure.  The goal of every enterprise cught to be e ctealian of more Secure and Favourabie
cushomess. We believe that hagh levels of customar engagemant comelale sirongly 1o bigh levels of
Secure and Favourable cuslomer numbers,

Wia ballewe 1hat 8 cuslomer-ceriic definilion of engagament is mone veluable e indhiduals, eams and
ewetifives in an LDC for dalermining whal needs fo be dane io ensure thet the ceganizaton is
auGcessful kday and successil again monow — In & changsd workd,

Engagemant s how customers think, feel and scf fowards the orgamization, As such, ensuring
Ihal eistomiers fespond in a posiiive way requiras thal they are ralicnsily safisfied with the ssrices
provided AND amalknaly conmected 1o your LDC and fis brand. Tha more frequanty and conssienty
an crganization’s procsusts 8nd sandces Can cannect wilh & cusiomer, espedally on &0 amotional lavel,
the slrongér ard deepar the custamer becomes angaged with e crganizalion.

UtilityPLLSE S .
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‘What does an engaged customer look ke

Uiy PUILSE hes idenliied the six key dimensions of wihal = i ?
dafines ciesiomer angagement  They are: empowsned,
vaued, commecled, imspied, fdune  onented  and Wﬂ_ 2 ﬁ
parformancs crianbsd
aivion == —&=
= Daes the uilily allow ther customers o fesl
empowared about Thewr Inleraciions with e company and decisicns affecling Seir sleciicily
sage
= Does the uliily give customens the sange of being valined
= Doss the ullily at in veys which allows cuslomers 1o slay connected
* Do cusbamens get inspired by the way the wtilly conduscts business.
= s Ihe ULy fmswas Binking erabling cuslomers io be fulire orented
+ Doas tha willly conducl operstions in such B way thal customers befeve thal they s iy
performance grierted In achieving geals and resuls

Ullimy Custoosar Enpagamend isdax (CEN)

e 10k | (eRpGaaEE

UtilieyPuese E— pr

o 201

UtilityPULSE Report Card®

Simufs LEliyPULSE Reporl Cero® is based o teng of thousands of cuslamer nlendews gashered
ouer fiftsan yoars. The purpcss of the UNIRyPULSE Repont Cand® is 40 provice alecine ullias with a
snapshot! of performance = on the things that cusiomers deem o bo Impodanl. Aesearch has
dardfied over 20 efiibules, soried inlo i topic calegarias fwe cail thess deivers), St customens have
used in describe fheir utlity when they heve been salisfied or very salisfied with their ulity. These
alfributes farm the nucleus, or base, from which "scores™ are assigred.  Cusfomer salislection and
Ity al6o play & major roi in the caloutalions.

Thare are wo main dimensions of e UINPULSE Repot Cand™ the first s Customer payehe and the
olher iz Customer perceplions about how the wilily execules #s busess

Tha Peyche of Customers.

Evary ufilily has wriualy the same rasponsibiity - prowide safe and reliable slediicity = yed not all
cusiomers ane the same, Tha foliowing charl shows. the wedght or slgnificancs of each eslegary Lo Lhe
custaimer when famming their overall impression of the ulitly, Three major emes, sech wilh b major
calegoeies make up Me UEHyPULSE Repert Cad™. in efiect e Rener Card provides feedback abaut
your cusiomers' percephion on fhe importance of each calegory end driver — Bg | releiss 1o the
benchenark.

UtilityPULSE 55
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UtiliyPULSE Report Card® for CHEC Group

u E ompuay
Image

~ Managaman
Cpemtions

[eeps——

The UtlilyPULSE Repant Card® sles pravides customer parceptions abaul how your uliily executes or
perfoms Hts respansitiiiss. This is dflenen, very cierent, Irem wisd 8 customer might say abeat a
magal concem of worry that they have about eleciricty, As our survey has shown since Hs inception
fhe primany suggestion for improwemeant is “reduce prices’, which s alsa a major conoem which your
cuslorms. have about municipal fEees, as Tor he vahick, and othar uliities

Readters al this report should nale that the calegones and drivers se mierdepender, Which moans
mat, for exampla, fallure 1o provide hgh levels of power quakty and relabilly will have a negative
Impact on cuslomer pereeplions as |E refsles lo cuslomer sendce. Cuslomer came, when il doesa'l
mee| cusiamer expectalions has a negative impact an Company image, etic.

UtilityPULSE -— o

Juno J013

Defining tha categories and major drivers:
Calagory: Cusbomear Cars

Drivers: Price and Vakoe; Cusfomar Bervico

Juigl becausa sveryane e good custormer care, that inand by f=e, 5 not a reascn lo prowide /=
ficugh it may be impordant o do &3 W0 Righly campalilive indusires good customar servica may be &
differentialing facior, The cersa for sleciric uliilies is simpla, high levals af cuslomer cane result i less
work (hence cosl) of freaponding 10 custamer inguires and higher kevels of scceptance of the ulifty's
=ctians.

Price and Value:

Cusfomars have 1o purchase aleciricfy bacause Iie and lifestyie depend on it This driver measures
cuslmar parcaplions as bo whathes the tolal costs of eleciicity represant good value and whesher the
ity is aeen as warking in he best inlerests of = customers &3 & redales io kesping costs affordabie

Cugimmaer Sarce

Guslorniens do have neess and every now and 2gain have o inlarace wilh their uliity, How the ulikty
handies various cuslomers requests and conceeTss is 'whal this driver is 21 aboul.  Promplly enswaning
naquides, providing sound Infarmation, keeping cusfomers informed and doing %0 In & professional
mannar ane e major componants al this driver.

UtilityPULSE 52
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Categary: Company Imago

Drivers: Company Leadership; Corporate Stewardshin

LAilGes nava B0 Image even I they do nof urdariake any activilies o iry 1o build it

A pompany's image is balh a simple and complex concegl. B 8 simple DecEuse CHMDERES (o cress
mages al ane easily destribéd ard recognized by $heir larget customers. B s comples bacauss |
lakms many discrebe efements o creele an imege which inchudes, bul & nol limlied o advertising,
markeling camenunicalions, publicity, serdce offering and pricing

An aleciric ullly irying 10 manege its imape has ome more challenge © deal with, and thal & the
eleciric indusiry itlsel. Thare are 52 many players e residantial cuslomers [in pasticulary dan't know
wha doss whal or whe is responsible for what  So when therm are poliiical or reguistony
anrauncements, the iocal uilily is oflen sweplup inlo the collective reactian af fie poputalion

Company Leadership
This dnver is comprised of customar perceplions s (i relates 1o industry leadeship, keeping promises
and being & respecied company in fhe commun iy,

Corporate Stewardship
Cuslomens rely on eisatiziy and wand io know that Sheir utility is both & frusted ard credible
organization el s well mansged, is accountable, is sacially responsivle ang has its Snancial houss in

arder,
UtilityPULSE — — - 3
F k]
Category:  Managemand Oparations
Drivars: Dparafional EMectivensss; Power Quality and Reliability
Hlatirical power is the primary produc which ulilies provide Lheir custemers and, they have very high
expeclations hal the power wil be there whon they need il Cushomers hawe Blie |Merense oo
oulages  The deality is, evesy ubilfy has to get this pad nght .no secuses, & s $oowsliy's cons
business. This category and 15 drivers eng chasrly e most impomant for (ufilling (he raiional reeds of
& ubility's cushemers.
Operational Effectiveniess
This drser messiines cushoma s’ percoplions as thay reisde to ansuning That thelr ullily rune smoathly,
AftriGiuies BLch 880 accurale biling and mebsr reading, completing sarvica wark in a prafessional and
fimefy mannar and maintaining equipment in good repair ane deemed 8 important b customears,
Fower Quaily and Refalilin
Power outages are a facd of Wa — Brd, customers know 1 They expect Meir ullily o provide
cangislent, relabie energy, hande cutages and resiore povwer quickly and make wsing eleciricity safaly
an important pracdly.
UtilityPULSE - 4
Jure 20E3
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As the UtlilyPULSE Report Cand®™ shows, the tolal customer axperience wih an sleciria uliilty =
defired a5 more then “keeping the ighls on®. Customers deal with your ulility every day for a vanety of
rasrons, most ikely bacause they necd samadans 13 help ham sclve & problam, Shewel 4 quesion or
toke fher arder for sandce. All your empioyess, rom cuslomer serice epresantativas 0 linemen,
leanea & lBaling imp on fhe o they intaract with, i effect there are many momerits of
truth, Moments of inuih are every cuslomer lpuch peint fhal & ullily has with their cuslomers
Thesedore, managing Lhese moments of truth creates highar ievals of Secura customars whilie raducing
Ihe nuamber of Al Risk cushomeans that exisl.

I's ke amnall Bhings dane consistanty thad matter; Things tke grealing every customer, whather on fhe
phone oF in persan, in e ireEndy and heiplul mannes, Things §ke istning 1o the customer’'s neecs,
jproviding solutions fo thak prablems and showing appreciation io-the customer for their business.

For commanicasion, ullilies now Mecognide custams communicafions 88 3 valuabls aspedd of their
business. The befer a ulllily communicaies wilh cuslomers, in 8 mannar 1hal speaks 1o them, the
more salishied (hey are with thell overall serace. “Sanding out infarmation” s nat the same a5 having 3
“corvarsation” with 8 cuslomer,  We Believe Ihal Il ls incressingly imporand lo channe! yoeir
commanications ba the varois customer sagments which axisl.

Obroysly emplavess — In every anes — play 8 anlical ms in cuslomer servee suooess. Consequently
hiras they feel about their job respensbiEies and role in ha company will be communicstad indirectly
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through the level of service which they actually provide cusbomess wilh whom ey inberacl. The nealiy
s angaged empioyees 8re e key 1o excebent customer carm:

Our survay work wilh empioyees shows that there ere maeny elements af &n anrgerezadional cufture in
suppar! Ihe peopla model neaded o achisve high levels of engagement. Our research has idantified &
mBin ofivers ital promale and SUpport pecple ghing Meir best fesing empowered, valued, balonging,
inspired, growing and performance anenled. There arg 12 key processes from “alvscing amployoes”
to “saying goodbya fo emplayees” hel are pa of your people mode! fo get the best perfomance from
BYRIY BMpiopes.

Whe befieve ihal laking e Sme o uncenstand the difenence beb emplayne isfaction and
argenizalionsl eulidre i worbwhie from @ resourcing perapective amd Tram & people develapment
perspeciva,  Evary organizalion has a cullure = we balieve that it is a leagership Imperadve o install
and mainiain a culture that ensures hat you etlain fie achisvamants and successes of your ulily's
mary Fvesiments in people, technology and sguipmand.

UtilityFULSE — 57
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The Loyalty Factor

F & customer is satished, |t doedn neces=anly mean ha or
sta & doyal.  Safisfaclicn  js  abeul  fulfiling
promisesiexpectatians; lovally geas way beyond (hat by
cragtng  exceplional  expesiences  and  long-laskiing
relaticnships. Thare is @ rassan wiy markeling campaigns
slfive 0 buld brand joyaly, nol brang  eslisfaction
Measiving cuslomes oyaly in on indusirg whare mary
cuslomers don't have & cholca of providens dossn't make
wanae O doms jitF

The ansaar depends on how you defing “customes ioyalty.*
Privals industry aften equates cusiomer oyally wilh basie custarres retention. B a customer canfinues
to de Dusineas with & company, thal susiomer is, by dafinition, considensd 1o be loyal. IF this defirlion
wene appied 1o many comganies in the uliity indusiry, all customens would autometcady be
corsidered loyal. As such, measuring customner loyaily would appeer 1o be urmecessary.
Kalural manopolies (ike LOCs) ane not really déferent in what thay should measure axcepl that trying
Io determing which customers afe “logal™ or "8l nek” i not about thair future behaviour but mana about
Ihesr “atiitudinal™ loyaly (ano thay advecates?).
UtilityPULSE : 5
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Pemaps a befler or mone ralevant way for ulifies o spproach the definition of customar loyalty is o
funhes expsnd how they think about loyalty. Corsider the lofowing definbion: Customer loyaly & an
Emolong disposon on ihe parl of the customer that afects the way(s) In which the cuslomer
[consistently) ineracts. responds of nescls owards fhe company = its products & sarvicas amd s bramd.

So what does il mean Io respond favourably 1oa company? A1 B besic leval, this can mean chaesing 1=
feMEn @ cuslomer. As prewously mantioned however, Tis & essentially a non-ssus for many Wity
camparies. I hen becomes necessary fo think beyond jusl cusiomer retention. One nesds fo
consider othar ways in whizh cuslomens can respond favaurably Soward a company.

Uthar lavourehle responses ar behaviouns can be ciassiled into ona of three celegonies fad rellect the
conoepl of cusiomer oyelty
. Parlicioe
GCompliance ar Influance
+  Mdvocacy
mwunrmlpmmmmmmmmuummmez
Signing up for prograns thal kel the custamer mduce or manage their energy
consumpton
= Using he ullity a5 & consulant whan salacting erargy producls and servisas oma
hirdd party
Participatng in pilat programs or researnch sludbes

UtilityPULSE — — "

June 2073

smmmmﬁalwmmmmmmtmwmmmmm
includsa:
+  Seelong he ullty's advice or axpedise on an energy-relabed Issus
+  Moluntarly cutling back on eleclricity usage if the Uilily advised the cussomar o do 5o
+  Ancephng Ihe ullily's energy advice or refarmats i energy conlreciors or equipment
*  Baing influenced oy the uidity's apirion régarding enengy- manggemen| Bdvics, equipmend, or
techralogies
= Providing persanal information that anabies the ullity iz beter serve e cusiomer
= Pasing bills onfine
Crmaling cusiomar advocstas can be espacialy impanant for & company in 2 regulriad incustry, In ha
absenca of cusiomer advocales, or worse, in 3 situation whese cushomsars spesk unfavourstly abaut a
company o eclively work o suppon Bsues that are coumler 10 those The COmpeny suppans,
ompenies can suffer a varely of negatve consequences lie increasad business oosls, Bwsuits, Nneg
and corstruction delsys. For 8n eleclic ulilty, spacific examples of potenlial advacecy bebayviour
Inclodar
Supparling the uliliy's positions or ecliona an ensrgy-related public ismes, Including tha
T T
= Supparting ha ulilly's posilian on the bealion and canstruction of faciitias
Prevwiding lestmonfals abaut positive axpediencas with the uliily
In sum, foyal Behaviour in e Wity industry may nol be as evident as @ is in & mors campstithe
erironmant Maasunng cusiomer loyally in & geraraly non-compatiive indusiny requires coe o think

UtilityPULSE &0
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about loyalty = nan-tradbionsl waye. Customer loyaly is an inlangible assel thaf has possive
CONSSqUEncEs of oulomes assoclated wish it no matier whal the industry. Prapery measuring kyally
among Utity customers requines theughthil probing 1o thoroughly iontiy tha rmnge of pariispation.
compiance, and agvoCcacy bahaviours hal wik ultimabely benefit the company in meaningful ways, and

Toaber happier and more loyal cuslomess,

The UtlilyPULSE Customer Loyally Parormance Score Begmenis
cusiomers e four groups: Secure - the mosi loyal - St
Favorable, Indifferent. and At rigk.

Secdre cuslomers are “very safisfisd” owerall with their local
eiciicity ulility. They have a very high emolional acannection with
their ity and getiniiely would mcommand heir local uliity.

SHl Favorakls sl sre “vary salished” ovarall *dafinitely® or
“probably” woild recommend their focal uliiity and not swilch i they
ooulid

IndiTfarent cuslomers are less safsfied overali than secuna and s6il-
tavarsbla customers and less inciined lo recommend Ibeir local
wliléy ar say thay would nol swiloh,

At risk customers, who are “very dissalisfed” with their slecincy

ulisty, “definfel” would ewilch end “definilely® woold et |

Loyaity |s driven primarily by a company's
Iminraciian with s cusiomes dod how wall
1 dollvers oo thelr wants and noeds,

Customer Loyalty Model

Elmain
et ]
=

Loyalty |5 based on Ekelihced to:

R T S
= GoMMIMENE CONGNUE 45 § CAsner
= AovDrary: willagoess i recomimned

recammend il
D —— 61
Ame 2013
Custamer Layalty Groups
CHED
2013 N 1% 5% %
312 -
ok -
0 . - .
S TR eI 11T R ) R B R sarvy i
The Loyalty Factor
HCHIC ENatianal Qi
&2
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2013 2% 15% 51% 1
2012 20 135 =% 1o
i 7% 13% % o
2D FELY 2% 2 T
Mamcoal
Fg ] 0% L TR 10%
me B b AT 114
o FLY 45 #EE 12H
014 (70 4% L5 i
| g E—r————
P k]
Jurs 304
Secune customens' peperences and parcapbens are distinct from thase af Ird erant customerns. Thes
I yal an evan grasles gap betwwen those idenlified &8 Secuna versus Al Risk,
+  Problems ans ewparienced and remain uoresoived far mone often by e Indiffenent or At Rtk
segiments in comparisen fo ofhers. Thes I8 nof an unususl inding.
+ Oihar areas of inberaslion alss rewealed conskersble diferemces among the segmenis
Caoraistenly, Secure custamers’ percepions ame mos! positva,
I=partan| sfinbubes which shap precepthe ibeo ceslomar affinity
Custemar fedused and trasts customons as if hey're walued 0% an% L1k
la pre-aclive In communicating changes and lsaues wiich may afleci custemars. 2% B4 S
Dants p sdorually withs cuss ! jpnakd: SEW L] 0%
Wiorke with cuSIOMEFS Db Nesp heif anemy coats afsrdable T L) A0
‘Diulzkly dials with meusa thet afect customars BA% 6% BlRE
Delhvara on 2 service commitments o cusioman A% BT% BT
Proiden information and ieols io help e eltts|cRy » B¥% [ E1%
In ‘nesy to o business with' a5% ey %
Admpis wall 0 ehanges in P e B1% %,
Tha eoal of ¥ In whan compared io oifier udities 65% B %
Prayidan gwdullu_n:rp_r:fwrmp T BIEL b
Provides consistant rellabde ssargy 1% oo 0%
| Operaies & cost effelive hydro-alecric aysiem TSN B1% 4a%
Orwarall tha sty prevides sacellenl quality sardloes LIk = i
Fom Az w Fal 017§t ss o Fo s (RO T W8 Sy
B4
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Customer commitment

Custamer layally is a erm that can ba used 0 embrace 3 range ol cusiomer Custamar Loyafly Mol
attiluces and bahaiours. One of the metrics used & gauge loyaly is he |, —
miesure of retention, of nsanton fn by BgEN; s kyaly sttude s lermed s
commitment. = |
Cuslomer commilmend B the local eleciricity supplier is'a very impariamt driver *mrr-;

ET--0

of cuslomer loyaly in tha eleciicily service indussry. n @ similar way o sl

cammilment is considared an imporiant Ingredienl i successhad relalionships. I smpler terms,
cammitmeant raless 1o the molivafion 1o continue o da business wik and mainlain & elaionship with a
businass parner Le the ocal wily,

For slecanc ulilies, 1hs maasuemant i sboul iganlifying the number of customens. who feal thel thay
“ward I ve "hawe Io° do business wilh you.  Polendial benefits of commiment may include ward of
AN COMmMUNICEEoNa - an imoortant aspect of atttudingl lopally. Commitag cusiomens have been
kneren (o demonsirate a number of beneficial bahaviours, fof mampls commiiad customers tend ioc

= Come ko you One of the key benefils of estabiishing B good level of cuslomer loyalty ks tha
customars will coma D you when ey fesad & product or serece.

UtilityPUL SE

= Waldale information recebved from 3 parfes wilh informafion and experiise that you hawa.
s Try new productsinBiatives

& Porhaps ey will aven inusl you wien recommendaions arm made.

= He more price loleranl.

= More recepiivily of wility viewpainls on various S5L8E.

= More inlerance of errars or issues et nevilably lake a swige at the ullity.

» Siongerlavels of perception neganding how (e ullify is mansged

Thisigh cusiomers can nof physically leave you, ey can emalianaly lesve you and when they do., it
Becomes B exireme chaliangs ta gamer their parlicipation or suppar for Lty [niliatives,

| Eleciricity cusiomers’ loyalty = .., ks 8 company that you would ke to corinue 1o 0o business wim

Top ¥ Boxes:
‘Bafinkindy + Probabily” weald contine

Definitely would oondonss
Progably would donlinue

Might oF migin nol cortisme
Probably wewid not cantims

Bl#|# 8 E| 3
SEEEIEE
2|E2E8 R

Diafiritaly would nof continus
T s TS
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Blustricity cuatomers’ loysly = . I3 § company Pl you woeds |k to contnss (o do businees wili

Top 2 baxes:
Tefintiely + Prodably’ woisld oot
[ S0 Irpume i 1 P 8 pasticipen © T B0rAp PRI

Would you continue to do business with your
local electricity provider ...

L mCHEC  Nathana) i Drlad i

TR OB N o o o
- S it —
Dwinheiyworld  Probablysseld  Bight ar reght et Proba by would nst Definhely seufd oo
| s andinue canlus ooy cardinem
—— ™ el wtivius e s
UtilityPULSE = : 81

Jurr 20k

Word of mouth

Adyocary is ome ol B merics masswed in determining Customer Loyalty Model
cusiomer loyally. Essenlially, companies beilove et @ ioyal | s e
cusiomer 5 ong that Is spreading the wvalue of e business 1o £ ‘J/
oihers, |eading new people bo the business and helping the @ I
COmpany orow, Cusiomer mefemalk, endorsemsnds  end 1

speeading $16 ward are Sxiramety IMpanan forms of cusiamer e

Eehaniour. For LDCs this =5 sbowt peneraling posifve referants abaut e LOC == a relevant and
valuable enfarprise,

When cusbomers ano iayal to & company, product oF serdce. they not only are mone likely o purchasa
fram Ml company again, bl ey are more lialy to recommand It i olhans - o openly share fher
positve fealings Bnd exponsnces Witk alkem In joday's world, thanks to the
kel ihey can tell and influance milicns of people, That equalss bo new
customers and revenue. The same hokds frue, IF not more, when cusiomers are
disloyal. Disgruntied customars could share Mmeir negative expesienoes wilh an
evar-widening audiencs, jeapamdzing 3 company's repulstion and resulling i fewer
Engeged cuslomers andior cushomers who are Favourable o Becura, Secure
cusbomaers. typically are advocales and they ane daeply connecied and brand-invoived,

UtilityPULSE i



Thove am fes ees of word of mogih
which ulhtos aped fo uocaistand, [he
A v Evpodence Desed’ word of moath
Which i e mos! fommos sl most
Donyid B M msufs fom &
cnfomers Ses e Wi i
Wiy o° U me-slaismes of 3 oien
EAAATIE ST B M aSars,

The zpoond (5 Rolr-oaser word of
fndh,  ThE & whsn cCusiomog Dess
007 INDOTEN  SRERE 0 ofss
Gased o0 wha! ey A emed Bmogn
e moE  radtod  bens of
Vel For . e
uilly wad comeunTaing Ao ofer o
Yoe LED Pghis™ chanoes am bigh Ml
e offer will B ‘moyed” o olom
Ihw-:l'l;lnfmm
Fov an siacinis 1y, Speciic sl of

poleiful pomdve  aovocecy  Aebdvisar
e

W pou e me Y PO At O R RgTINE Wil L z 7 GHEL 5 f Oy

Ihar o ek ey fa & band or cok=ag

Would you recommend your local

- electricity provider ...
WiHED i Msbioaal i Omiaria
% 9y kiw

e

Defintedy wawld  Probablp woud  Might or might sotPrabasly vl ool Dolnitdy woald |
i i e 1

s \ I

Recommendng Mo offer o©

Utility?UL S

S IR RIS
Word of meuth camenunication is 3 very powerful form of comimunication and

influence, When cusomens ere 8peaking Lo offier cuslomars {or their paers) || i
mare credible, goes through less percaptusl ikars and can enhance the view of
SEMCHEE OF PIocucls provided betier than marke$ng communicalice,

Elsctricity custsmans' boyally — .. li a company thab you wsuld recemmend o & fdand or colisgun

Tq!buu:.' o 8% 15% 1%
Definkicly sould mcssmant 47% A 3
Protably woud recommend. % Es ] %
Might ar might not recommanid e 5h
Frobabily waidd finl fecarmmand pai Ll
Dafindtely would met recommend 1% . %

[

Elezirieily exnlomums’ loyalty - Is a companry thal you would recemniand ta & friand or colisague

o 7 boxes:

“Defisitaly + Probably’ wosld recemmend
S —

" e e

ET M

Eleciricity tamtomens’ loyaliy = i 2 company that you would seeemmnond 40 o frend ar colisague

D a1 MR 111 fe & ESTARESE O b ity yam
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Corporate image

‘Drganizalions ioday ane alvways undar scruling end have 1o corsider (he nealily AND percantion of thesr
imaga. In the simplest of ferms, haw you are sean by your stakehoklers is your carporate image and
reautalion. The comperate image iz 2 dynamic and profound afrmation of ke nature. culure and
structure af an arganization. This applias equally to corparations, businesses, governmant entlias, and
man-prodit organizations,

The corporate image communicales he organzston's mssion, the professionslism of s keadershg,
tha cafibar of ke employées and s roles wihin e merkefing enviranmen o paliical lendscape. Evary
arganization has 8 corporala image, whathar it wants ona or nal.

& companies surviva on e strengih of the relalionships ey
bulkd with their custormens. To buld and meinlain & corporais
Imags, & company' must express #s brand consistently in 8 wide
ramge ol ways including websdes, adverising and “miormalion®
malevials, bl glso custamer service, tha lock and layoul of he
warkplace and the way the company funclions as a whaola, Faiura
2 do lhkal can mean a businass oould, 81 warst, appaar fraudulent,
and gk bes! nol exploil e rand's patential

Uﬁlit}'FUf.Sf - —_ — Fal

Juine 213

When prapedy designed and maneged. comporabs image will accurately reflac! he level of e
organization's commilmant o qualty, sacelence and relalionships wih & varous siakeficidars,
nchiding customors, empaoyees, suppliens. partners, poverning bodies, and the gereral publc at erpe.
Ag 8 reaul, calperate image s @ criical concermn for euvery organizabion, one deserdng e same
atieriion and commilment by serfor managemand as any odher vils feaue,

Incredsingly. organizations have realized that the management of a strong positive imags wilh vanaus
glpkehokieds can be benafical Balow are some of ihe sfinbules measured = e srnual UEiyPULSE
survmy which are sirangly finked o a uliity's iImage

Atiribiies strongly Srked b0 @ hydra aillilys imags i

|18 2 ranpected company in the comsunirg ' ki L]
Maintains high standards of boainess sthies ke ki s
A lawter in promofing anevgy conservation Lo Bl B
Henps s 13 amere and the community B Lol B2
Bayond prewld and paying taxns, |5 socially responsis B ik e
b o Brustod and trustwordhy company B B3 kel
Adapls will s chenges bn customer sxpectalions % T4 TaH
I Swismy 1o i Biginess with' % % BTN
Crvmraif i ittty prevides pxaelent quatly serdees % BN % |
PP T ——— LI ——
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These afinbules measue different facets of reputalion such ss the exlent to which the company
providing excelland qually services, whelher the company & known as leager in ihe irdusly and
respaciad N the communily, how the compary defvers value, refable service and suppar, how Bha
camrpany efficienty manages is busingss, the company's epproach to making the world o botter place
- emironmanial gnd soacisl comeitments, and the emalional connection iha campany has will e
Rna

Penpla feal betier aboul themsehsas whin they baliewe Shey are daaling with an crganization that cares.
about "daing tha right thing®,  Today, beng 8 good comporals cilizen requires mare than business as
usLal, il reguires vestments in society and e environmant.

Dur research has shown when customens. sfinbute posilive feelrge 1o 8 uliity's corparie visual
wdanity systems, whan they think that markesing commurdcation activilies refiec corporale values, ard
when hay parcalve tha company & socially respanaible. they lend & dorm a favourable Image of hal
amgenization.  Our research also shows hat cuslomers pul mare

amgphasia onan LDC's brand smage as an influencer of sabstaciion and

loyaity foday than thay did 10-15 years ago.

3 4 3041
B8 0

UtilityPLLSE - "
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Corporate Credibility & Trust

M argantzalion o company can plunge frusl and credinfity @mong I8 cuslemens and sinkehsldens -
and sunive Bullding and maingaining credbility and confidence make up 8 dalbarabe procass that
DCCLTR DWar NUMEDUS Interactions usually over & long pamod of lims

Establishing st and credibifity, whether with business parners, cuslomers o regulsions, & not
achieved overmight. Crasting credidlly is 8 process, which sdvances only thraugh honest, continiaus
communicalian bebvean [ha wlikty, s regulalors, end he public & lege. Credible communicagions
&fa informed and nunured by difgend efiods an the uility's parl fo undarsiand the lepal and reguialory
framawork in which It oparates. Publc rus! in their local ufilily B $ie degres to which the public
bebeves |hal the ulilfy wil act in a paricular manner because the uliity has incorporated ihe pubfc's
intmrest into N5 own, Thie pultke insts the wSEly b produes sensstent and relatie slastrciby

Afirititia abiongly Brked ks o bydro ulilEy's magn

Cwarall the wiility provides sxceilent quallly sarvices BT s B%
| eeps s promises ko T iy s e i
Cust & anil freats a8 1 Bhay'ns walurs bl T T
I & druisbed mnd tnm bty il i i
i TR e L
.
UtilityPULSE 74
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Trust and credibilty can ba (hought of as ndicatars of the degree of
confidence stakahoiders have in your cigenizefion’s abiily o defwer
an s commitmands. Trust and cradibiity are culcomes basad on wha
wour uility actuslly does, not whal it might be doing,
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SamulLliliyPULSE meach shaws the wrde-
pinfing compenmis wistd isad cuslomics In
belien an nmanization has medibily and can
be mmmd ane  Xnowkdge  inlogrity,
Imentywearr e Trust

onowluoge s caphned by e ily's atlty 1o
demeonsirale ihal & s 2othvery awam of ndusTy,
gelalony ned ey wihin the
Indlosry and how Tase Mg mpest o o
of pusnmaE

Integrity |8 msstished by demensiraling
eshirance b & code of conduct I aguines
corestardly acling i aecerdancs wilh tha

vaues and goals Il hews  bean

oarmnicand |o cosfome

el = Ly | i
o (H

commyniiey p2 1 i@ an opporindy for et
looal Wity [0 K3 BT rescuttes and man-
power o benoll  peapls m M commenly
el Thiz helzs o Btuld credBily as
EURISMers sae o) e agEnizalon B oesng
and deskenng on IS comamdmeEis, The Migs
cusiomers regard the udlity wih estoom and
remcarl

Trist — Thsl & echivsd Fesugh & sk
meoaid of ponsisbant and relisbl poremanc,
defuenng on commiments and demonsTaled
ietiunatukty

TE

ey 2013

Lising the four sempenenis of demanstaling Credibdity and Trusi, B resulian index shows that LOEs
erjay B high level of credibility and sl As Benjamin Franklin esid, *| Ebkes many geod desds i buld

a good reputasion, and anly one bad one fa loga iL°

Thi ullily |5 sean &s Sarng

I dar e L]

33 P ; Bhosd weal iy
hagpening i e InCusing, and how CuSIDTEs Can Matecs GGk of Eaak Mane vilie

Intagrity

The ulily is soen a5 an orgardzabos el will B2 in e bes| ineresls of S coslnsan and cin
be counted G bo previde senvioes ond resoive probiemes in @ professiona |l manner

vl armant

cuslnTIa

The utlity is acteoly invelvod in ine INousTy, In Mo comBunly Bad i PGS Nl Btk i

Trest
Tha wskty m an siganumiko hil can be nasied and i warthy of mepes

Cyerall CHEC Group BT% [Dntars B2%; National B2%]
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How can service to customers
be improved?

Perceglion s @ cpinion aboul somelling viewsed and assessed and & vanes from customar to
cualonmer, &% every customer has different beileds fowands cerlain sanices and peoducts. i play an
Impartant role i delemining cuslomer sadsfactian,

Cusiamears are mare niocrmec, mos asane, moma conscous of whal's going on anound big Issues in
the world seound theny and in this age of inkemel and socal media, they soe bether equipped o
mfluence serviow qualty and optcomes. They have fsamed 10 compare producls ond services, 1o
gincument Brd mondar Suslisimer sandce and sabsfachon, and to reques] or gamand higher quaity,

Cumtymes safislaction s delesmined by e cuslomans’ parceplions snd expeciaSons of the guality of
he products &nd Services. In many cases, cusiomar paroeplion 15 subjective, bul it provides some
usalul insights for organastions fo davelop Ihalr markeling stasegies Just as in provious years,
respandents weee asked anoe again what thalr ulibty oo 9o 10 Improve serdice.

UtilityPULSE —— -
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And Wi ane indarashed i1 koowing wiral you fink are Ite ane or fwo masf impania things oo ipcs!
ubilly’ could do do Imgrove Sarves i their customers?

Ome or bwo moat Important things ‘your beeal wility’ could do 1o imgeove service

Baitar prloe B ralis

Improvelsim pdl Py foharn Py blling

Improva prwer reinni

Concems about SHART moters

Mutur . wiEh

Sisf relitad concerma

Information & ssaniives &5 erangy conseration

Remoye hiddan cosis on bils

Detier ondine presancs
Be mors afficinnt
L servica | 4 Eility of hypdro rep

Dezan'i chiege for peevioue dabi
PP T

AR IR AR AR AR RO R-RE
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SMART Meters & SMART Grid

Consumess ane used o paying dferent ameounts during differen limes of day in a vanely of settings. in
larger ciies, drivers pay more for parking when thera ts higher demand, such &s durirg e day o
during special events. Similary, some higiway tol charges ncwase duing commusing hours, while
drivers who drive aoross during off peak houne will saue money, Cusiomers sven acknowiedge thal
ey will pay mare for using their cel phone minvies duing weakdeys rather than mighls and
weakands

Demand for energy i poing up. Eramgy prices am dimbing, Whal are cusiomars o do?
Customers can respond 10 IncreaBes In anangy prices inons of 3 ways:

[1) eharging eramy usage belaviour,

2] Imvesting in enargy-using Iechnologies and practices, or

{2) making no change 10 Beir enengy usags,

Tims-at-use (TOU) pricing was designad %o rewand consumers who shilt their loag o olf-peak limes
Eleclicity rates on weakends and owermight are aboul half of $he oos! durng peak bours: This is
BUppoEad i be a0 economic mcentive far peapke 50 shif alectricty use 10 oll-pask hown.

Thare 15 & direct comalalion bebaesn custamer familianty with SMART motars and thair tavourable
views ioward the technolagy. Whila the majorily of respondents could idanlify they were on TOU

UtilityPULSE — »

Juns 20N

biling, a significant proportion were not in the know. Lack of krowiedge ks a real bamar io ultimase
acoaniance andior any type of benaviows modificalion,

Already on TOU billing?

T

bl (T

L L Dirrt’y ot |
1

Rane A agpugue of g i K0 gl ping LEGE |
S o 1 AAPSEN o i reaa vy

Do economic incentves, based on tme-Bered pricing, heve an impaci on fesource consumplion
pafiems? Co2s pwarensss sboul elecincty use change behaviours?  Respondents of the 2093
suregy saom o believa ey have TTR agree siromgly oF somewhal that Time-af-Lise bifing hag
chavged the way m which they comsuma sleciicly o0 @ dey-le-dey basis. [Bese Omlaro LOC
respandEns]

UtilityPULSE ae
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Time-ol-ise biling his chamged the way in which you
consusa on & i Esa

Apree strongly 2%

Agree somewiat o)

Haithar § Ksuirai %

Diaagros samewhal 0% T

Ciaagres stmngly 1% T
e e ey T T

Mot residential enengy use, mast of the time, is invisilz jo (e user, Most peopin have ony 3 vague
idea of how much energy they are Leing for diferen] purposes and what gon of diferencs. (hay sauld
make by changing day-to-day beheviour o ivealing in efficiency measures. Feadback is important s
that anergy usege becomsas vaible fherehy, O mane unds dny &nd ullimately saser o
easrcise cantrol

When il comas i energy,. people tand o overestimale the amount of energy used by devioss fal so
“vieible® to them and undarestimate the amaunt of enengy used by devices that are “nof visible” io Fiem
SMART medering i also a key elemant of SMART goid lechnoiogy, This year's sunmy probed armund
e concept of SMART gnd, its importance and suppar towands working Wil Reighbouring ulifies

Uﬁ]it}’PU.‘_ SE — _ B

e 2013

The survey dala indicates Tat cuslomer swareness and undarstanding of the berefils that can be
gerfued fom SMART grid technologles are alill in an sary slage. For the most part respondents were
mastly unarmiliar of uinlormed.

Lavel of knowledge s the SMART Grid

| Favn & Tedely good understsndiesg of what i 18 and how | might benefi T
hormes i Businesnen

I havr & b le undenstanding of what [t 1= and haw 1 might wonk hlp
Fve haprd of the erm, B Sset inere mieh abaut f W
hivm nol heard of B tmrm 7%
Don'l kowww ™

I A SRR O EpTeaRnl It 01 petopmng LIGE

Mext respongents were asked what degres of imperiance they attachad to their local bydra uilily in
pursuing ha impiemeniation of the SMART Orid and its associsbed technologies

The SMART knsight from this poll & aven ough more han hadf Be respondents did not knaw mich
abaul e SMART Grid, 53% fell il was very o somewhal imporiant to pursue ibs implementagion and
T5% responded that they wera very or somewha! supporive of thatr local Ullily working sith
neighbouring uliilies to gel Bie mest valug out of the SMART Grid.

UtilityPULSE "
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Bmporiante of parsulng Implessniation af ihe SMART Geid

Vary Importang am |
Somewhat impertant A

Relthar imporiest or unimpectant ]

Bam ewhid unempertan

Uwimporiant 10%

Dee't kims %

[T ™ Tom P00 pabmaNmg O

Supp=rl iowands working with neighbowring vilies oo SMART Oekd inddutives

Very supporihe s

Sonawhat suppotive L

Meitiser supperiive of snsupporibs e
| Bommwhat unsappartive 4 .
Urriuppertive o

e — 12% u
e P ayvgaie 11 i peEa Bia 2971 (ednaaty Lo

UtilityPULSE — = — B

Energy Conservation &
Efficiency

Improving energy eflicency dops nol mean thal cizans have o give up o Tongo
ecindlies i save energy, Ihal is, “wwi off e Iights and put on anofher sweaber®
Rathar, naw Iechnofoglas ang more efeclive bahayviour wil aclusily allow cilizens o da
mar, impraving their living condiions rathar than reduging their comfort.

Redusing the amouni of enangy 'we use by choosing enefgy-eficent applisnces and
SerVioRs, and ensuring war oo nol wasia energy can make 8 big difference. I 15 possiois for residants o
cut @nangy use wiihout comgromsEing on perfarmancs, Trough changes in cusiomer bekaviour and by
investing in moee officient energy technalogies — affecihaly doing mans wim less.

This makes s=nse both for sociely as a whole and for businesses, individuals and tamiles. Less
anETgy LSS maans Mower enangy bills. Peopia simply need (o be avare of their ensrgy use

Energy afficienty tan be broken doan info two ansas:
1) betiar i of anevgy through inproved ensgy-aifician tachmalogies; and
2} emmergy smang dhrowgh changes in cosaman AWarenass &g bafaviour.

Juns 2013
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Energy efficiency has bean seen as primarly aboul lechnologies: using the bedd technalgy 1o
cofsume fess enegy. Examples noude changing 3 housanoid fumace or air condition wunit for one thal
conpumes one Ihind leas energy. using low-energy Bght bubs and avoiding keeping appliances in
‘standby’ mode, Respondents ware sshed whal thay have dans of will 80 1o condans snangy.

Efforis o conserve Eneegy

Instail anergy-efBsism Bght bulbs or Bghisg equipment 20% 11 1%
Im.murn.--ilmlnn--q-pm-i 5% 4% =
Shil wse of elockricity to lowes coal perleds it i LY =
Install windoer hifmss or mamings 6% 2 1%
lastill & programmialin B imautal 5% N % %
Have an emEngy aKpen conducl 4 enedgy audit ] o i an
Ramuoving ald rafriperater or Boezer Jor fret a5 A5 LT 45
Juois tha pidksaverP LIS ™ pragram 4 =5k 21% 1%
Fplacing fursace with & hign eMokncy mode (= W " ]
faplacing sir-condtionar with @ high sflclney madal 8% % & 4%
mmn—mimmmt 5% 2% ] %
SeE b rraiA o rrmsrty b e 013 sl vy LS/ 309, & ici roeocro R faar iew moal i
UtilityPULSE 8
Jure 2013

Mew Ischneiogies wil have litle efsct  users cannol be corvinced o uss them Changing cusiamar
behanviour has o be driven by increasing awereness of the banefits of enangy sawing, both for the
Indivicual and for sociely. Awareness of the ensngy fhal we use as individuals, famiies, households ar
organizalions is vary impaniand — a5 & ihe impact thal can be made by not wasling energy — both
individually and collechvily,

Behaviour i5 one of the paramiders with 8 direct ralation t2 Indivicual enargy consumplon, Individuat
behaviour in energy use is determined by a number of Saciors, $he most mpatant of which ars attituds,
ncome and anangy prcing. Legs dinecdy ralaled are energy policy (inciuding oartian) and tschnoiogy
availabity &S these nalate b0 pricing and income respecively. Howewer educalion can influense
alfilude in order o change behaviour, § can also indorm individuals abowt enengly policy and technology
whiich faeds indd bahavioural changa.

SMART Feadback Fom parbsipants shows, prediciably, Be mosd frequently mentioned barmier o
anegy consardalin was uplront inanciel cosls. Mol hendng the upfront funds mis the househald's
ability o msest in new appliances and to make oiher anangy efficiency ratrofts.

Ome participant nated 1hat, even with programs that provide Fes spobance dispoeal, 7 you gat fid of
your old Indge. you dan'l pay for disposal. bul you nesd monay for the cosl of tha new applianca”
Likerwige, another respondent commented thad limited upfront funds “sfiect all households = but am
particularky ssong for low income householos whare Meve s 00 money kb ivest in retrofts.”

UtilityPULSE 5
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Anather bamler to conservalion describad by he survey respondanis was of programs and
Esues refated o energy conservation, Ganergly speaking, the mrecpondents feit thal ofien lowar-
I and sanior-oetuped households dd ral have access o sutfickant informiation that would aliow
em 12 reduca or b shill eleciricty usags. The respondents noted {hat although the parsan may have
inkzrtions al wanling to da fhe nght ting. they ara not sule oF do Rol knaw exaclly what the fght thing
1o do s

| ‘Wt are the 1 or 2 barrens by esrgy conservation saperenced by Codaslies?

Cosl im making ol lidpedia hy

Litenlyds chinges ! Incanvaniens

Lack of inberest of paracnel responsibsty

Lack of knowledge
Walling for Battar fechnalogy | Greaner options
Lack of information | eomdesion s fo the “ght™ g b do

| Hol smssugh Incernilives

Haye an lsaun wilh Govaresant palicien

Ko

Blg|alalz|alzls|3]3

Dot hnow
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Juns 2093

Purchasing an Electric Vehicle

A clear majority (B0%) of car drivers are stongly nol in favour of eleciric vehicles replacing
corventional vahicles at fis lima. Thers s, however a significant mirarity (34%) who do tavour such a
development. Nane-fhe-less the £V s having an Impact on bavel and ils inSuancs (s sst 0 increasa.

AN income breakdown of Interest in purchasing a fully electric vehicle
the “pasilive supporf cala HIM3  wEMD GEL

shows the  slrengih  of o
apinian in e higher income iad
ranpes. 48% of respondents :nn.!m

in e S4Dk-5T0K income lﬂlﬂ-rm

renge and 43% of thase H ey

making $TOK of mofe & in

taver of EVE repicng i 'nﬂ Samewhal sn-humnb-nr-hrr-: Danmtdies  Qapgrdy  Don'tinew

o
BT g IS
e S i ord

corvertiorial wehicles over

timez, and less lhan one B ko R A 1D Dore Dana s

quarter (22%) of wage eemars in e Unter S40k calagory. Leaking al age demographics. 29% of alder
respanders (55+) versus 47% of respondents aged 35-54 are In favaur of Eva replacing conventional
cars, 43% af those aged 18-34 are receptive: ia tha idea of purchasing an elecinc vahica,

Utility? /L 56 a8
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Wihen asked hive lang it would be bedore Shey would consider an EV &= an opton for their next car
purchass, anly 10 90 {19%:) would consider 8n EV wilhin (2 nest 24 monibs.

Varg Inlarastest
| .uﬂt.lmd-‘h.li [ T T % LY % T 2% bl
Bmmumuu:;ud ke L 27% % 1% 1%
Definitely mot Interesied 45% e 34% Yy 1Y sy
Dan't know % i 9 = Eﬂ; 'Ht L
TR as TN 109 o DR RATRAN Y ey

Length of G bedons punihaiing & fully deckic vahizie

immeslistaly o nust & months %
1812 monthe ™
A3 b 34 . B
Der 24 momiha m
Oepands ™
Diears Wnow i
W g R
UtilityPULSE _
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E-care and E-billing

For any sandce provider incluging electric ullifies, using the inlemed o anline customer cane ard
eieciranic billing involves a rumber of interrelatod requiemants, inchuding & cusiomen's abiity o

= hedeive and pay biks on the intemet.

« sign up for and change Meir services using the intemel,

+ find arsswm o ihair quastions onling about Beir Becounss, |6 SiElomants. paymenis, belances
« [Izarn about producls, serdoes and fopics, e, green anangy, sechicly pricing, she

O i Mk moe 88 1 s latsiner®

i By
Ha 1% Ik 3 !
ne & aggregEe o T mrosasng TR O L1 AR aaCias Wi T N

Wi asked respondents wia wers curently cannected or had access o e mitermal If they In
tact visfied their iocal wility webs®s, Oul af & the respandents who had nlermel sooess, anly
14% claim Ihal ey had achuzlly bean o thelr ulliy's wedsis,

UtilityPULSE 5w
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Ower the pas six monts have pou accessad oo joca| ullify wekalia?

Van T L

L“ Mo TI% [0
e agrtgeta o o 011 (N T crierE [ Ve Sca LEily

Does tha avarags housshold customar fesl comiortable encugh with intemet technglogy o believe itis
the best placs to get customar cane or fo recaive and pay their bils?

'ih\"l'lﬁ cusiomer cam ard biling o e iiemel Eises 8 numbsr ol ql.E!'I.l:H'! and prebanis new
cpporiunias b he ubilily indusiry.

= Iz onling biling &nd cuslomer cére & differentialor for ulility providers?

= Con e-biils be used 1o Improve customer loyaity by altracting cusiomens lo theif websils on a
regular bagiz and thefeby exposing cusiemers to adcitional infarmation, news, &0 edisalion®

= Does ihe inlemel provide an enviranment where (he mosi commonly asked genenmal questions
about a cuslomar's hydre BiE be highlighled o linked dirsclly ko he cuslomer's bill?

» Can e-bils lollow a cypcle time fal is customer divan? Thal is. could the customesr Selerming
Iha day in he Blling cycle for the &-bill & be prodeced?

UtilityPULSE = —_—

Likmlitsseed o milng tha brtern ot for feture customer cars massiy. for things: suck as:

Bofling up o new sccoand 3 ¥
HEEnglng & move k]2
ek eing Infarmallon abou yeir kil aT%
Brzasaing Infarmill o e yeur ehiclicly winge &
Arcasalng ensergy sevlng uplmuﬂe- % a1
Learning msre asout EMART malirs L [=41]
Fegisisnng a complaint 0y v
Reglistinring & eomplmani Fot 1%
nw:humm-mnmm Uns ries % A0%
mmru:;.l;un syl your sfeouni of prafemncas > 0%
Farying your bill Weough the ullisy's webslia e TN
Ferging your bill esing amart phaie sppllestions i 0%
-c-.d‘lqhh'rnhmm pownr outages 7 418
Exnar R sggragwE Of RAMOTaTAN TR TET 1 [arayu v LLre ¢ 0T of Tohd trigmedety bom B ol sl

Idealy, uliides want cusiomers to ambrace e-billing end other elecironic serces, however, B
hingranee o M@ mast base level will discovage cusomaers from: corsidenng addiional onling

UtilityPLL SF
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sendoes, e acoessing SMART maler data. The gosl ts 8o inform customess of their eleciricily usaga,
and make (ham swane of the palential o conserse electricily,

e o
Aunuu.;hnl mter inforsation f I"
\ /

Yes e %
Mo 91% a5 ‘l
Lzﬁwﬂlmnnﬂmsmtﬁcﬂ orfietal smpengnE Ly s ) niey

Wikal ulllSies don't want Io do s farce their customen o contend wilh & Bme-sansuming, bour-
Intanse proceas. Ingead, make il essy, guick and secure, & positive oriine experience will mosl Bkely
lead o a batter onling redalionship with cuslamers thai will grow over fime. Inconsisient user
exparances are karmiul fo customer cordidence.

The respondents, who dd scoess their SMART meter informatian, claimed they found il 2 ba sasy
[vary + somewhal] bo sccess ther SMART mater intormalisn

Eone of aes sssing SMART meder formallon an

Tap I Bowes: vary + sosawhal ey B B
iR A agreyEie O e o T010 eicpanag | LR ¢ (R oF 160 sty ovs Fofs T ieel 7y

Utility”ULSE = - a1
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Respondenis were asked about the Ihelhood of sscessing SMART melsr cala on the waballs in
fulisre.

Likndk af Ing SMAAT meter dlon on thi williiy's s e s b

Ton 1 Baees: Yery = somawiil Hialy' FiT Ao

Hottom 2 Boden: SOmewal + vy iillkaly =% ray l
e e e MWMW
Tha banking ndwsty |5 ome indusiry that has entered the oniing ervilonmenl wih consumers aarliar

fhen mosd indusiries; and therefom, meny fessons cen be leamed from that industry far ity
priniders, Including secunlty, FAQs, promple-mall respanse, oniing bill histary, Brd misiakes fo svaid

Ini prger 30 conver iraditional biling and payment customers 10 8 paperiass, sulomatad sakilisn,
uililies need o urdersiand the reasons behind cuslomers' reserations, such as;

*  process s nob user-iendy leading 10 8 pocr cLSIomEer axpanence

& anlina regslraton ks or could be & hassis

= Theexira work of kesping irack, downicading #ic. 0 & 1me pressed sociely

=  pasaword faligue far customers who st dont want to marage anciher leg-in credential

= apprehenson thal no lpnger raceling @ paper bil could increase g fikelihood that fhey'll

Insdvardantly mizs a bill andior paymien
& Unesss that paymand mfommaticn wil raol be sesune e could be aasiy hicked.

| SF 84

T s 2013
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Consumers wil sventually adopt elecironic biling and onling customer cere 5 many intuelres bagin
pirericing consumer BAIs arllne, &0d oriboal mass & eached. Howaver, cusiomars sl wand 1o have the
choce of receiving cuslomer care from & Bve person. Even aPer they starl using orfine jechnalogy,
custnmers st want io be able 8o recetve hand coples of Selr bils as & Decklp.

I i alrandy recelving oy hydro bl alsctronicaly 108 4%

A v O WA TS, gy

Ilﬁiw%hnhhutpmrhhuwpmmm- b hiE-Y A

| gralif 1 Hiiw Hlin paped copy of my Bl 2% o

1dan't umi oS Banking & 1%
Bz &2 gpnger of Ao ERELET] T o T e

Bocayse willlles serve B diverse demographic that moludes houssholds, businesses, al income kvals,
and peaple fram all walks of e, undamtanding cusinmers’ coNCems, needs Srd comlon e wil po
A long vy 1 ansuring el e sokilion i ore thal they will achsally use, For example, interactive voika
response [IVA) system with specific-fanguage call ows, young warking commulers. mighl be morme
Ineciifesd 1o use mobile blk-pay, or those cussomars (8.0, senicr cRZENs) who might not ba.gs edept o
camfanabis with leshinoiogy might prefer he abdity bo pay over the phone or m-pesson

UtilityPULSE .

Understanding customes prafiles wil enable uflilies o peovida e rght BE-pay apfons lar Bem;
merelry increasing usabilty raies-— and, the percegption thal they adapt wall 1o changas. in cusomer

mxpactations
sing iha Imernet Tor Billing
lam alrsady recehieg my hydro bl eclnealeilly 15% 0%
| mse oo T banbing s wil defisibly Ba requisating Bl my b#l ba sanl
snctrenieslly EoT ™
| s B bdnking dnn prafar e have peper sfsbamems W% e
1 prefer o have the papee coay of my Bills o 2%
I don't use on-ing bankisng W 24%
Dan't aow s L

| e e e

¥ ity companies ensune Lkl ha eectonic billing solulians they offer customer s ame sasy i use,
canvenient, feature-rich, comprahensive and secure, adogtion rales will surely increase.

UtilityPLLSE
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LB of i ] -1 I i iy e Dilibing p
B g anedima o witch 5% Fr s
Bl anlinniil F90 & igacial draw for cudlomers who maka the switch 2% W%
Lisarning mere aboul e besalis lo gateg geeen with pipecieass billing am ™%
A Deinar uneder [ of tha o i ef 2 HIII:’:;‘ - dd;l_ _M!.'I'";'._
BERE G BEpegats 8| e s o 537 W LOCN | B0 F A Tizmita by

Custaimans e abaid Hihay don'l recesve o papar bil in the mail each manth, they am gong o
forgat o make @ payment 5 well B8, incur penalties and iale fees ar aven haim e crsdt scon. By
proaciively delvering information to customens. by phone, $8=t and emall, customers will remain
informned and i cangrol of their biling and accourd status and be mons likely to use additional anline
sarvicas, Also, giving customars onling access (o The prior 16 10 24 manths of biling Salemenis il
olleviate concems ower osing @ bl or needing old stalaments. Ensuring that & switch o online
processas doss nol change amthing for & customer is key, the idea 2 ko make sureé customens ans
provided with avenyining thay have aways had, plus & ol mone

Utility?U/LSE i
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Social Media

Socisl media i evoling 8% &n incredible pace. Impartangly, § seems ba represend a shift in how peoals
discover, read and ghama news, Informatian and content. Al cusbomesns: incressingly lum o sl
channeis f2 seck information and advice and Yo express opinions, Bers s no guestion thal
agariealions must angage with Shede chermels 1o dalver apprapriale cusiomser care and ensure
pasitive axperencas, Respondems of this year's sunvey ware ssked “how Wely thay would use
easial madis ax 8 fesource for enengy afisiancy fips or do haip manage your sigoincey ose”,

Ukelihood of using Socisl Media to gether informatlon

Vary llaly ] L L I
L
Somesha Waly T 1%, T EH
hiot ey =% 0% % %
Ko fsedy a7 all B4 Bi% AEE BER
o't Bave soclal macdis scicond it it s A%
D't knios o 1% % T
R FEncyaig o 173 MAEANIEL VT P BEd VB
syn i o
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What do customers think about
electricity costs?

Teday eiaoiic Lillles Bre facing stasdily, Incressing cosss 1o generale and defiver eleciricily. Uiiilies
ane building ransmssion nes, instaling new aguipmant and fixing up powar plants. While LDC's make
conlinucue eficiency implovemants &nd & working with regulalors lo cankain cosls and I keep
eachicily prices as low 85 posalble. Whe 1act s thal rising slecincly cosls & becoming inevlable

At @ lima when inooma growih seams o ba stegnating, eectricly s consuming & Qrealer sharg of
Canadisng’ afles-lax income than at any time sinca the mid 1960°s. Higher cosls are baing driven by
bath higher prices per iicwatl hiwr end grealer elesticily uss al home,  roughly eousl measurs,
While modem electronics and applances reouire less eleciicily than older modals, LB & new
refrigerator rund on hall ihe sleckicity of & model lroe Be T880°, houses have became bigger, which
eniail morne sir-concitioning and mons electranice than balione.

Mexf | am going fo read @ number of statemants poopis miah! wse abouf paying for thair afacioly.
Which o comeas classar fo your auw feslngs, aven if pane is axacty fght™ Paying for alaatriciy is naf
RETY F WY, Somenimes | wory aboi Mding the money i pay for sfeclnclly, o Paying fov elscicily
1= offen @ majar problam?
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15 payireg for sleciriclly § worrny o & major prabiem?
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Is paying for electricity a worry or a major problem?
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Therm are canain kinds of cosis thal hit fived-rcoma (hoge on disability income) snd lowdnoams
Peapie tha mast, and one of hass things is energy costs, which ane nol discrationany. Onlenio s one of
several provinoes fo inslal "SMART® electicily mesers an houssholds. They promole better resource
us| by Gilkng cusfomers ex¥ra for energy consumed cuning peak dasiime howE, hovwsvsr in ander D
benefit fmm TOU a behavicur change in consumplion must iake place

I paying for efgcirieiy & warnry or & major protdem?

Bapends

LE ] i - % I
§70,300= B 5% % %
[ ==y

Guskamers have a right o cepact more than Me mere delvery of elecidcity, They hava e righl ta
eppact efficiency, competance and value for maney. Ulises seaking 10 become mahs cusiomer-centric
must go beyand iha transaclional relalioaship of cusiomer pays a price snd recewes electricily.
Becoming cusiomer-cenina Involaes offering customers a walue prapesilion; a complede package, Niad
‘with lofs of human-friendiy ussbility elements, peace of mind, and top-natch cusbomer service.
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I parying for alectricity 8 wory or @ major probiem®

Nl & worry sometimes
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What do small commercial
customers think?

Residential and small business cuslomers creale the bulk of @ ullily's  Smel Commerssl Cuntesar
service. fransactions evary dap—and Bocounl for more han hall of fhe  oonte

anafgy comumed — indessiandng their nesds and espactslons (s oA kit
BEComing mare Imporiant tan aver before. = oefired by Ina DEA @ a

I the 15 years thal HityPULSE has undertslien elecinc ulilty sabisfaction  simiar 10 e resigenis
surveys, ME 0 Nas Mosly SUPRONEd Ihal he smal business CWNEr o fam E dewscd
behaves mish in fie sama way as the residersal customer, While therg  Sompoenml do il ond lhei
are typically more simidarilies belween small commercial and residantipl o censuspiog. Mok of heda
accourts, there are some fundamenial diferences in IGse cuslomes skl ocadons of oSicm
classed segments. This year's data shows a diterence in satsfaclion lavels.

for cuslomer senvice, comemercial customers resaended mare favourably than residential, On the

subject of bills and cuiagas, residential respandants reponed mone oulage prablems and fewer billng

probiiems fien commerial custamers.

UtilityPULSF — s

o 33

Depesd requeernenis, manthly enangy bills (and, thanalore. energy usage). powar quality, and redsblity
all direcily impacl 8 amall busimesss Ananssl giualion. Unkke resdental customers wno fend 1o
describe the cost of power inbemuplions in terms of @ inconvenience”. commarcial (and industrial)
CUSIDMErs BEanciale power inleruplions with the cost of Ios! busness, |2, @ kass 0 produclion & a
loss in prodls

Likemiga, Beged on lhé requitement of eleckricity to suslsin busingss cparations, there exisls a
diffenanca in aclisal levels of demeand respanse For inatence, smal business and commercal users. an
unikely 10 choose Jo decrease el elsciicly consumplion if @ i incompstible wilh efficien
management of Meir busness processes o threstens contracied delveries 1o elr primary produst
manats. In some cases, eleclricily consumplion s & relafvely small proporlion af toftal inpat and
operaling cosis, which substanbally reduces the Ninancial incantive for shuling dovwn pradustion durng
on peak pricing.

The iables associated wilh fhis repor wil contain Onlario LDC spacilic information as i relates %
rezadaniial and commestial customers, Recognizing that smaller data samples an susceplioia 1o
greater gala gwings, for mosl LDCE there would Se 40 or 20 responses from smal commendal
cuglomers. We hane compiled the followang tased on & group composite of 8l of our 2013 discussions
wilh smell commensial and reesidenlial cusbaman

UtilityPLL 57 -
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4.0 - VECC- 22
Reference: Exhibit 4, Tab 2, Schedule 1, pg.8

a) Please explain why meter reading costs have increased since 2009 and
notwithstanding the introduction of smart meters?

b) Please compare and contrast the $85k spent on meter reading in 2009 with
the $192K forecast spending in 2013.

c) Please provide the cost of the last full year of contract meter reading services
(i.e. those services discontinued in 2012).

Response

a) Please refer to 4.0-Staff-24

b) Please refer to 4.0-Staff-24

c) The last full year of contract metering services was in 2010. Please see the chart
below, which indicates an annual contract metering expense of about $90k per

year.
Forscast
December 2013 December 20712 December 2011 December 2010 December 2009
| Billing and collecting: |
5310-0000-00 Meter Reading Expense 12,000 28287 48175 89,108 87 457
5310-0000-04 Meter Read - Smart Meter Operations 180,000 205 440
5315-0000-04 Cust Biling - Smart Meter Operations 0,000 114,604

252,000 352,331 46,175 89,108 &7 467
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4.0 - VECC- 23
Reference: Exhibit 4, Tab 2, Schedule 1, pg.8

a) Please provide a breakdown of Account 5315 (Customer Billing), which
compares and explains the difference between the 2009 costs of $489k and
the 2013 forecast costs of $534k.

b) Does COLLUS expect to continue to prepare its customer bills separately from
PowerStream under the new joint ownership arrangements?

a)
Forecast OEB Approved
D ber 2013 D ber 2012 Dy ber 2011 D ber 2010 D ber 2009 2009
5315-0000-00 Customer Biling 372,000 370,657 388,569 491,705 4592 772
NEW 5315-0000-04 Cust Billing - Smart Meter Operations 60,000 114 604
5315-0001-00 Customer Biling -Retailer Exp 7,200 10,720 1,362 15
5315-0002-00 EBT& EMERA Expense 79,478 77,654 80,803 87,803 84 587
5315-0003-00 Customer Final Bill Refunds - (593) (340} 1,185 43
5315-0004-00 Bank Charges (previously in 5315-0000-00) 15,600 14,267
534,276 387,319 468,714 580,708 577,387 438,093
Variance to 2009 Approved 45,183.00
Lezs; Mew extra smart meter operations expenses (60,000.00}
Decrease in customer biling exp with Smart Meters removed (14,817.00%

b) Collus PowerStream presently continues to prepare its customer bills separately.
However, joint effort is on-going to determine areas where we can share
resources. Such discussion is still in the preliminary stages. Considering Collus
PowerStream is locked into contracts for software and support and PowerStream
is currently working on the implementation of their own new billing software
system, the outlook is a long range goal at this point.
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4.0 - VECC- 24
Reference: Exhibit 4, Tab 2, Schedule 2, pg. 2

a) Did COLLUS or PowerStream Inc. prepare any analysis in respect to the
potential cost savings that might be had as part of the acquisition transaction?
If yes, please provide that analysis.

Response

a) Intuitively, one would expect potential savings and the adoption of best practices
with a transaction such as our new relationship with PowerStream. Collus Power
did not however prepare a detailed analysis of the savings since they will only be
truly known with time. We have no knowledge if PowerStream completed an
analysis.
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Reference: Exhibit 4, Tab 1, Schedule 2

a) Please provide association fees paid to the EDA for each of the years 2009
through 2013 (forecast).

b) Separately provide and describe the cost of all other
memberships.

Response

association

a) The association fees paid (excluding tax) to the EDA for the years 2009 through
to 2013 (actual) are as follows:

2009 - $25,000
2010 - $26,100
2011 - $26,950
2012 - $28,450
2013 - $29,800

b) Below we have separately provided with a description all other major association
memberships. The costs represent the 2013 annual membership fees only.

Associations Name Description Cost
An association of local distribution companies (LDCs)
Cornerstone Hydro modeled after a cooperative to combine resources and
Electric Concepts Inc. competencies to best meet the requirements of the changing | ¢ 45,000

(CHEC)

electrical industry and provide a high standard of locally
supplied customer service.

Electrical Safety
Authority (ESA)

Established with the mandate to enhance public electrical
safety in Ontario. ESA is a delegated administrative authority,
an independent, not-for-profit corporation acting on behalf of
the Government of Ontario with specific responsibilities for
electrical safety.

7,012

Utility Standards
Forum (UCF)

Provides members with a consistent, cost effective and ESA
approved set of standards; a key component to the
membership's operations. USF also provides the mechanism
for maintaining a strong member and industry network, with
focus on creating best practices through collaboration and
reduced duplication of efforts when meeting regulatory
requirements.

8,750
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Utility Collaborative
Service Inc. (UCS)

An Ontario based organization of provincial Local Distribution
Companies (LDCs) created to provide members with reliable
cost-competitive long term software and service solutions in
an increasingly complex and resource intensive marketplace.
The members support and work co-operatively on
standardization of their systems leading to major cost savings
for each other. The LDCs recognized that by working
together they can negotiate preferential agreements with
vendors and can see cost savings through shared resources.
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4.0 - VECC- 26
Reference: Exhibit 4, Tab 1, Schedule 2

a) Please provide the annual membership fees for each of CHEC, UCS and
USF.

b) Does COLLUS expect to drop or combine membership in any of these
organizations as part of the PowerStream group?

Response

a) The annual membership fees for CHEC and USF are provided in the table seen in
4.0 - VECC - 25 b). There is no annual membership fee for UCS. The fees paid
to UCS are monthly based on services utilized.

b) The board of directors is currently investigating the costs and benefits in all
organizations we have memberships with. Some of these memberships have
termination clauses that need to be considered.
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Reference:

Exhibit 4, Tab 2, Schedule 1/ Schedule 2, pg. 3
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a) On page 5 of E4/T2/S1 COLLUS notes that ongoing Smart Meter
maintenance costs are forecasted at $240K with is a $150K increase from
2009 approved levels. At page 3 of Schedule 2 it shows $240k as the smart
meter cost driver. Please clarify if the net incremental costs since 2009 for

smart meters are $150k or $240k.

Response

a) The net incremental costs for just smart meters related to meter reading and

customer billing operations is $240,000.

The decrease in contract manual

reading expense is $73,000. The net difference is $167,000. See chart below for

clarification.
Forecast OEB Approved
December 2013 December 2009 Variance
5310-0000-00 Meter Reading Expense 12,000.00 85,000.00 (73,000.00)
NEW 5310-0000-04 Meter Read - Smart Meter Operations 180,000.00 0.00 180,000.00
NEW 5315-0000-04 Cust Biling - Smart Meter Operations &0,000.00 0.00 60,000.00 | 240,000.00
252,000.00 85,000.00 167,000.00




Collus PowerStream Corp.
EB-2012-0116

Responses to Interrogatories of
Board Staff and Intervenors
Page 261 of 375

Filed: August 21, 2013

4.0 - VECC- 28
Reference: Exhibit 4, Tab 2, Schedule 2

a) Please provide incremental costs incurred in 2013 that were for regulatory
responsibilities not incurred in 2009 (for example, Net CDM, Green Energy,
Asset Management etc.). Please also provide the incremental FTES since
2009 that have been hired to meet these incremental regulatory requirements.

Response
a) Exhibit 4, Tab 2, Schedule 2 does not exist.

As far as CDM in 2013, PowerStream and Collus PowerStream have signed a
contract and a new staff person was hired at PowerStream to handle our CDM.
However, this comes out of the PAB funding and does not impact the revenue
requirement.

We have not hired internally any FTEs since 2009 related to regulatory
responsibilities. Our regulatory manager retired at the end of 2010 and his
replacement overlapped for eight months before he left, but this was more for
succession planning. Some of the retired regulatory manager's duties were
reallocated to our SCADA operations person, specifically MicroFIT and the Green
Energy Plan. The SCADA operations person had reduced work load from the
water company and was able to perform these additional duties. We do not have
accounting records that track such incremental costs.

Asset management requirements will begin in 2013, we plan to handle the extra
responsibility with the staff already on hand. Additional software, training, and
support costs will be required to have this system operational.
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4.0 - VECC- 29
Reference: Exhibit 4, Tab 2, Schedule 4

a) Please provide the productivity offset and stretch factors that were used by the
Board during the previous IRM period.

Response

a) As per Board letter dated March 10, 2010 Re: Board Determination of Stretch
Factor Rankings for 2010 3™ Generation Incentive Regulation Applications (IRM3)
EB-2009-0392, Collus PowerStream was placed in Group 2, whose stretch factor
was 0.4%.

Collus PowerStream filed IRM3 EB-2009-0220, for 2010 rates, with a stretch
factor of 0.4% and productivity offset of 0.72%.

Collus PowerStream filed IRM3 EB-2010-0076, for 2011 rates, with a stretch
factor of 0.4% and productivity offset of 0.72%.

Collus PowerStream filed IRM3 EB-2011-0164, for 2012 rates, with a stretch
factor of 0.4% and productivity offset of 0.72%.
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4.0 - VECC- 30
Reference: Exhibit 4, Tab 1, Schedule 4

a) Please provide the training and staff development budgets in each year 2009
through 2013.

Response

a) We have never maintained training and staff development budgets historically.
However, in the finance department we started to track PD for 2013 in an attempt
to carve out that portion of the accounting, billing, collecting, and customer
service staff budget. This is an area every department should look to develop
further, and we will target this as a goal.
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4.0-VECC - 31
Reference: Exhibit 4, Tab 2, Schedule 4, pg.4

a) Please provide the total costs in 2012 that were related to the PowerStream
transaction (e.g. audit and regulatory costs) including any buyout or early
retirements (please show internal and external costs separately).

Response

a) Please refer to 4-Energy Probe-26 & 29
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4.0-VECC - 32

Reference: Exhibit 4, Tab 2, Schedule 4, pg.4
a) Please provide a list of each of the positions for the 4.84 FTEs that have been
added from 2009 actuals. Please provide the total amount of salary and
benefits related to these FTEs.

Response
a) Reference: Exhibit 4, Tab 2, Schedule 4, pg.4 does not exist.

On Exhibit 4, Tab 1, Schedule 2, Pg.4 there is a table 1 entitted OM&A per
Customer and FTE. This indicates the 2009 board approved FTE as 21.60 and
the 2013 Test year as 22.92. This is a difference of 1.32 rather than 4.84.

Please also see 4.0-Staff-25 part b.
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4.0-Staff-24

Ref: E4/T1/S1, p. 5 and E2/T3/S2, Asset Management Plan — Smart Meter
Maintenance Costs and E4/T4/S1, Table 3 — Meter Reading Expenses

On page 5 of E4/T2/S1 Collus PowerStream notes that ongoing Smart Meter
maintenance costs are forecasted at $240K with is a $150K increase from 2009
approved levels. On page 29 of the Asset Management Plan, Collus PowerStream
describes a failure and replacement rate of 5.22% of the total population of installed
smart meters.

Table 3 of E4/T4/S1 shows a meter reading expense of $192,000 in the 2013 test year,
which is an increase of 126% over 2009 Board approved and a 316% increase over
2011actuls.

a) Please provide more information on the proposed ongoing Smart Meter
maintenance cost.

b) Please elaborate if and when Collus PowerStream anticipates a decrease in the
maintenance costs as Smart Meters are being replaced in response to the failure
rate of the existing smart meter population.

c) Please explain if the Smart Meter maintenance cost is part of the increase in
account 5310 - Meter Reading Expense. If not, please explain the increase in
meter reading expenses.

d) Please state if Collus PowerStream has been able to realize any efficiency cost
savings in meter reading costs due to the installation of smart meters. If not,
please explain why not.

Response

a) The Ontario government introduced legislation on Nov. 3, 2005 to start the
process of getting smart meters into every home and small business in the
province by 2010. Collus PowerStream has complied with this mandate.

In Collus PowerSteam’s Smart Meter Application filed with the OEB on January
16, 2012 and approved in the June 21, 2012 decision and order EB 2012-0017,
there were $252,000 annual on-going smart meter operation costs forecasted.
The costs consist of the following $20,000 monthly amounts plus a $12,000
annual AMI security audit.
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Monthly Annually
5310-0-4 Smart Meter Operations — Meter Reading $15,000.00 $180,000.00
5315-0-4 Smart Meter Operations - Customer Billing 5,000.00 60,000.00
$20,000.00 $240,000.00

These expenses result from the following smart meter operation requirements:
Sensus Tower Gateway Base Station (TGB)
Kinetig/Savage Operational Data Storage (ODS)
Point-to-Point Broadband

Bell Wurldtech Sensus AMI security audit

ITM AS2 License

Web presentment

Util-Assist Sync Operator

ODS security audit

Customer education

DSC operator services

Communication, data integrity, IT security, along with computing system reliability,
safety and maintainability, are critical attributes for smart meter implementation
and operation. These smart meter expenses are a requirement to operate the
system and provide overall risk management for the infrastructure.

For improved clarity E4/T2/S1 should state ongoing smart meter “operation costs”
rather than “maintenance costs”. These accounts are not related to the
percentage failure and replacement rate.

Based on the current meter and radio firmware technology a decrease in the
maintenance costs as a result of meter failures is not anticipated. Current “smart
Meter” technology consists of a meter and communications technology and are
more a computer than a meter. To date the majority of meter failures have
occurred due to firmware or radio communications issues and this is not expected
to change. The actual metrology portion is a small portion of a “smart Meter” and
in Collus PowerStream’s experience failure of this portion of the meter is rare.

Smart meter repairs and maintenance costs are not part of the increase in
account 5310 — Meter Reading Expense. Costs for repairs and maintenance to
smart meters are included in account 5175 Maintenance of Meters. Please see
part d for reasons why smart meter reading expense has increased.

Collus PowerStream has not been able to realize any efficiency cost savings in
meter reading costs due to the installation of smart meters. Meter Reading
expenses under the old manual meters averaged about $90,000 between 2005
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and 2008 before implementation of smart meters started. Our meter reading
expense is forecasted for 2013 as $192,000, which is $180,000 annually for smart
meters plus $12,000 for any required manual reads.

Significant increased operating costs have been realized with smart meters due to
the complexity of the technology and data system. But, the long-term benefits of
this technology and advancement are important to the future of the province’s
electrical infrastructure.
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4.0-Staff-20

Ref: E4/T4/S1, pp. 1-4, Tables 1, 2, 3, and 5
Please provide year-to-date OM&A expenses at the same level of detail as tables 1
through 5.

Response
Table 1
June 2013 YTD

Operation Expense

5005-0000-00 Opr Supervisn & Engnring 111,211
5010-0000-00 Opr Load Dispatching/SCADA 34,113
5012-0000-00 Opr Stn Buildgs & Fixtures Exp 15,231
5020-0000-00 Opr OH Dist Lines/Fdr - Labour 28,987
5025-0000-00 Opr OH Dist Lines/Fdr - Expnse 17,646
5030-0000-00 Opr OH Subtrans Feeder 0
5035-0000-00 Opr OH Dist Transformers 13,777
5040-0000-00 Opr UG Dist Lines/Fdr - Labour 2,451
5045-0000-00 Opr UG Dist Lines/Fdr - Expnse 0
5055-0000-00 Opr UG Dist Transformers 8,083
5065-0000-00 Opr Meter Expense 501
5085-0000-00 Opr Misc Distribution Exp 19,217
5096-0000-00 Rent - Stores & Operations Centre 86,400
Total Operation Expense 337,617
Table 2
Maintenance Expense
5105-0000-00 Mtce Supervision & Engineering 69,409
5110-0000-00 Mtce of Station Buildings 5,467
5114-0000-00 Mtce Substn Equipment 0
5120-0000-00 Mtce Poles, Towers & Fixtures 81,965
5125-0000-00 Mtce OH Conductor & Devices 150,674
5130-0000-00 Mtce of OH Services 72,977
5135-0000-00 Mtce OH Dist Right of Way 20,025
5150-0000-00 Mtce UG Conductor & Devices 54,814
5155-0000-00 Mtce of UG Services 100,348
5160-0000-00 Mtce Line Transformers 46,897
5175-0000-00 Mtce of Meters 131,070
5190-0000-00 Mtce W/Htr Controls-Labour 0
Total Maintenance Expense 733,646

Total Operation & Maintenance Expense 1,071,265




Table 3
Billing and collecting:
5305-0000-00 Billing Supervision
5310-0000-00 Meter Reading Expense
5310-0000-04 Meter Read - Smart Meter Operations
5315-0000-00 Customer Billing
5315-0000-04 Cust Billing - Smart Meter Operations
5315-0001-00 Customer Billing -Retailer Exp
5315-0002-00 EBT& EMERA Expense
5315-0003-00 Customer Final Bill Refunds
5315-0004-00 Bank Charges
5320-0000-00 Collecting
5320-0001-00 Collecting - Insurance - Business Credit
5325-0000-00 Collecting Cash Over & Short
5335-0000-00 Bad Debt Expense

Total Billing & Collecting

Table 4
Community Relations
5415-0000-00 Energy Conservation
5425-0000-00 Misc Cust Ser&lInform Expenses
Total Community Relations

Table 5
General & Administration:
5605-0000-00 Executive Salaries & Expenses
5610-0000-00 Management Salaries & Expenses
5615-0000-00 General Admin Salaries & Expenses
5630-0000-00 Outside Services Employed
5635-0000-00 Property Insurance
5640-0000-00 Injuries and Damages
5655-0000-00 Regulatory Expenses
5660-0000-00 General Advertising Expenses
5665-0000-00 Miscellaneous General Expenses
5670-0000-00 Rent
5672-0000-00 Computer Lease Expense
5675-0000-00 Maintenance of General Plant
5680-0000-00 Electrical Safety Author Fees
5681-0000-00 OEB Special Purpose Charge Expense
6105-0000-00 Taxes Other Than Income Taxes
6205-0000-00 Donations & LEAP

Total General & Administration
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June 2013 YTD

37,400
1,340
75,231
169,158
16,744
7,119
39,276
0
3,802
51,577
13,293
(54)
5,967

420,853

70,805

70,805

320,396

100,952
14,444
28,167
55,408

1,970
45,425
21,600
10,896
14,260

3,557

0
43
13,319

630,437
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4.0-Staff-23

Ref: E4/T4/S1, p.1 and E4/T4/S4, p. 7 — Operations Expenditures — Other Rent

On page 7 of E4/T4/S4, Collus PowerStream notes that Operations expenses have
increased by $315,000 or 108% over the 2009 Board-approved levels. Board staff notes
that on the summary table 1, E4/T4/S1, p. 1 Collus PowerStream has included a cost of
$172,800 in account 5096 Other Rent and a $132,00 in account 5005 — Operation
Supervision and Engineering.

a)

b)

Please provide a detailed explanation for the 90% or $62,610 increase in account
5005 Operation Supervision and Engineering in the 2013 test year over 2009
actuals.

Please explain the cost of $172,800 booked in account 5096 Other Rent in more
detail.

Response

a)

b)

Operations Supervision and Engineering has increased due to succession
planning hiring requirements. The superintendent retired in the spring of 2012.
His replacement was filled internally and an operations assistant was added to
help with the increasing workload of a larger system. The allocation of
supervision and engineering expenditures also fluctuates based on the amounts
that are allowable as direct capital costs, especially under more restrictive IFRS
rules.

Previously rent was allocated to the burden for warehouse and garage. The
burden would then be allocated to various operations and maintenance expenses
or capital projects currently in progress. The costs were capitalized to the extent
that materials were issued to, and vehicles and equipment were used on capital
work orders.

The capitalization policy has been modified to be IFRS compliant. Account 5096
is now being used for warehouse and garage rent and no longer posted to the
burden accounts. This increases operations and maintenance expense since
there is no longer any portion that is allowable to be capitalized. Since rent is an
overhead that is not directly attributable to capital projects, it may no longer have
any capitalized component.
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4-SEC-14
[Ex.4/4/1/p.1-4]
Please update Tables 1-5 to include 2013 year-to-date actuals.

Response

Please refer to 4.0-Staff-20
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4-Enerqgqy Probe-27

Ref:

a)

b)

Exhibit 4, Tab 4, Schedule 2

Please explain the cost driver for Operations in Table 1(a) that talks about
the focus shift from water to power business.

Please explain the cost driver for Administrative & General in Table 1(a) that
states the movement to new depreciation approach - work associated with
analysis for new system inputs. Why would this not be considered a one-
time cost?

Under the Total area, the explanation includes a statement of inflation
running at approximately 2-3%. Please provide a table that shows the
percentage increases in inflation as measured by the GDP IPI FDD, the
unionized staff wage increases and the non-union staff wage increases for
each of 2009 through 2012 on an actual basis and the forecasts for 2013.

Response

a)

b)

The cost driver for Operations in Table 1(a) provides one explanation in the list
that indicates there was an increase in costs because of a focus shift from the
water business to the power business. This specifically relates to our SCADA
employee. Please refer to 4-Energy Probe-29 PART i) which expands in detail
the changing allocations of this employee.

The explanation, “Movement to new depreciation approach — work associated
with analysis for new system input” relates to the change in useful life of assets
based on the kinetrics study and the move to MCGAAP which requires
componentization, tracking, and disposal of PP&E at a much more sophisticated
level. Training, consultants, software, software support, and overtime will be
required to implement an acceptable tracking system in 2013 to meet accounting
standards.

Under the Total area, the explanations include a statement of inflation running at
approximately 2-3%. The table below shows the actual percentage increase in
inflation as measured by the GDP IPI FDD taken from Statistics Canada. The
unionized and non-union staff wage increases for each year on actual bases have
been provided. We are currently in union negotiations and therefore 2013
forecasted numbers could not be provided.

The GDP/IPI index represents specifically the Utility Industry. The Utility sector
comprises establishments primarily engaged in operating electric, gas and water
utilities. These establishments generate, transmit, control and distribute electric
power; distribute natural gas; treat and distribute water; operate sewer systems
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and sewage treatment facilities; and provide related services, generally through a
permanent infrastructure of lines, pipes and treatment and processing facilities.

The total Final Domestic Demand (FDD) is defined as the sum of final

consumption, investment and stock building expenditures by the private and
general government sectors in real terms.

PERCENTAGE INCREASE IN INFLATION

NON-UNION
YRS CPI GDP/IPI FDD UNION WAGE WAGE
2009 0.40 (2.60) 1.63 3.25% 3.00%
2010 2.50 1.30 1.73 | 040 Adj + 2.5% 3.00%
2011 3.10 4.30 1.80 3.00% 2.50%
2012 1.40 2.40 1.87 3.00% 2.50%
2013 1.30 3.50 1.88 | In Negotiations 2.50%
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4-SEC-15
[Ex.4/4/2/p.3]
Please provide a year-over-year OM&A Cost Driver Table for 2009-2013.

Response
Appendix 2-J
OM&A Cost Driver Table
Last Rebasing Year .

OM&A (2009 Actuals) 2010 Actuals 2011 Actuals 2012 Bridge Year 2013 Test Year
Reporting Basis

Opening Balance $ 3,744382 | § 3,850,194 | § 3,005851 | § 4073086 | $ 4,843,306
Operations -$ 33570 | % 45845 |-§ 222151 % 79314 % 216,381
Maintenance $ 70,596 |-% 65,363 | § 238,028 |-$ 78,782 |-% 143,393
Billing & Collecting $ 58,977 | § 54,645 |-§ 144,005 | $ 353,548 |-% 71,396
Community Relations -$ 4176 | § 55,317 |-% 13,619 |-$ 11,431 | $ 4,521
Administrative & General $ 13,985 | § 55213 | § 19046 | $ 427 571 |-% 94 258
Closing Balance $ 3,850,194 | § 3,005851 | % 4,073,086 | § 4843306 | § 4,755,160
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December 2008 December 2009 December 2010 | December 2011 December 2012 December 2013
5005-0000-00 Opr Supervisn & Engnring 76,800 69,390 67 167 82071 130,081 132,000
5010-0000-00 Opr Lead Dispatching/SCADA 45 500 45 850 40,582 21,108 58,455 28,500
5012-0000-00 Qpr Stn Buildgs & Fixtures Exp 18,000 17,217 35,190 31,478 23,195 27,000
5018-0000-00 Opr Dist Stn Equip - Labour (0}
S017-0000-00 Opr Dist Stn Equip - Other Exp 10,000 8371 14,284
5020-0000-00 Qpr OH Dist Lines/Fdr - Labour 25,000 3,060 2,733 29,934 30,000
5025-0000-00 Opr OH Dist Lines/Fdr - Expnze 3,703 2,043 (140} 25411 30,000
5030-0000-00 Opr OH Subtrans Feeder
5035-0000-00 Opr OH Dist Transformers 3,500 34 577 62,321 45 410 27 408 34,800
5040-0000-00 Opr UG Dist Lines/Fdr - Labour 411 6,488 8,000
5045-0000-00 Opr UG Dist Lines/Fdr - Expnze 100 4483 6,000
5055-0000-00 Opr UG Dist Transformers 2,592 18,363 5,535 12,000
5065-0000-00 Opr Meter Expense 1,500 9,008 945 8472 4124 8,000
S070-0000-00 Opr Customer Premise - Labour 509
5083-0000-00 Opr Misc Distribution Exp 78,000 66,556 77,766 59,548 45,577 0,000
5095-0000-00 Rent - Stores & Cperations Centre 30,000 172,800
291,300 257,730 303,575 281,350 350,574 §07,100
Change (33,570) 45,845 (22,215) 79,314 246 426
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Actual to
Approvd 2009 2009 to 2010 2010 to 2011 2011 to 2012 2012 to 2013
WARLANCE WARLANCE WARIANCE WARIANCE WARIANCE

5005-0000-00 Cpr Supervisn & Engnring (7,410} (2,223) 24903 37,930 1,939 1)
5010-0000-00 Opr Load DispatchingdSCADA (650) (5,268) (19,474) 37,347 30,045 2)
5012-0000-00 Opr Stn Buildgs & Fixtures Exp (1,783) 17,973 (3,712} (8,279) 3,801 3)

5016-0000-00 Opr Dist Stn Equip - Labour - - - (0} 0

5017-0000-00 Opr Dist Stn Equip - Other Exp (1,629) 6,493 (14,854) - -

5020-0000-00 Opr OH Dist Lines/Fdr - Labour (22,940) (3,060} 2733 27,201 65

5025-0000-00 Cpr OH Dist Lines/Fdr - Expnse 3,703 {1,660} (2,183} 25,552 4 589

5030-0000-00 Opr OH Subtrans Feeder - - - - -
5035-0000-00 Opr OH Dist Transformers 31,007 27744 [15,912) (19,002) 7,392 4)

5040-0000-00 Opr UG Dist Lines/Fdr - Labour - - 411 6,077 1,512

5045-0000-00 Opr UG Dist Lines/Fdr - Expnse - 100 (100} 4,483 1,517

5055-0000-00 Opr UG Dist Transformers - 2,582 15,770 [12,828) 6,485

5065-0000-00 Opr Meter Expense 7,506 (8,058) 7523 (4,348) 1,876

S5070-0000-00 Opr Customer Premise - Labour - - 509 (909} -
5085-0000-00 Opr Misc Distribution Exp (11,444) 11,211 [18,218) [13,971) 14,423 5)
S5095-0000-00 Rent - Stores & Operations Centre (30,000} - - - 172,800 &)

(33,570) 45 845 [22,215) 79,314 246 476

Sum of misc unhighlighted (3,570) 127 6,486 3,977 25,158

1. Operations Supervision & Engineering has an increase in 2011 related to less ability
to capitalize wages and burdens for this particular year. The 2012 increase is mainly
due to the hiring of an assistant to the superintendent.

2. The fluctuation in the SCADA expense is the result of this particular employees time
alternating between various tasks as required and different company cost allocations.
4-Energy Probe-29 part i provides an in-depth analysis of the changes in wage
allocations.

3. The substation operation and maintenance program has been expanded on an on-
going basis for needed repairs and operational needs.

4. The operations overhead distribution transformers have some larger increases in
2009 and 2010 and then come down again in 2011 and 2012. The elimination of
pole trans that are prone to failure is a key driver for this expense account.

5. The miscellaneous distribution account declined in 2011 and 2012 because
insurance is no longer being allocated here, but rather now to 5635 and 5640
Insurance accounts in G&A. 2013 increases slightly to accommodate some of the
training expenses that will no longer be allowed to be burdened and capitalized under
MCGAAP.
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6. The rent account was never used historically until 2013, when MCGAAP prevents the
burdening of rent that could end up capitalized. Going forward this account will track
rent for stores and garage outside of the burden process. In 2009 there is an
approved OEB budget amount of $30,000. Since this account was never in use until
2013, it is unclear what previous management’s thoughts were on the required $30k
budget for this account. It appears likely that upon review of the general and
administration expenses, where rent was missing in the 2009 OEB approved that the
wrong rent line was selected in Operations instead of G&A.
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5105-0000-00 Mtce Supervision & Engineering 62,000 61,532 53.872 110,368 133.263 60,000
5110-0000-00 Mtce of Station Buildings 26.000 11,523 11,674 6,364 10,728 12,000
5114-0000-00 Mtce Substn Equipment 59,600 46,985 84,325 45,212 56,938 52,000
5120-0000-00 Mtce Poles, Towers & Fixtures 68,225 136,579 137,523 167,965 180,084 184,000
5125-0000-00 Mtce OH Conductor & Devices 263.500 325373 394.515 402,086 320.012 324,000
5130-0000-00 Mtce of OH Senvices 189,000 194,502 189.258 268,242 165,647 172,200
5135-0000-00 Mtce OH Dist Right of Way 190,534 151,176 154,774 150,791 197.211 100,000
5145-0000-00 Mtce of UG Conduit 10,000
5150-0000-00 Mtce UG Conductor & Devices 120,000 131,849 96,017 104,815 117,438 117,000
5155-0000-00 Mtce of UG Services 236,500 253,301 242 337 246,024 239,402 228,000
5160-0000-00 Mtce Line Transformers 100,000 45,373 41.152 63.544 70,561 75,000
5175-0000-00 Mtce of Meters 259.500 286,221 174,645 242,710 248,054 241,700
5190-0000-00 Mtce W/Htr Controls-Labour
1,574,859 1,645,455 1,580,092 1,818,120 1,739,338 1,565,900
Change 70,596 (65,363) 238,028 (78,782) (173,438)
Actual to
Approvd 2009 2008 fo 2010 2010 to 2011 2011 to 2012 2012 to 2013
VARIANCE =~ VARIANCE = VARIANCE = VARIAMNCE = VARIANCE

5105-0000-00 Mtce Supemvision & Engineering (468) (7.,660) 56,496 22,895 (73,263) 1)
5110-0000-00 Mtce of Station Buildings (14.477) 151 (5,310) 4,364 1,272
5114-0000-00 Mtce Substn Equipment (12,615) 37,340 (39.,113) 11,726 (4,938) 2)
5120-0000-00 Mtce Poles, Towers & Fixtures 67,354 1,944 30,442 12,120 3.916
5125-0000-00 Mtce OH Conductor & Devices 61,873 69,142 7.571 (82,074) 3,988
5130-0000-00 Mtce of OH Services 5,502 (5,244) 78,984 (102,535) 6,553
5135-0000-00 Mtce OH Dist Right of Way (39.358) 3,598 (3.983) 46.420 97.211) 3)
5145-0000-00 Mtce of UG Conduit - 10,000 (10,000) -
5150-0000-00 Mtce UG Conductor & Devices 11,859 (35,842) 8,798 12,623 (438)
5155-0000-00 Mtce of UG Services 16,831 (10,994) 3.687 (6.622) (11,402)
5160-0000-00 Mtce Line Transformers (54.627) (4.221) 22,392 T.017 4439
5175-0000-00 Mtce of Meters 28.721 (113.576) 68,065 5,343 (6.354) 4)
5190-0000-00 Mtce W/Htr Controls-Labour - - - - -
5070-0000-00 Opr Customer Premise - Labour 70,596 (65,363) 236,028 (78.782) (173.438)

1. The maintenance and supervision has higher amounts in 2011 and 2012 because
two supervisors were needed for a period of time to plan for the superintendent
retiring. Partway through 2012 the superintendent retired and one of these positions
was promoted. In 2013 a decline is seen as a result of the position change as well.

going basis for needed repairs and operational needs.

The substation operation and maintenance program has been expanded on an on-

In 2013 a decision has been made to change to a 4 year cycle from a 3 year cycle to

help ameliorate rate impacts on customers. This deferral is not seen as a risk to
reliability or safety due to the accomplishments in this area in 2009 through 2012.
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Maintenance of meters is lower in the 2009 to 2010 variance because so much work
was being done on the new smart meter installation. It allowed for very little
maintenance activity.

General comment: some fluctuation in account allocation is evident with the
retirement of the superintendent and just general inconsistency in account selection
of expenses. Going forward information has been provided so that expenses and
time is more accurately tracked and posted on a consistent basis.

BILLING & COLLECTION

OEB Approved
2009 December 2009 December 2010 December 2011 December 2012 December 2013

Billing and collecting:

5305-0000-00 Billing Supervision 49,000 13.420 46,131 60,035 84,000
5310-0000-00 Meter Reading Expense 85,000 87.467 59,108 46,175 28,287 12,000
£310-0000-04 Meter Read - Smart Meter Operations 209,440 180,000
5315-0000-00 Customer Billing 489,093 492,772 491,705 386,889 370,657 372,000
5315-0000-04 Cust Billing - Smart Meter Operations 114,604 60,000
5315-0001-00 Customer Billing -Retailer Exp 15 1,362 10,720 7,200
5315-0002-00 EBT& EMERA Expense 84,567 87,803 80,803 77,664 79,476
5315-0003-00 Customer Final Bill Refunds 48 1,185 (340) (593) -
5315-0004-00 Bank Charges 14,267 15,600
5320-0000-00 Collecting 69,000 59,618 104,753 86,670 100,646 93,000
5320-0001-00 Collecting - Insurance - Business Credit 16,000 17,280 26,586
5325-0000-00 Collecting Cash Over & Short 1,042 (57) 4,495 (73) -
5335-0000-00 Bad Debt Expense 70,000 82,135 93,161 58,408 82,323 84,000
5415-0000-00 Energy Conservation 8.041 5117
762,093 521,070 875,715 731,709 1,085,258 1,013,562
Change 58,977 54,645 (144,005) 353,548 (71,396)
Actual to

Approvd 2009 2009 fo 2010 2010 fo 2011 2011 to 2012 2012 to 2013
VARIAMCE  VARIAMCE VARIANCE VARIANCE WARIANMCE

1.

Billing and collecting:

5305-0000-00 Billing Supervision (35,580) (13.420) 46,131 13,904 23,965 1)
5310-0000-00 Meter Reading Expense 2,467 1,641 (42,933) (17.888) (16,287) 2)
5310-0000-04 Meter Read - Smart Meter Ope - 209.440 (29,440) 3)

5315-0000-00 Customer Billing 3.679 (1,067)  (104,816) (16.231) 1,343
5315-0000-04 Cust Billing - Smart Meter Opel - - - 114,604 (54,604) 4)
15 1,347 9.358 (3.520)

5315-0001-00 Customer Billing -Retailer Exp -
5315-0002-00 EBT& EMERA Expense 84,567 3.236 (7.000) (3.139) 1,812 5)
5315-0003-00 Customer Final Bill Refunds 48 1,137 (1,526) (253) 593
5315-0004-00 Bank Charges - - - 14,267 1,333
5320-0000-00 Collecting (9.382) 45135 (18.083) 13,976 (7.646)
5320-0001-00 Collecting - Insurance - Busines - 16,000 1,280 9,306
5325-0000-00 Collecting Cash Over & Short 1,042 (1.099) 4,552 (4.568) 73
5335-0000-00 Bad Debt Expense 12,135 11,026 (34.755) 23,917 1,677 B)
5415-0000-00 Energy Conservation - 8,041 (2,924) (5,117) -
58,977 54,645 (144.005) 353,648 (71.396)

In 2009, the billing supervisor went on a sudden disability leave and was never able
to return. The billing supervision allocation appears to have never been adjusted for
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employees and contract workers filling in. This corrects in 2011. An outside service
was required in 2010 to assist with the fill-in for the disabled employee and the cost
for the support was significant. Please see 4-SEC-11 which provides more details
and expands on the fluctuating seen in general in this category for 5305, 5315, 5320.

2. Meter reading expense declines with the implementation of smart meters in 2009.

3. Meter reading — Smart Meter Operations is a new account with the implementation of
new smart meters. It increases in 2012 with the accumulated deferral account
allocated fully to the expense in the year. 2013 declines because the prior year
includes more than one year of operations expense in the allocation of the deferral.

4. Same as 3 above.

5. The EBT & EMERA expense does not appear to have been budgeted in the OEB
2009 approved year.

6. The average bad debt expense is $80,000 over the 5 years. The OEB approved in
2009 is $70k and the 2013 forecast is $84,000 which is reasonable.

COMMUNITY RELATIONS

OEB Approved
2009 December 2008 December 2010 December 2011 December 2012 December 2013

5425-0000-00 Misc Cust Ser&lnform Expenses 107,389 103,213 158,630 144,911 133,479 138,000
Change (4,176) 55,317 (13,619) (11,431) 4,521

Actual to
Approvd 2008 2008 to 2010 2010 to 2011 2011 fo 2012 2012 to 2013
VARIAMCE WVARIANCE WVARIANCE WVARIANMCE VARIANCE

5425-0000-00 Misc Cust Ser&Inform Expenses (4.176) 55,317 (13.619) (11,431) 4.5

1. Looking at the Miscellaneous Customer Service & Information expense account on
its own makes meaningful analysis difficult. The analysis in 4-SEC-11 provides a
detailed analysis of the variance. The issue seems to be with the allocation of wages
within this category and other billing and collecting accounts that include wages.
There was shuffling around of job positions with one staff person in billing going on a
sudden disability leave. But the overall analysis in 4-SEC-11 provides a much more
consistent view.
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2009 December 2009 December 2010 December 2011 December 2012 December 2013
General & Administration:
5605 5610 5615 Executive, Management, Admin Salaries & Expenses 747,241 736,804 619,531 672,693 872,221 831.600
5620-0000-00 Office Supplies & Expenses T9
5630-0000-00 Qutside Senices 181,500 183,125 150,000 146,229 306,333 216.000
5635-0000-00 Property Insurance 2,000 671 1,506 35412 28117 28,887
5640-0000-00 Injuries and Damages 1,000 2,105 46,803 53.947 64,800
5646-0000-01 Employee Pensions & OPEB - Cur Senice Cost 7,681 9,114
5646-0000-02 Employee Pensions & OPEB - Interest Cost 18,496 17,297
5646-0000-03 Employee Pensions & OPEB - Actuarial Gain/Loss 1,118
5646-0000-04 Employee Pensions & OPEB - Past Senice Cost 4,087 4,087
5646-0000-05 Employee Pensions & OPEB - Contribution Payments (30,616) (28,310)
5655-0000-00 Regulatory Expenses 43,000 29,515 34,323 42,004 84,015 81,000
5660-0000-00 General Advertising Expenses 7.500 2184 2,000
5665-0000-00 Miscellaneous General Expenses 5,000 1,971 (8.662)
5665-0001-00 Misc Gen Exp - Membership Fees & Dues - 81,253 90,000
5670-0000-00 Rent 40,000 40,000 43,200 43,200 43,200
5675-0000-00 Maintenance of General Plant 21,500 22140 22 459 91,537 22,372 30,000
5680-0000-00 Electrical Safety Author Fees 8,365 8,518 6,699 7.011 8,040
5681-0000-00 OEB Special Purpose Charge Expense
6105-0000-00 Taxes Other Than Income Taxes 1,602
6205-0000-00 Donations - 4,495 25,225 21,000
6205-0001-00 Low-Income Energy Assistance - - - 5,864 7,693 10,465
Total General & Administration 1,008,741 1,022,725 1,077,939 1,096,985 1,524 557 1,430,298

13,984 55,214 19,046 427,571 (94,258)
Actual to

Approvd 2009 2009 to 2010 2010 to 2011 2011 to 2012 2012 to 2013
VARIANCE  VARIANCE WVARIAMCE VWARIANCE WVARIANCE

5605 5610 5615 Executive, Management, Admin Salaries & Expenses

5620-0000-00 Office Supplies & Expenses
5630-0000-00 Outside Senvices
5635-0000-00 Property Insurance
5640-0000-00 Injuries and Damages

5646-0000-01 Employee Pensions & OPEB - Cur Service Cost
5646-0000-02 Employee Pensions & OPEB - Interest Cost

5646-0000-03 Employee Pensions & OPEB - Actuarial Gain/Loss -
5646-0000-04 Employee Pensions & OPEB - Past Service Cost -

5646-0000-05 Employee Pensions & OPEB - Contribution Payments

5655-0000-00 Regulatory Expenses

5660-0000-00 General Advertising Expenses
5665-0000-00 Miscellaneous General Expenses
5665-0001-00 Misc Gen Exp - Membership Fees & Dues
5670-0000-00 Rent

5675-0000-00 Maintenance of General Plant
5680-0000-00 Electrical Safety Author Fees
5681-0000-00 DEB Special Purpose Charge Expense
6105-0000-00 Taxes Other Than Income Taxes
6205-0000-00 Danations

6205-0001-00 Low-Income Energy Assistance

Total General & Administration

(10,437 82727  (146,838) 199,527 (40,621) 1)
- - 79 (79) -
1,625 (33.125) (3.771) 160,104 (90,333) 2)
(1,329) 835 33,906 (7.295) 770 3)
1,105 (2.108) 46,803 7.144 10,853 3)

- - - 7,681 1433 4)
- - - 18,496 (1,199) 4)
- - - 1,118 4)
- - 4,087 -4
- - - (30,616) 2306 4)
(13.485) 4,808 7,681 42,011 (3.015) &)
(7.500) - - 2,184 (184)
(5.000) - 1,971 (10,632) 8,662
- - - 81,253 B.748 6)
40,000 - 3.200 - -7
540 320 69,078 (69,165) 7628 8)
5,364 153 (1.820) 312 1,029 L~
- 1,602 (1.602) - -
- - 4,495 20,730 (4.225)
- - 5,864 1,829 2,772
13,964 55,214 19,046 427.571 (94,258)

1.

In 2012 there was significant overtime and extra effort by staff and the board put into
tasks required for the PowerStream sale of shares.

There was also a retirement

allowance paid in 2012. Some change in the allocation between outside services
and the actual wages accounts charged from the Solutions Company is also evident.
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Higher accounting fees in 2012 were required to deal with the absence of the CFO
and assist with duties required for the PowerStream sales of shares. These
accounting costs are not share transaction costs. Additional legal was also required
for the review of the new Infrastructure Ontario loan.

. As per note 5 in the Operations section, the miscellaneous distribution account
declined in 2011 and 2012 because insurance is no longer being allocated there, but
rather now to 5635 and 5640 Insurance accounts in G&A.

. New accounts set up to track changes in the employee future benefits in accordance
with OEB handbook direction.

Increasing regulatory expenses the result of ongoing increases in fees and
requirements by the OEB as well as the significant expense incurred for the
application which will be written off over 4 years.

Prior to 2012 membership expenses were mainly recorded in General and
Administrative costs (accounts 5610 and 5615). Starting in 2012 these items are
being recorded in G&A account 5665 - Miscellaneous General Expenses, consistent
with the Accounting Procedures Handbook.

In 2009 there is an approved OEB budget amount of $30,000 rent in Operations, but
there is no actual expense. See note 5 operation section above. It appears likely
that upon review of the general and administration expenses, where rent was missing
in the 2009 OEB approved that the wrong rent line was selected in Operations
instead of G&A.

Maintenance charges from Collingwood Public Utilities Service Board (Water
Company) in 2011 peak for property and building maintenance work and the
allocation of a unionized employee in water performing the duties that are now
conducted at a lower cost by an outside cleaning contractor.
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4-Enerqy Probe-28

Ref: Exhibit 4, Tab 4, Schedule 3
a) What is the relationship between the $72,000 noted on line 7 and the
$172,800 shown in Table 1?
b) Please provide more detail on the rent charged directly to OM&A. In
particular, what is being rented and from whom is it being rented?
Response
a) The $72,000 noted on line 7 of E4/T4/S3 represents an estimate of the amount of

rent, sick, vacation and training that previously would have been capitalized from
the burden accounts prior to the change to MCGAAP. The $172,800 shown in
Table 1 is the total rent that was previously burdened to operations, stores and
vehicle. When the burdens were allocated most would end up in O&M accounts,
but some would end up in capital. The following table which is from Appendix 2-J
outlines the breakdown for the $72,000 estimate as follows:

2013

Capitalization CGAAP 2013 MIFRS | Increase in
MIFRS - Costs no longer capitalized: 2013 Total % (CGAAP) Capitalized | Capitalized OME&A
Stores - Rent $ 86,400 50.0%| $ 43200 | $ - $ 43,200
Vehicle - Rent $ 86,400 8.4%| $ 7232 | % - $ 7,232
Sick expense $ 17,600 8.4%| $ 1473 | % - $ 1,473
Vacation expense % 96,600 8.4%| $ 8,085 % - $ 8,085
Safety and fraining expense $ 139,300 8.4%| § 11659 | $ - $ 11,659
Total $ 426,300 $ 71650 | $ - $ 71650

The following table shows how rent was posted before and after the change to MCGAAP:

Under MCGALP

ACCT DESCRIPTION MONTHLY ANMNUALLY
5098 Rent- Stores & Operations centre 14 400 172, 800
5670 Rent- General & Administration 3,600 43 200
18,000 216,000
Previous Allocation before MCGAAP - (2012 and prior)
ACCT DESCRIPTION MONTHLY ANMNUALLY
9040 Burden - Stores 7,200 86,400
9070 Budren - Vehicles 7,200 86,400
5670 Rent- General & Administration 3,600 43, 200
18,000 216,000
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b) Collus PowerStream rents the land and building it uses for operations and
administration from Collingwood Public Utilities Service Board at a cost of
$216,000 annually. The administration building, land, stores, and vehicle garage
are part of this rent. The shared services agreement recently completed by
Howard Gorman and included in the interrogatory responses, includes the cost
allocation to support the amount charged for building rent.
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4-SEC-16
[Ex.4/4/3/p.1]
Please explain the changes in the allocated rent for Storages and Vehicles.

Response

Please refer to 4.0-Staff-23
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4-Enerqgy Probe-29

Ref:

a)

b)

d)

f)

9)

h)

Exhibit 4, Tab 4, Schedule 4

Please explain why Collus PowerStream incurred any costs in 2012 related
to the 50% share transaction with PowerStream and the parent company of
Collus PowerStream.

Please provide the total costs included in the 2012 OM&A of $4,843,305
associated with the 50% share transaction with PowerStream. Please also
provide a breakdown of these costs.

Would the costs associated with the 50% share transaction with
PowerStream be considered a one-time cost to Collus PowerStream? If not,
please explain why not.

Please provide the cost in 2012 associated with the buy out/early retirement
for a former senior employee. Has Collus PowerStream had any similar
costs in 2009 through 2011? If yes, please quantify by year. Are any similar
costs forecast for 2013? If yes, please quantify.

If not included in the response to part (b) above, please provide the 2012
costs paid to Solutions for additional services they provided on the
transaction.

If not included in the response to part (b) above, please provide the
additional 2012 costs associated with the audit associated with the share
acquisition.

Does Collus PowerStream expect to issue any new debt in 2013? If no,
please provide the additional legal cost incurred in 2012 associated with the
review of the Infrastructure Ontario loan.

Please indicate the level of legal costs incurred in 2012 associated with the
PowerStream share transaction if these costs are not included in the
response to part (b) above.

Please explain the increase forecast for 2013 for load dispatching costs that
result from an employee's time now being more fully allocated to work in
Collus PowerStream rather than the water affiliate as a direct result of a
change in his activities. In particular, please explain how this function was
performed before and after the change in activities and why there is an
increase in the costs.
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Response

a)

b)

d)

Collus PowerStream incurred no “Sales Transaction Costs” in 2012 related to the
50% share transaction with PowerStream and the parent company of Collus
PowerStream because they were re-billed to the shareholder, The Town of
Collingwood, and reimbursed by them. However, in 2012, Collus PowerStream
did pay some additional general and administrative costs that were not “Sales
Transaction Costs”, but were incurred as a result of the transaction. These
additional costs have been provided in 1-Energy probe-2.

The total costs included in the 2012 OM&A of $4,843,305 associated with the
50% share transaction with PowerStream have been provided in 1-Energy probe-
2.

The costs associated with the 50% share transaction with PowerStream would be
considered a one-time cost to the Town of Collingwood, not Collus PowerStream
because they were paid by the Town.

The additional general and administrative costs (see 1-Energy Probe-2) that were
not “Sales Transaction Costs”, but were incurred as a result of the transaction are
mostly one-time costs. The Infrastructure Ontario legal fees for new debt will
continue as a result of on-going capital financing requirements and maintenance
of the 60-40 debt to equity structure in the amount of about $12,000. The
additional audit will not be required, but June 30™ interim financial statements are
now required for Infrastructure Ontario for the new debt covenants and this was
not previously required. Part of the July 31, 2012 audit was also used to satisfy
year-end audit requirement work as well. Going forward dividends to the
shareholder will be declared which were never done in the past and related legal
and accounting fees will be payable. A reasonable estimate would be that $20-
25k of the extra 2012 audit and accounting fees are going to make up part of the
on-going expense requirements of the corporation in future years.

Collus PowerStream will not disclose the cost in 2012 associated with the buy
out/early retirement for a former senior employee as this constitutes confidential
personal information. Collus PowerStream has not had any similar costs in 2009
through 2011. No similar costs are forecasted for 2013. No buy/out retirements
were initiated by the PowerStream deal.

There are no 2012 costs paid to Solutions for additional services they provided on
the transaction.

The only indirect additional expenses paid to Solutions would be for unused
vacation time for executive members and bonuses for extra work performed by
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shared employees related to the sales transaction. Please refer to exhibit 4/tab
4/schedule 5 Compensation table for further information.

Part (b) above, includes a reference to 1-Energy Probe-2 which provides the
additional 2012 costs associated with the audit associated with the share
acquisition.

Yes, Collus PowerStream expects to issue new debt in 2013.

All legal costs were paid by the Town of Collingwood in 2012 associated with the
PowerStream share transaction. The only legal costs incurred by Collus
PowerStream were for the review of the new Infrastructure Ontario loan as
included in 1-Energy Probe-2.

The increase forecast for 2013 for load dispatching costs result from an
employee's time now being more fully allocated to work in Collus PowerStream
rather than the water affiliate as a direct result of a change in his activities. The
water affiliate required additional services to set up their own SCADA system and
this employee assisted with the IT infrastructure installation process which is now
complete. The water staff now maintains their own SCADA system independently.
Also, two new IT employees have been hired in Collus PowerStream Solutions to
deal with the ever growing IT needs of the Water Company, The Town, and
Collus PowerStream. So this particular SCADA employee has much less IT
involvement for other companies.

Another explanation for the increase is that account 1532 Renewable Connection
OM&A deferral account had the following amounts tracked for the SCADA
employee’'s work on renewable connection, which has not had any further
allocation to the deferral account after May 2012.

2010  25,768.04
2011  27,783.14
2012 17,236.12

70,787.30

This employee also handles some of the operation building maintenance issues.
As the employee’s tasks change the accounts to which his salary is allocated also
change. In a small utility the flexibility to wear many hats is important. Going
forward this SCADA employee will be redirecting more of his time to the Collus
PowerStream SCADA system and working in conjunction with PowerStream on
planned projects such as, Master Station and Control Room Interoperability. His
focus on his primary SCADA job is necessary and therefore the ability to split his
time to many areas has been limited.
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4.0-Staff-25

Ref: E4/T4/S5, p.3 Tablel and E4/T4/S5, p.4 Table 2 and E4/T5/S1, p.1 — Total
Compensation

For the 2013 Test Year Table 1 shows a total compensation amount of $2,459,679 and
a total compensation charged to OM&A of $2,253,759. Table 2 — Changes in Salaries
and Wages 2009 to 2013 shows total Salary and Wages of $2,035,604.

a) Please reconcile the two tables.

On page 1 of E4/T5/S1 Collus PowerStream states that PowerStream’ Inc’s purchase of
50% interest in Collingwood Utility Service Corp. (CUSC, “allows for the efficiencies of
scale and provides cumulative benefits and savings” as well as “benefits are: provision
of strategic and specialized resources such as back office support in finance and
regulatory processes”.

b) Please provide further detailed explanation for the 86% increase in non-union
and part-time salaries in 2013 over 2009 actual.

i. Please discuss the impact of PowerStreams purchase of 50% interest
in Collingwood Utility Service Corp. (CUSC) on wages, in particular for
non-union and part-time staff.

ii. Please discuss any efficiency gains in the test year. Please provide a
forecast of expected efficiency gains for the subsequent years.

iii. If there are no gains, please explain why.

Response

a) E4/T4/S5, Table 1, page 3 shows the following in the third section down
entitled “Total Salaries and Wages”:

Executive &

Management 429,991.00
Non-Union + Part Time  715,626.00
Union 889,987.00

2,035,604.00

These amounts exactly agree to E4/T4/S5, table 2, page 4. Table two
provides a summary of changes in the total salaries and wages. This does not
include benefits, accrued pension, and post-retirement benefits.

b) The actual increase in total non-union and part-time staff is only $194,997 or
22% before allocations to affiliate corporations through Collus PowerStream
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Solutions. Work load for the Town of Collingwood and Collingwood Public
Utilities Service Board (Water Company) fluctuates based on the direct
activities of employees. A greater allocation in recent years to Collus
PowerStream is a result of increasing demands related to smart meters, more
complex billing and collecting regulations, time-of-use billing, a new customer
billing software, the complexity of the number of electricity rate classes,
increased regulatory requirements, 2012 cost of service application,
conservation and demand, IFRS, changes to capital asset policies and
modifications of their useful lives, and the growth in the community and the
infrastructure. The reason for the increase from 2009 to 2013 is summarized
in the table below:

Total Non-Union+Part-time
Collus PowerStream & Collus
PowerStream Solutions

Less Shared Employees from
Solutions Charged to Affiliates

Total Non-Union+Part-time as
per Table 1 Compensation

2009 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
LRY - . . . .
LRY - Historical Historical ;
Board Actual Year 2 Year 1 Bridge Year Test Year
Approved
895,600 899,014 926,602 983,556 1,090,597
(510,492) (489,963) (509,631) (446,801) (374,971)
385,108 409,052 416,971 536,755 715,626
Increase $ $330,518
Increase % 86%
Increase attributable to allocation difference 41% $135,521
Increase attributable to wage increases (approx) 15% $48,670
Increase attributable to new hires / succession planning 44% $146,327
100% $330,518

Over the last five years only one entry level Customer Service Representative
was hired and one operations support person to assist the Superintendent. All
other positions in this category have remained the same.

Notably, from 2010 to 2012 we had staff turnover of six key employees in just
these few years. The CFO, Controller, Superintendent, Regulatory Manager, and
Billing Clerk retired and the Senior Billing Clerk went off on a sudden disability
leave. Some of these positions are executive level, but all of them put extra strain
on the workload of the entire staff and required an overlap of employees for
succession planning that impacts the non-union category.

i. The impact of PowerStream’s purchase of 50% interest in Collingwood
Utility Service Corp. (CUSC) has had no impact on wages in general or on
wages related to non-union and part-time staff at this point in time.
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There are no efficiency gains in the test year. Strategic and specialized
resources such as back office support in finance and regulatory processes
relate more to the replacement of outside regulatory consultants and
service providers. The company has no intention of reducing staff levels
through the termination of employment. The expectation of efficiency
gains related to staff in subsequent years may eventually occur through the
normal retirement process.

E4/T1/S2 page two states, “Although savings are not guantifiable at this
time Collus PowerStream believes that the partnership will assist in future
mitigation of upward pressure on distribution rates.” The PowerStream
deal was dated July 31%, 2012 with final closing not until March 1, 2013.
Therefore, it would not be reasonable to have any expectations that
efficiency gains could be realized this quickly. It is too premature to
determine what those savings will be. Also, please refer to the response
for interrogatory 1-Energy Probe-4 and 4-Energy Probe-26.
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The evidence on page 2 indicates unionized increases of 2.5%, 3.0% and 3.0%, but
lists four years (2010 through 2013). Please show the increases applicable to

each of 2010, 2011, 2012 and 2013.

Response:
2010 2011 2012 2013
40 Adjustment 3% 3% In negotiations
+2.5%
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4-Enerqgy Probe-31

Ref: Exhibit 4, Tab 4, Schedule 5

a) Does Table 1 reflect actual final data for 20127 If not, please update Table 1

to reflect actual data for 2012.

b) Please provide a table for 2009 through 2013 that shows the total incentive
paid each year, the total potential incentive available each year and the
corresponding ratio of incentive payments to maximum incentives

available.

c) Please provide the type of performance targets that are used to evaluate the
amount of incentive payment available to each of the four categories of

employees shown under Variable Compensation in Appendix B.
Response

a) Yes, table 1 reflects actual final data for 2012.

b) Total incentive pay compared to potential available and the corresponding ratio:

2009 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
sowd | KRS | Hitorcal | Hetorcal | RG0S | rest veus
Approved
| Compensation - Yearly Incentive Pay |
Executive & Management - 16,500 21,634 20,350 74,525 32,662
Non-Union+Part-time - 2,750 3,465 2,475 3,850 3,754
Union - - - = - -
Total - 19,250 25,099 22,825 78,375 36,416
Potential Incentive 48,400 50,600 42,350 97,350 53,900
Ratio 39.77% 49.60% 53.90% 80.51% 67.56%

*2012 increase result of extra workload related to the PowerStream closing. 2013 returns to normalized levels.

c) Annual incentive bonuses are meant to be motivational. They are designed to
reward employees for fulfilling their responsibilities and for delivering superior

results. Bonus targets and their associated payouts reflect:

e arange of expected levels of performance (minimum to maximum)
e various levels of difficulty of specific tasks
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¢ the likelihood of achievement

¢ the timeliness of completion

e shareholder satisfaction

e customer satisfaction

e the economic health of the company

Performance targets that are used.
— Individual performance targets established annually.

— Incentive/Bonus Payment Structure:
~ President & CEO — up to 10% of salary
~ Executive Management — up to 8% of salary
~Management — up to 3% of salary
~ Others — up to 1.5% of salary
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4-SEC-17
[Ex.4/4/5/Appendix B]
Please detail the Incentive/Bonus Payment system.

Response

Please refer to 4-Energy Probe -31
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4-Enerqgqy Probe-32

Ref: Exhibit 4, Tab 4, Schedule 7 &
Exhibit 2, Tab 2, Schedule 1 &
RRWF

The depreciation expense for 2013 found in Table 2 of Exhibit 4, Tab 4, Schedule 7
matches that found in Table 7 of Exhibit 2, Tab 2, Schedule 1.

a) Please explain the difference in the depreciation expense of $946,065 found
in Table 7 of Exhibit 2, Tab 2, Schedule 1 and the expense of $948,979 found
in the RRWF.

b) Please explain why in Table 7 of Exhibit 2, Tab 2, Schedule 1, an amount of
$35,241 is added to the depreciation expense for stranded meters, when
stranded meters have been removed from rate base at the end of 2012.

Response

a) The $2,914 difference in the depreciation expense of $946,065 found in Table 7 of Exhibit
2, Tab 2, Schedule 1 and the expense of $948,979 found in the RRWF has been explained
in the table below:

E2/T2/S1 RRWF
Table7

Accumulated Amortization Addition 1,102,871.00 1,102,871.00

Less Burdened Vehicle Amortization  (192,047.00) (192,047.00)

Add Stranded Meter Amortization 35,241.00

Add Amortization of Intangible assets 8,155.00

Add Derecognition Expense 30,000.00
946,065.00 948,979.00

b) In Table 7 of Exhibit 2, Tab 2, Schedule 1, an amount of $35,241 is added to the
depreciation expense for stranded meters because even though stranded meters have been
removed from PP&E at the end of 2012, the amortization continues on the stranded meters
sitting in regulatory assets until September 1, 2013 when new rates become effective.
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4-SEC-18
[Ex.4/4/7/p.2]
Where applicable, please explain the Applicant’s variance from the Asset Depreciation

Study conducted by Kinectrics.

Response

Please refer to 2.0-VECC-10
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4.0-Staff-26

Ref: E4/T4/S8, Appendix A 2012 Income Tax Return: Schedule 1-Net Income(loss)
for Income Tax Purposes; E4/T4/S8, Appendix B, Income Tax/PILS Work form (WF)
for 2013 Filers: Adjusted Taxable Income-Bridge Year Tab

Board staff notes the differences between the amounts in the PILS WF, Adjusted Table
Income Bridge Year, and Schedule 1 of the 2012 income tax return for the following
items: net income before PILs, and the amortization of tangible assets and the reserve
balance from the financial statements, at the end of the year for 2012 was performed
Board staff notes the differences in the table below.

2012 Bridge Year

Net Income Amortization of Reserves from the Financial
Before PILS Tangible Assets Statements-bal. at the end of the
year
PILS WF: Adjusted 680,119 1,888,095 365,620
Taxable Income
2012 Income Tax $468,411 $1,053,169 $336,468
Return- Sch.1
Difference 211,708 834,926 29,152

a) Please explain and reconcile the differences.

b) Please confirm if the data used in the PILS WF for Adjusted Taxable Income
conforms to the figures in the Income Tax Return for the bridge year. If not,
please make the necessary adjustments.

Response:
a) Net Income before PILs:

The amount of $468,411 shown in the table above is the net income before
adjustments on schedule 1 of the 2011 tax return. The corresponding amount
from the 2012 tax return is $145,964.

Please note that there are two sets of tax returns in E4/T4/S8 Appendix A, first is
the tax return for the year ending December 31, 2011, followed by the tax return
for the year ended December 31, 2012.

The amount of $680,119 is the after-tax Board allowed rate of return on the 2012
calculated rate base amount. Collus used this amount in the PILs WF so that
2012 PILs calculation is consistent with and comparable to the test year
calculation.
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The most comparable number on the 2012 tax return is the $145,964 net income
from the financial statements plus the add back of the accounting tax provisions
of ($19,068) current taxes and $179,288 deferred taxes for a net income before
taxes of $306,184. The difference of $373,935 ($680,119-$306,184) simply
indicates that Collus earned less than the allowed rate of return in 2012.

Amortization of Tangible Assets:

The amount of $1,053,169 shown in the table above is the amortization of
tangible assets before adjustments on schedule 1 of the 2011 tax return. The
corresponding amount from the 2012 tax return is $1,739,853.

The amount of $1,888,095 is the total amount of depreciation calculated for 2012.
Please see the response to 2.0-Staff-6 for further details on the amounts of
$1,888,095 and $1,739,853, and the difference of $148,242.

The amount of $1,793,852 represents the depreciation of $1,888,095, used in the
PILs WF, reduced by the depreciation on transportation equipment of $179,188
and the addition of $22,791 for depreciation on stranded meters recorded in
account 1556 plus amortization of intangible assets of $8,155. In the PILs WF,
Collus has added back the full depreciation booked of $1,888,095, irrespective of
the fact that some of the expense was shown in other lines than depreciation
expense and believes that this is correct. In the tax return only the depreciation
expense shown on the depreciation line has been added back. For tax purposes
all depreciation should be added back then CCA deducted.

Reserves from the Financial Statements-bal. at the end of the year:

The reserve from the financial statements is the Accrued Benefit Obligation (ABO)
for post-retirement benefits. The amount of $365,620 was an estimate based on
the 2011 year end amount of $336,820 plus an average annual increase of
$28,800 from 2009 to 2011. This estimate was used prior to the availability of the
2012 financial statements and tax returns. Updating this based on the information
in the 2012 statements and returns was missed. The updated ABO financial
statement reserve information is summarized in Table Staff-26-1:

Table Staff-26-1: ABO Financial Statement Reserve Information

Year end Amount
2009 $ 281,085
2010 $ 308,029
2011 $ 336,820
2012 $ 336,468
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2009 to 2012 Change

Years

55,383
3

18,461
354,929

Average annual change
Projected 2013

$
$
$
$

This updated information results in new opening and estimated closing balances
for the Financial Statement Reserves in the 2013 Test Year PILs calculation as
discussed further in part (b).

As explained in part (a) above there are some differences between the amounts
used in the 2012 PILS WF and the 2012 tax returns. Collus used the same
Schedule 8 Capital Cost Amounts and Schedule 10 Cumulative Eligible Capital
amounts from the 2012 tax return in the PILs WF.

The only difference that impacts the 2013 Test Year PILs calculation is the
change in the Financial Statement Reserves discussed in part (a) above.

As requested, Collus has updated the PILs WF using the amounts from the 2012
tax return and updating 2013 for the updated financial statement reserve amounts
from part (a).

This has resulted in a change in the 2013 Test year income taxes/PILs from
$73,876 to $71,979. The change in taxable income and resulting tax decrease is
due to the change in the schedule 13 reserve amounts.
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Income Tax/PlLs
Workform for 2013 Filers

++ R

Litility Mame gcmus Power Corp.
Asgigned EB Mumber | EBS-2012-0118
Name and Title | Cindy Shufileworth, Chief Financial Dfficer
Phone Number 7054451500 (2270
Email Address  cshutieworth@oolus com
Date 3Apr-13

Last COS5 Re-based Year 2009

dote: Drop-down lists are shaded blue; Input cells are shaded green.

This Werdook Mode! is protecred by copyright and is being made available ro you solely for the purpose of filing your IRM applicagion.  You may use and copy
thiz model for thar purpose, andmﬂdeawpyﬂfﬂus model o any person thar is advising or assisting you in that regard. Except as indicated above. any
copying, reproducdon, publicadon, sale, adapration. manslation, modiffeation, reverse engineering or ocher use or dissemination of this model without the
express wifmmen consent of the Onzario Enengy Board is prohibited. If you provide a copy of this model 1o a person thar is advising or assisting you in preparnng
the application or reviewing your draft raze order, you must ensure that the person understands and agrees to the restrictions noted above.

While this model has been provided in Exes! format and is required to be filed with the applications. the onus remains on e applican: ro ensure the accuracy of
the data and the results. v
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Income Tax/PlLs

1. Info

A. Data Input Sheet

B. Tax Rates & Exemptlions

C. 5ch 8 Hist

D. Schedule 10 CEC Hist

E. 5ch 13 Tax Reserves Hist
F.Sch 7-1 Loss Cfwd Hist

G. Adj. Taxable Income Historic

Workform for 2013 Filers -

H. PILs,Tax Provision Historic
1. Schedule 8 CCA Bridee Year
1. Schedule 10 CEC Bridee Year

¢
|

5 _s

oy

K. Sch 13 Tax Reserves Bridee
L. S5ch 7-1 Loss Cfwd Bridee
M. Adj. Taxable Income Bridee
N. PILs,Tax Provision Bridee
0. Schedule 8 CCA Test Year
P. Schedule 10 CEC Test Year
Q) Sch 13 Tax Reserve Test Year
R.5ch 7-1 Loss Clwd

S. Taxable Income Test Year

T. PILs Tax Provision
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Income Tax/PlLs
Workform for 2013 Filers

Rate Base $ 20,253,098

Returmn on Ratebase

Deemed ShortTerm Debt % 4.00% T % 810,124 W=S*T
Deemed Long Term Debt % 56.00% u & 11,341,725 X=5*y
Deemed Equity % 40.00% v § 8,101,239 Y=8*y

Short Term Interest Rate 207% z. 5 16,770 AG=W*Z

Long Term Interest 4.05% LY 459121 AD =X *AA
Return on Equity (Regulatory Income) B.98% a3 $ 727,491 AE=Y*AB
Return on Rate Base 5 1,203,382 AF=AG + AD+ AE

Questions that must be answered Historic Bridge Test Year

1. Does the applicant have any Investment Tax Credits (ITC)? [ires Mo [No [
2. Does the applicant have any SRED Expenditures? [ves Mo [No [
3. Does the applicant have any Capital Gains or Losses for tax purposes? [No [No [No |
4. Does the applicant have any Capital Leases? [No [No [Ho |
5. Does the applicant have any Loss Camy-Forwards {non-capital or net capital)? |N-c:| |No |No |
B. Since 1999, has the applicant acquired another requlated applicant's asseis? |Yes |Yes |Yes |
7. Did the applicant pay dividends? [Ho [No [No |

If Yes, please describe what was the tax ireaiment in the manager's summary:

8. Did the applicant elect to capitalize interest incumred on CWIP for tax purposes? [Na [No [No [




Collus PowerStream Corp.
EB-2012-0116

Responses to Interrogatories of
Board Staff and Intervenors
Page 305 of 375

Filed: August 21, 2013

Income Tax/PlLs
Workform for 2013 Filers 4

Py

Tax Rates
Federal & Provincial Effective Effective Effective Effective
As of June 20, 2012 TR RRRERIRAAA FRSRSRRRRA SRR
Federal income tax
General corporate rate 38.00% 38.00% 38.00% 38.00%
Federal tax abatement -10.00% -10.00% -10.00% -10.00%
Adjusted federal rate 28.00% 28.00% 28.00% 28.00%
Rate reduction -11.50% -13.00% -13.00% -13.00%
16.50% 15.00% 15.00% 15.00%
Ontario income tax 11.75% 11.50% 11.50% 11.50%
Combined federal and Ontario 28.25% 26.50% 26.50% 26.50%
Federal & Ontario Small Business
Federal small business threshold 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000
Ontario Small Business Threshold 500,000 500.000 500,000 500,000
Federal small business rate 11.00% 11.00% 11.00% 11.00%

Ontario small business rate 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 4.50%
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Schedule 8 - Historical Year

UCC End of Less: Non- UCE Regulated
Class Class Description Year Historic | Distribution S
: Historic Year
per tax returns Portion
1 Distribution System - post 1987 7,191,139 7,181 139
1 Enhanced |Mon-residential Buildings Reg. 1100{1){a.1) election 0
2 Distribution System - pre 1988 0
8 General Office/Stores Equip 161,095 161,095
10 Computer Hardware! Vehicles 603,296 603,296
101 Certain Automobiles 0
12 Computer Software 525 525
13,4 Lease #1 5
13, Lease #2 0
135 Lease#3 7
13 4 Lease # 4 0
14 Franchise 0
17 New Electrical Generating Equipment Acq'd after Feb 27/00 Other Than Bldgs 0
42 Fibre Optic Cable 0
431 Certain Energy-Efficient Electrical Generating Equipment 0
43.2 Certain Clean Energy Generation Equipment 0
45 Computers & Systems Software acq'd post Mar 22/04 0
46 Data Network Infrastructure Equipment {acq'd post Mar 22/04) 0
47 Distribution System - post February 2005 9,208,802 4,208,802
50 Data Metwork Infrastructure Equipment - post Mar 2007 13,060 13,060
52 Computer Hardware and system software 0
95 CWIP 0
0
0
0
0
0
Q
0
0
0
0
SUB-TOTAL - UCC ATATT, 7 L 17,477,917




Schedule 10 CEC - Historical Year
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Income Tax/PlLs
Workform for 2013 Filers

Cumulative Eligible Capital 582,665
Additions
Cost of Eligible Capital Property Acquired during Test Year
Other Adjustments
Subitotal x34= 0
Non-taxable portion of a non-am's length transferor's gain realized on the x1i2 = o
transfer of an ECP to the Corporation after Friday, December 20, 2002
0

Amount fransferred on amalgamation or wind-up of subsidiary 0

Subtotal ~ 582,665
Deductions
Proceeds of sale (less outlays and expenses not otherwise deductible)
from the disposition of all ECP during Test Year
Other Adjusiments

Subtotal x34= a
Cumulative Eligible Capital Balance 582,665
Current Year Deduction 582,665 XTo%h= 40,787
Cumulative Eligible Capital - Closing Balance 541,878
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Schedule 13 Tax Reserves - Historical

Continuity of Reserves

Page 308 of 375
Filed: August 21, 2013

Description Historical Balance as Hon-Distribetion Ellminations Litility Cenby
per tax retums
Capstal Gains Reserves s5.40(1) [ a
[Tax Reserves Mot Deducted for accounting purposes
Reserse for doubtful accounts ss. 2001)(l) 1]
Reserve for poods and senvices not delivered ss. -
20{1}m) 5
Resene for umpaid amounts ss. 2001)n) a
et & Share Issue Expenses s5. 201 )ie) 4]
Cither tan resenves ']
]
Total 0 0 0
Financial Statement Reserves {not deductible for Tax Purposes)
General Reserve for Inventory Obsolescence o
{non-specfic) i
General resenve for bad debts o
Accnied Employes Future Benefits: 338820 336,820
- Medical and Life Insurance 1]
-Short & Long-term Disabdity 1]
-Acemulated Sick Leave 1]
- Tesmination Corst a
- Oither Post-Employment Bensfits 0
Provision for Environmental Costs 1]
Restruciuring Costs 1]
Accnued Contingent Litigation Costs a
Accrued Self-lnsurance Costs 1]
Cither Contingent Liabilites i
Bonuses Accrued and Not Paid Within 180 Days "
of Year-End ss5. 73{4) i
Linpaid Amounts to Reiated Person and Not Paid 0
Within 2 Tanation Years ss. TA(1) ;)
Cither a
1]
a
Total 336,820 1 336,820
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Income Tax/PILs
Workform for 2013 Filers

.r'.

Schedule 7-1 Loss Carry Forward - Historic

Corporation Loss Continuity and Application

Hon-
Total Distribution | Uitility Balance
Mon-Capital Loss Camry Forward Deduction Portion
Actual Historic 1]
Mon-
Total Distribution | Litility Balance
Met Capital Loss Carry Forward Deduction Portion
Actual Histonc 0




Adjusted Taxable Income - Historic Year
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Income Tax/PlLs
Workform for 2013 Filers

T35 line & Totald for Lagal Hon-Digtribution Historio
Entity Elminations Wires Dinly
Inoomes before PILo Tarss A A6B 411 455 411
AddRicns:
inbzrest and penalies on xes 1403 i |
Amortization of tanghie xcels 104 1,053,169 053.|=5|
Amcstization of intangbée assels 108 [l |
Rempiune of capital oost allowance from Schedule B T |
Sain on e of migihis capitsl propery from Schedue 10 {08 of
rcome O Gss far tax purpset- koint venlures or pardreTships 105 E|
Loss In eguily of subsidiarfes ond affistes 110 o]
5 on disposal of asseis i1 i
Charitabie dorostions 112 i
Taxablx Caplial Gans 113 |
Foatical Donatons 114 o]
Cefemed and prepakd sxpeEnses 116 |
Scientific research expendiures. deducied oo francal salements 11E o]
CapEmized imersst 1% |
Mon-deduciible chb dues and fees 120 EI
Mon-deductibie rmeais and enterinment expenss 12 1,000 |.5|:|E|
Nom-deductibie stomobile ENpENSES 123 i
Mon-deductbie ¥ ncurance premiums EI
Mon-deductbie company pEnsion pEns [ |
Tax reserves deducted in priar year |
Bearyes from financlial statsments- oabeee ot mng of year 336,820 I3IS 20
S0 oosks on comsiruction and renovation of buikiings 127 0
Book ioss on joint vemures or parrerships 205 i |
Capsal e eypensed 20e i
Dbl Issioe Expens= 208 i
Deyenpeent expenses caimad o owrent pEar 212 |
Snancing Tees dedocted ' DOOKS 16 o]
Sain on sfEment of deii 221 |
Mon-deductibie adverising 226 o]
Mon-geductbie inberest 237 |
Mon-deductitie iegal and acoounfing fees 228 EI
Secagture of SRLED svpenditures FEL E|
Zhare issue expenze 235 i |
WWirte down of capital propery 238 EI
Amounts received In respect of guaittying envimnment trst per pamsgraphs 1208z 1) and 12(14z2) 17 i
Chimer Additions |
inferest Expensed on Capital Leases 250 El
Reaized Income from Defermned Cred® ACcoants F1 of
Fenzlons 292 |
Mon-geductibie penaties 233 o]
TaK Drovision EEpEnss 294 125,438 1 ='.13E|
ProvinciaiTCE reiated fo FRA section 9 inclusion FiT 4,087 2.037)
AR AcoreSon sypene EI
Capksi Confribafons Sec=hed {ITA 12(1EED [l
Lemse indunements Recsved (ITA 12( 1)} |
Defered Revenue (ITA 12[1)a0) EI
Pricr ¥ear Investmens Tax Credits neosived E|
Amortization cortained in oier sxperses 152,728 152 ':El
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1}
0|
[
0
o |
[d
i
o
]
Total Adddlons 1,5?-3.252 [[] 1,673,252
Deductions:
Gain on dsposal of asseis per frandsl siements A0 320 120
Dikvidends nof anable ander section 83 anz oj
Caphal cost allowance fom Scheduls & £13 1212578 1.212,578)
Temmiral loss tom Echedue § 04 o
Cumuiabive =igibls cxpEsl deducton from Schedule 10 a0s 40,787 40,787
Mlcaabie business Fvestmant sz £0E v
Defered and prepaik sxpEnses 203 [
Scienific resaanch syperses cabmed i oyear 211 212 502 212,502
Tau Eserves claimed in coment year £13 0
Resenses from fnancial statements - balance at beginning of year 214 30E. 029 208 0zl
Conbibations bo defered Income plans 418 [
Sooll Inoome of joint veniure or partnership 3= I
Eguity in ncome from subsidary or 3™ iaies e b
Ot cedurtions: (Plsans snnkair in detal e name of Me fem)
irf=rest caphalzed for accounting deduci=d for tax 350 b
Capfis! Lease Payments 33 [
Mon-tamabie impoied interess income on defermai and vaiance acoounts 332 0
383 4
334 i
AR Fayrments - Deductinie for Tay when Paid |
A | Bection - Capitsi Comtributions Rsceived I
T 13i7.4) Bection - Apply Lease inducement i cosi of Leassboids [1
Defered Sevenue - [TA 20{1)im] reserve I
Frincipal portion of =ase payments 0
Lease inducement Book Amorization cred iooncome G
FinEncing Tees for taw ITA 208 13je) and je.11 [
[
0
1}
[
[
i
B |
|
Total Deduotlons 1,781,218 o] 1,781,218]
Hat Income for Tax Purposss 360,447 a 360,447
Chartinbie dorabons fom Scheduis I 314 [
Tacable dividends deducibie under section 112 or §13, from BEchedule 3 (5 2 320 oj
Mon-capial iosses of preceding maaton years from Schedubs £ 331 I
hmt-capt ng lxaban years ¥om Schedue 4 ([Frease incude ssapsaton and 332 o
cal imman
Limhed partnership 5 of preceding fauation years from Schedaie 4 33s 1 |
TAXABLE INCOME 360,447 "] 360,447




PlLs Tax Provision - Historic Year

Hote: Input the actual information from the tax ratumns Tor the historic year.

Reguiatory Taxable Incoms

oniarlo Income Taxes

Income fax payable
Small business credi

Ontano Income fax

Combined Tax Rate amd PiLs

Total Income Taxss

Imvesiment Tax Credits
Miscellaneous Tax Credits
Tofal Tax Credits

Ontarie Incoms Tax

Cintario Small Business Threshold
Rate reduction (negatve|}

Effectve Ontario Tax Rate
Federal ax rate
Combined tax rate

Corporate PILe/incoms Tax Provisien for Histarle Year

Income Tax/PILs
Workform for 2013 Filers

w7 |

11.75%

3 500000 D

T25%.

E

3

b
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4233 C=A"B

26,125 F=D*E

4.50%
12.90%

K=d A
L

Wires Only
[E 580247 |a

[ 6330 |J=C+F

TAlRME=K L

[ emin=acm
5 25,511 O
H 10,150 |P
$ 56,861 |@=0+P

E—
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Schedule 8 CCA - Bridge Year

1 Year Huls (NI

Clacs Class: Duscriphizn L;‘::':‘!:._ Adescn |m““::| "':;;:':‘::T'ﬁ Addons Laas Redooed UCT Fale 4 Bridga Yuar £EA [0 n:'i e
- Missosaly
1 Dietribotion Eyciem - poct 1867 E] S RETE 1 T 5 FixmEia | s e T 34 S & 1 oo |8 Fonnios
1 Enhanosd | Honswchdental Buid [ T804 1}ia 1] sdeofion 5 = 5 - 1 = [ 1 - 5 -
2 Diciribotion Syseen - pre 1838 5 - Is - |s - [ 8 - |= -
a Deraral OificerStorss Equip £l A 0es | 5 18 5 iriee |5 aian|s e F-) 8 arals TEREa]
0 Compubsr Hamdware! ¥ ehlolsc E] BEL 25 | 5 LD 5 marieE | Lo | s £ 30 5 s |8 S48 T14
104 | Cariain Samoemobiies 5 - 5 - 5 - 30N 5 - | -
12 Computer Eofheams ] B | 5 Az 3 arn|s 2113 |s z o 00 5 a0 2113
131 Lsaca ¥ 1 3 - |s - |8 5 - |s -
132 Lsacs #2 T 5 [ - £ - |s -
133 Lsace 83 5 - = - s - 5 - |= -
134 Leace #4 5 - = - s - 5 - |s -
i Franchics 5 - |= - s - 5 - |s -
Lo Herw Elsotmioal Censraling Equipmer s Acg'd after Falb Z700 Other Than Bidge 5 - 5 - i - B i - ¥ -
&= Pl gﬂm H - 3 - 3 - ) 1 - 1 -
4.1 Carizdn Eneipy-EfMiclant Elscirical Gensmating Egulpment H - 3 - 3 - 3% 1 - 1 -
835 | ‘Carizin Clsan [© on H - 3 - 3 - = 1 - 1 -
(3 Compuien & Sofbwars a0g'd poct Mar 2004 T B ~ s = A5 T — |® =
] (arfa Mertevors Infrasinocture Equipment (soq'd post Mar 2204 5 - |s - | - el [ - = -
4 Digiribation Freem- 2006 4 HODEEN |3 LAV 2= 3 mEniEn |3 S| BT [ i i [
1] (Cayty Merbwork Infracinestiurs - Mar 2007 £ ] & B B - |u 13080 =] ] ]
[ ‘CompiaeT Harhwiars and waftwan ] B E ] - 0% [ [] -
= [ 3 - |s - % - i - s -
3 - |s - % - i - s -
3 - |s - % - i - s -
] - |z ElE - 1 - |8 -
5 - |z - |t - i - |8 -
5 - |z - |t - i - |8 -
5 - |z - |t - i - |8 -
5 - |z - |t - i - |8 -
T - = - % - 1 1 -
5 - = - s - 1 - |= -
5 - |= - |2 - 1 - |= -
TOTAL [ ITATTT | & Lana AE | 5 - E SRR | § Fozaon |8 AFARA B i im0 |8 N7 BSOS




Schedule 10 CEC - Bridge Year

Cumulative Eligible Capital

Additions
Cost of Eligible Capital Property Acquired during Test Year

Dther Adjustments

Subtotal

Non-taxable portion of a non-amm’s length transfenor's gain realized on the
transfer of an ECP to the Corporation after Friday, December 20, 2002

Amount transferred on amalgamation or wind-up of subsidiary

Deductions

Procesds of sale {less outlays and expenses not othenwise deducthble)
from the disposition of all ECP during Test Year

Dther Adjustments

Subtotal

Cumulative Eligible Capital Balance

Collus PowerStream Corp.

EB-2012-0116

Responses to Interrogatories of
Board Staff and Intervenors

Page 314 of 375

Filed: August 21, 2013

Income Tax/PlLs
Workform for 2013 Filers

x4 = a

xi2= 0

341,878

S41.878

Current Year Deduction

1878 xTh=

Ir.a3

Cumulative Eligible Capital - Closing Balance
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Income Tax/PlLs
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Schedule 13 Tax Reserves - Bridge Year

Continuity of Reserves

Eridgs Vear SAcjucimenic
Chnes it Historie Uty Onky .T:: n"' - :r M';::‘:::"‘“ Al o oot e B "'1::: Hitige ""'-"T::_r"" . [t e Expesams
Cagtal Gk R ves ae 857) [ [ ] [
Tan Fomet s Mol Deducied for scoousing perpoues
Fimia vl ot chensbi = a AN THI o [ ] 0
Rt s fof i mrd Sedvices ot Selvarsd se. 30011} 0 0
Fematve fof ity A ) [l [
Dedt & Shaim Baiie Expaims i 2001 He) 1 ol 1]
o . e 1] 0 0
[ [ b [
i i 1 o
Total ] ] ] ] o o ] ]
Financisl Slatarnes Resarves (rof dodoctibh ko Tas Purgoses)
Carminl Fassren f iromblory OEarmscebcs (ci-spel) [0 o ] [
338, i T35, B3 58 488 EH
i [ i
o i il i
il 1] b 1]
0 i . a)
,. I il
] ] 1
7 o iy 7
[ [
Ot Cafriige L 4] O
Biniamn Arxried at T 1 i ]
i i 1]
] [1 [
0 i ] 0
Total 338,60 0 155, B30 B - H ELEL 53 8
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Income Tax/PlLs
Workform for 2013 Filers

Corporation Loss Continuity and Application

Schedule 7-1 Loss Carry Forward - Bridge Year

Mon-Capital Loss Carry Forward Deduction Total
Actual Historic "]
Application of Loss Cammy Forward to reduce taxable income in Bridge Year
(Other Adjustments Add (+) Deduct (-}

Balance available for use in Test Year ]
Amount to be used in Bridge Year

Balance available for use post Bridge Year 1]
Met Capital Loss Camy Forward Deduction Total
Actual Historic o

Application of Loss Carry Forward to reduce taxable income in Bridge Year
(ther Adjustments Add (+) Deduct (-}

Balance available for use in Test Year ]
Amount to be used in Bridge Year
Balance available for use post Bridge Year i
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Adjusted Taxable Income - Bridge Year

Total for
T251 lins £ Regulated Uity

Incoms befors PILeTaxes & 145,864
Gdditlona:

Inierest and penafiles on fakes 03

Amprizstion of fangike assets 105 1,730,853

Amoriization of iInfanginke assals 106

Recapiure of capial cost aliowancs from e

Schedlle §

Galn on E3e O EligItIe capital proparty Trom o

Schedule 10

Ircome o oS fof f2¢ pUrposet- Joint veniures ina

oF parinerships.

Loss In equity of subsidianss and aMEses 110

Loss 00 dEposa of assets 111

Charltatle donations 142 25,275

Tarabie Capital Galns 113

Poiticai Donations 114

Diefiamed and prepald expenses 116

Scienlific reseanch expendivres teducied on 18

firancis sElemems Y

Capialized nierest 119

hor-dedictbie cub dues and fees 130

Mop-deducble maals and entsrainment 124 1.000

EHDENEE ;

Mor-dedicbie Amomoblie expenses 122

Mon-deductbie e Insurance pramilms 123

hor-deductibie company penslon plans 124

Tan reserves ceduched in prior year 125 a

Resanes from financlal shaterents- balancs s

a1 £ of year 136 335,408

Saft coels on construction and renoviation af ja7

bubdings

Bock o5 00 joint veriures or parneieRips 205

Capial iems expensed 206

Dieht |sEUS Bapenss 208

Dievelopment expenses claimad In cument 21z

year

Flnancing fess degucied In books 216

=ain on settiement of tebl 230

Mor-deductible adveriising 235

Hor-deductible interest 227

Mor-deductible iegat and accounting fees 223

Recapiure of SRAED expendturss 23 107,258

SNare 5508 SXpENEE 235

Wiiie down of capital property 235

Amounts recelved In respect of qualfying

envinonment triest per paragraphs 120152 1) 237

and f{1}z-2)
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Adjusted Taxable Income - Bridge Year

Oihar Addimons
Interesi Expensad on Capfial Leases 264
Reaiized Income from Defemed Credit ani
ACCOUNIE
Peanslons 52
MorHdeductitle penaliles 253
Provision fof Incom axes - cusrent 284 -10,084
Provision for Income tawes - gefemed 285 178,238
AR Accrelion expense
‘Capiial Comriputons Recaned [TTA 12]1)x))
Lease Moucamants Raceived [ITA 12{1)(x)}
Defermad ravenue [TTA 121531
Prior Year Investment Tax Credts recetved
Amorization contained In other expenses 43,005
Total Aoditons 2,413,029
Deductions:
ain on dsposal of assets per Inanca - N
slatements o 545
Dividends not i2aEbie under seclion 53 202
Capial cost alipwance from Schedule 8 403 133,970
Temingl loss from Schaguie & 202
Cumulative sloitée capital decucion Trom FE —
Schedule 10 e b
Allowatie business mvestment loss
Defermed and prepaid expenses
SofentifNc research expenses ciaimed in year a1
Tax reserves claimed In cument year 413 0
Resenies from financlal siatements - balance .
&t beginning of year = 336,820
Conirbufions to dafemed come Mans ME
B0k income of join? venture of parnershin 305
Equity In income fom sutsitiany o amiates 305
Oimer deduchions (Filease exmiain i1 oefal the
nafure of the fem)
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Income Tax/PlLs
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Adjusted Taxable Income = Bridge Year

Interest capiialized for accounting deducted
for 3m

Capiial Lesse Paymenis 351
Morrtaxable Imputed Interest income on 382
deferral and varance actounis 5

350

353

et

ARID Payments - Deductible for Tax when
Paid

ITA 13(7.4) Blection - Capital Coniributions
Receivad

ITA 13{7.4) Election - Apply Lease
Inducament to cost of Leasaholds

Defermed Rewvanue - [TA 30{1)m} reserde
Principal portion of lease payments

Lease Inducement Book Amonization credt 1o
Income

Financing fees for tax ITA 20(1)je) and (e.1)

Total Deductions 1,706,567

Net Income for Tax Purposes 852 426
Chariabie gonations from Scheduies 2 3 25,275

Taxame dvidends deductinie under section 112
ior 113, from Schedse 3 (Hem 321

Hon-capital 10s6es of preceding 13a@tion years
Trom Schafue 4

Net-capital losses of precedng taxaTon years
Trom Scheouee 4 (Please inciude expianalion 332
and caicwiation i Managers summary)

Limited pannership losses of preceding Exation
vaars from Schedule S

320

3

TAXABLE INCOME | | 827 201




PILS Tax Provislon - Bridoe Year

Reguiatory Taxabls Incoms

Ontarlo Incoms Taxes
Income f3x payabie

Small business credif

COndzrio Income tax

Combined Tax Rate and PiLs

Total Incoms Taxes

Investment Tax Credits
Miscelianzous Tax Credits
Total Tax Credits

Ontarke incomsa Tax

Cintario Small Business Thresheold
Rate reduction

Effectve Ontario Tax Rate
Federal tax rate
Combinad tax rate

Corporate PiLe/incomsa Tax Provizion for Bridge Year

Hota:

1. This s for the derivation of Bridge yesr PiLsa | tax

revenue requirement calcutations.
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Income Tax/PlLs
Workform for 2013 Filers

ey |

Wires Only
[§  &zramia

I1.50% B 3 95118 C=aA*B
§ 500,000 D

TO0% E 5 35000 F=D*E

7.27% K=J 1A
15.00% L

p and ghould not be wasd for Teat year
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RBohedule B OOA Tart Yaar

o " 102 Fmar Rie (12 . =
Clams Coami Duaezrighions ::ﬁ';l:;:-::‘ Dupoals | UCC Butorm 10| oyt bk | Pithaiad LG Rabs % Tast Yaar GCA | o0 E,::: b
LTTD Dtage nain)
1 DiErigion Eyism - pocd 1837 [] 7010064 1 FO¥ 54 | & - 1 [t i) ] 2RO | & 8, T 52
1 Enbanoed | Mon-recidential B Ry, 1100 11ja.1] stection i - i - [ - [] - ) ] - H -
2 Dictrition B%m- pre EER 3 - 3 - ] - ] - % 3 - 3 -
] General Cffloe’ Rores Equip TR = [] HATES | & X500 | § o, 24 2R 5 #0251 & 18 5%
i Compuber Harmware' Wahiolsc B8 014 02 o0 ] AT | 1 107, 00 | & T o FT) % 4 i8d [ & [T
1 Corian Automobdes 3 - ] - ] - ] - ol ] 3 - 5 -
1z Computar JoTtears (] 2992 105,000 ] w113 | & 2 a0 | & 54878 005e ] 54875 |4 57,500
21 Losce #1 4 - [] - § - % - ) - 3 .
22 Laage #2 2 - 3 - 3 - 3 - ] - H
23 Loage #1 [] - 3 - [ - [ ] - 2
24 Lazcs 24 [] - ] - [ - E] - £ ] g
4 Franchics £l - L] - ¥ - 3 - ] - 3
7 New Elsoirical Genevaling Equipment Aoq'd afer Fab 27/00 Other Than B] 3 = ] - % = ] £ 3 % - |8
&2 Flibre Oiptio Cabie ] - 1 - -] - ] - ¥, ] 3 - |
431 Cariain Ensrgy -EMolent Electrical Sensrating Egulpmesnt (] - [] - [] - L] - ] ] - 5
4537 Cariain Chean Ensrgy Cesparabicn Eguipment £l - [] - ] - [ - B ] - 3
£ Computers & Sycieenc Sofbware 200'd poct Mar 22004 F] - 5 - 1% - |= - £6% 5 - |8
&5 Dt Hetwork infractnashars Equipment [aog'd poct Mar 22040 [l - [l - [ - [ - ] 5 - 5 .
T Diictribustion Eychem - poct Februan, J00E BAE2 837 1,501 208 [] 71,044 745 | & B0 | 8 e ] E% 5 EdaEs | § 10T S
=] Data Metwork infractnsshurs Equipment - poct Mar 2007 EATT ] SETT | & - 5 5877 BE® § g | 4 ]
B2 COmpAar HEFOWars and CYTism CoMaan [ = ] e T e | = ) i - |5 2
BE CWP ] - 3 - 3 - 3 - (1. ] 3 - 3
& - ¥ - 3 - [n,] § - 8
L] - 5 - 3 - % & - 5
[ - |% - |8 - [ § - |&
i - 1] - i - ] 4 - 3
[] - |4 - |8 - (2] ] - |
3 - 1% - |8 - 0% i - |3
[] - |k - % - [ 1 - |8
] - % - |% - D% 1 - |
i - [] - [] - 5] ] - i
] - % - ] - ] - - i -
TOTAL [] AT 2s00 | 4 Lia s | ¥ i T 2T PR | § 1,001,504 | # VR e 553 i 1422145 | & [T
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Fo_i

Schedule 10 CEC - Test Year

Cumulative Eligible Capital
Additions
Cost of Efigitle Capital Property Acguined during Test Year 0
Crther Adustments ]
Subtetal 0 x34= 0
mmﬂepm'ﬁunnfanm-am's_ienmnajsfemfsgmn reafzed on the o 4= o
transfer of an ECP to the Corporation after Friday, December 20, 2002 - ;
Amuount ransfemed on amalgamation or wind-up of subsidiary a 1]
Subtotal 503947
Deductions
P:nneedspfsdg_ﬂes&mﬂaysand_expenﬁmta‘h&iﬁsed&dmﬂﬂe: o
from the disposition of ai ECP during Test Year
Crtver Adiustments i
Subtotal 0 x3d= 0
Cumulative Eligible Capital Balance 503,947
Cusrrent Year Deduction {Carry Forward to Tab "Test Year Taxable Income™} S03847T xTh= 35,278

Cumulative Eligible Capital - Closing Balance AGBET1
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Schediule 13 Tax Raservas - Test Yaar

Continuity of Reserves

Teet Year Adiucimants
Demcrapian Bl Yam ::1?;::: E'I nur;'::::'“" LEESTT Cimsmmain Budarso fow Tant Yam "'"'""'_::""' o Emnsliowmi Expermes
= mpitai A AT ) ) el ! ]
e T e —
Famarew fof dulfiils moounts aa SINEY a 9| & u
Fanacvw fd wii e evices ol delveied Wi 20 TH 1] 1] C [
Finas e I 3 o & [
Dmid & St = @ i = n
e o rey g [1] [ [1]
o 1]
£ L] o
Tatal @ q o [ 8 ] 0
I we v [orud ot Tas Pipas
wcten fof sty Otsolecerce |mi-apeslic | b 4 3| 1
mim ! remarive b bad Sabits a g [ o
&, iy Fulin Sermfia ] I3 28| 18,487 124 158
N fsetoe @ i = 0
gl Dimartity [[] [5 [[]
Ll Sk L g 0 5 1]
b Cooal <) Y ! 0
Preri-Engienttunl Batiafits 1] o [ ]
ot Ao Lroute a ' [ ']
P ot Pty Tuls = g = a
- [ L 1]
e, [1] & [
Boroses Aorrumd aind bt Pad Wit e 780 Days of YeerEmd a TR &) il o ]
Uvijmi] Asraci B Fbirimd Pt and Mol Pad Yhin 5 TisSon Yeers i A i
TB{1] = 1
L o ! o
B L] [0 [l
o i | 1
Tatal a8t q 338 a5k 13481 2154429 LU -lml 0
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Schedule 7-1 | nas Garry Fnrward - Test Year

Corporation Loss Continuity and Application

Total Distribastion | LiKility Balance
Non-Capital Loss Carmy Forward Deduction Portion
Actual Estimated Brdge Year

Application of Loss Camy Forsard io reduce taable income in 2005
Crher Adjustments Add (+) Dedudt |-}

Balance available for use in Test Year 4] i
Amount to be wsad in Test Year
Balance availabie for use post Test Year 0 ad

] ] o ] o ] o] [ ]

Non-
Total Distribution | Liility Balance
MNet Capstal Loss Cammy Forward Deduction Portion
AchalEstmated Bdge Year

Applicaton of Loss Camy Forward fo reduce taxable income in 2005
Crher Adjusiments Add {+) Deduct {-)

Bidlance avalabie for use in Test Year 0 i
Amount to be used in Test Year
Bialance avalabie for use post Test Year 0 a

) o] o] [ ] ] [




Taxable Income - Test Year

Collus PowerStream Corp.

EB-2012-0116

Responses to Interrogatories of
Board Staff and Intervenors

Income Tax/PlLs

Page 325 of 375
Filed: August 21, 2013

Workform for 2013 Filers

Test Year
Taxahle
[rvCoimee
[Hez Income Before Taxes 727,481
T2 51 line #
Additions:
Interest and penalties on taxes 103
Amaorization of tangible assets 104
24 ADJUSTED ACCOUNTING DATA PL4ED
Amaortization of intangible assets 108 1 902871
2-4 ADJUISTED ACCOUNTING DATA Pdi0
Recapture of capital cost allowance from 107
Schedule 8
(zain on sale of efigible capital property from 108
Schedule 10
Income or loss for tax purposes- joint ventures or 102
parinerships
Loss in equity of subsidianes and afffates 110
Loss on disposal of assets 111
Charitable donations 112
Taxabie Capital Gains 113
Political Donations 114
Defermed and prepaid expenses 118
Sentfic research expenditures deducted on 18
financial statements i
Capiaiized interest 113
Mon-deductible club dues and fees 120
Mon-deductibfe meals and enterdanment g
121 1.000
ENpEnse
Mon-deductible automobile expenses 122
Non-deductible [fe insurance premiums 123
Mon-deductible company penseon plans 124
Tax reserves beginning of year 125 ad
Reserves. from financia statements- baance
2nd of year 126 354829
Soft costs on constructon and renovation of 197
buildings i
Beook loss on joint ventures or padnerships 205
Capial iems expensed 208
Dbt issue expense 208
Development expenses camed in curment year M2
Financng fees deducted n books 218
(Zain on seflement of debt 220
Mon-deductible inferest 227
Mon-deductible legal and accounting fees 228
Recapture of SRAED expendifures 231
Share issue expense 235
Wirite down of capital property 236




Armounts recened in respect of qualifyng

enwirorment trust per paragraphs 12(1)z.1) and 237
2{1)=z-2)
Cither Agdibons: [plesse explain in detai the
nature of the fem)
Interest Expensed on Capital Leases 200
Redized Income from Defemed Credit Accounts 291
Pensions 282
Mon-deductble penalties 283
284
285
206
207
ARD Accrebon expense
Capital Confributions Recsived {ITA 12{110x)
Lease Inducements Receved (ITA 12(1)x])
Dieferred Reverue (ITA 12{1)(3))
Prior Year Investment Tax Credits received
Total Additions 1,458 800/
Deductions:
Gain on disposal of assets per financial ani
siatemenis
Dividends not taxable under section B3 402
Capital cost allowance from Schedule B 402 1422 145
Teminal loss from Schedule B 404
Cm.-lat'.l:'.- ehgj:i-e capital deduction from ans 3 078
Schedule 10 CEC
Allowabie business invesiment loss 408
Dieferred ano prepad expenses 402
Sceentific research expenses daimed in year 411
Tax reserves end of year 413 a
Resenes from fnanca staterments - balance at =
inning of year 414 330,408
Conmbutions bo deferred mncome plans 418
Book income of joint venture or parinership 305
Equity in income from subsidiary or afikstes 306
Cither deduchions: (Flease explan in detad the
nature of fhe fem)
Interest capitalized for accounting deducted for i
B 380
Capital Lease Payments g1

Collus PowerStream Corp.
EB-2012-0116

Responses to Interrogatories of
Board Staff and Intervenors
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Non-taxable imputed snferest income on deferad

and variance accounts A
303
304
395
385
347
AR Payments - Deductiohe for Tax when Pad
ITA 13{7 4) Blecfon - Capital Contributions
Recenwed
[TA 13{7 4} Elechon - Apply Lease Inducement 1o
cost of Leaseholds
Deferred Revenue - [TA 20{1im| resene
Principal porticn of lkase payments
Lease Inducement Book Amorization oredit o
ncome
Financing fees fior tax ITA 20{11e) and (e_1}
Total Deductions 1,793,890/
[NET INCOME FOR TAX PURPOSES 352 40
Charitable donations an

Taxable dividends received under section 112 or
113

Non-capital losses of preceding tavation years fom
Schedule 7-1

Net-captal losses of preceding taxation years
|Please show calculation)

Lirnited parnership losses of preceding taxabon
years from Schedule 4

REGULATORY TAXABLE INCOME

392,402

Collus PowerStream Corp.
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Income Tax/PlILs
Workform for 2013 Filers

i

PILs ax Frovision - | est Year

Wires Only
Raguiatory Taxabls Incoms [ ssazpz]a
Ontarla Incoms Taxss
Income fax payable ontarie Incoms Tax 450% g 5 17658 C=A*B
Small business credi Cintano Small Bus:ess Threshold 5 - D
Rate reducton -7.00% E 3 - F=D*E
Ondano Income fax 5 17658 | J=C+F
Combined Tax Rate and FiLs Effectve Ontario Tax Rate 4.50% K=J 14
Federal tax rate 11.00% L
Combined tax ate —
Total Incoma Taxss [ commsln=a'm
Irvestment Tax Credits o
Milsceiianeous Tax Credits P
Total Tax Credits 5 - _|a=o+p
Corporate PiLafincome Tax Proviekon for Test Year ﬂ= H-a
Corparate PILs/ncoms Tax Provislon Gross Up | B450%  s=1-m [§____ 1157 |T=Ris-R
Income Tax (grosssd-up) E— IR
Hota:

1. This la for the derivation of rewsnus reguiremant and should not be uesd for sufficlency/defclency
calculations.
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4-Enerqy Probe-33

Ref: Exhibit 4, Tab 4, Schedule 8

Please confirm that Collus PowerStream does not have any employees that qualify
for the Ontario Apprenticeship tax credit, federal job training tax credit, or the
Ontario Co-op Education tax credit. If this cannot be confirmed, please provide
the number of employees that qualify for each credit in 2013.

Response
Yes, we confirm that Collus PowerStream does not have any employees that qualify for

the Ontario Apprenticeship tax credit, federal job training tax credit, or the Ontario Co-op
Education tax credit.
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4-Enerqy Probe-34

Ref: Exhibit 4, Tab 6, Schedule 1

Has Collus PowerStream included any costs associated with the Board of
Directors of any of the corporations shown in the diagram on page 1? If yes,
please quantify and explain the basis upon which those costs are allocated to the
associated companies.

Response

No, Collus PowerStream has not included any costs associated with the Board of
Directors of any of the corporations shown in the diagram on page 1.
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EXHIBIT 5 - COST OF CAPITAL AND RATE OF RETURN

5-Energy Probe-35

Ref:

a)

b)

Exhibit 5, Tab 1, Schedule 1

Please confirm that the Board's Cost of Capital Parameter Updates for 2013
Cost of Service Applications letter issued on February 14, 2013 is applicable
for the 2013 COS application of Collus PowerStream.

Please indicate why Collus PowerStream "will update for the most current
approved cost of capital parameters" prior to the finalization of the Tariff of
Rates and Charges?

Please explain the difference in the long-term debt rate for 2013 shown in
Table 1 of 4.12% and the figure of 4.05% shown in Tables 2 and 3.

Response:

a)

b)

Yes we can confirm that the Boards Cost of Capital Parameters for 2013 cost of
Service Applications issued on February 14, 2013 were used in the 2013 Collus
PowerStream application.

Collus PowerStream will update for the most current cost of capital parameters at
the time of the Board Decision. It is a filing requirement that such a statement be
included in the evidence (Reference Chapter 2, Section 2.8 of the OEB Filing
Requirements).

C - Table 1 is the Long Term Cost of Debt as prescribed per the OEB's Cost of
Capital Parameters (used for non-arm’s length debt such as the Promissory Note
with the Town of Collingwood), Tables 2 and 3 are the Weighted Average Debt
rate which includes two government loan debt instruments with "real" interest
rates. The calculation is shown on Table 2 in E5/T1/S1 pg. 2.
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5-Energy Probe-36

Ref:

a)

b)

Exhibit 5, Tab 1, Schedule 1, Appendix A

Please confirm that Collus PowerStream has the right to repay the
promissory note from the Town of Collingwood (principal and accrued
interest) at any time.

Has Collus PowerStream investigated replacing the Town of Collingwood
promissory note with a lower cost loan from a third party? If not, why not?
If yes, please provide details of available replacement financing and indicate
why Collus PowerStream has not opted to replace the promissory note.

Response

a)

b)

Yes, Collus PowerStream has the right to repay the promissory note from the
Town of Collingwood (principal and accrued interest) at any time without notice or
bonus.

Yes, Collus PowerStream is currently investigating replacing the Town of
Collingwood promissory note with a lower cost loan from a third party.

The original Town of Collingwood loan was 7.25% which based on the “Share
Purchase Agreement” reduced to 5.58% on January 1, 2013 and reduces again
January 1, 2014 to an interest rate as is deemed compliant with the OEB
regulations. The deemed long-term debt rate is 4.03% per the November 15",
2012 “Cost of Capital Parameter Updates for 2013 Cost of Service Applications
for Rates Effective January 1, 2013".

Currently, $1.7m in undrawn funds are available from Infrastructure Ontario to be
repurposed to repay the Town of Collingwood promissory note. The current
lending rates for Infrastructure Ontario are listed below. Collus PowerStream’s
board of directors is currently in the process of investigating the option to replace
the promissory note.
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Lending Rates: Local Distribution Companies

Term | construction | Serial |

1 Month
5 Year

10 Year
15 Year
20 Year
25 Year

30 Year

Indicative Lending Rates as of August 8, 2013 **

1.79%0

AR A W WIN

41 %
.30%
- 76%
.05%
.24%0

.35%

A AW wlN

-51%
.40%
-86%
.15%
- 34%0

.45%
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Please provide the Applicant’s actual ROE for each year between 2009-2012.

Response:

Table SEC-19-1 below provides the actual ROE for 2009 to 2012.

Table SEC-19-1: Actual ROE 2009 to 2012

Return on Equity (ROE) 2009 2010 2011 2012
Net income (see A below) $ 480,405 $ 707,000 $ 456,354 § 325236
Equity (see B below) $ 6,161,311 $ 6,653,868 $ 7,235,133 $ 7,457,449
ROE = A/B 7.80% 10.63% 6.31% 4.36%
(A) Net Income after Tax 2009 2010 2011 2012
Revenues
Distribution Revenue $ 5,126,519 $ 5,437,389 $ 5,592,609 $ 5,456,009
Smart Meter revenue $ $ $ $ 1,402,131
Other revenue $ 488,295 $ 556,865 $ 423,378 $ 465,569
Total Revenue $ 5,614,814 $ 5,994,254 $ 6,015,987 $ 7,323,709
Expenses
OM&A $ 3,850,193 $ 3,995,851 $ 4,073,086 $ 4,843,305
Depreciation and Amortization $ 1,004,161 $ 967,205 $ 1,053,169 $ 1,739,853
Interest $ 179,149 $ 249634 $ 285649 § 434,367
Taxes - current $ 100,906 $ 74,564 $ 147729 $§  (19,052)
Total Expenses $ 5,134,409 $ 5,287,254 $ 5,559,633 $ 6,998,473
Net Income (A) $ 480,405 $ 707,000 $ 456,354 $ 325236
(B) Equity
Rate base $ 15,403,277 $ 16,634,671 $ 18,087,832 $ 18,643,622
Equity = 40% of Rate base $ 6,161,311 $ 6,653,868 $ 7,235,133 $ 7,457,449
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5-SEC-20

[Ex.5/1/1/p.2] Please provide a copy of all outstanding debt instruments not already
included in the evidence.

Response

Collus PowerStream has no outstanding debt instruments not included in the evidence.



Collus PowerStream Corp.
EB-2012-0116

Responses to Interrogatories of
Board Staff and Intervenors
Page 336 of 375

Filed: August 21, 2013

5.0 - VECC- 34
Reference: Exhibit5, Tab 1

a) Please provide the actual and deemed rates of return on equity and capital for
each of the years 2009 through 2012.

Response:

a) Table VECC 34-1 contains a calculation of the actual and deemed rates of return on
equity and capital for the years 2009 through 2012. The deemed rates are taken from

Collus PowerStream’s approved 2009 Cost of Service rate application (EB-2008-
0226).

Table VECC 34-1: Return on Equity and Capital 2009 to 2012

Return on Equity (ROE) 2009 2010 2011 2012
Net income (from A) $ 480,405 $ 707,000 § 456,354 § 325236
Shareholder Equity (from C) $ 10,158,882 $ 10,582,602 $11,016,175 $ 9,141,377
Actual Return on Equity (= A+C) 4.73% 6.68% 4.14% 3.56%
Deemed ROE 2009 COS 8.01% 8.01% 8.01% 8.01%
Return on Capital 2009 2010 2011 2012
Average Debt (D below) $ 1,737,721 $ 3,160,170 $ 4510170 $ 7,441,300
Average Shareholder Equity (C below) $ 10,158,882 $ 10,582,602 $11,016,175 $ 9,141,377
(1) Average Capital (Debt + Equity) $ 11,896,603 $13,742,772 $ 15,526,345 $ 16,582,677
Actual Interest (below) $ 179149 $§ 249634 $§ 285649 § 434,367
Net income after Tax (A below) $ 480,405 $ 707,000 $ 456,354 $ 325236
(2) Return on Capital (Interest + Income) $ 659,554 $ 956,634 § 742,003 § 759,603
Actual return on capital % (= (2)+(1)) 5.54% 6.96% 4.78% 4.58%
Deemed Cost of Capital 2009 COS 7.01% 7.01% 7.01% 7.01%
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(A) Net Income after Tax 2009 2010 2011 2012
Revenues
Distribution Revenue $ 5,126,519 $ 5437,389 $ 5,592,609 $ 5,456,009
Smart Meter revenue $ $ $ - $ 1,402,131
Other revenue $ 488,295 $ 556,865 $ 423,378 $ 465,569
Total Revenue $ 5,614,814 $ 5,994,254 $ 6,015,987 $ 7,323,709
Expenses
OM&A $ 3,850,193 $ 3,995,851 $ 4,073,086 $ 4,843,305
Depreciation and Amortization $ 1,004,161 $ 967,205 $ 1,053,169 $ 1,739,853
Interest $ 179,149 $§ 249634 $§ 285649 § 434,367
Taxes - current $ 100,906 $ 74,564 $ 147,729 $ (19,052
Total Expenses $ 5,134,409 $ 5,287,254 $ 5,559,633 $ 6,998,473
Net Income (A) $ 480,405 $ 707,000 $ 456,354 $ 325,236
(B) Deemed Equity 2009 2010 2011 2012
Rate base $ 15,403,277 $ 16,634,671 $ 18,087,832 $18,643,622
Equity = 40% of Rate base $ 6,161,311 $ 6,653,868 $ 7,235133 $ 7,457,449
(C) Shareholder Equity (Financials) 2009 2010 2011 2012
Opening $ 9,934,531 $ 10,383,233 $10,781,970 $ 11,250,380
Closing $ 10,383,233 $ 10,781,970 $ 11,250,380 § 7,032,373
Average $ 10,158,882 $ 10,582,602 $11,016,175 $ 9,141,377
(D) Debt 2009 2010 2011 2012
Opening $ 2,827,523 $ 1,710,170 $ 4,610,170 $ 4410170
Closing $ 1,710,170 $ 4,610,170 $ 4,410,170 $10,472,430
Average $ 1,737,721 $ 3,160,170 $ 4,510,170 $ 7,441,300
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EXHIBIT 7 — COST ALLOCATION
7.0-Staff-27

Ref: E4/T4/S7, p. 4, CA Model, worksheet I-3, cell E430 (Account 5705) — Allocation
of Amortization

Depreciation is described in Exhibit 4 totaling $1,102,871. In worksheet I-3, the amount
of $30,000 is entered at cell E430, which as a result is allocated as a component of
account 5705 ‘Amortization Expense — PP&E’. With this amount, the allocated total is
$940,824.

a) Please state which is the correct cost to be used in the revenue requirement and
for allocation to classes.

b) Please explain what the $30,000 component refers to, providing a reference if
applicable to where the cost is described in the application.

c) Please confirm that the $30,000 amount is not attributable to account 1575 or
1576.

Response

a) The correct amount to be allocated to the customer classes is $$940,824. This
represents the net depreciation expense after re-allocation of vehicle depreciation
of $192,047 to other cost categories plus the addition of $30,000 in derecognition
costs.

b) The $30,000 component on E4/T4/S7 is a depreciation adjustment for
derecognition expense. It has been determined by the following calculation and
rounded down to $30,000. Reference to derecognition or disposal can be found
at E6/T1/S1 page 6 of 11, Table 7. Another reference to it can be found at
E2/T2/S1 page 5 of 5, Table 7.

Derecognition Expense Estimate

PowerStream COLLUS

2013 Rate Base - Average Net Fixed 5 719,273,918| 5 15,928,927
Assets (NFA)

Derecognition Expense S 1,400,000| S 31,004
Derecognition as % of NFA 0.19% 0.19%

c) Collus PowerStream confirms the $30,000 is not attributable to account 1575 or
1576, as the change in accounting is concurrent with the rebasing of rates.
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7.0-Staff-28

Ref: E7/T1/S1, Table 5; Appendix 2-P; CA Model worksheet O-1 — Revenue to Cost
Ratios

The total revenue requirement matches in these two references, at $6,981,397, but the
amounts allocated to the respective classes do not match. In particular, the General Service
> 50 kW class revenue requirement in Table A of Appendix 2-P is $1,181,819 whereas the
class revenue requirement in the CA model is $957,151. A result is that the status quo
revenue to cost ratio of that class in Table C of Appendix 2-P is 94.23%, whereas in the CA
model it is 115.80%

a) Please confirm that the status quo ratios in Exhibit 7 and the CA model should be
used, and that Appendix 2-P should be disregarded as filed.

b) If the statement in part a) cannot be confirmed, please file a revised CA model and a
revised Table 5 in Exhibit 7.

c) If the status quo ratios in Exhibit 7 and the cost allocation model are correct, please
provide an updated version of Appendix 2-P.

Response

a) Collus PowerStream confirms the information included in the submitted application
document is correct where the class revenue requirement for the > 50 kW class is
$957,151 and the proposed revenue to cost ratio of that class is 115.80%.

b) N/A

c) The correct version of Appendix 2-P was provided in Exhibit 7 or the submitted
application, however, an incorrect Excel version was filed.

Appendix 2-P

Cost Allocation
Please complete the following four

tables.
a) Allocated Costs
Cf?;ts PA:L%?SL? Costs Allocated in
Classes Study % Test Year (2013) %
Study
(COLLUS (Column 7A)
Power 2009)
Residential $ 3,545,358 67.06% | $ 4,514,411 64.66%
GS < 50 kW $ 798,452 1510% | $ 1,305,367 18.70%
GS > 50 kW $ 342,951 6.49% | $ 957,151 13.71%
Large User $ 546,816 10.34% | $ - 0.00%
Street Lighting $ 38,137 0.72% | $ 200,030 2.87%
Sentinel Lighting $ = 0.00% | $ - 0.00%
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Unmetered Scattered Load (USL) | $ 14,997 0.28% | $ 4,438 0.06%
Total $ 5,286,711 100.00% | $ 6,981,397 100.00%
Notes

Customer Classification

Host Distributors: Provide information on embedded distributor(s) as a separate class, even if your proposal is to bill
the embedded distributor(s) as (a) General Service customer(s).

If proposed rate classes differ from those in place in the previous Cost Allocation study, modify the rate classes to
match the current application as closely as possible.

Class Revenue Requirements

If using the Board-issued model, enter data from Worksheet O-1, row 40 in the 2012 model.

For the Embedded Distributor(s), the Service Revenue Requirement does not include Account 4750 - Low Voltage

(LV) Costs

Exclude costs in deferral and variance accounts.

Include Smart Meter costs only to the extent that they are being included in Rate Base and Revenue Requirement
(i.e. being transferred from accounts 1555 and 1556 as a result of a prudence review).

b) Calculated Class Revenues

Classes (same as previous
table)

Column 7B

Column 7C

Column 7D

Column 7E

Load Forecast
(LF) X current

LF X current
approved rates

LF X proposed rates

Miscellaneous

approved rates X((1+d) Revenue

$

Residential $ 3,542,885 | $ 4,135,938 | $ 4,135,938 | 315,025
$

GS <50 kW $ 903,699 | $ 1,054,972 | $ 1,069,252 | 107,464
$

GS > 50 kW $ 925,812 | $ 1,080,787 | $ 1,080,787 | 27,578

Large User $ - $ - $ - $ o
$

Street Lighting $ 201,955 | $ 235,761 | $ 224,771 | 15,258

Sentinel Lighting $ - $ - $ - $ -
$

Unmetered Scattered Load (USL) | $ 7,144 | $ 8340 | $ 5,050 | 276
$

Total $ 5,581,495 | $ 6,515,797 | $ 6,515,797 | 465,600.00

line 18 line 23 As per Rate model line 19

Notes:
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Columns
7B to 7D

LF means Load Forecast of Annual Billing Quantities (i.e. customers or connections X 12, and kWh or kW, as
applicable)

Exclude revenue from rate adders and rate riders. For Embedded Distributor(s): exclude revenue in account 4075.

Columns 7C and 7D:

Column total in each column should equal the Base Revenue Requirement.

For Embedded Distributor(s), Base Revenue Requirement does not include Account 4750 - Low Voltage Costs

Column
ioH

The Board cost allocation model calculates "1+d" in worksheet O-1, cell C21. "d" is defined as Revenue Deficiency/
Revenue at Current Rates.

Column 7E:

If using the Board-issued Cost Allocation model, enter Miscellaneous Revenue as it appears in Worksheet O-1, row
19.

c) Rebalancing Revenue-to-Cost (R/C) Ratios
Statug Quo Proposed Ratios
. Ratios
Previously
Approved Ratios Policy Range
(7TC+7E)/ (7A) (7D + 7E) / (7A)
Class 2011
% % % %
Residential 104.4 98.6 98.6 |85-115
GS <50 kW 99.7 89.1 90.1 |80-120
GS > 50 kw
80.0 115.8 115.8 | 80- 120
Large User 85 - 115
Street Lighting 70.0 1255 120.0 | 70-120
Sentinel Lighting 80 - 120
Unmetered Scattered Load (USL)
87.8 194.1 120.0 | 80- 120

Notes:
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For applicants that have had rates adjusted only under IRM 2, the Most Recent Year is 2006, and the applicant
should enter the ratios from their Informational Filing.

Status Quo Ratios

The Board's updated Cost Allocation Model yields the Status Quo Ratios in Worksheet O-1.

Status Quo means "No Rebalancing” or "Before Rebalancing”.

d) Proposed Revenue-to-Cost Ratios

Proposed Revenue-to-Cost Ratios

Class 2012 2013 2014 Policy Range
% % % %
Residential 98.59 98.59 98.6 85 - 115
GS < 50 kW 90.14 90.14 90.1 80 -120
GS > 50 kW 115.80 115.80 115.8 80 -120
Large User 85-115
Street Lighting 120.00 120.00 120.0 70-120
Sentinel Lighting 80-120
Unmetered Scattered Load (USL) 120.00 120.00 120.0 80-120

The applicant should complete Table (d) if it is applying for approval of a revenue to cost ratio in 2012 that is outside
the Board'’s policy range for any customer class. Table (d) will show the information that the distributor would likely
enter in the IRM model) in 2013. In 2012 Table (d), enter the planned ratios for the classes that will be ‘Change’ and
‘No Change’ in 2013 (in the current Revenue Cost Ratio Adjustment Workform, Worksheet C1.1 ‘Decision — Cost
Revenue Adjustment’, column d), and enter TBD for class(es) that will be entered as ‘Rebalance’.
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7.0-VECC - 35
Reference: Exhibit 7, Tab 1, Schedule 1, page 5

a) Based on COLLUS’ Conditions of Service, are any its customer classes
required to provide (and maintain) their own “service assets™? If so, which
ones and for how long has this requirement been in place?

Response

a) No customer class is required to provide and maintain their own service assets.
Customers requiring transformers greater than 500 kVa are customer owned and
therefore receive the transformer allowance.
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7.0-VECC - 36

Reference: Cost Allocation Model, Sheet 17.2
a) Please explain why the meter reading weighting factor for GS>50 is 0.38
relative to a value of 1.0 for Residential and GS<50.

Response

a) Collus PowerStream is of the opinion the costs of collecting and verifying smart
meter data for the residential and general service classes exceeds the cost of the
other classes. This may change as LDCs become more comfortable with the
smart meter processes but for this rate application Collus PowerStream supports
the weightings provided and wishes to maintain them as filed.
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EXHIBIT 8 — RATE DESIGN
8.0-Staff-29

Ref: E3/T2/S1, p. 1, Table 1 and p. 4, Table 6; E8/T1/S2, p. 1, Table 1 -
Fixed/Variable split

a) Please provide a table that shows how the revenue amounts in the first two
columns of Table 1 (Exhibit 8) are derived from billing loads in Exhibit 3 (Tables 1

and 6)
Response
a)

2012 Approved Rates

Customers without Smart meter
Connections Volumes Metric  and Low Voltage  Annual Volumetric  Annual Fixed
Residential 14,233 119,925,353 kwh & 00170 5 9.00 S 2,038,748 S 1,537,110
GS <50 kw 1,717 47,835,746 kwh 5 00113 S 17.98 S 540,544 5 370,496
G5 50-2,999 kW 114 348,761 kW S 26400 511402 5 920,728 5 155,979
UsL 30 421,186 kwWwh 5 00177 S - S 7,455 5 -
Street Lighting 3,045 6,144 kW 5 140054 5 314 5 86,053 5 114,729
3 3,503,520 § 2,178,315
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8.0-Staff-30

Ref: E1/T1/S2, Appendix A and E8/T1/S9, Table 2 — Revenue Reconciliation

The proposed volumetric rates in Exhibit 8 and in appendix 2-V appear to be inconsistent in
Collus PowerStream’s proposed tariff in Exhibit 1 and in the Bill Impact calculations in
Appendix 2-W.

a) Please state which volumetric rates are being proposed by Collus PowerStream, and
if necessary please file a revised calculation of revenue (including Appendix 2-V).

Response

a) Table 2 of E8/T1/S9 provides a combined distribution and low voltage volumetric rate
for each class. The following volumetric rates are being proposed by Collus

PowerStream:

Distribution Low Voltage Combined
Residential $ 0.0203 $0.0017 $0.0220
GS <50 kW $0.0138 $0.0015 $ 0.0153
GS 50-2,999 kW $ 3.0998 $0.5584 $ 3.6582
USL $0.0125 $0.0015 $0.0140
Street Lighting $15.3221 $0.4317 $15.7538

The proposed tariff in Exhibit 1 is correct in the submitted application.
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8.0-Staff-31

Ref: E2/T4/S1, Table 3; CA model, account 4716; E8/T1/S3 and RTSR model —
Transmission Costs

The cost projections used in the forecast cost of power as a component of Working
Capital in Exhibit 2 appear to not match the forecast in Exhibit 8 (and in the RTSR
Model) to derive COLLUS’s proposed RTSRs. In particular, the forecast cost of
Transmission Connection in Exhibit 2 Table 3 and in the CA model is $105,506, whereas
in the RTSR model the forecast wholesale cost is $39,549 for line connection plus
$1,006,065 for transformation.

a) Please state which cost forecast is correct, and provide any necessary revisions
to the applicable model and exhibit.

Response

a) The cost of power model in Exhibit 2, Tab 4, Schedule 1, Table 3 required
revisions to Commodity (RPP), Commodity (Spot), Global Adjustment and
Transmission Transformation — HONI charges. As a result the forecasted
transmission connection charges from Exhibit 2, Tab 4, Schedule 1, Table 3 were
revised to $915,259 based on forecasted kW charges as compared to those in
the RTSR model of $1,006,065 using historic 2011 kW charges.

See 2-Energy Probe-17 for updated Table 3.
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8-Energy Probe-37

Ref: Exhibit 8, Tab 1, Schedule 2

Please explain why Collus PowerStream is not proposing to raise the USL monthly
service charge to the floor value of $0.46, as shown in Table 2.

Response

Collus PowerStream agrees that under the Board’s cost allocation methodology it would
be appropriate to adjust the monthly service charge to the floor value of $0.46. This is a
minor matter which does not affect the allocation of revenue between classes. Collus
PowerStream proposes that the USL monthly service charge be increased to the floor
value in the draft rate order.
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8.0-VECC - 37
Reference: Exhibit 8, Tab 1, Schedule 2, pages 1-2

a) Please confirm that COLLUS is not proposing to maintain the fixed/variable
split for the GS>50 class (as suggested on page 1), but rather maintain the
fixed charge at the 2012 value of $114.02 (as described on page 2).

Response

a) Since the current Board approved fixed charge is $114.02 Collus PowerStream
has proposed the fixed rate be maintained at $114.02 versus reducing it to the
ceiling of $78.80 as calculated by the Cost Allocation model. Stating on page 1
that all classes would maintain their current fixed variable split was made in error
and should have read “all classes with the exception of the GS>50 class will
maintain their existing fixed variable split”.
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8.0-VECC - 38
Reference: Exhibit 8, Tab 1, Schedule 7
a) What is the basis for the forecast kW values used in Table 1?

b) What were COLLUS actual LV charges from HON for 20127
Response

a) Collus PowerStream calculated historic ratios using 2 year average, 2010 and
2011 actuals, for Total kWh/System kW (0.184%), System line/System kW
(8.064%) and System Transformation/System kW (100.04%) and used those
ratios to calculate the Hydro One Low Voltage kW from the load forecasted total
purchases.

b) Collus PowerStream low voltage charges for 2012 were as follows;

Month kw
Jan-12 57,895
Feb-12 55,338
Mar-12 51,546
Apr-12 44,595

May-12 48,952
Jun-12 57,564
Jul-12 57,813
Aug-12 49,868
Sep-12 47,150
Oct-12 41,906
Now-12 45,145
Dec-12 49,666
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Please update Table 1 to include actual data for 2012. Please also calculate the 5-
year average using data from 2008 through 2012.

Response
[ Historical Years F-Year Average
[ 2007 | 2008 [ 2009 2010 | 2011 | 2012 2008-2012

Losses Within Distributor's System

A1) "Wholesale" kwWh delivered to 0|
distributor (higher value) | | | |

A(2) "Wholesale" kwWh delivered to 331921781.6
distributor (lower value) 354105717 344975881 328430865 334443325 331863453 319895384

B Portion of "Wholesale" kWh 0|
delivered to distributor for its Large
Use Customer(s)

C Net "Wholesale" kWh delivered to 354105717 344975881| 328430865| 334443325| 331863453 319895384 | 331921781.6
distributor = A(2) - B

D "Retail" kWh delivered by distributor 342066123 333246701 316968628 322804697 320281418 307413298 320142948.4

E Portion of "Retail" kWh delivered by 0|
distributor to its Large Use
Customer(s)

F Net "Retail" kwh delivered by 342066123 333246701 316968628| 322804697 320281418 | 307413298 | 320142948.4
distributor = D - E

G Loss Factor in Distributor's system 1.03520 1.03520 1.03616 1.03605 1.03616 1.04060 1.03679
=C/F
Losses Upstream of Distributor's System

H Supply Facilities Loss Factor | 1.03400 1.03400 | 1.03400 | 1.03400 | 1.03400 | 1.03400 [ 1.03400
Total Losses

| Total Loss Factor = G x H | 1.07039] 1.07039] 1.07139] 1.07128] 1.07139 | 1.07598 | 1.07204
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8.0-VECC -39
Reference: Exhibit 8, Tab 1, Schedule 10

a) Please confirm that, contrary to the text on page 1, the initial volumetric
charge of $2.7438/kW was increased by $0.3560/kW to offset the transformer
ownership allowance paid to some customers.

Response

a) Collus PowerStream confirms that the volumetric charge has been increased by
$0.3560/kW to offset the transformer allowance paid to customers who own their
own transformers.
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8.0-VECC - 40
Reference: Exhibit 8, Tab 1, Schedule 10

a) Please provide a detailed calculation showing the derivation of the stranded
meter weighting factors (i.e. derivation of the $337,914 residential and
$131,411 GS<50 allocations).

b) Did COLLUS maintain separate accounting records for meters in the two
classes?

Response

a) The stranded meter weighting factors, as shown in Exhibit 9, Tab 1, Schedule 1,
Table 11 were reflect the class specific weighted meter costs of smart meters, as
filed in EB-2012-0017.

b) Collus PowerStream did not maintain separate accounting records for each

customer class.



Collus PowerStream Corp.
EB-2012-0116

Responses to Interrogatories of
Board Staff and Intervenors
Page 354 of 375

Filed: August 21, 2013

EXHIBIT 9 - DEFERRAL AND VARIANCE ACCOUNTS

9.0-Staff-32
Ref: E9/T1/S1, p. 28

On page 28, Collus PowerStream requests a “new sub-account for account 1555 to
capture the remaining net book value of older smart meters that need to be replaced...”

In Decision and Order EB-2012-0017, issued June 21, 2012 the Board determined that
“in granting its approval for the historically incurred costs and the revenue requirement
projected for 2012, the Board considers COLLUS to have completed its smart meter
deployment. Going forward, COLLUS is not to record any capital and operating costs for
new smart meters and any costs for operations of smart meters in Accounts 1555 and
1556. Instead, the costs shall be recorded in regular capital and operating expense
accounts (e.g. Account 1860 for meter capital costs) as is the case with other regular
distribution assets and costs.”

a) Please explain why Collus PowerStream deems a new sub-account necessary
given the Board’s determination in EB-2012-0017.

Response

a) A new deferral account is required due to the unanticipated technological
obsolesce, communication problems, and encryption issues encountered with the
first generation installation of Sensus Smart Meters iCon F and iCon G models.
These smart meters are deficient and need to be replaced before their normal
retirement date. This is a province wide issue that most other utilities are also
facing. Please see the response to 2.0-Staff-7.

Account 4362, Loss from Retirement of Utility and Other Property would normally
be used to derecognize assets. Rather than request current rates to cover the
loss on derecognition of these smart meters, Collus PowerStream feels it would
be prudent to utilize a deferral account and track actual losses and submit the
account for approval of disposition in the future. Collus PowerStream plans to
mitigate and manage the costs associated with the replacement by extending the
replacement over the course of two or three years and through negotiated
reduced capital prices from the supplier.

Since account 1555 previously included a sub-account for the original manual
stranded meters, we have suggested this as a possible account for the smart
meter stranded costs. Possibly a brand new number would be more appropriate.
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9.0-Staff-33
Ref: E9/T1/S1 — Stranded Meters

In Guideline G-2011-0001: Smart Meter Funding and Cost Recovery — Final Disposition
(“Guideline G-2011-0001"), issued December 15, 2011, the Board states its expectation
that proposals for the SMRR would reflect an allocation of the stranded meter costs
reflecting the net book value of the conventional meters stranded by replacement by
smart meters. In Section 3.7, page 22, of Guideline G-2011-0001, the Board states:

The distributor should determine and support its proposed allocation, based on
the principles of cost causality and practicality. The stranded meter NBV should
be recovered through rate riders for applicable customer classes. A distributor
must outline the manner in which it intends to allocate the stranded meter costs to
the applicable customer rate classes and the rationale for the selected approach.
If a distributor has recorded the NBV of the stranded meters by customer class, it
should propose class-specific rate riders for each applicable class (Residential,
GS < 50 kW and any other classes approved by the Board for smart meter
deployment). If the NBV is not known on a class-specific basis, a distributor
should propose an allocation between the affected metered customer classes and
support its proposal.

Collus PowerStream is proposing separate rate riders to recover the NBV of stranded
meters from Residential and GS < 50 kW customers, as shown in Table 11 of this
exhibit:

e Residential: $0.98/month for a period of two years; and

e GS <50 kW: $2.94/month for a period of two years.

This is based on a NBV of $469,325 for stranded conventional meters as of August 31,
2013. This reflects the December 31, 2011 NBV of $504,566 less further depreciation
expense of $35,241 recovered in existing rates for the first eight months (January 1 to
August 31) of 2013.

In Table 11, Collus PowerStream states that the class allocation is based on its
“approved Smart Meter filing”.

a) Despite Collus PowerStream filing later, its Application is for rates based on a
2013 forward test year. For the purpose of determining the 2013 revenue
requirement, the NBV of stranded meters are removed from rate base, cost
allocation and the revenue requirement determination as of January 1, 2013.
Please provide further explanation of Collus PowerStream’s basis for recording
further depreciation until August 31, 2013.
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Please confirm whether the allocation weights shown in Table 11 reflect the class-
specific weighted meter costs of conventional meters or of smart meters.

If the weights are based on the class-specific weighted smart meter costs, please
provide the rationale for using these weights for allocating the net book value of
stranded conventional meters.

Please provide a copy of Sheet I7.1 from Collus PowerStream’s Cost Allocation
study from its previous Cost of Service application.

Based on the information provided in d), please provide class-specific SMRRs for
the Residential and GS < 50 kW using the customer weighted meter costs and
number of customers to allocate the NBV of stranded meters to the Residential
and GS < 50 kW customer classes. Please adequately document the
methodology for allocating the costs between the classes. Where available,
spreadsheets for documenting the data and calculations should be provided in
working Microsoft Excel format.

Response

a)

b)

d)

e)

Collus PowerStream moved stranded meters out of PPE in July 2012 to a deferral
account and continued to amortize the stranded meters until August 31, 2013.

From a rates perspective, a distributor continues to receive a return (WACC) on
the stranded net meter assets and continues to recover the return of the stranded
meters in the meter amortization expenses, both of which were included in the
revenue requirement and the distributor's current rates. It is only upon a
distributor’s rates rebasing would this revenue stream cease to continue in rates
when the stranded net meter costs are removed from rate base. Accordingly,
under this approach until rates rebasing, the regulatory accounting treatment
(regardless of whether the stranded meters are recorded in either sub-account
1555 or account 1860 or when they were moved) requires the distributor to
continue amortization expense in account 5705.

The allocation weights show in Table 11 reflect the class specific weighted meter
costs of smart meters, as filed in EB-2012-0017.

Collus PowerStream did not maintain separate accounting records for each
customer class. Therefore using the class specific weighting of smart meters is
the most reasonable method of determining the stranded meter class allocation.

Collus PowerStream was not able to locate the Cost Allocation study EB-2006-
0247 filed for information with EB-2008-0226.

Not available.
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9.0-Staff-34

Ref: Account 1508, Sub Account Pension Contributions; E9/T1/S1, pp7- 8 and
December 2005 APH FAQ # 13

The December 2005 APH FAQ # 13 states:

Q.13 Incremental cost assessments and cash pension contributions were
authorized for inclusion in 1508, Other Regulatory Assets, sub-accounts as per
Board letters of December 20, 2004 and February 15, 2005 respectively. To
which date are the recordings authorized in these sub-accounts?

A.13 These recordings are authorized to April 30, 2006 since effective on May 1,
2006 cost assessments and cash pension contributions amounts are included in
the distribution rates of LDCs for the 2006/07 rate year. [Emphasis added]

Collus PowerStream is requesting for its December 31, 2011 audited total balance of
$60,881 for Account 1508, Sub Account Pension Contributions.

Board staff notes that Collus PowerStream had the opportunity in its 2009 COS rates
application to request for the disposition of Account 1508, Sub Account Pension
Contributions balance.

a) Please explain why the Board should approve Collus PowerStream’s request for
disposition of Account 1508, Sub Account Pension Contributions at this time.

Response

a) Collus PowerStream is requesting disposition of the balance in 1508, Sub
Account Pension Contributions. This account was used, as per a letter dated
February 15, 2005 to all LDC's regarding introduction of new USofA accounts and
guidelines on accounting issues. In that letter the Board allowed all LDC’s who
were members of OMERS to track and record such pension costs and associated
carrying charges in account 1508 sub account pension contributions for 2005 and
subsequent years. Collus PowerStream recorded pension costs from 2005 up to
and including April 2006, at which time as per December 2005 APH FAQ #13,
OMERS pension costs were included in distribution rates. For reporting
purposes, Collus PowerStream included in quarterly RRR.2.1.1 and annual
RRR.2.1.7 outstanding balances for recovery in account 1508. In EB-2008-0226
Collus PowerStream did not request disposition of any group 2 deferral accounts.
Collus PowerStream tracked the carrying charges in account 1508, sub account
pension costs from inception up to and including disposition of this account with
rates effective September 1, 2013. Collus PowerStream is requesting disposition
of this account at this time.
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9.0-Staff-35

Ref: Account 1508, Sub Account Deferred IFRS Transition Costs; E9/T1/S1, p.7,
Table 3; E1/T3/S5, p. 1; DVA Work Form (WF) for 2013 Filers; October 2009 APH
FAQ # 1 and E9/T1/S1, p.8-10

In Table 3, Collus PowerStream listed Account 1508, Sub Account Deferred IFRS
Transition Costs as one of the Group 2 accounts to be disposed for a total of $117,245.

Collus PowerStream indicated that it will adopt IFRS on January 1, 2015.

Board staff notes the Accounting Procedures Handbook — FAQ #1, dated October 2009
stated the following with respect to the disposition of Account 1508 Other Regulatory
Assets, Sub-account Deferred IFRS Transition:

The Board has approved a deferral account for a distributor to record one-time
administrative incremental IFRS transition costs, which are not already
approved and included for recovery in distribution rates.

In the distributor’s next cost of service rate application immediately after the IFRS
transition period, the balance in this sub-account should be included for review
and disposition. [Emphasis added]

a. Please provide estimates of what additional costs Collus PowerStream is
expecting to incur for its IFRS project.

b. Given that Collus PowerStream’s IFRS adoption will be on January 1, 2015 and
given the APH guidelines, please explain why Collus PowerStream is seeking
disposition of the $117,245 balance in this current rate application instead of
requesting disposition in the next rate proceeding when the IFRS transition period
is complete.

Response

a) During 2012 and year-to-date 2013 an additional $36,205 and $10,000
respectively has been incurred for IFRS transition costs. These costs relate to
accounting, legal, and consulting work directly attributable to IFRS conversion
needs.

During 2013 to 2015 we anticipate through our service level agreement with
PowerStream to utilize about an additional 100 hours of their expert IFRS staff to
review whitepapers and discuss issues if any, train internal staff, assist with
modifications to our forms and reports, review our financial statements, assist with
opening IFRS balances, review IFRS notes and present to external stakeholders
information on the financial statement impacts. The charge will be allocated at
cost from PowerStream and result in savings over outside consultants.
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We also expect audit and accounting fees during the actual transition year to
result in $40-$50k in additional costs.

Some IFRS transition costs are undeterminable at this time due to the uncertainty
in the timing and nature of the conversion process.

When account 1508 was originally established, the expected IFRS transition date
was January 1, 2011. The AcSB has subsequently deferred the mandatory IFRS
changeover date for entities with qualifying rate regulated activities four times.
The effective transition date is now January 1, 2015. The complexity of applying
IFRS to the rate regulated industry has resulted in delays and confusion in the
accounting industry that continue to add costs to our utility. At the time of creation
of the 1508 deferral account, it was reasonable that it would be a one-time cost
and be included in the rate application immediately after the IFRS transition
period. However, this is no longer reasonable. A utility cannot be expected to
continue to bear the substantial costs of the IFRS transition for this many years
before recovery. By the time Collus PowerStream files its next cost of service
application it will be 2016 and we will have been tracking IFRS costs for over 6
years that are substantial in nature.
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Ref: Account 1588, RSVA Power and Account 1588, RSVA Power -Sub account
Global Adjustment and E9/T1/S1, p.3, Table 2

Table 2 lists Accounts 1588, RSVA Power and Account 1588, RSVA Power, Sub
account Global Adjustment for disposition in the amounts of $141,511 and $574,290

respectively.

a. Does Collus PowerStream pro-rate IESO Charge Type 146 Global Adjustment
into the RPP portion and non-RPP portion? If not, why not.
b. If so, please provide the supporting spreadsheet for the year 2011 which prorates
the IESO Charge Type 146 Global Adjustment into RPP portion and non-RPP

portion.

Response

a) Collus PowerStream confirms that monthly IESO charge type 146 Global

Adjustment is prorated between RPP and non-RPP  portions.
b)
IESO Charge Type 146
Month RPP % Non-RPP % GA Charge RPP Non-RPP
Jan-11  52.7782%  47.2218% 1,287,253 679,389 607,864
Feb-11  48.2281%  51.7719% 1,071,676 516,849 554,827
Mar-11  48.9631%  51.0369% 1,156,739 566,375 590,364
Apr-11  42.7412%  57.2588% 1,217,082 520,195 696,886
May-11  43.7145%  56.2855% 1,325,373 579,380 745,993
Jun-11  40.7246%  59.2754% 1,036,024 421,917 614,108
Jul-11  49.2342%  50.7658% 834,865 411,039 423,826
Aug-11  46.7002%  53.2998% 904,953 422,615 482,338
Sep-11  35.3131%  64.6869% 934,378 329,958 604,420
Oct-11  41.7439%  58.2561% 1,184,366 494,401 689,966
Now-11  45.9294%  54.0706% 1,222,932 561,686 661,247
Dec-11  50.7873%  49.2127% 1,454,727 738,817 715,911
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9.0-Staff-37

Ref: Account 1592, PILs and Tax Variance for 2006 and Subsequent Years — Sub-
account HST/OVAT Input Tax Credits; E1/T1/S2, p.3 and Chapter 2 of the Filing
Requirements For Electricity Transmission and Distribution Applications,
Sections 2.12.2, June 28, 2012

The 2013 COS filing requirements state:

The applicant must state whether entries have been made to record variances in
the sub-account of Account 1592 to cover the period from July 1, 2010 to
December 31, 2012 since the Test Year, which starts January 1, 2013 would
include the HST impacts in rates going forward. If this is not the case, please
explain. If the rate year begins May 1, entries to record variances in the sub-
account of Account 1592 would cover the period from July 1, 2010 to April 30,
2013.

The applicant is required to provide an analysis to support the applicant’s
conformity with the December 2010 APH FAQs using the example shown in the
FAQ #4.

Board staff noted that the variances recorded in 1592 sub account did not cover the
period from July 1, 2010 to August 31, 2013 since therate year starts September 1,
2013.

Board staff also noted that Collus PowerStream has not provided the detailed analysis
required by S.2.12.2 of the 2013 COS filing requirements.

a) Please file the updated balance for disposition for Account 1592, PILs and Tax
Variance for 2006 and Subsequent Years — Sub-account HST/OVAT Input Tax
Credits to cover the period of July 1, 2010 to August 31, 2013 using the analysis
method in the December 2010 APH FAQ #4.

b) Please provide the details for the analysis for the completion of the record.

Response:

a) Collus PowerStream’s filing on April 30, 2013 contained balances for Account
1592, PILs and Tax Variance for 2006 and Subsequent Years — Sub-account
HST/OVAT Input Tax Credits (1592 HST") that were estimated based on a
detailed analysis of 2009 purchases and the PST component therein that was
charged to OM&A costs. This analysis has been re-examined in order to respond
to part (b) of this interrogatory and has resulted in slightly different amounts.
Collus PowerStream is updating the values for account 1592 HST and the portion
refunded to customers based on the answer to this interrogatory.



Collus PowerStream Corp.
EB-2012-0116

Responses to Interrogatories of
Board Staff and Intervenors
Page 362 of 375

Filed: August 21, 2013

As discussed in part (b), the 2009 OM&A costs contained PST totaling $27,639.
Using the proxy method in the December 2010 APH FAQ #4 (“FAQ#4"), this
results in an amount of $2,303.25 per month to be recorded in 1592 HST.

The period from July 1, 2010, i.e. start of HST, to August 31, 2013, i.e.
immediately prior to rebased rates effective September 1, 2013, is 38 months
resulting in a total of $87,524 to be booked in 1592 HST plus accrued interest for
a total of $89,501. This is summarized in Table Staff 37-1 below.

Table Staff 37-1: Entries for Account 1592 Sub-account HST/OVAT

Principal Interest Interest
Date Addition Total Addition Total Total Days | Rate
6/30/2010 $ $ $ -
7/31/2010 | $ 2,303.25 $ 2,303.25 $ $ $ 2,303.25 31 | 0.89%
8/31/2010 | § 2,303.25 $ 4,606.50 $ 174 | § 1.74 | § 4,608.24 31 | 0.89%
9/30/2010 | $ 2,303.25 $ 6,909.75 $ 337 | § 511 | § 6914.86 30 | 0.89%
10/31/2010 | $ 2,303.25 $ 9,213.00 $ 704 | § 1215 | § 9,225.15 31 | 1.20%
11/30/2010 | $§ 2,303.25 $ 11,516.25 $ 9.09 | § 21.24 | § 11,537.49 30 | 1.20%
12/31/2010 | $ 2,303.25 $ 13,819.50 § Mr41$ 3298 | § 13,852.48 31 | 1.20%
1/31/2011 | § 2,303.25 $ 16,122.75 § 17251 § 50.23 | § 16,172.98 31 | 1.47%
2/28/2011 | $ 2,303.25 $ 18,426.00 $§ 1818 | § 68.41 | § 18,494.41 28 | 1.47%
3/31/2011 | § 2,303.25 $ 20,729.25 $ 2300 | $ 9142 | § 20,820.67 31 | 1.47%
4/30/2011 | § 2,303.25 $ 23,032.50 $ 2505 | § 11646 | $ 23,148.96 30 | 1.47%
5/31/2011 | § 2,303.25 $ 25,335.75 $ 2876 | § 14522 | § 2548097 31 | 1.47%
6/30/2011 | $ 2,303.25 $ 27,639.00 $ 3061 | § 17583 | § 27,814.83 30 | 1.47%
7/31/2011 | § 2,303.25 $ 29,942.25 $ 3451 | § 21034 | $§ 30,152.59 31 | 1.47%
8/31/2011 | § 2,303.25 $ 32,245.50 $ 3738 | §  247.72 | § 32,493.22 31 | 1.47%
9/30/2011 | $ 2,303.25 $ 34,548.75 $ 3896 | § 286.68 | § 34,83543 30 | 1.47%
10/31/2011 | $ 2,303.25 $ 36,852.00 $ 4313 | §  329.81 | § 37,181.81 31 | 1.47%
11/30/2011 | § 2,303.25 $ 39,155.25 $ 4453 | § 37434 | § 39,529.59 30 | 1.47%
12/31/2011 | $ 2,303.25 $ 41,458.50 $ 4889 | §  423.22 | § 41,881.72 31 | 1.47%
1/31/2012 | § 2,303.25 $ 43,761.75 $ 5176 | § 47498 | § 44,236.73 31 | 1.47%
2/29/2012 | $ 2,303.25 $ 46,065.00 $ 5111 ] $ 52609 | §46591.09 29 | 1.47%
3/31/2012 | § 2,303.25 $ 48,368.25 $ 5751 | §  583.61 | $ 48,951.86 31 | 1.47%
4/30/2012 | § 2,303.25 $ 50,671.50 $ 5844 | §  642.05 | § 51,313.55 30 | 1.47%
5/31/2012 | § 2,303.25 $ 52,974.75 $ 6326 | § 70531 | $ 53,680.06 31 | 1.47%
6/30/2012 | $ 2,303.25 $ 55,278.00 $ 6401 | § 769.31 | § 56,047.31 30 | 1.47%
7/31/2012 | § 2,303.25 $ 57,581.25 $ 6901 | § 83833 | § 58419.58 31 | 1.47%
8/31/2012 | § 2,303.25 $ 59,884.50 $ 7189 | § 91022 | § 60,794.72 31 | 1.47%
9/30/2012 | $ 2,303.25 $ 62,187.75 $ 7235 | § 98257 | § 63,170.32 30 | 1.47%
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10/31/2012 | § 2,303.25 $ 64,491.00 $ 7764 | § 106021 | § 65551.21 31 | 147%
11/30/2012 | § 2,303.25 $ 66,794.25 $ 7792 | § 113813 | § 67,932.38 30 | 1.47%
12/31/2012 | § 2,303.25 $ 69,097.50 $ 8339 | § 122152 | § 70,319.02 31 | 147%
1/31/2013 | § 2,303.25 $ 71,400.75 $ 8627 | § 15307.79 | § 72,708.54 31 | 1.47%
2/28/2013 | $ 2,303.25 $ 73,704.00 $ 8052 | § 1,388.31 | § 75,092.31 28 | 147%
3/31/2013 | § 2,303.25 $ 76,007.25 $ 9202 | § 148033 | § 77,487.58 31 | 1.47%
4/30/2013 | $ 2,303.25 $ 78,310.50 $ 9183 | § 157216 | $ 79,882.66 30 | 1.47%
5/31/2013 | $ 2,303.25 $ 80,613.75 $ 9777 | § 1,669.93 | § 82,283.68 31 | 147%
6/30/2013 | $ 2,303.25 $ 82,917.00 $ 9740 | § 1,767.33 | § 84,684.33 30 | 1.47%
7/31/2013 | § 2,303.25 $ 85,220.25 $ 10352 | § 187085 | § 87,091.10 31 | 147%
8/31/2013 | $ 2,303.25 $ 87,523.50 $ 10640 | § 197725 | § 89,500.75 31 | 1.47%

As per the Board’s Decision March 31, 2010 (EB-2009-0220), 50% or $44,750 is
to be refunded to customers.

In this update, Collus PowerStream has not calculated any savings on capital or
depreciation as a result of the introduction of HST. This is based on the same reasons as
provided in PowerStream’s 2013 COS (EB-2012-0161) that are reproduced below (in italics
and including Table 3). The same reasons apply to Collus PowerStream’s situation as well.
This method was accepted by the parties in that proceeding as evidenced in the Settlement
Agreement regarding the deferral and variance accounts which included account 1592 Sub-
account HST/OVAT.

PowerStream 2013 COS (EB-2012-0161) Settlement Agreement October 24, 2012,
page 22:

Issue 5.1 Is the proposed clearance of deferral and variance account balances
appropriate?

Complete Settlement: For the purposes of settlement, the Parties agree that
PowerStream’s proposed clearance of deferral and variance account balances,
including a credit balance in Account 1562 Deferred PlLs of $4,084,566, is
appropriate.

PowerStream 2013 COS (EB-2012-0161), Exhibit I, Tab 1, Schedule 12, Page 3 to 6:

FAQ#4 discusses whether there are any savings from HST related to capital and
depreciation that are to be recorded in 1592 HST.

In FAQ#4 it is recognized that any savings on capital purchases on or after July 1, 2010
will be reflected in the cost when these assets are included in rate base at the next cost
of service application. Any savings in cost due to the elimination of PST will flow to
ratepayers at that time and there is no savings to be recorded in 1592 HST.

In FAQ#4 there is further discussion and examples regarding the depreciation on capital
additions on or after July 1, 2010, that imply there are savings on depreciation to be



Collus PowerStream Corp.
EB-2012-0116

Responses to Interrogatories of
Board Staff and Intervenors
Page 364 of 375

Filed: August 21, 2013

recorded in 1592 HST. There is no explanation as to why there would be an assumption
of savings related to depreciation on assets that have yet to be rebased and become part
of rates. Furthermore, the Board’s Decision talks about incremental ITCs which do not
apply to depreciation, only to the capital cost of the asset addition.

With no clear rationale for the savings on depreciation, PowerStream contacted Board
Staff for an explanation. The explanation offered was that since depreciation is an
annual expense, it was felt that this should be treated similar to OM&A.

PowerStream questions this rationale. Unlike OM&A which represents current
expenditures, depreciation represents the recovery of the original cost of fixed assets
over the useful lives. The depreciation in current rates is recovering the original cost of
assets acquired at or before PowerStream'’s last cost of service rebasing (Barrie 2008,
PowerStream 2009) on which PowerStream has paid PST. Accordingly there can be no
savings from the implementation of HST in 2010.

PowerStream considered if there was any way that there could a realization of savings on
depreciation resulting from the implementation of HST during the current Incentive
Regulation Mechanism (“IRM”) period. This could only occur if there was depreciation in
current rates that could be considered to be depreciation on additions after June 30, 2010
and if this depreciation was greater than the actual depreciation on the new additions.

PowerStream considered the mechanics of IRM rate setting, the nature of capital
investment and recovery of capital costs through rates. PowerStream’s current rates are
based on the capital assets in service in 2009 (Barrie 2008) or earlier. As indicated
above, the additions after June 30, 2010 (which are subject to HST rather than PST) will
not be added to the rate base until PowerStream’s next cost of service rebasing for 2013
rates.

The only way that there is depreciation in rates on additions after 2009, is the extent of
depreciation on assets included in the last cost of service rebasing that become fully
depreciated. This would provide some depreciation expense in rates available to fund
depreciation on new additions.

The savings calculated in FAQ#4 would only arise if the annual depreciation expense on
additions were 8% lower than the amount of annual depreciation expense on fully
amortized assets that is no longer required. The inherent assumption is that additions
and related annual depreciation will be 8% lower than the amount of fully amortized
assets and related annual depreciation expense. This is extremely unlikely. The
historical cost and related depreciation on fully amortized assets is likely to be much
lower than the cost of new additions and related depreciation, well in excess of any
reduction due to HST, as explained below.

Distribution assets represent the vast majority of PowerStream’s rate base and on
average have a useful life of 25 years.

The materials cost of utility assets has increased by approximately 88.8% over the 25
year period since 1985 (refer to Table 3 below). An 8% cost reduction from PST, would
reduce the material cost index to 155.3 and the estimated cost increase in materials
being replaced in fiscal 2010 would be approximately 75.1% greater than the cost of the
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original capital that was included in current rates. Similarly the labour cost of constructed
assets has increased by 74.7% over the same period.

The facts indicate that the cost of replacement capital assets and the corresponding
depreciation expense generally will be much greater than the cost and associated
depreciation of fully depreciated assets being replaced, well in excess of any reduction
from the removal of PST.
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Table 3: Electric Utility Price Construction Price Indexes

Table 327-0011 Electric utility construction price indexes (EUCPI), annual (index, 1992=100)
Survey or program details:
Electric Utility Construction Price Indexes - 2316

Geography Canada
Annual Annual
YEAR Materials Inflation Labour Inflation
1979 60.3 47
1980 70.6 17% 51.6 10%
1981 75 6% 575 11%
1982 79.9 7% 64.5 12%
1983 79.1 -1% 71 10%
1984 83 5% 73.6 4%
1985 88.7 7% 76 3%
1986 90.7 2% 78 3%
1987 93.3 3% 80.7 3%
1988 101.7 9% 83.6 4%
1989 105 3% 88 5%
1990 106.9 2% 91.3 4%
1991 98.5 -8% 96.9 6%
1992 100 2% 100 3%
1993 102.1 2% 102.7 3%
1994 1125 10% 104.3 2%
1995 128.1 14% 106.1 2%
1996 126.1 -2% 106.6 0%
1997 125 -1% 110.1 3%
1998 125.4 0% 117.6 7%
1999 126 0% 123.6 5%
2000 128.6 2% 128.8 4%
2001 127.7 -1% 130.7 1%
2002 127.6 0% 132.3 1%
2003 127.8 0% 132.7 0%
2004 1325 4% 127.2 -4%
2005 138.2 4% 125.3 -1%
2006 155 12% 1275 2%
2007 165 6% 130.3 2%
2008 167.6 2% 127.7 -2%
2009 167.5 0% 127.2 0%
2010 168.8 1% 132.8 4%
M aterials L abour

1985 index 88.7 B 76.0 B

2010 index (Note 1) 155.3 132.8

Change in index 66.6 A 56.8 A

A/B= 75.1% 74.7%

Note 1: 2010 index for materials adjusted by 8% [ 168.8 x (1 - 8%) ] to reflect removal of PST on
material purchases; there is no PST on labour costs, so no adjustment is required.
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b) Collus PowerStream analyzed its purchases for 2009 and determined the amounts of
PST that were included in the OM&A costs. These are summarized in Table Staff 37-

2.

Table Staff 37-2: Summary of Purchase Analysis re PST in 2009 OM&A

% of

Purchase Analysis Cost PST Portion ~ Cost

Purchased OM&A $ 1,770,957 $17,428.44 0.98%
Burdens applied to OM&A $ 278,805 § 10,211 3.66%
Total $ 2049762 § 27,639 1.35%

Collus PowerStream’s financial system and the way invoices are entered into the
account payable system make it clear whether or not PST has been included in the
cost. For costs that have PST included in them, the amount of PST has been
determined as 8/108 (or 7.40741%) of the amount charged to OM&A.

As per Appendix 2-1, the total 2009 actual OM&A costs are $3,850,193. Appendix
2-K shows that labour costs totaling $1,800,431 was charged to 2009 OM&A. The
balance of the costs would come from purchases. This is summarized in Table

Staff 37-3.

Table Staff 37-3: Summary of PST in 2009 OM&A

Cost PST Portion
Compensation charged to OM&A per
Appendix 2-K 1,800,431 $
"Purchased" OM&A Costs 2,049,762 § 27,639
Total OM&A $ 3850193 $§ 27,639

% of
Cost

0.00%
1.35%
0.72%

The resulting 0.72% of PST as a per cent of costs reflects the fact that most of
Collus PowerStream’s costs were not subject to PST such as labour. Most
purchases such as services were only subject to GST. Items such as inventory,

materials, supplies and repairs are costs that did contain PST.
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9-Energy Probe-39

Ref:

a)

b)

d)

Exhibit 9, Tab 1, Schedule 1

Was Account 1508 - sub-account Pension Contributions created by a
generic OEB order or was there a specific account order for Collus
PowerStream?

What were the carrying charges that would have been recovered if Collus
PowerStream had sought recovery of the Pension Contributions sub-
account of account 1508 at its last COS rebasing application for 2009 rates?

Why does Collus PowerStream believe that it should recover the 2011 costs
related to the transition to IFRS now rather than waiting to recover all costs
(including those incurred in 2012) when it actually converts to IFRS?

Please provide Table 4 expanded to include actual 2012 costs associated
with the transition to IFRS. Does Collus PowerStream expect to incur any
further transition costs in 2013? If yes, please detail.

Response

a)

b)

c)

d)

In an OEB letter dated February 15, 2005 the Board allowed all LDC’s who were
members of OMERS to record the cash pension costs and associated carrying
charges in Account 1508- sub-account Pension Contributions.

Had Collus PowerStream sought to dispose of this account in 2009 the carrying
charges would have been, $8,156.20.

Collus PowerStream believes that it should recover the 2011 costs related to the
transition to IFRS now rather than waiting to recover all costs (including those
incurred in 2012) when it actually converts to IFRS. The reason for this approach
is addressed in OEB 1.0-Staff-35 part b.

Table 4 has been expanded to include actual 2012 costs associated with the
transition to IFRS and 2013 forecasted transition costs.
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Reasons why the costs recorded meet the criteria of one-

Description 2010 2011 2012 2013 Total time |FRS administrative incremental costs
Fees associated with preparation of position papers,
componentization of assets & draft Financial
Professional Accounting Fees 33,585.00 56,566.00 18,725.25 10,000.00 118,876.25 | Statements.
PowerStream expert IFRS staff to review whitepapers
and discussissues if any, train internal staff, assist with
modifications to our forms and reports, review our
financial statements, assist with opening IFRS balances,
review IFRS notes and present to external stakeholders
Power Stream Professional Staff 10,000.00 10,000.00 information on the financial statement impacts
Incremental external consultant support dealing with
updating the financial records to comply for IFRS &
External Consultant 13,650.00 13,650.00 convert CGAAP
Incremental staff support dealing with updating the
Salaries of added staff for IFRS 20,018.00 2,486.00 22,504.00 financial records to comply for IFRS & convert CGAAP
Associated Training Costs 2,800.00 2,800.00 Training for IFRS implementation
System Upgrade Requirements 278.00 1,343.75 1,621.75 Project Accounting upgrade for IFRS conversion
Estimated to December 31, 2013 - based on OEB
Carrying Charges 5,612.37 approved processes and rates
Total 33,585.00 79,662.00 36,205.00 20,000.00 169,452.00

Some IFRS transition costs are undeterminable at this time due to the uncertainty in the
timing and nature of the conversion process. Collus PowerStream will be converting to
IFRS on January 1, 2015. One-time costs will continue to be deferred during 2013 —
2015 related to the transition. Please see OEB 4.0-Staff-35 part a) for additional details.

The utilization of PowerStream’s staff to assist with the transition will reduce the amount
of professional fees required for one-time transition costs in 2013 — 2015.
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9-Energy Probe-40

Ref:

a)

b)

Exhibit 9, Tab 1, Schedule 1 &
Exhibit 2, Tab 2, Schedule 1

Please show the calculation of the depreciation expense that is implicitly
used in the calculation of the accumulated depreciation figures shown in
Table 10 of Exhibit 9, Tab 1, Schedule 1 for each of the years shown.

Table 3 of Exhibit 2, Tab 2, Schedule 1 indicates that meters were
depreciated over a 15 year period. Tables 4-6 of the same exhibit shows
that when the meters were transferred to stranded meters, the depreciation
period changed from 15 years to 25 years. Please confirm that this was the
case.

Please reconcile the difference in accumulated depreciation for each of
2009 through 2012 in Table 10 of Exhibit 9, Tab 1, Schedule 1 with the
depreciation expense shown in Tables 3-6 in Exhibit 2, Tab 2, Schedule 1.

What depreciation rate (or years) has Collus PowerStream used to
depreciate the stranded meters in 2013?

e) What is the decrease in the NBV of the stranded meters for each month
beyond August 31, 2013?
Response
a) Below shows the calculation of the depreciation expense that is implicitly used in

the calculation of the accumulated depreciation figures shown in Table 10 of
Exhibit 9, Tab 1, Schedule 1 for each of the years shown.

2008
BAL

YR FWD 1999 2000 PRCH 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Error YEARLY ACCUM ucc

CORR (24,373) Corr DEPREC DEPREC

ADD 700,249 65,102 3,548 155,567 101,990 12,741 65,955 21,964 165,131 75,607 34,098 35,832 87,154 29,329 65000/25 1,529,894
2005 17,304 2,568 141 12,477 3,064 510 2,638 879 6,611 46,192 650,775 879,116
2006 17,304 2,568 141 12,477 3,064 510 2,638 879 6,605 3,031 49,217 699,992 829,899
2007 17,304 2,568 141 12,477 3,064 510 2,638 879 6,605 3,024 1,362 50,572 750,564 779,327
2008 17,304 2,568 141 12,477 3,064 510 2,638 879 6,605 3,024 1,364 1,440 2,600 54,614 805,178 724,713
2009 17,304 2,568 141 12,477 3,064 510 2,638 879 6,605 3,024 1,364 1,433 3,490 2,600 58,097 863,275 666,616
2010 17,304 2,568 141 12,477 3,064 510 2,638 879 6,605 3,024 1,364 1,433 3,486 1,177 (10,400) 46,270 909,545 620,346
2011 16,520 2,568 141 12,477 3,064 510 2,638 879 6,605 3,024 1,364 1,433 3,486 1,173 5,200 61,082 970,627 559,264
2012 15,336 2,568 141 12,477 3,064 510 2,638 879 6,605 3,024 1,364 1,433 3,486 1,173 54,698 1,025,325 504,566
2013 13,499 2,568 141 12,477 3,064 510 2,638 879 6,605 3,024 1,364 1,433 3,486 1,173 52,861 1,078,186 451,708
2014 10,314 2,568 141 3,064 510 2,638 879 6,605 3,024 1,364 1,433 3,486 1,173 37,199 1,115,385 414,509
2015 6,155 2,568 141 3,064 510 2,638 879 6,605 3,024 1,364 1,433 3,486 1,173 33,040 1,148,425 381,469
2016 5,060 2,568 141 3,064 510 2,638 879 6,605 3,024 1,364 1,433 3,486 1,173 31,945 1,180,370 349,524
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2,568 141 3,064 510 2,638 879 6,605 3,024 1,364 1,433 3,486 1,173 29,740 1,210,110 319,784
2,568 141 3,064 510 2,638 879 6,605 3,024 1,364 1,433 3,486 1,173 29,054 1,239,164 290,730
2,568 141 3,064 510 2,638 879 6,605 3,024 1,364 1,433 3,486 1,173 27,862 1,267,026 262,868
2,568 141 3,064 510 2,638 879 6,605 3,024 1,364 1,433 3,486 1,173 26,934 1,293,960 235,934
2,568 141 3,064 510 2,638 879 6,605 3,024 1,364 1,433 3,486 1,173 27,045 1,321,005 208,889
2,568 141 3,064 510 2,638 879 6,605 3,024 1,364 1,433 3,486 1,173 26,885 1,347,890 182,004
2,568 141 3,064 510 2,638 879 6,605 3,024 1,364 1,433 3,486 1,173 26,885 1,374,775 155,119
141 3,064 510 2,638 879 6,605 3,024 1,364 1,433 3,486 1,173 24,317 1,399,092 130,802
3,064 510 2,638 879 6,605 3,024 1,364 1,433 3,486 1,173 24,176 1,423,268 106,626
510 2,638 879 6,605 3,024 1,364 1,433 3,486 1,173 21,112 1,444,380 85,514
2,638 879 6,605 3,024 1,364 1,433 3,486 1,173 20,602 1,464,982 64,912
879 6,605 3,024 1,364 1,433 3,486 1,173 17,964 1,482,946 46,948
6,605 3,024 1,364 1,433 3,486 1,173 17,085 1,500,031 29,863
3,024 1,364 1,433 3,486 1,173 10,480 1,510,511 19,383
1,364 1,433 3,486 1,173 7,456 1,517,967 11,927
1,433 3,486 1,173 6,092 1,524,059 5,835
3,486 1,173 4,659 1,528,718 1,176
1,173 1,173 1,529,891 3
1,529,891 3
1,529,891 3
1,529,891 3
65,101 3,548 155,567 77,617 12,741 65,955 21,964 165,131 75,607 34,098 35,832 87,154 29,329

b) Table 3 of Exhibit 2, Tab 2, Schedule 1 indicates that meters were depreciated

over a 15 year period. Tables 4-6 of the same exhibit shows that when the
meters were transferred to stranded meters, the depreciation period changed
from 15 years to 25 years. This however was not the case. Both meters and
stranded meters were depreciated over 25 years in 2009. This is a typo on Table
3. (Please refer to 2-Energy Probe -12 for more details.)

It was determined after the stranded meters were moved out, that the remaining
NBV of the meters had an average of 15 years remaining. The 15 year rate
became the rate of depreciation in the following year tables.

The reconciled difference in accumulated depreciation for each of 2009 through
2012 in Table 10 of Exhibit 9, Tab 1, Schedule 1 with the depreciation expense
shown in Tables 3-6 in Exhibit 2, Tab 2, Schedule 1 is provided below:



2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012

Table 10
E9/T1/S1

Table 3-6
E2/T2/S1

$750,564
$805,178
$863,275
$909,545
$970,627
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$863,275 Table 3
$909,545 Table 4
$970,627 Table 5
$1,025,325 S1,025,325Table 6

$1,002,534.48 + $22,790.81 = 1,025,325
Total accum amort disposed + continued amort on
stranded meters in capital listed below as a reconciling
number.

d) A 25 year depreciation rate has been used by Collus PowerStream to depreciate
the stranded meters in 2013.

e)

There is no decrease in the NBV of the stranded meters for each month beyond
August 31, 2013. When new rates become effective September 1, 2013 the
amortization of stranded meters stops. The general ledger below provides this

detail.
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Fle Edit Teals View Addiional Help cshuttleworth COLLUS Pow Co 3
& Clear |
Account 1555 -0003 -00 2]
Desciiption 5 Stranded Meter Costs | Year |2013 =
Period Diebit redit Het Change Eenod E alance
Beginning Balance $531.,915.06 $27.349.06 $ 504,566.00 $ 50456600 &
Januany $0.00 § 4.405.00 (4 4.405.00) % 500,161.00
February $0.00 $4.405.00 [$ 4.405.00) § 435,756.00
March 3 0.00 4 4.405.00 % 4.405.00] % 491"_351 00
April 4000 $4.405.00 [$ 4.405.00) $ 436,946.00
bz 4 0.00 % 4.405.00 [ 4,41f|5.|301 4482 541.00
Jure 4000 $4.405.00 [$ 4.405.00) $478,136.00
duly $0.00 $4.405.00 # 4.405.00] $474.731.00
August 4000 $4.405.00 [$ 4.405.00) $ 469,326.00
September $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $469.326.00
Oectober $0.00 $0.00 000 § 469,326.00
Movember $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $ 465,326.00
December 4000 $0.00 4000 $ 469,326.00
=]
Totals $ 531,915 06 $ 6258906 $ 453 326,00 $469,326.00
Clfrency |
| 4 4 F ¥ |by Account - ._:? 7]
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9-Energy Probe-41

Ref: Exhibit 9, Tab 1, Schedule 1 &
Exhibit 2, Tab 2, Schedule 1

a) Please provide more details on the requested new sub-account for account
1555 to capture the remaining net book value of older smart meters that
need to be replaced due to new technical requirements.

b) When were these older smart meters replaced? Please provide a table that
shows the NBV by year of replacement both historically and, if applicable, in
the 2013 test year.

c) If any of these older smart meters were replaced prior to the end of 2012,
have these meters been removed from rate base? If so, please reconcile
with no disposals shown for smart meters in Table 6 of Exhibit 2, Tab 2,
Schedule 1 for 2012 or for meters in previous years.

d) If any of these older smart meters are forecast to be replaced in 2013, have
these meters been removed from rate base in the test year? If so, please
reconcile with no disposals shown for smart meters in Table 7 of Exhibit 2,
Tab 2, Schedule 1 for 2013.

Response

a) See 2.0-Staff-7 and 9.0-Staff-32

b) Collus PowerStream replaced, as needed and prior to identifying the current

issues, smart meters as they failed, i.e. there was no replacement schedule.
When Collus PowerStream received information pertaining to the failure of a
meter, such as a stale meter, the meter was investigated and on a meter by meter
basis it was determined if a meter had failed. It was not until the communications
issues were identified in the iCon F&G meters that a plan was put in place to
remove and replace these meters in order to maintain the reliability of the entire
meter population and communications infrastructure.

Collus PowerStream did not remove, from capital, those meters which were
replaced.

c) There were a number of meters replaced prior to the end of 2012. Collus

PowerStream began replacing meters which were deemed to have failed shortly
after installation began in 2009. Some meters were replaced under warranty
however the majority were replaced outside the warranty period and were
replaced prior to identifying the current security and communications issues. The
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meters which were replaced prior to the end of 2012 have not been removed from
the rate base.

The replacement of the First Generation Units is forecasted be at 1500 unit in
2013. At the end of the third quarter’s review of the budget if there is some funds
left another 100 units could be exchanged brings the total to 1600 units.

Using the average of 22.4 per month it's projected that there will be 269 units that
will be replaced in 2013 due to some sort of failure in the meters.
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HSG Group, Inc.

August 20, 2013

Ms. Cindy Shuttleworth

Chief Financial Officer

Collingwood Public Utilities Service Boards
43 Stewart Road

Collingwood, Ontario L9Y 3Z5
cshuttleworth@collus.com

Addendum to Report to Collus PowerStream Solutions Corp.
Dear Ms. Shuttleworth:

We recently submitted to you our Report, Review of Cost Allocation Methodology,
dated April 2013.

In the Report, we referred to Collus PowerStream Corp. (“Collus Power”), Collus
PowerStream Solutions Corp. (“Solutions”), Collingwood Public Utilities Service Board
(“Collingwood Water”) and the Town of Collingwood as affiliates of each other.

We understand that within the meaning of Ontario law, Collus Power and Solutions are
affiliates, due to their common ownership by Collingwood PowerStream Utility Services Corp.
However neither Collus Power or Solutions are affiliates of Collingwood Water or the Town of
Collingwood.

In our Report, we evaluated the cost allocation methodology for compliance with the
Affiliate Relationships Code (“ARC”) as if all inter-company transactions between the entities
listed above had to meet the requirements of the ARC.

If you would like to discuss the Report or any aspect of the work, please contact me at
your convenience, by phone or e-mail as shown below.

Very truly yours,

e e
Howard S. Gorman

President
HSG Group, Inc.

c: Greg Van Dusen

HGorman@HSG-Group.biz
Phone (516) 244-6806
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Report to Collus PowerStream Solutions Corp.
Review of Cost Allocation Methodology

|. BACKGROUND

HSG Group, Inc. is pleased to submit this Report on our Review of Cost Allocation
Methodology (“Review”) to Collus PowerStream Corp. (“Collus Power”). Collus Power
receives certain services from an affiliate, Collus PowerStream Solutions Corp. (“Solutions”).
Solutions also provides services to other affiliated entities.

HSG Group was engaged by Collus Power to perform this Review and to present our
findings. The goals of our Review were:

* To develop a Cost Allocation Methodology )’CAM?”) to distribute the costs of services
provided by Solutions among the businesses to which the services are provided;

* To build a spreadsheet model reflecting the CAM;
e To implement the CAM; and

* To review the CAM for compliance with the Affiliate Relationships Code for Electricity
Distributors and Transmitters (“ARC”) of the Ontario Energy Board (“OEB”).

In addition, this engagement included a review of the methodology used by Collingwood
Public Utilities Service Board (“Collingwood Water”) to charge Collus Power for the use of
certain assets owned by Collingwood Water.

HSG Group personnel have significant experience assisting utilities in Canada and the
United States in rate and regulatory matters, including cost allocation . Exhibit 5 presents the
resume of Howard S. Gorman- President, HSG Group, who performed this Review.

Il. ORGANIZATION

Collus Power is an electric distribution utility serving customers in the towns of
Collingwood, Thornbury, Stayner and Creemore, located in southeastern Ontario.

Collus Power is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Collingwood PowerStream Utility
Services Corp., which in turn is 50% owned by the Town Council of the Town of Collingwood,
and 50% owned by PowerStream Inc. PowerStream Inc. is jointly owned by the municipalities
of Barrie, Markham and Vaughan, Ontario.

Collingwood PowerStream Utility Services Corp. is also the sole owner of Solutions and
Collus PowerStream Energy Corp., a non-operating company.

HSG Gioup . inc HGorman@HSG-Group.biz
o i ] Phone (516) 244-6806
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The Town Council of the Town of Collingwood is the sole owner of Collingwood Public
Utilities Service Board (“Collingwood Water”), a water distribution utility whose service
territory overlaps that of Collus Power.

Solutions provides services to Collus Power, Collingwood Water and the Town of
Collingwood.

The organizational relationships are presented in Table 1- Organizational Structure.

Table 1- Organizational Structure

. PowerStream Inc.
Town of co"'"QWOOd Jointly owned by municipatities of

Barrie, Markham and Vaughan

Collingwood

Qollln ;\ PowerStream Utility
Pugblulucoo Services Corp.
Utilities | 1
Service
owerStream
L Water utllity e Collus Solutions Corp. Collus
owgftmm Provides services PowerStream
p- to electric utliity, Energy Corp.
Electric utllity water utllity and
Town of
\ -} \_ Collingwood J \ Y,

The following terms are used in this Report:
e Collus PowerStream Solutions Corp. is referred to as Solutions
e Collus PowerStream Corp., the electric utility, is referred to as Collus Power

e Collingwood Public Utilities Service Board, the water utility, is referred to as
Collingwood Water

e Town of Collingwood is referred as Town or Municipality

HGorman@HSG-Group.biz
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Collus Power is regulated as to rates by the OEB. Collus Power is also subject to the
Affiliate Relationships Code for Electricity Distributors and Transmitters (“*ARC”) of the
Ontario Energy Board (“OEB”), with regard to transactions with Solutions.

I1l. WORK PLAN

The work plan employed by HSG Group to perform the Review comprised the following
steps. Each step is discussed in more detail in Section IV.

Step 1. Understand the organizational structure among Solutions and affiliated
entities

Step 2. Identify the services provided by Solutions to Collus Power, Collingwood
Water and Town

Step 3.  Determine the activities that are performed by Solutions employees to
provide the services identified in Step 2

Step 4.  Determine the portion of each employee’s total time devoted to each
activity identified in Step 3

Step 5. For each activity identified in Step 3, distribute the employee’s time
among the businesses for which the activity is performed, based on:

o Direct assignment- Time studies
o Cost drivers

Step 6.  Populate the cost drivers and compute cost driver shares

Step 7.  Apply cost driver shares to activities to be allocated

Step 8.  Summarize time distribution by business and apply cost-based weights
Step 9.  Allocate other costs and revenues

Step 10. Summarize and report

IV. EXEcUTION OF WORK PLAN

Step 1.Understand the organizational structure among Solutions and affiliated
entities

The organizational structure is presented in Section Il and Table 1- Organizational
Structure. Solutions provides services to Collus Power, Collingwood Water and the Town of
Collingwood.

HGorman@HSG-Group.biz
HSG Group, Inc. Phone (516) 244-6806
—




Report to Collus Solutions Corp.
Review of Cost Allocation Methodology
April 2013

Page 4

Step 2. Identify the services provided by Solutions to Collus Power, Collingwood
Water and the Town

Solutions provides services in the administrative and general areas identified in Table 2-
Services Provided by Solutions. Solutions does not provide operational support such as linemen,
operators and field supervisors.

Table 2- Services Provided by Solutions

» Customer billing, accounting and » Regulatory filings and compliance

collections
» Call center e Treasury
e Human resources o Tax
* Financial accounting and reporting e Legal

» IT support

Step 3.Determine the activities that are performed by Solutions employees to
provide the services identified in Step 2

Working with Solutions, we identified the role of each Solutions employee in providing
the services listed in Table 2- Services Provided by Solutions. Then, the activities performed by
each Solutions employee to provide those services were identified. This information is presented
in Exhibit 2, column A.

Step 4. Determine the portion of each Solutions employee’s total time devoted to
each activity identified in Step 3

The portion of each employee’s time that is spent on the activities identified in Step 3
was determined based on discussion with the employees as well as management estimates. The
distribution of the time each employee spends on each activity is shown in Exhibit 2, column B.

Step 5. For each activity identified in Step 3, distribute Solutions employees’ time
among the businesses for which the activity is performed, based on:

o0 Direct assignment- Time studies
o Cost drivers

There are two methods to distribute time (and other costs) among the businesses that use
a service— the methods are Direct Assignment and Allocation.

Direct Assignment is used when the portion of an activity devoted to a business can be

reasonably established. Some activities are performed exclusively for one business; the time is

HGorman@HSG-Group.biz
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directly assigned to that business. For many other activities, it was possible to estimate the
portion of employee time that is devoted to each business for which the activity (identified in
Step 3) is performed. The portion of time spent on each business was determined based on
employee input as well as management estimates.

Allocation is used when an activity is performed for more more than one business, but the
portions of time required by each business cannot be directly established. In this case, a cost
driver must be assigned to distribute the time required for the activity among the businesses. A
cost driver is a formula for sharing the cost of a resource (i.e., time) of an activity among those
who cause the cost to be incurred. The principles used to assign cost drivers are discussed in
Section V.

Direct assignment is preferable to Allocation because it is based on a more direct
relationship between activities and time.

The method (i.e., Direct assignment or Allocation) used to distribute the time spent in
each Solutions employee activity, among the businesses for which the activity is performed, is
presented in Exhibit 2, column C. For activities where time is Allocated, the cost driver selected
for the activity is also shown.

Step 6. Populate the cost drivers and compute cost driver shares

For each of the external cost drivers identified in Step 5, the values were obtained. The
share of the total cost driver values represented by each business (Collus Power, Collingwood
Water, Town) was computed.

For blended cost drivers, the values were computed based on other cost drivers. For
internal cost drivers, the values were computed based on other allocations. The share of the total
cost driver by each business (Collus Power, Collingwood Water, Town) was computed.

The allocator values and shares of total values are presented in Exhibit 3.

Step 7. Apply cost driver shares to activities to be allocated

For those activities identified in Step 5 as requiring allocation of time using a cost driver,
the portion of the Solutions employee’s time devoted to that activity was multiplied by the
appropriate cost driver shares, to determine the portion of the employee’s time allocated to each
business. The portions of each Solutions employee’s total time devoted to performing an activity
for the different businesses are shown in Exhibit 2; column D for Collus Power; column E for
Collingwood Water; and column F for the Town.

For example, for the Executive Assistant and Human Resources Officer devotes 6% of
time to the activity Human resources- hiring (Exhibit 2, line 14). This activity is allocated

HGorman@HSG-Group.biz
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among the businesses using the cost driver ‘Employees’, which allocates 46.2% to Collus Power
and 53.8% to Collingwood Water. Therefore, of the total time spent by this Solutions employee,
2.77% is allocated to Collus Power (6% times 46.2%) and 3.23% is allocated to Collingwood
Water (6% times 53.8%).

The total time for this employee is shown on Exhibit 2, line 23, columns D through F.

Step 8. Summarize time distribution by business and apply cost-based weights

As discussed in Step 5, the time devoted to each activity was distributed among the
businesses based on either Direct Assignment or Allocation. As discussed in Step 7, the cost
driver shares applicable to each business were multiplied by the portion of time devoted to each
activity, and the results are presented in Exhibit 2, columns D through F. The time each
Solutions employee devotes to the businesses sums to 100%.

Next, the time shares applicable to each Solutions employee were weighted to reflect
approximate differences in salaries. The weight for each Solutions employee is shown in Exhibit
2, column C, next to the employee’s position. The weighted results are presented in Exhibit 2;
column G for Collus Power; column H for Collingwood Water; and column | for the Town.

For example, the Executive Assistant and Human Resources Officer time is allocated
2.77% to performing the activity Human resources- hiring on behalf of Collus Power and 3.32%
on behalf of Collingwood Water (Exhibit 2, line 14). These portions are multiplied by the
weight for this employee. 1.5, and the weighted allocation of this activity for this employee is
4.15% to Collus Power (2.77% times 1.5) and 4.85% to Collingwood Water (3.23% times 1.5).

The total weighted time for this employee is shown on Exhibit 2, line 23, columns G
through 1.

Step 9. Allocate other costs and revenues

The result of the allocation of Solutions employees’ time is shown on Exhibit 2, line 178.
This result is carried forward to Exhibit 1, line 1.

Other costs and revenues of Solutions are allocated on Exhibit 1, lines 2 though 5.
The dollar amounts in Exhibit 1, column A are Solutions budget for 2013. The total
allocated dollars are presented on Exhibit 1, line 6, and the shares of the total are on line 8.

Step 10. Summarize and report

The results of the Cost Allocation are presented in Exhibit 1 and summarized in Section
VI, Table 4- Summary of Cost Allocation Results.
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V. CosT DRIVERS

As stated in Section 1V- Step 5, a cost driver is a formula for sharing the cost of a
resource (i.e., time) of an activity among those who cause the cost to be incurred. The guiding
principle used to assign cost drivers to activities is cost causation. Cost causation means that
there is a causal relationship between the cost driver and the resources used in performing the
activity. In some cases, cost causation cannot be easily implemented or established, in which
cases selecting cost drivers based on benefits received is a fair treatment.

Other factors considered in assigning cost drivers include:

Practicality — The cost driver should be understandable, obtainable at reasonable cost,
and objectively verifiable in the initial year as well as in subsequent years.

Stability — Cost driver values should be reasonably stable from year to year. When
estimates are used, the cost driver should be able to be estimated with reasonable accuracy, and
estimates should be unbiased.

Materiality — When choosing between cost drivers, small differences can often be
ignored in favor of Practicality and Stability.

A. Types Of Cost Drivers

Cost drivers can be classified as external or internal. External drivers are based on data
that are external to the cost allocation process, such as physical units or financial amounts.

Internal drivers are based on values computed as part of the allocation process. For
example, the cost of a supervisor’s salary might be allocated in the same proportion as the
salaries of the people being supervised, and the cost of general departmental expenses might be
allocated in the same proportion as the specifically assigned departmental activities. Exhibit 2,
column K indicates which activities are included in internal cost drivers. For example, the
activities that indicate ‘CEQ’ are include n the cost driver ‘Internal- CEO’.

B. Cost Driver Values

The cost driver values for the cost drivers used in the cost allocation methodology are
presented in Exhibit 3. The exhibit also shows the share of the total cost driver represented by
each business (Collus Power, Collingwood Water, Town).

C. Distribution of Solutions Employees’ Time

The basis for the distribution of Solutions employees’ time among the businesses (i.e.,
Direct Assignment or Allocation, and within Allocation, the type of allocator) is shown in Table
3- Basis for Distribution of Solutions Employees’ Time.
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Table 3- Basis for Distribution of Solutions Employees’
Time

Internal
9.0%

Financial
1.3%\

VI. CoMPLIANCE WITH OEB REQUIREMENTS
A. Affiliate Relationships Code

The cost allocation methodology developed for Solutions is consistent with the Affiliate
Relationships Code for Electricity Distributors and Transmitters, Revised March 15, 2010
(“*ARC?”) of the Ontario Energy Board (“OEB”). The ARC provides:

“Section 2.3.5.1 For shared corporate services, fully-allocated cost-based pricing (as
calculated in accordance with sections 2.3.4.1 and 2.3.4.2) may be applied between a utility and
an affiliate in lieu of applying the transfer pricing provisions of section 2.3.3.1 or section 2.3.3.6,
provided that the utility complies with section 2.3.4.3.”

“Section 1.2: ‘shared corporate services’ means business functions that provide shared
strategic management and policy support to the corporate group of which the utility is a member,
relating to legal, regulatory, procurement services, building or real estate support services,
information management services, information technology services, corporate administration,
finance, tax, treasury, pensions, risk management, audit services, corporate planning, human
resources, health and safety, communications, investor relations, trustee, or public affairs”

HGorman@HSG-Group.biz
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“Section 2.3.4.1: Where it can be established that a reasonably competitive market does
not exist for a service, product, resource or use of asset that a utility acquires from an affiliate,
the utility shall pay no more than the affiliate’s fully-allocated cost to provide that service,
product, resource or use of asset. The fully-allocated cost may include a return on the affiliate’s
invested capital. The return on invested capital shall be no higher than the utility’s approved
weighted average cost of capital.”

Most of the services provided by Solutions to Collus PowerStream and Collingwood
Water are “‘shared corporate services’ as defined by the ARC. In addition, Collus PowerStream
and Collingwood Water are affiliated with each other by virtue of the ownership interest of the
Town of Collingwood in both utilities.

Customer billing, accounting and collections and Call center are most efficiently
provided to Collus PowerStream and Collingwood Water by a single entity (i.e., Solutions),
because of the degree of customer overlap. A reasonably competitive market does not exist for
these services to be provided to these two utilities.

The services that Collus PowerStream acquires from Solutions are charged at Solutions’
fully-allocated cost to provide the services.

Therefore the provision of services to Collus PowerStream by Solutions, and the charges
for those services, comply with the ARC.

B. Three-Prong Test

In Docket RP-2002-0133 (In The Matter Of The Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998), the
OEB established a “Three-prong test” to determine the appropriateness for inclusion in rates of
affiliate costs allocated to a utility:

Cost incurrence: Were the charges prudently incurred by, or on behalf of, the utility for the
provision of services required by Ontario ratepayers?

The services performed by Solutions on behalf of Collus PowerStream are
necessary for the utility in the conduct of its business. The services
performed by Solutions are not performed by the utility or another entity.

Cost allocation: Were the charges allocated appropriately to the recipient companies
based on the application of cost drivers/allocation factors supported by
principles of cost causality?
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The allocation of costs incurred by Solutions and charged to Collus
PowerStream is based on direct assignment and cost drivers, and is
therefore supported by the principles of cost causality.

Cost/Benefit: Did the benefits to the utility’s Ontario ratepayers equal or exceed the

costs?

The services provided by Solutions benefit the ratepayers because they are
necessary for Collus PowerStream in the conduct of its business. The
costs incurred by Solutions in providing the services are reasonable based
on comparisons obtained from Statistics Canada.

VIIl. ASSET USE FEES

Collingwood Water charges Collus Power an Asset Use Fee for the use of certain assets
owned by Collingwood Water. These assets are a portion of an office building where Collus
Power employees work, and computer assets used by those employees. The Asset Use Fee for
each asset type includes the following components:

Depreciation expense for each asset is computed using the same basis as for financial
accounting purposes

The return component is computed by applying a weighted average cost of capital of
5.94% to the undepreciated cost (i.e., net book value) of the assets. The rate of return is based on
Collus Power’s upcoming rate case. The return component is grossed-up to provide for income
taxes at statutory Federal and Provincial rates on the return-to-equity portion of the return.

Annual costs include operating costs, property tax and insurance expense, as applicable.

For each asset type, the Asset Use Fee charged by Collingwood Water to Collus Power
equals the total cost based on the items above, times the portion allocated to Collus Power. For
the building asset, the portion allocated to Collus Power is based on square feet of usable space
occupied; and for the computer asset, that portion is based on workstations.

Therefore, the methodology to compute Asset Use Fees is cost-based and the allocation
of those costs reflects cost causation. The annual Asset Use Fee to be charged by Collingwood
Water to Collus Power is approximately $200,000 for the building, and approximately $22,000
for the computer. The computations are presented in Exhibit 4.
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VIIl. SUMMARY OF RESULTS AND CONCLUSION

The methodology developed for Collus PowerStream Solutions Corp. to distribute its
costs among the businesses it serves is cost-based, consistent with OEB precedent and regulatory
practice, and is transparent and efficient.

The cost allocation model developed for Collus PowerStream Solutions Corp.
implements this methodology.

The results of the cost allocation methodology are summarized in Table 4- Summary of
Cost Allocation Results.

Table 4- Summary of Cost Allocation Results
$000s except per customer gg\l,\l,l;i Convlvnai\évl?()d Town Total

Salaries & benefits $1,293 $710 $174 $2,177
Other costs and revenues, net 32 18 2 52
Total costs, net $1,325 $728 $176 $2,229
Overall Shares 59.4% 32.7% 7.9% 100.0%
Customers 9,647 6,438

Monthly cost per Customer $11.45 $9.42

In addition, the methodology to compute Asset Use Fees is cost-based and the allocation
of those costs reflects cost causation, and is therefore reasonable and appropriate.
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